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Financial Highlights
AT L E

KEY FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

EFEMBERER

For the year ended 31 December

BET-A=+-ALFEE

2024 2023
—E-mME —E=F
YoY Chopge RMB’000 RMB'000
REEH) ARMEF T ARBT T
Revenue L& 0.7% 2,055,670 2,041,858
Gross profit E A -1.7% 321,873 364,370
Gross profit margin ERE -2.1% 15.7% 17.8%
Profit before taxation B 35 A 7 -58.9% 63,055 153,429
Profit for the year F R A -88.5% 10,473 91,023
Profit for the year atfributable to owners of 2R Bl A A E1H
the Company F NN -87.3% 15,337 121,062
Adjusted EBITDA* 4% 55 2 EBITDA! -21.2% 229,636 291,309
Earnings per share — basic BRAR-ER
(RMB cents) (AR®ED) -87.3% 4.6 36.2
Total assets MEE -3.5% 2,741,535 2,624,986
Total liabilities FEy=R -6.4% 1,279,188 1,127,459
Equity atfributable to owners of the PAN/NEIET ZSDN
Company JE(EHE = -5.0% 1,439,522 1,424,185
Net gearing ratio FEEARX -53bp. 15.7% 21.3%
g Adjusted EBITDA is earnings before accounting for bank and other interest income, ~ # EABBIIDARKRRITREMF S KA -

MEFN HE TEREE QFEEK
=/ BRERATEFARR (RATE
stABE] 2RI ERE WA RE LUK

interest expense, taxes, depreciation and amortisation, fair value gain/loss and
investment income from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL")
and net exchange gain/loss.

wIEFEE -
| : |

u ) KANGHUA ‘
Fo Ml N FEEREER ]
il BERK
- SRER-NRE :
b 2006-2024 -

]
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ﬁATIENT VISITS OF HOSPITAL SERVICES

5 B AR 3 im A AR

Thousand Visits F A X
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@ 2023
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ﬁVENUE PROPORTION BY MAJOR HEALTHCARE DISCIPLINES *
FE

Financial Highlights
BB EE

MEUrzsibtE

Cardiovascular related disciplines . Neurology related disciplines

DMEBBERE HEBE2EENE

. Emergency medicine related disciplines Internal medicine related disciplines
SUEBRE AREERERE

. Orthopaedics related disciplines . General surgery related disciplines
BREBNE EEIMIEERE

. 0&G related disciplines . Other disciplines
HFENEEHE HABFRARRIE

Paediatrics related disciplines
REBSEBRNE

. Physical examination
BB

Oncology related disciplines (o)
O wermnz 14.1%
No. of outpatient
FIR AR 4.0%
12.2%
5.8%
2.3%
No. of 27.0%
Physical examination
- J /
* graE 478,540
REVENUE PoP OF MAJOR HEALTHCARE DISCIPLINES '
FERMEHAKRSEEL
RMB'000 A R ¥ F 7T
0 2024 @ 2023
271,010
258,977
224,300 225,834 213,494 212,455
152,296
143,344 ’
’ 126,149 124,279
o 94;20'550 107,243
80,907 85,740 78,030 g 73,414 68 656

Ortho- Internal General Emergency Neurology  Cardiova-  Oncology 0&G Paediatrics  Physical th?’ )

paedics medicine surgery medicine related scular related related related examinat-  disciplines

related related related related disciplines  related disciplines  disciplines  disciplines  ion

disciplines  disciplines  disciplines  disciplines disciplines

0 =2 g L MmE &R IRER REBE  EER Hth

BERZE ARER=E AERZE AERE BRAR=E BERE  AEE=E BRARE PR Rl =

* The amount does not include revenue from rehabilitation and other healthcare services, haemodialysis services and elderly healthcare services.
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TTHABRRE

In 2024, the global situation was complex and rapidly
evolving. Economic development showed a diverse and
fragmented landscape under the intertwined influence
of technological advancements and geopolitical factors.
The continued acceleration of digital transformation has
also intensified competition and innovation pressure
among industries. Under such environment, the
medical healthcare industry is undergoing changes at
an unprecedent scale. Amidst this wave of challenges
and opportunities, under the leadership of the Board,
all employees of the Group have closely followed our
development strategy of “Precision healthcare, Efficient
Management and Sincere Service”, committed to steady
progress with determination, we navigate our mission
to save lives with professionalism as our oar and
conviction as our sail, delivering a track record of solid
and impactful achievements.

—EoMF EHREBEMSE  KEZRENRK
RBEMEBOANIBEET - 2RAZTHEN
RBE - B CEARE IR B T ITERAR
FHRAFED EEENRRET  BEITXEEL
BEERANEE - 7255 70 im Pk BB R B -
SETRBTHEESTENERET  RZELR=KE
AN EERE BB IE BRG] B RBE -
BEFRDIGE - BEOHE  UERR/E  UESAN -
EHOLRBRESMEL - BT T HRIZANRE
BHOEFIMY
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Dear Shareholders:

On behalf of the Company, | sincerely express my gratitude to all Shareholders
and other community stakeholders for your continuous support to the Group.

In 2024, China’s healthcare market was subject to significant development trends
and industry changes. Digital transformation has become a focus, and the
growing popularity of telemedicine and healthcare management applications
has improved patients” medical experience while at the same time reduce
medical costs. The aging population is also leading to an increase in demand
for chronic disease management and elderly care services. Medical institutions
need to strengthen professional services for elderly patients and promote the
development of community medical care to achieve more accessible medical
services. Consumers’ awareness on health has promoted the demand for
personalized medical and health management services, and the healthcare
market is moving towards a more diversified and patient-centered direction.
Overall, China’s healthcare industry is moving towards greater efficiency and
accessibility.

Furthermore, in 2024, due to the intensified national policy reforms, decrease in
post-COVID-19 related demand and industry adjustments, the Group's revenue
and fotal profit attributable to operation of its self-owned hospitals experienced a
year-on-year decline, while its operational costs, including employee expenses
and other operating expenditures contfinued to increase. In particular, the
changes in healthcare, pharmaceuticals, and healthcare insurance policies
(the "Three Medical” policies) have altered the existing management models
and performance evaluation systems of healthcare institutions, presenting new
opportunities and challenges to the Group.

In 2024, the overall economic development in China remained steady, with the
gross domestic product (GDP) reaching RMB134.9 trillion, representing a year-
on-year increase of 5.0% at constant price. However, the healthcare industry
is still in a critical period of transition and the overall pace of recovery of the
healthcare and medical service industry was relatively weak during the Reporting
Period. In 2024, the healthcare industry had continued to evolve rapidly, as the
comprehensive reforms in the healthcare system reshaped the market and
industry players, the Chinese government is implementing policies aimed at
improving healthcare accessibility and affordability, including implementing laws
and regulations requiring hospitals and healthcare providers to improve price
transparency, emphasizing value-based care, reviewing and adjusting payment
rates for different Diagnosis-Related Group (DRG) payment groups, expanding
insurance coverage and promoting public-private partnerships.
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TTHARRE

The Group’s consolidated revenue for the Reporting Period amounted to
RMB2,055.7 million (2023: RMB2,041.9 million), representing a year-on-year
increase of 0.7%, despite the additional revenue of RMB75.8 million generated
from our newly acquired haemodialysis services segment in January 2024. The
Group recorded a consolidated profit of RMB10.5 million for the Reporting Period
as compared to a profit of RMB91.0 million for last year, representing a year-
on-year decrease of 88.5%. The decrease for the Reporting Period is primarily
attributable to (i) the general decline in revenue from the Group’s self-owned
hospitals; (ii) our newly acquired haemodialysis services business in January
2024, which contributed additional revenue to the Group, but was still operating
at a loss, which in turn added pressure to the Group’s overall results; (i) Kangxin
Hospital continued to operate at a loss; and (iv) a fair value loss of RMB9.4 million
in relation to our inferest in an investment fund.

The Group’s self-owned hospitals, namely, Kanghua Hospital (our approved
Grade A Class Il standard general hospital), Renkang Hospital (our Grade A
Class Il standard general hospital) and Kangxin Hospital (our private hospital
specializing in cardiovascular discipline), represented our Group’s hospital
services segment. Our hospital services segment has recorded a revenue for the
Reporting Period of RMB1,838.5 million (2023: RMB1,887.9 million), representing a
year-on-year decrease of 2.6%.

Under the strong leadership of the Board and through the collective efforts of the
entire hospital over the last three years, Kanghua Hospital successfully passed
the on-site review for the Grade Il Class A Hospital re-evaluation in September
2024 after a series of regulatory and self-initiated measures. On 1 November
2024, the Provincial Health Commission officially announced that Kanghua
Hospital had passed the re-evaluation. This achievement reflects Kanghua
Hospital's excellence in healthcare quality and hospital management, and during
this process, numerous outstanding departments and individuals emerged,
demonstrating the hospital’s core values, exceptional professional skills and
selfless dedication. In December 2024, our General Surgery Department regained
the recognition as a Key Clinical Specialty in Dongguan City; the Gastroenterology
Department had also officially passed the re-evaluation as a Key Specialty in
Dongguan City.

Guangdong Kanghua Healthcare Group Co., Ltd.
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Kanghua Hospital, in conjunction with the Grade IIl Class A Hospital re-evaluation,
has comprehensively implemented the directives of the higher health authorities
to strengthen healthcare quality control. In 2024, Kanghua Hospital also received
numerous honors at various levels, successfully being recognized as a National
Level Il Stroke Center, a National Inflammatory Bowel Disease Regional Center,
a National Headache Clinic, a Demonstration Unit for Obesity Management by
the China Non-public Medical Institutions Association and a Deputy Director Unit.
Additionally, it was designated as a Guangdong Province Trauma Center (Level
Il and a member of the Guangdong Province Minimally Invasive Endoscopic
Neurosurgery Alliance. As a result of the re-evaluation for Grade lll Class A status,
the Hypertension Control Center (Standard Version) certification, the Heart Failure
Center re-certification and the fifth review for “Human Assisted Reproductive
Technology”, Kanghua Hospital was officially inaugurated as a Teaching Hospital
of Guangdong Pharmaceutical University.

In 2024, Renkang Hospital continued to strengthen its healthcare quality control,
and enhance its technical capability, comprehensively optimize healthcare
service quality, while improving patient experience. Throughout the year, the
hospital focused on the development of the “Three Major Centers” to elevate
the overall standard of emergency and critical care services. Efforts to refine
the establishment of the “Trauma Center, Chest Pain Center and Stroke Center”
continued. Renkang Hospital also established a new Internal Medicine Ward,
launched Traditional Chinese Medicine (TCM) Daycare and Night Clinics, as
well as an Oral Night Clinic, thereby enhancing its core competitiveness with
community and neighboring hospitals. In terms of strengthening medical
staff training, multiple business knowledge training sessions were conducted
throughout the year to improve medical technical standards. Additionally, the
hospital implemented “Internet + Nursing Services”, providing home nursing care
to patients in need.

Our rehabilitation and other related healthcare services segment, represented
by the Anhui Hualin Group, had recorded revenue for the Reporting Period of
RMBI128.4 million (2023: RMB141.2 million), representing a year-on-year decrease
of 9.1%. The decrease in revenue was primarily due to decrease in the inpatient
intake and patients average spending at our rehabilitation hospitals, but partly
offset by the increase in patient visits at our rehabilitation centres. The private
rehabilitation market is expanding, driven by an increasing elderly population
and shift towards preventive rehabilitation services; however, the competition has
also been increasingly intense with more private clinics and facilities emerging
to meet the demand. New DRG regulations implemented in 2024 have kept
annual social insurance quotas at previous year's levels, impacting revenue in the
foreseeable future. Although efforts had been made to attract patients from new
regions in Anhui, patient volume remains limited, pressuring revenue growth for
2024.

ITHARZRE

REBRAES=FHRELE 2EHEREE
FREERPIEN - RIEBERDEEH o
TONFRERRNESSRSESERE
JEFIEFER K =RERERPL - BRK
KEMGRREP O BRHFERBEMZ -
BEAVEEEERSENERF OER
REBEMRBIEEREEM o W - B
EBERBEREEIEGEHR L (ZM) BREMR
BRA A NE AP C N BB B - B =
R EEAERT  = MEREZEFR O (REMR)
RE-LRPLERE FRXIAEHY
HEREMRBTE  REBR EXBER
[BRERKNBHEREMR] -

“EONF CRERABNRERREE
B - T BB R KE - 2E B BEIRT
mE RTTEERNBRER - FREEMRI=
RBPLINERTE BASZSREBEKX
E-BETEBRAGTL  WEHL-
ZZARR O] = KPR TE - CHRER
B A=REER  RRTERRERBE
BEREMZMOEMNEREMZ  BrEatE
REBBROZLBRFN ERIEEHAR
RENBITIELE  SFEERRT ZRE
BRBIF - 1= BB KE o 8 F R
[BEE+ RG] RAERRNBERM
FPIRERR R -

BRMMEEREMAEBERERS S &
BERER RREHHEBEREIARE
128488 L (ZE=F: ARK1412858
TT) RFEF B A% R A T E
AR R MM EE B UCAE ABREAF
HEIRD B ERMANEER LB
B ARG INFTIKEY - AL RIEMISEE
FADE NN TE R E RIS A E
TEMEER  BEEHREZLIZHAR
BEMEER MERENEBER - =T
“IUFEHEADRGIEAR B F EL S REBA
BRFBELIFHAKRE  ZEBWGEEN - &F
BERENRSIZHTRNESE  BEE
BENMRBR K T - MFEHRZERE
REES °

EREEEEEERNARAR



TTHARRE

Our haemodialysis services segment, which was the newly acquired business
segment in January 2024, had recorded revenue for the Reporting Period of
RMB75.8 million (2023: nil). The demand for haemodialysis service in China
had experienced significant growth and development in the last decade. As
people’s income and expectation for quality services increase, patients are
seeking alternative options in the private sector for haemodialysis services,
where they can enjoy more convenience, flexibility, and personalized care. It
is expected that the proportion of patients opting for private sector providers to
undergo haemodialysis-related treatments in the PRC will continue fo increase.
The geographical presence of our haemodialysis outpatient centres aligns
with the Group’s strategy of expanding and promoting the “Kanghua” brand
(which currently operates in the name of Kanghua Sunshine) in the Greater Bay
Area. The Kanghua Haemodialysis Group operates in major cities outside of
Dongguan, where Kanghua Hospital is located. The acquisition of the Kanghua
Haemodialysis Group can strengthen the Group’s network and visibility in the
region. In the opinion of the Directors, the acquisition will create synergies and
economies of scale for the Group, as they can leverage on each other’s network,
resources, expertise and reputation in the healthcare industry.

Our elderly healthcare services segment had recorded a revenue for the
Reporting Period of RMB12.9 million (2023: RMB12.7 million), representing a year-
on-year increase of 1.5%. As Renkang Elderly Care Centre is currently operating
at close fo maximum capacity, the slight increase in revenue for the Reporting
Period was mainly due to the improved utilisation during the year. Over the past
years, China’s elderly care service policies had continued to evolve in response
to the growing aging population and the need for diverse care options. The
government has been increasingly supportive of private elderly care centers.
As the operation matures, Renkang Elderly Care Centre has continues to gain
reputation for its elderly healthcare services in the district. Renkang Elderly Care
Centre will continue to focus on enhancing service quality and cooperating with
the evaluation process of Guangdong Province’s Pension Institution, striving to
achieve accreditation as a five-star elderly care institution.

The Group’s Adjusted EBITDA recorded a year-on-year decrease of 21.2% to
RMB229.6 million (2023: RMB291.3 million). Such Adjusted EBITDA indicates
that the Group’s core operation remained solid, after eliminating the effects of
financing, investment-related income, fair value changes of investments, effects of
exchange rates, capital expenditures and extraordinary non-cash related losses.

Guangdong Kanghua Healthcare Group Co., Ltd.
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In 2025, our Group will continue to strengthen the development of key specialties,
infroduce and cultivate prominent leaders in these fields, further optimize the
specialty layout, build top-notch specialized departments, and lead the hospital's
development. Furthermore, we will focus on high-end healthcare services: as
society develops, the demand for healthcare services is increasing, and patients’
expectations for high quality healthcare experiences are on the rise. Our Group
needs to promote our hospitals’ differentiated development and high-end
services, providing patients with convenient, personalized, and comprehensive
diagnostic and treatment management across the entire cycle, thereby
meaningfully enhancing the hospital’s high-end service capabilities.

In the future, the Group will standardize medical insurance, hospital infection
control, nursing, and pharmaceutical management through: fully leveraging
medical insurance policies and payment mechanisms, and strengthening the
management of medical insurance funds; comprehensively advancing the
“infection control” initiative to increase healthcare workers” awareness of hospital
infections and ensuring surgical quality and safety; enhancing the organizational
system for nursing quality control and the construction of nursing quality;
continuously upgrading nursing standards; and strengthening the management
of rational drug use.

Year 2025 is the last year of the Fourth Five-Year Plan. On the basis of completing
all the tasks this year, the Group must make solid preparations for the Fifth
Five-Year Plan in 2026.

“Though the road may be long, perseverance will lead to success; though the
task may be difficult, dedication will bring accomplishment”. As we embark on the
new journey in 2025, all Kanghua people must continue to uphold the hospital’s
virtue of “Caring for the People and Practicing Medicine with Integrity”, resolutely
implement the concept of “Three-Precision Management, Starting from Myself,
and face challenges with fearless courage and conviction. The healthcare industry
is intertwined with the well-being of the people, and the responsibilities are of
paramount importance. All Kanghua people will strive for excellence in discipline
construction, pursue excellence in service quality, exemplify the sacred duty of
saving lives and healing the wounded with practical actions, gather collective
strength into a great momentum, work resolutely for the vigorous development
of our hospitals, make history in safeguarding the health of the people, stride
forward towards higher goals, make our hospitals a reliable haven for patients to
entrust their health with peace of mind, safeguarding their health and well-being.
We are committed to propelling our hospitals” achievements to new heights,
cultivating a high-quality development path unique to Kanghua!

Chen Wangzhi
Chief Executive Officer
31 March 2025
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The Group is a well-recognised hospital operator and healthcare services
provider in the PRC with the mission of “Caring for the People and Practicing
Medicine with Integrity”. The Group operates four major business segments: (i)
provision of hospital services; (i) provision of rehabilitation and other healthcare
services; (iii) provision of haemodialysis services; and (iv) provision of elderly
healthcare services.

Our hospital services segment comprised three self-owned hospitals. We operate
one of the largest private general hospitals in the PRC, namely Dongguan
Kanghua Hospital (‘Kanghua Hospital”), located in Nancheng District, Dongguan,
Guangdong Province. Kanghua Hospital was also one of the first private general
hospital in the PRC to attain a Grade A Class lll rating under the National Health
and Family Planning Commission of the PRC classification system, the highest
rating attainable by hospitals in the PRC. Kanghua Hospital commenced
operation in November 2006 and covers a land area of 563 acres, with a total
building area of 398,000 square meters and has a designed capacity of 2,006
beds, of which 1,500 beds are already in use and operating. Kanghua Hospital
is an ecological large-scale hospital, it was rated as the highest level of “Industry
Credit AAA” and “Five-Star Service Capability” by the China Association of Non-
Public Medical Institutions, being the first in Southern China region. Kanghua
Hospital offers a continuum of healthcare services to a diverse range of patients,
particularly those with critical, complex or rare medical conditions. Kanghua
Hospital was awarded the 2023 Top 300 Prefecture-level Urban Hospitals, 2024
Top 100 Best Hospitals in the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area
and 2024 Dongguan Excellent Medical Insurance Demonstration Hospital during
the Reporting Period.

We also operate Dongguan Renkang Hospital ("Renkang Hospital”) located
in Houjie Town, Dongguan, Guangdong Province, a Grade A Class Il private
general hospital servicing the local communities in the surrounding area.
Located in Dongguan, Guangdong Province, Kanghua Hospital and Renkang
Hospital complement each other through patient referrals, technical assistance,
multisite practices and research and teaching collaboration. Renkang Hospital
commenced operation in March 2008 and covers a land area of 118 acres, with
a fotal building area of 110,000 square meters with close to 500 beds in service
capacity.

Our presence outside of Guangdong Province is Chongging Kanghua
Zhonglian Cardiovascular Hospital ("Kangxin Hospital”), a specialty hospital
in cardiovascular diseases in Chongging, the PRC. Kangxin Hospital is an
investment attraction project of the Chongging Investment and Trade Fair and
the first cardiovascular disease private hospital in Chongging. Kangxin Hospital
was built according to the national Grade A Class Il rating specialized hospital
standards. The campus covers an area of more than 30 acres, with a planned
building area of approximately 100,000 square meters and can accommodate
505 beds in service capacity.

Guangdong Kanghua Healthcare Group Co., Ltd.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Our rehabilitation and other related healthcare services segment, with its
operations located in Anhui Province, the PRC, mainly consist of two rehabilitation
hospitals, namely, Hefei Kanghua Rehabilitation Hospital and Hefei Jingu
Hospital, a Grade A Class | general hospital, Bengbu Renkang Hospital and
an out-patient centre (these hospitals and out-patient centre represent our
rehabilitation hospital and other healthcare services operation), and thirteen
rehabilitation centres and one vocational training school (representing our
rehabilitation centre services and other services operation). These operations
primarily consist of provision of special care services to patients with permanent
or long-term physical or mental disabilities and also healthcare and training
services for the disabled. These operations signify the Group’s offerings into
disability rehabilitation services outside of Guangdong Province, and our
expansion initiatives and confidence into quality rehabilitation services in the PRC.

Our haemodialysis services segment is principally engaged in the operation of
haemodialysis outpatient centres in the PRC. During the Reporting Period, the
Group completed the acquisition of 70% equity interest in Dongguan Kanghua
Haemodialysis Healthcare Investment Management Co., Ltd.* and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Kanghua Haemodialysis Group” or “Kanghua
Sunshine”). The provision of haemodialysis services generally refers to treatments
that replicate kidney’s function to remove wastes in blood for patients with kidney
conditions. The first outpatient centre of the Kanghua Haemodialysis Group
commenced operation in 2016. As at the date of this report, the Group operates
12 (2023: 13) haemodialysis centres, located in Guangzhou (2), Chengdu (3),
Shenzhen (1), Foshan (1), Zhongshan (1), Zhuhai (1), Yangjiang (1), Jieyang (1) and
Jiangmen (1), serving more than 930 (2023: 730) regular haemodialysis patients.
In 2024, the haemodialysis outpatient centres had performed more than 118,000
(2023: 90,000) haemodialysis operations. The Kanghua Haemodialysis Group
has introduced advanced concepts and technologies from haemodialysis
outpatient centres in Singapore and implemented high-quality dialysis and
refined chronic disease management. The Kanghua Haemodialysis Group is a
pioneer in introducing “harmless dialysis”, which is a protocol significantly more
advanced than the prevalent standard in the PRC and has significantly improved
the life span and quality of life of kidney patients.
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Our elderly healthcare services segment represents the operation of Renkang
Elderly Care Centre. Our comprehensive elderly healthcare centre with a
capacity of 108 (2023: 108) elderly beds located inside Renkang Hospital aims to
provide quality high-end elderly care services to local residents in Houjie Town,
Dongguan City, the PRC. In view of the accelerating aging population issue in the
PRC that leads to the high development potential of the healthcare and elderly
care industry, Renkang Elderly Care Centre signifies our Group’s presence and
extension of our “big health” concept business development.

Business Overview for 2024

In 2024, the overall economic development in China remained steady, with the
gross domestic product (GDP) reaching RMB134.9 frillion, representing a year-
on-year increase of 5.0% at constant price, according to data from the National
Bureau of Statistics. With a population of exceeding 1.4 billion and a rapidly
ageing population, China is experiencing a surging demand for healthcare
services. China’s hospital network is one of the largest and most complex
globally, including both public and private facilities. Operating under a tiered
structure, it addresses a wide range of healthcare needs, with private hospitals
increasingly complementing the extensive public infrastructure.

However, the healthcare industry is still in a critical period of transition and the
overall recovery of the healthcare and medical service industry is relatively weak
during the Reporting Period. In 2024, the healthcare industry has continued to
evolve rapidly, as the comprehensive reforms in the healthcare system reshape
the market and industry participants, the Chinese government is implementing
policies aimed at improving healthcare accessibility and affordability, including
implementing laws requiring hospitals and healthcare providers to improve price
transparency, emphasizing value-based care, reviewing and adjusting payment
rates for different Diagnosis-Related Group (DRG) payment groups, expanding
insurance coverage and promoting public-private partnerships.

In 2024, due to the intensified national policy reforms, decrease in post-
COVID-19 related demand and industry adjustments, the Group’s revenue and
total profit attributable to operation of its self-owned hospitals experienced a
year-on-year decline, while its operational costs, including employee expenses
and other operating expenditures continued to increase. In particular, the
changes in healthcare, pharmaceuticals, and healthcare insurance policies
(the “Three Medical” policies) have altered the existing management models
and performance evaluation systems of healthcare institutions, presenting new
opportunities and challenges to the Group.

Guangdong Kanghua Healthcare Group Co., Ltd.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Amidst this wave of challenges and opportunities, under the leadership of the
Board, all employees of the Group have closely followed our development
strategy of “Precision healthcare, Efficient Management and Sincere Service”,
committed fo steady progress and determined efforts, we navigate our mission to
save lives with professionalism as our oar and conviction as our sail, delivering a
track record of solid and impactful achievements.

In 2024, the Group's consolidated revenue for the Reporting Period amounted
to RMB2,055.7 million (2023: RMB2,041.9 million), representing a year-on-year
increase of 0.7%, despite the additional revenue of RMB75.8 million generated
from our newly acquired haemodialysis services segment in January 2024.
The Group recorded a consolidated profit of RMB10.5 million for the Reporting
Period as compared to a profit of RMB91.0 million for last year, representing
a year-on-year decrease of 88.5%. The decrease for the Reporting Period is
primarily attributable to (i) the general decline in revenue from the Group’s self-
owned hospitals; (i) our newly acquired haemodialysis services business since
January 2024, although contribute additional revenue to the Group, however,
is still operating at a loss, which added pressure to the Group’s overall results;
(iii) Kangxin Hospital continues to operate at a loss; and (iv) a fair value loss of
RMB9.4 million in relation fo our interest in an investment fund.
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Our hospital services segment has recorded a revenue for the Reporting Period
of RMB1,838.5 million (2023: RMB1,887.9 million), representing a year-on-year
decrease of 2.6%. In 2024, the overall patient visits of our hospital services
segment recorded a mild decrease of 0.9% as compared to 2023, the Group also
experienced pressure on patient’s average spending on our service offerings.
The Group’s self-owned hospitals (making up our hospital services segment),
Kanghua Hospital, Renkang Hospital and Kangxin Hospital have recorded
decrease in revenue of 1.6%, 6.7% and 10.6%, respectively.

Our rehabilitation and other related healthcare services segment, through our
ownership of 57% equity interest in Anhui Hualin Medical Investment Co., Ltd.*
(“Anhui Hualin) (Anhui Hualin and its subsidiaries, directly and indirectly holds
sponsor inferests in the managed and controlled entities, certain of which are
private non-enterprise entities in Anhui Province, the PRC, collectively the “Anhui
Hualin Group”), has recorded revenue for the Reporting Period of RMB128.4
million (2023: RMB141.2 million), representing a year-on-year decrease of
9.1%. Revenue for the Reporting Period from our (i) rehabilitation hospitals and
other healthcare services operation and (i) rehabilitation centre services and
other services operation have decreased by 26.4% and increased by 10.0%,
respectively. The decrease in revenue is primarily due to decrease in the inpatient
intake and patients average spending at our rehabilitation hospitals, but partly
offset by the increase in patient visits at our rehabilitation centres. The private
rehabilitation market is expanding, driven by an increasing elderly population
and shift towards preventive rehabilitation services, however, the competition is
also increasingly intense with more private clinics and facilities emerging to meet
the demand.

Our haemodialysis services segment, the newly acquired business segment in
January 2024, has recorded revenue for the Reporting Period of RMB75.8 million
(2023: nil). The demand for haemodialysis service in China had experienced
significant growth and development in the last decade, mainly attributable to (i)
the rising incidence of chronic kidney disease (CKD) and end-stage renal disease
(ESRD) which has increased the demand for dialysis services; (i) lifestyle changes,
urbanization and an aging population; and (iii) the Chinese government has been
actively promoting healthcare reforms, including the expansion of dialysis services
and policies aimed at improving access to treatment and subsidizing costs for
patients are being implemented. As people’s income and expectation for quality
services increase, patients are seeking alternative options in the private sector
for haemodialysis services, where they can enjoy more convenience, flexibility,

Guangdong Kanghua Healthcare Group Co., Ltd.
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and personalized care. It is expected that the proportion of patients opting for
private sector providers to undergo haemodialysis-related treatments in the PRC
will confinue to increase. The geographical presence of our haemodialysis out-
patient centres aligns with the Group’s strategy of expanding and promoting the
“Kanghua” brand (which currently operates in the name of Kanghua Sunshine)
in the Greater Bay Area. The Kanghua Haemodialysis Group operates in major
cities outside of Dongguan, where Kanghua Hospital is located. The acquisition
the Kanghua Haemodialysis Group can strengthen the Group’s network and
visibility in the region. In the opinion of the Directors, the acquisition will create
synergies and economies of scale for the Group, as they can leverage on each
other's network, resources, expertise and reputation in the healthcare industry.

Our elderly healthcare services segment has recorded a revenue for the
Reporting Period of RMB12.9 million (2023: RMB12.7 million), representing a year-
on-year increase of 1.5%. As Renkang Elderly Care Centre is currently operating
at close fo maximum capacity, the slight increase in revenue for the Reporting
Period is mainly due to the improved utilisation during the year. Over the past
years, China’s elderly care service policies have continued to evolve in response
to the growing aging population and the need for diverse care options. The
government has been increasingly supportive of private elderly care centers,
including (i) allocation of more resources to enhance private elderly care facilities
and services, such as grants and incentives for infrastructure development
and improvements; (i) provision of operational subsidies and tax incentives; {iii)
stronger emphasis on promoting home-based care; and (iv) efforts to integrate
private elderly care services into social security and health insurance systems,
making it easier for families to afford private elderly care services.

The Group’s Adjusted EBITDA (which is defined as earnings before accounting
for bank and other interest income, interest expenses, taxes, depreciation and
amortisation, fair value gain/(loss) and investment income from financial assets
at FVTPL and net exchange gain/(loss)) recorded a year-on-year decrease of
21.2% to RMB229.6 million (2023: RMB291.3 million), which indicates that the
Group’s core operation remained solid, after eliminating the effects of financing,
investment-related income, fair value changes of investments, effects of exchange
rates, capital expenditures and extraordinary non-cash related losses. Details
and calculations on Adjusted EBITDA are set out in the section headed “Adjusted
EBITDA” in this report.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEENWR DN

Hospital Services

The Group’s self-owned hospitals, namely, Kanghua Hospital (our approved
Grade A Class Il standard general hospital), Renkang Hospital (our Grade A
Class Il standard general hospital) and Kangxin Hospital (our private hospital
specializing in cardiovascular discipline), represented our Group’s hospital
services segment. During the Reporting Period, the key metrics of our financial
and operational performance are as follows: (i) the total number of inpatient visits
increased to 76,968 (2023: 74,337), representing a year-on-year increase of 3.5%;
(ii) the overall average spending per inpatient visit amounted to RMB14,114.3
(2023: RMB14,523.2), representing a year-on-year decline of 2.8%; (iii) the overall
bed utilisation rate improved to 74.3% (2023: 71.9%), primarily attributable to the
increase in number of inpatient visits; (iv) the average length of stay maintained
at 6.4 days (2023: 6.4 days); (v) the total number of outpatient visits decreased to
1,499,016 (2023: 1,530,169), representing a year-on-year decrease of 2.0%; (vi)
the overall average spending per outpatient visit amounted to RMB430.2 (2023:
RMB428.7), representing a year-on-year increase of 0.4%; (vii) the total number
of physical examination visits increased to 181,661 (2023: 169,651), representing
a year-on-year increase of 7.1%; and (viii) the total number of surgical operations
increased to 53,871 (2023: 48,105), representing a year-on-year increase of
12.0%.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BIEENRE DN

The table below sets forth certain key operational data of the Group’s self-owned TR &I AEB B AN ERRED HRIE
IR REENE TEELERE

hospitals of the hospital services segment for the years indicated:

For the year ended 31 December

BE+-ZA=+—HLFE

Change 2024 2023
) —E-NEF —E_=F
Inpatient healthcare services Il B BRI
Inpatient visits FBT AR +3.5% 76,968 74,337
Average length of stay (days) FHERAS(R) - 6.4 6.4
Average spending per visit (RMB) BARFEHRZ (AR T) -2.8% 14,114.3 14,523.2
Outpatient healthcare services PR BB R
Outpatient visits P92 AR -2.0% 1,449,016 1,530,169
Average spending per visit (RMB) BARFHREZ(ARETT) -0.4% 430.2 4287
Physical examination services B AR A%
Physical examination visits BB AR +7.1% 181,661 169,651
Average spending per visit (RMB) BAREHREZ(ARET) -34.2% 590.3 897.7
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Kanghua Hospital

In 2024, under the strong leadership of the Board and through the collective
efforts of the entire hospital over the last three years, Kanghua Hospital
successfully passed the on-site review for the Grade Il Class A Hospital re-
evaluation in September 2024 after a series of regulatory and elective measures.
On 1 November 2024, the Provincial Health Commission officially announced
that Kanghua Hospital has passed the re-evaluation. This achievement reflects
Kanghua Hospital's excellence in medical quality and hospital management,
and during this process, numerous outstanding departments and individuals
emerged, demonstrating the hospital’s core values, exceptional professional skills
and selfless dedication. In December 2024, our General Surgery Department
regained the recognition as a Key Clinical Specialty in Dongguan City; the
Gastroenterology Department has also officially passed the re-evaluation as a
Key Specialty in Dongguan City.

Kanghua Hospital, in conjunction with the Grade lIl Class A Hospital re-evaluation,
has comprehensively implemented the directives of the higher health authorities
to strengthen medical quality control. In 2024, Kanghua Hospital also received
numerous honors at various levels, successfully being recognized as a National
Level Il Stroke Center, a National Inflammatory Bowel Disease Regional Center,
a National Headache Clinic, a Demonstration Unit for Obesity Management by
the China Non-public Medical Institutions Association and a Deputy Director Unit.
Additionally, it was designated as a Guangdong Province Trauma Center (Level
Il and a member of the Guangdong Province Minimally Invasive Endoscopic
Neurosurgery Alliance. Through the re-evaluation for Grade Il Class A status,
the Hypertension Control Center (Standard Version) certification, the Heart Failure
Center re-cerfification and the fifth review for “Human Assisted Reproductive
Technology”, Kanghua Hospital was officially inaugurated as a Teaching Hospital
of Guangdong Pharmaceutical University.

In 2024, Kanghua Hospital continued to optimize its management practices.
The hospital’s administrative and logistics departments worked closely together
with high efficiency and selfless dedication, accomplishing a significant amount
of work, including: (1) enhancing responsibility and improving management
efficiency; (2) proactively engaging with frontline clinical services, thereby
increasing our service awareness; (3) improving the spirit of collaboration and
proactively taking on responsibilities; and (4) raising management skill levels,
with the culture of efficiency improvement and cost reduction becoming deeply
ingrained.

During the Reporting Period, Kanghua Hospital recorded a revenue of RMB1,541.2
million (2023: RMB1,566.2 million), representing a year-on-year decrease of 1.6%,
mainly due to a drop in patients’ average spending and revenue from physical
examination.

Guangdong Kanghua Healthcare Group Co., Ltd.
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Renkang Hospital

In 2024, Renkang Hospital continued to strengthen its medical quality control,
and enhance its technical levels, fully optimize medical service quality, and
improve patient experience. Throughout the year, the hospital focused on
the development of the “Three Major Centers” to elevate the overall standard
of emergency and critical care services. Efforts to refine the establishment of
the “Trauma Center, Chest Pain Center and Stroke Center” continued, and in
May 2024, Renkang Hospital received notification from the Dongguan Health
Bureau, designating it once again as an emergency medical rescue hospital
for road traffic accidents, resuming the treatment of critically injured traffic
accident patients. Renkang Hospital also established a new Internal Medicine
Ward, launched Traditional Chinese Medicine (TCM) Daycare and Night Clinics,
as well as an Oral Night Clinic, thereby enhancing its core competitiveness
with community and neighboring hospitals. In terms of strengthening medical
staff training, multiple business knowledge training sessions were conducted
throughout the year to improve medical technical standards. Additionally, the
hospital implemented “Internet + Nursing Services” and in compliance with the
city health bureau’s management requirements, completed registration and
successfully commenced services in December 2024, providing home nursing
care to patients in need. Clinical specialty development is fundamental to the
hospital’s foundation and its strengthening. To bolster specialty development, a
Science and Education Department was established this year to formulate, revise
and improve regulations and management methods in areas such as discipline
construction, research, publications, talent selection, teaching, and continuing
education.

During the Reporting Period, Renkang Hospital recorded a revenue of RMB232.2
million (2023: RMB248.9 million), representing a year-on-year decrease of 6.7%.
The decrease in revenue was mainly attributable to a drop in patients’” average
spending and overall decrease in patient visits, which was affected by the local
economic environment with the decline in number of local immigrants, and the
number of people seeking medical treatment has dropped significantly.
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Kangxin Hospital

In 2024, Kangxin Hospital closely aligned with national healthcare policies,
focusing on its cardiovascular specialty while enhancing its general services to
leverage the hospital’s unique strengths and meet patients’ health needs. The
hospital remained focused on its development goals, expanding channels,
deepening market reach, and continuously broadening its service scope. It also
strengthened its talent pool and focused on medical quality and safety, achieving
significant social and economic benefits and taking the hospital’s overall
development to a new level.

Throughout the year, Kangxin Hospital made several notable achievements,
including: (i) successfully hosting the 5th Chongging-Europe (Kangxin) International
Cardiovascular Disease Forum, and parficipating in multiple free clinics and
screening events across various districts and counties in Chongging, significantly
enhancing the hospital’s influence and reputation; (i) successfully establishing
General Surgery, Thoracic Surgery, and Urology departments, and performing its
first laparoscopic appendectomy and cholecystectomy, marking the successful
establishment of its major surgery department. The hospital also opened a
Health Management Nursing Clinic, receiving positive feedback from patients;
(iii) successfully organizing the inaugural meeting and first academic annual
conference of the Chongqing Social Medical Institutions Cardiac Rehabilitation
Professional Group; and (iv) receiving certification for performing leadless
pacemaker procedures and being awarded the title of “National Standardized
External Counterpulsation Center Construction Unit”.

During the Reporting Period, Kangxin Hospital has recorded a revenue of
RMB65.2 million (2023: RMB72.9 million), representing a year-on-year decrease
of 10.6%, primarily due to a decrease in the average spending per visit despite an
overall improvement in patient visits.

Guangdong Kanghua Healthcare Group Co., Ltd.
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The table below sets forth the revenue contribution by healthcare disciplines of

our hospital services segment for the years indicated:

Management Discussion and Analysis

SERB D

EREHED

For the year ended 31 December

BE+t-RA=1t-HLHFE

i

TREIRITREEIRERRRIE D a5
SRR ER B R

% of revenue % of revenue

of the Group's of the Group's

owned owned

2024 hospitals 2023 hospitals

“EIME  SARE  —TZ=F  HEA%E

Change RMB000  EEBKRM RMBO00  HEBERA

Healthcare disciplines BER 2 ARBTR WEEAL  ARETT KRB

Cardiovascular related disciplines DMERBRE -4.4% 258,977 14 271,010 143

Internal medicine related disciplines ANERME -0.7% 224,300 12.2 225,834 120

0&G related disciplines RERMEBEMNE +0.5% 213,494 1.6 212,455 13

General surgery related disciplines LTRIIEERE +13.6% 143,344 7.8 126,149 67

Neurology related disciplines BERERERE -3.0% 120,550 6.6 124,279 6.6

Orthopaedics related disciplines E"ﬂﬁ RE -5.6% 80,907 44 85,740 45

Emergency medicine related disciplines EVERNE -14.2% 78,030 42 90,949 48

Oncology related disciplines BEREENE +6.9% 73,414 4.0 68,656 36

Nephrology related disciplines EHBARNE +3.2% 71,888 39 69,676 37

Medical esthefic related disciplines BEXABEME +4.6% 47,668 2.6 45,569 24

Paediatrics related disciplines REREEEME -18.4% 42,434 23 51,980 28

Physical examination R -29.6% 107,243 58 152,296 81

Other disciplines HMRARRE +3.6% 376,283 20.5 363,295 19.2

Total st 1,838,532 100.0 1,887,888 100.0
Note: The Group’s healthcare disciplines can generally be classified into clinical disciplines  Hf&F : Zli EENEER ﬂ MRl D R R IR E R

and medical technology disciplines. Medical technology disciplines provide
diagnostic and treatment support according to the requirements of clinical disciplines
from time to time. Revenue derived from services delivered through medical
technology disciplines is generally recognised in the relevant clinical disciplines that

utilised such services.
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In 2024, the Group performed a total of 53,871 surgeries (2023: 48,105), including
24,031 surgeries (2023: 22,092) with level 3 or level 4 complexities, representing
a year-on-year increase of 12.0% and 8.8%, respectively. The increase is primarily
attributable to an increase in patient visits which demonstrates the improvements
in our medical service quality and capabilities, as well as the growing recognition
of our brand and reputation.

During the Reporting Period, the top five revenue-generating disciplines from the
Group’s hospital services segment accounted for approximately 52.3% of the
segment’s revenue (2023: 50.9%). Revenue from most of our major disciplines
and service offerings has recorded a decline in 2024. The Group only recorded
a mild decrease in the overall number of patient visits, however, recent stringent
reforms in the social security system, particularly regarding payment rate
adjustments and standardized pricing for common procedures, have resulted
in a reduction in patients’ average spending, and in turn a decline in revenue
compared to last year.

VIP Special Services

The Group’s special services are high-end healthcare services that extend beyond
basic medical services and are specifically catered for more affluent patients who
are willing to pay a premium for higher quality and customised services that are
not generally available in public hospitals. The Group’s special services consist
of VIP healthcare services, reproductive medicine, plastic and aesthetic surgery
and laser treatment. In 2024, the total revenue derived from special services
amounted to RMB149.0 million (2023: RMB159.9 million), representing a year-on-
year decrease of 6.8%.

Guangdong Kanghua Healthcare Group Co., Ltd.
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The table below sets forth the revenue contribution for the Group’s special
services for the years indicated:

VIP healthcare services EEBERY
Reproductive medicine HIEEE

Laser freatment b G DI=E

Plastic and aesthetic surgery B ERINE
Total revenue from special services R 7R AR 7% O 48 W 2

In 2024, the performance of our VIP healthcare services declined as the number
of VIP outpatient visits and inpatient’s average spending per visit decreased
as compared with last year. The demand (by number of inpatient visits) for our
service offerings from Huaxin Building (a complex in Kanghua Hospital dedicated
to VIP healthcare services) maintained relatively stable, however, average
spending per inpatient visit has significantly decreased. Our revenue from VIP
healthcare services (including VIP inpatient and outpatient services and VIP O&G
services) amounted to RMB95.0 million for the Reporting Period (2023: RMB100.0
million), representing a year-on-year decrease of 4.9%. The Group believes the
decline is related to the staggering economic environment in the Dongguan
region.

Our revenue from reproductive medicine decreased to RMB30.6 million (2023:
RMB35.7 million), representing a year-on-year decline of 14.4%. This decrease
is primarily attributed to the ongoing decline in the general sentiment fowards
childbirth and the lingering effects of the pandemic.

Rehabilitation and other Healthcare Services

The Group’s rehabilitation and healthcare services segment, represented by
Anhui Hualin Group, is operated through two rehabilitation hospitals, a general
hospital, an outpatient center, thirteen rehabilitation centers, and one vocational
training school. During the Reporting Period, the Group’s rehabilitation and other
related healthcare services segment recorded a revenue of RMB128.4 million
(2023: RMB141.2 million), representing a year-on-year decrease of 9.1%.
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2024 2023

—ENFE —E-=F

Change RMB’000 RMB'000
2 ARBET T ARET T
-4.9% 95,016 99,964
-14.4% 30,594 35,749
-8.9% 18,487 20,294
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Anhui Hualin Group employs over 1,000 (2023: 980) staff and has a stable
cooperation with the Anhui Disabled Persons Federation and local governments
in the provision of training services for the disabled. It is also a major organisation
offering children rehabilitation services in Auhui Province, the PRC. As at 31
December 2024, Hefei Kanghua Rehabilitation Hospital and Hefei Jingu Hospital
operated a fotal of 260 registered beds (2023: 250). During the Reporting Period,
the rehabilitation hospitals recorded 27,988 outpatient visits (2023: 24,434) and
4,624 inpatient visits (2023: 4,614).

In 2024, a full inspection of hemophilia services by the Hefei Municipal Medical
Insurance Bureau led to a suspension of these services, significantly impacting
revenue generated from Hefei Jingu Hospital. Efforts to restore operations have
included promoting special outpatient services, diagnosis and treatment projects,
and medical experts, resulting in increased outpatient volume. Notably, traditional
Chinese medicine outpatient visits have risen compared to last year.

Inpatient visit growth and revenue have been restrained by social insurance limits
and stricter production safety regulations, leading to fewer work-related injury
patients. New DRG regulations implemented in 2024 have kept annual social
insurance quotas at last year's levels, impacting revenue forecasts. Although
efforts have been made to attract patients from new regions in Anhui, patient
volume remains limited, pressuring revenue growth for 2024.

The business environment for children’s rehabilitation services remains more
favorable than for adults. Measures are being implemented to promote the
growth and sustainability of children’s rehabilitation centers. The Group continues
to monitor the market and seek partnerships with suitable local rehabilitation
centers. In 2024, the thirteen rehabilitation centers (including the newly
established rehabilitation center under the management of the Hefei Disabled
Persons’ Federation) admitted a total of 3,493 (2023: 3,277) children with cerebral
palsy, autism, hearing impairment and mental retardation, with a year-on-year
increase of 6.6% compared to 2023.

During the Reporting Period, revenue from rehabilitation hospital and other
healthcare services recorded a year-on-year decrease of 26.4% to RMB54.4
million (2023: RMB73.9 million) and revenue from rehabilitation centres services
and other services recorded a year-on-year increase of 10.0% to RMB74.1 million
(2023: RMB67.4 million).

Guangdong Kanghua Healthcare Group Co., Ltd.
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Haemodialysis services segment

The Group’s haemodialysis services segment represents the operation of
haemodialysis outpatient centres in the PRC. During the Reporting Period,
the Group completed the acquisition of 70% equity interest in the Kanghua
Haemodialysis Group. As at the date of this report, the Kanghua Haemodialysis
Group operates 12 haemodialysis centres, located in Guangzhou (2), Chengdu
(3), Shenzhen (1), Foshan (1), Zhongshan (1), Zhuhai (1), Yangjiang (1), Jieyang (1)
and Jiangmen (1), serving more than 930 (2023: 730) regular haemodialysis
patients. In 2024 (since its acquisition), the haemodialysis outpatient centres
had performed more than 118,000 haemodialysis operations as compared with
approximately 90,000 haemodialysis operations with 2023, representing a year-
on-year growth of over 31.1%.

The Kanghua Haemodialysis Group benefits from a strong recurring patient flow
and stable income, as haemodialysis requires ongoing and regular sessions
rather than being a one-time treatment. The Group plans to increase its service
capacity, thereby expanding its revenue base. For the Reporting Period, the
Kanghua Haemodialysis Group generated revenue of RMB75.8 million, which
has been consolidated into the Group’s annual results. The Board is of the
view that the acquisition is expected to enhance the profitability and efficiency
of the Kanghua Haemodialysis Group. Although currently loss-making, the
haemodialysis services segment is anticipated to generate positive returns for the
Company and its Shareholders in the long term.

Elderly Healthcare Services

The Group’s elderly healthcare services segment comprised our comprehensive
elderly healthcare centre located inside Renkang Hospital, namely, Renkang
Elderly Care Centre with the vision of providing quality high-end elderly care
services to local residents in Houjie Town, Dongguan City, the PRC.

In 2024, Renkang Elderly Care Centre had a total of 108 (2023: 108) beds with
an average length of stay of 113.2 days (2023: 118.2 days) and achieved an
average annual bed utilisation rate of 91.0% (2023: 87.9%). Revenue from the
provision of elderly healthcare services for the Reporting Period amounted
to RMB12.9 million (2023: RMB12.7 million), representing a period-on-period
increase of 1.5%, primarily due to improved utilisation during the year. As the
operation matures, Renkang Elderly Care Centre continues to gain reputation
for its elderly healthcare services in the district. In 2024, the center has placed
an emphasis on providing high-quality follow-up services for elderly residents,
including traditional Chinese medicine physiotherapy and rehabilitation training.
Additionally, the center has strengthened internal management, revising and
improving safety protocols and other systems for nursing homes to ensure the
standardization and institutionalization of all service aspects. Renkang Elderly
Care Centre will continue to focus on enhancing service quality and cooperating
with the evaluation process of Guangdong Province’s Pension Institution, striving
to achieve accreditation as d five-star pension institution.
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Industry Outlook and Strategy

China’s medical reform is rapidly advancing towards establishing a high-
quality and efficient healthcare system with unique Chinese characteristics. As
a leading healthcare service provider, the Group embraces these opportunities
and challenges by adhering to professional, standardized, and differentiated
management services. During the Reporting Period, we focused on enhancing
hospital management, improving the quality of comprehensive medical services,
and promoting development in standardization, specialization, and branding.

In late June 2024, a national conference on China’s health development and
healthcare reform discussed topics including public hospital reforms, medicine
supply, and social insurance. China aims to improve access to public healthcare
services, especially at the primary level, and reduce patients’ financial burdens in
2024. The reform tasks include enhancing public healthcare services, developing
public hospitals, and reforming medicine-related policies. The current year's
reforms have also emphasized medical technological progress, multi-tiered
diagnosis and treatment, and digitalized services.

The National Healthcare Security Administration’s “Three-Year Action Plan for
DRG/DIP Payment Reform” mandates that Diagnosis-Related Groups (DRG)/
Diagnosis-Intervention Packet (DIP) payment models have been implemented
in all planning areas at the end of 2024 and will cover all qualified medical
institutions providing inpatient services by the end of 2025. This plan promotes
transparency and efficiency in medical insurance, requiring high standards from
private medical institutions and attracting patients with long-term and complex
ilinesses.

Guangdong Kanghua Healthcare Group Co., Ltd.
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Looking forward into 2025, we anticipate that China’s hospital reform will continue
to focus on:

o Healthcare Accessibility: Improving access fo services, particularly in rural
and underserved areas, by increasing community health centers and
enhancing telemedicine.

o Quality of Care: Standardizing and improving care quality through stricter
regulations and performance evaluations.

° Integration of Services: Enhancing integration between primary,
secondary, and tertiary healthcare services to improve referral systems
and continuity of care.

o Digital Health: Prioritizing the adoption of digital technologies, including
electronic health records (EHRs) and Al-driven diagnostics, fo streamline
operations and improve outcomes.

o Insurance Reforms: Expanding social insurance coverage and improving
reimbursement rates to make medical services more affordable and
accessible.

Healthcare expenditure in China is projected to reach RMB205 frillion by 2030.
Despite recent challenges, the Board is positive on the healthcare sector for 2025.

Our Strategy

In 2025, our Group intends to capitalise on industry opportunities through the
following measures:

o Continue to strengthen the development of key specialties: Enhance the
construction of key specialty departments such as the Cardiovascular
Center, Plastic and Cosmetic Surgery, Obstetrics and Gynecology,
Health Management Center, Rehabilitation Medicine, Hematology and
Lymphoma, Digestive Diseases Center, Laboratory, Oncology Precision
Treatment Center, Breast Center, and General Surgery. Infroduce and
cultivate prominent leaders in these fields, further optimize the specialty
layout, build top-notch specialized departments, and lead the hospital’s
development.
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o Focus on high-end medical services: As society develops, the demand
for medical services is increasing, and patients’ expectations for high-
quality medical experiences are rising. Our Group needs to promote the
hospitals’ differentiated development and high-end services, providing
patients with convenient, personalized, and comprehensive diagnostic
and treatment management across the entire cycle, thus meaningfully
enhancing the hospital’s high-end service capabilities.

o Standardize medical insurance, hospital infection control, nursing, and
pharmaceutical management: Fully leverage medical insurance policies
and payment mechanisms, and strengthen the management of medical
insurance funds. Comprehensively advance the “infection control”
initiative to increase healthcare workers” awareness of hospital infections
and ensure surgical quality and safety. Enhance the organizational
system for nursing quality control and the construction of nursing quality,
continuously upgrading nursing standards. Strengthen the management
of rational drug use.

Future Plans for Material Investments and Capital Assets
The Kanghua Qingxi Healthcare Complex

The Kanghua Qingxi Healthcare Complex is the Group’s new elderly medical
and healthcare complex development in Qingxi Town, Dongguan City (the
land use rights of a land parcel which was acquired in year 2020), construction
work of the main facilities had commenced in 2021. The development involves
a comprehensive elderly healthcare medical facility with a particular focus
on geriatric patients and rehabilitation, and will further enhance the Group’s
capability in providing high-end integrated medical care to meet the increasing
demand for such services in Guangdong Province, the PRC.

The Kanghua Qingxi Healthcare Complex has a total construction area of more
than 130,000 square meters, and the planned architectural content includes
several medical technology buildings, inpatient buildings, and nursing buildings,
among which we expect there will be 500 inpatient beds and about 800 nursing
and rehabilitation beds. The first phase of construction covers the medical
technology building, the inpatient building, and the rehabilitation building, with
a total construction area of approximately 44,000 square meters. We expect
the construction and inspection of the main structure of the buildings for the first
phase of the construct to complete by mid of 2025, the relevant interior decoration
to complete by end of 2025, and aim to put the first phase of the project info
operation by early 2026. As of 31 December 2024, the total investment in
Kanghua Qingxi Healthcare Complex amounted to approximately RMB229.2
million.

Save as disclosed in this report, the Group did not have other plans for material
investments or capital assets as of the date of this report.

Guangdong Kanghua Healthcare Group Co., Ltd.

. Wﬂmﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ EEHERE

SUNEEREHFRARIER
$%£ﬁﬁg ERRAONGTLE
THIRT - B R M5 h%%%k
BRME MRS - (5l - RiE - %

an *HE%%”kf§Eﬁ¢%33%§%E1 tEREL

B REEHZER2BEHREIRE
EE&% % P = o AR A% O BE T 7K ZE

. MEER TR B BEEEIE o
FEDEREBRBOR K H#H - 1L
BERECER -2 EMEE [RM] 1T
B RREBABRK :‘E”Ejé REEF

MimEZE - TEEEMEE A
ng/\uéfﬁuug%ﬁxlﬂz ?%%E%U&
EEmE - BB HMBAERES
# -

ERWERENEEZ KRGS

B o BED R RARBUNREMEREA
MmEFrEFERRRFARBARER (X
_Tiqﬁlﬁ%%%mﬁﬂ’]ii@@ﬁﬁﬁé) CER
RENERTEER T - —FFHiH - AE
BREE (SRS EEFEERE - IR
TEFBENREE UHE—FPREAEE

RS BEERREOESN  LUHE
hEEEL AR EENBEREER -

FR 2 o 5 X o B 4B 2 S5 THI 75 461 130,000 F 75
K HEBENRBRBERERE - Ehkig
MFEEE - EP R MBEF A ERIRAL500
%*%ﬁ@@%ﬁﬁ&mﬁ°*%lﬁaﬁ
ERE EREREEE QFEARBY
44,000 F 5K o FAMITEHI — %L % IE B AR
CE RGP ENEETREBER

Bl YR ZZE-RAFEIITKEBERNE
LvaEF_Y_AEMm%ﬁE—%&A
o BE_ZT-_WMF+=-A=+—H &
BEDRMBIRERHNARE22927

W&

it +HH+§+J

L]
57T ©

BAREWEE AR BN ARE B HL
BEMEAREAEINERNEERE -



Segment Revenue

The Group generates revenue primarily from: (i) hospital services — provision
of healthcare services through its owned hospitals, namely Kanghua Hospital,
Renkang Hospital and Kangxin Hospital, comprising inpatient healthcare services,
outpatient healthcare services and physical examination services; (ii) rehabilitation
and other healthcare services — provision of rehabilitation services to patients with
physical or mental disabilities and other healthcare related services including
elderly care and training service for the disabled; (i) haemodialysis services —
provision of haemodialysis services, which generally refers to treatments that
replicate kidney’'s function to remove wastes in blood for patients with kidney
conditions; and (iv) elderly healthcare services — provision of elderly healthcare
services, including assisted living, adult daycare, long-term care, residential care
and hospice care to the aged patients.

The following tables below set forth the revenue, cost of revenue, gross profit and
gross profit margin of the Group by segment for the years indicated:

For the year ended 31 December 2024

Rehabilitation

and other

Hospital healthcare

services services

EBERHEM

B R BERK

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETRT AR¥TT

Revenue Iz 1,838,532 128,449

Cost of revenue U g A AN (1,549,785) (101,777)

Gross profit E R 288,747 26,672

Gross profit margin E MK 15.7% 20.8%
For the year ended 31 December 2023

Hospital

services

B P R 7%

RMB'000

AREF T

Revenue g 1,887,888

Cost of revenue &N (1,554,815)

Gross profit EH 333,073

Gross profit margin EA=E 17.6%
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Elderly

Haemodialysis healthcare
services services Total

mg Z5F
FE R BRR% et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT AREBTT AR®TRT
75,770 12,919 2,055,670
(74,328) (7,907) (1,733,797)
1,442 5,012 321,873
1.9% 38.8% 15.7%

HE-"FT-—=ZF+-"A=+—HIFEF
Rehabilitation

and other Elderly

healthcare healthcare
services services Total

BR8N A A EF
BER EER® st
RMB’'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBTT AR®TT
141,243 12,727 2,041,858
(114,424) (8,249) (1,677,488)
26,819 4,478 364,370
19.0% 35.2% 17.8%
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Revenue from the Group’s hospital services amounted to RMB1,838.5 million
(2023: RMB1,887.9 million), representing a year-on-year decrease of 2.6% and
accounting for 89.4% (2023: 92.5%) of the total revenue of the Group.

Revenue from hospital services comprised (i) revenue from inpatient healthcare
services amounted to RMB1,086.4 million (2023: RMB1,079.6 million), representing
a year-on-year increase of 0.6%, accounting for 52.8% (2023: 52.9%) of the
total revenue of the Group; [ii) revenue from outpatient healthcare services
amounted to RMB644.9 million (2023: RMB656.0 million), representing a year-
on-year decrease of 1.7%, accounting for 31.4% (2023: 32.1%) of the total revenue
of the Group; and {iii) revenue from physical examination services amounted
to RMB107.2 million (2023: RMB152.3 million), representing a year-on-year
decrease of 29.6%, accounting for 5.2% (2023: 7.5%) of the total revenue of the
Group. The decrease in revenue from hospital services is primarily attributable
to (i) the decline in revenue of our major medical disciplines, in particular,
physical examination, paediatrics related disciplines, emergency medicine
related disciplines, orthopaedics related disciplines and cardiovascular related
disciplines; (i) the decrease in patient average spending across all of our major
service offerings; and (i) despite the increase in the number of inpatient and
physical examination visits during the Reporting Period. The decline in average
spending is primarily due to downward adjustments in payment rates for
different DRG groups and tightened social insurance payment quotas under
the DIP model implemented by the Ministry of Human Resources and Social
Security. Additionally, the significant drop in revenue from physical examinations
is due to fewer examination tasks performed per patient during the Reporting
Period. Recent reforms and tightened social insurance payments are expected
to contfinue to put a pressure on our revenue growth. With recent intensified
national policy reforms, decrease in post-COVID-19 related demand and industry
adjustments, the Group’s revenue of our self-owned hospitals experienced a
year-on-year decline. In particular, the changes in healthcare, pharmaceuticals,
and the “Three Medical” policies have altered the existing management models
and performance evaluation systems of healthcare institutions, presenting new
opportunities and challenges to the Group.

Guangdong Kanghua Healthcare Group Co., Ltd.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Revenue from rehabilitation and other healthcare services amounted to RMB128.4
million (2023: RMB141.2 million), representing a year-on-year decrease of 9.1%,
accounting for 6.2% (2023: 6.9%) of the total revenue of the Group. Revenue
from rehabilitation and other healthcare services comprised (i) revenue from
rehabilitation hospital and other healthcare services amounted to RMB54.4
million (2023: RMB73.9 million), representing a year-on-year decrease of 26.4%
and (ii] revenue from rehabilitation centres services and other services (in
particular our children rehabilitation operations) amounted to RMB74.1 million
(2023: RMB67.4 million), representing a year-on-year increase of 10.0%. The
decrease in revenue is mainly attributable to (i) the suspension of our hemophilia
services at our rehabilitation hospitals due to regular inspection by the local
government authority; (i) recent reforms and policy implementation in payment
rates adjustments as well as restrictions on annual social insurance payout
quotas; and (i) despite the increase in patient visits and revenue from our
children rehabilitation centres operations.

Revenue from haemodialysis services amounted to RMB75.8 million (2023:
nil), accounting for 3.7% (2023: nil) of the total revenue of the Group. The
haemodialysis services segment was newly acquired by the Group in January
2024 and is still operating at loss. The Board is optimistic that the haemodialysis
services segment will be one of the key revenue drivers of the Group in the
medium to long term.

Revenue from elderly healthcare services represented the provision of elderly
healthcare services at Renkang Elderly Care Centre, which amounted to RMB12.9
million (2023: RMB12.7 million), representing a year-on-year increase of 1.5%,
accounting for 0.6% (2023: 0.6%) of the total revenue of the Group. The relatively
stable revenue level is mainly atftributable to the maturing business operation
of Renkang Elderly Care Centre which is already operating at our maximum
capacity.

Cost of Revenue

Cost of revenue of the Group’s hospital services segment (consisting of
inpatient healthcare services, outpatient healthcare services and physical
examination services) primarily consisted of cost of pharmaceuticals and medical
consumables, staff cost, depreciation and amortisation, service expenses, utilities
expenses, rental expenses and other costs. Cost of revenue of the Group’s
hospital services segment amounted to RMB1,549.8 million (2023: RMB1,554.8
million), representing a year-on-year decrease of 0.3%. The decrease in cost of
revenue of our hospital services segment is mainly attributable to the decrease in
operation in all of our self-owned hospitals with drop in cost of pharmaceuticals
and medical consumables, however, partly offset by the increase in direct staff
related costs and rental expenses during the Reporting Period. The rise in direct
staff-related costs reflects ongoing pressure in staff retention expenses and a
shortage of qualified professionals in the market. Additionally, Kangxin Hospital
continued to operate at a negative gross margin during the Reporting Period.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEENWR DN

Cost of revenue of the Group's rehabilitation and other healthcare services
segment amounted to RMB101.8 million (2023: RMB114.4 million), representing
a year-on-year decrease of 11.1%, and primarily consisted of staff costs, medical
consumables, depreciation, utilities and rental expenses. Staff costs are
salaries and benefits for healthcare professionals, including physical therapists,
occupational therapists, speech therapists, and nursing staff involved in patient
care. Medical consumables are therapeutic supplies associated with purchasing
and maintaining rehabilitation equipment (e.g., treadmills, weights and adaptive
devices) and consumable supplies. The decrease in the cost of revenue for
our rehabilitation and healthcare services segment is primarily due to reduced
operations at Hefei Jingu Hospital as a result of the suspension of hemophilia
services during the Reporting Period.

Cost of revenue of the Group’s haemodialysis services segment amounts
to RMB74.3 million (2023: nil) and primarily consisted of staff costs, medical
consumables, depreciation, utilities and rental expenses. Direct staff costs include
expenses related to the salaries and benefits of healthcare professionals, such as
nephrologists, nurses, and technicians who provide dialysis treatments. Medical
consumables refer to medical supplies and costs associated with the purchases
and maintenance of dialysis machines, tubing, filters, and other consumables
necessary for each treatment session. Facility overhead such as utility expenses
relates to the operational costs of the dialysis centres, including rent, water and
electricity and maintenance of the facility. Other costs are expenses related to
ancillary services, such as lab tests and cleaning and waste treatment.

Cost of revenue of the Group’s elderly healthcare services represents direct
operating costs at Renkang Elderly Care Centre, which amounted to RMB7.9
million (2023: RMB8.2 million), representing a year-on-year decrease of
4.1%, which primarily consisted of cost of services including direct staff cost,
consumables and cost of meals incurred at the centre. There were no significant
changes in cost of revenue as the centre had been operating at high utilisation.

During the Reporting Period, costs of pharmaceuticals, costs of medical
consumables and staff cost accounted for approximately 25.4% (2023: 26.6%),
25.9% (2023: 26.0%) and 34.3% (2023: 33.0%), respectively, of the total cost of
revenue of the Group. The proportion of cost of pharmaceuticals and medical
consumables as percentage of total cost of revenue recorded a decrease during
the Reporting period, which is mainly attributable to the decrease in operations
of our hospital services segment. Our fotal staff-related costs, including salaries,
bonuses, and other benefits, increased by 7.4% compared to the prior year.
This increase is primarily attributable to (i) higher salary levels, retention costs,
and a shortage of professional medical staff in the market; and (i) the impact in
acquisition of the Kanghua Haemodialysis Group during the Reporting Period.

Guangdong Kanghua Healthcare Group Co., Ltd. Annual Report 2024
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

Total gross profit of the Group amounted to RMB321.9 million (2023: RMB364.4
million), representing a year-on-year decrease of 11.7%. The overall gross profit
margin declined to 15.7% (2023: 17.8%), primarily due to: (i) the decrease in
revenue from our hospital services segment; (i) the decrease in the average
patient spending from our inpatient and physical examination services; (i) the
impact in acquisition of the haemodialysis services business in January 2024;
and (iv) the deterioration in financial performance of Kangxin Hospital, which is
still operating at a negative gross margin.

Other Income

The other income of the Group primarily consisted of bank and other interest
income, investment income from financial assets at FVTPL, government and other
subsidies, fixed operating lease income (rental income), clinical trial and related
income and others. During the Reporting Period, other income amounted to
RMB53.5 million (2023: RMB46.3 million), representing a year-on-year increase
of approximately 15.6%, primarily due to (i) increase in government and other
subsidies to RMB5.4 million (2023: RMB2.3 million); (i) increase in clinical trial
and related income to RMB19.5 million (2023: RMB13.2 million); (i) increase in
bank and other interest income to RMB6.0 million (2023: RMB4.9 million); and (iv)
partially offset by a decrease in investment income from financial assets at FVTPL
to RMB7.8 million (2023: RMB12.1 million), which mainly represented investment
return from structured deposits with banks in the PRC, caused by the decrease in
average investment being placed during the Reporting Period.

Other Expenses, Gains and Losses, net

The other expenses, gains and losses of the Group primarily consisted of fair
value gain/(loss) on financial assets at FVTPL, loss on disposals of property, plant
and equipment, donations and net exchange gain/(loss). During the Reporting
Period, other expenses, gains and losses amounted to a net loss of RMB7.3
million (2023: net loss of RMB6,000), which primarily comprised of (i) a recorded
unrealised fair value loss on financial assets at FVTPL of RMB9.4 million (2023:
fair value loss of RMB0.9 million) in relation to our interest in an investment
fund; (i) a recorded net exchange gain of RMB2.5 million (2023: net exchange
gain of RMB1.1 million) mainly arising from our Hong Kong dollar denominated
financial assets; (i) loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment amounted
to RMBO0.4 million (2023: loss of RMBO0.2 million); and (iv) donations made of
RMB0.09 million (2023: RMB0.06 million).
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Net Provision of Impairment Losses under Expected Credit Loss (ECL)
Model

During the Reporting Period, impairment losses under expected credit loss
model recorded a net provision of RMB4.3 million (2023: RMB2.8 million). The
net provision for the Reporting Period was mainly attributable to (i) an increase in
the overall balance of accounts and other receivables at the end of the Reporting
Period (with the effects of acquisition of the Kanghua Haemodialysis Group); and
(ii) increases in the Group’s accounts receivable aging and deterioration in credit
rating of certain corporate customers and outstanding debts from patients. In the
past years, the Group has increased its efforts to recover overdue debts, including
recovering receivables from patients through legal actions, as well as tightening
credit reviews given to corporate customers.

The Group collectively assesses ECL for the accounts and other receivables,
except for accounts receivable from the PRC government's social insurance
scheme and certain credit impaired debtors which are assessed for ECL
individually. The provision rates are based on internal credit ratings as groupings
of various receivables that have similar loss patterns. The collective assessment
is based on the Group’s historical default rates taking into consideration forward-
looking information that is reasonable and available without undue costs or effort.
At every reporting date, the historically observed default rates are reassessed
and changes in the forward-looking information are considered.

The management of the Group closely monitors the credit quality of accounts
and other receivables and considers the debts that are neither past due nor
impaired to be of a good credit quality. Receivables that were neither past due
nor impaired related to the customers and debtors for whom there was no
history of default. As part of the Group’s credit risk management, the Group
uses receivables’ ageing to assess the impairment for its receivables except
for accounts receivable from the PRC government's social insurance schemes
and certain credit impaired debtors of which ECL are assessed individually.
These receivables consist of a large number of small patients with common risk
characteristics that are representative of the patients” abilities to pay all amounts
due in accordance with the contractual terms.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Administrative Expenses

The administrative expenses of the Group primarily consisted of staff costs, repairs
and maintenance expenses, office expenses, depreciation and amortisation,
rental expenses, utilities expenses, entertainment and travelling expenses and
other expenses. Administrative expenses for the Reporting Period amounted to
RMB277.1 million (2023: RMB242.4 million), representing a year-on-year increase
of approximately 14.3%, primarily due to (i) the increase in administrative staff
related costs to RMB99.5 million (2023: RMB84.1 million), representing a year-on-
year increase of approximately 18.2%, primarily due to rise in general salary level
and the impact in acquisition of the haemodialysis services business in January
2024; (i) the increase in rental expenses and property management expenses to
RMB26.6 million (2023: RMB23.4 million), representing a year-on-year increase
of approximately 13.4%; (iii) the increase in repair and maintenance expenses
as well as other major administrative expenses including office expenses and
entertainment and travelling expenses; (iv) increase in provision for medical
dispute claims expense; and (v) decrease in management and consultancy fees.

Finance Costs

Finance costs for the Reporting Period amounted to RMB23.6 million (2023:
RMB12.1 million), representing a year-on-year increase of 96.0%. Finance costs for
the Reporting Period represents (i) interest on bank loans of RMB9.6 million (2023:
RMB14.6 million), the decrease is mainly due to one of the Group’s major bank
loans was repaid in full during the Reporting Period (part of the repayment was
replaced by an interest-bearing advance from the Company’s immediate holding
company, Kanghua Group); (i) interest on other loan from Kanghua Group of
RMB3.1 million (2023: nil) (the advance from Kanghua Group was fully repaid
during the Reporting Period); (iii) the interest element relating to lease liabilities
charged to profit or loss of RMB7.2 million (2023: RMB7.5 million); (iv) other
finance charges of RMB11.7 million (2023: RMB2.6 million), the increase is mainly
due to the remaining unamortised bank arrangement fee that was charged to
profit or loss on a one-off basis during the Reporting Period together with the full
repayment of the bank loan; and (v) less amount of interest capitalised in the cost
of qualifying assets of RMB7.9 million (2023: RMB12.8 million).
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Income Tax Expenses

The income tax expenses of the Group primarily consisted of PRC enterprise
income tax and Hong Kong Profits Tax. Income tax expenses for the Reporting
Period amounted to RMB52.6 million (2023: RMB62.4 million), representing a
year-on-year decrease of approximately 15.7%. The subsidiaries of the Group
in the PRC are generally subject to income tax rate of 25% on their respective
taxable income. Certain subsidiaries of the Group in the PRC are regarded as
“small and micro enterprises” and, accordingly, were entitled to a preferential
income tax rate of 5.0% (2023: 5.0%) during the Reporting Period. Our effective
tax rate for the Reporting Period is 83.4% (2023: 40.0%). The decrease in income
tax expenses was primarily due the decrease in profits generated at Kanghua
Hospital during the Reporting Period.

Profit for the Year
The Group recorded profit for the Reporting Period amounted to RMB10.5 million

(2023: RMB91.0 million), and profit attributable to shareholders of the Company
amounted to RMB15.3 million (2023: RMB121.1 million).
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Adjusted EBITDA

The profit for the Reporting Period is the primary performance indicator of the
Group, which reflects the totality of the Group’s performance based on IFRS and
has been discussed in the management discussion in this report. The relevant
disclosures on Adjusted EBITDA are intended to provide an additional measure
for investors to understand the Group’s core operating performance based on
elimination of impact that the management considers is not reflective of the core

operations of the Group.

The following table sets out the reconciliation from profit before taxation to

Adjusted EBITDA and explanation notes:

Management Discussion and Analysis
BIEENRE DN

48 I8 FE EBITDA

BERWEMNAAEBHEIREERER K
RSB RN BRI E ERINE R RS -
WERARENEEE T T AR °

R A EBTDA BN EE £ R EER
HEBEINGAENEREEER RS TRERBR

AEBZLES

R EEE -

VB W T RAREN

TFREPI B AT @ ) 824 5 2 EBITDA MY ¥7 B8R
KRR AR

For the year ended 31 December

BE+T-A=t—HLFE

2024 2023
—E-ME —E=F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 AR¥ETF T ARETF T
Profit for the year F RN 10,473 91,023
Add: Income tax expenses o ERFEY 52,582 62,406
Profit before taxation (IFRS measure) FRE AR T (BB B 3R 5
ZHIFE) 63,055 153,429
Add: Finance costs o BERAK (i) 23,627 12,055
Add: Depreciation of right-of-use assets m:ERAEEERE (i 43,172 36,165
Add: Depreciation of property, plant and e BERRERTE
equipment (i) 106,683 106,914
EBITDA (non-IFRS measure) EBITDA (3 B B B 75 3R 236,537 308,563
Add: Fair value loss on financial assets at i 1 IR FEFABRZNESBEE
FVTPL NTHEEE (i 9,400 882
Less: Investment income from financial B RATEFABSENEREE
assets at FVTPL HERA (i) (7,797) (12,092)
Less: Exchange gain I R E (iv) (2,504) (1,126)
Less: Bank and other inferest income R RIT R EAMF WA (v) (6,000) (4,918)
Adjusted EBITDA (non-IFRS measure) TR EBITDA (GEBIPR B FE 3R 5
ZEAIFTE) 229,636 291,309
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Notes: B &

(i EBITDA [represents earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization] is (i} EBITDA ($5 % B4 & K $5 A1 A1) JY B 15
an additional tool for users of the financial information to understand the cash profit BRMEREEBRIIGRIE  BEANAE (BE
generated by the Group’s operations, by eliminating the impact of taxes, cost of ERA)ARGERAREERYE BERZE
debts (finance costs) and non-cash depreciation of right-of-use assets and property, ZHBEWEZEE UTHRASBEES
plant and equipment. EBITDA can also represent the financial outcome of operating FTEE & 3R &% M eV FE SN T A  EBITDA N A]
management decisions by eliminating the impact of non-operating management TEEBBERIELETIRRNTLE (FlR
decisions, such as tax expenses, inferest expenses and depreciation, and enables HRAX - FIBRAX RITE) EEBEERREK
to assess the substantive profitability of the Group net of expenses dependent on R 4R - W] AR AN & B HBREUR
financing decisions, tax strategy, and discretionary depreciation schedules. REERE BBERREMBETERBR

WX ENEE RS -

(i) Fair value loss/(gain) on financial assets at FVTPL represents fair value changes of (il &R AFEFABZENEREEAFEER,
investments held by the Group. As part of the Group’s cash management policy (Wz) lBEAEERENRAQATEZS -
to manage excess cash, the Group purchased investment products from financial ERASEENERBEReMNEF—18
institutions or invest info funds to achieve higher inferest income without inferfering ReBBERR FAEEETHEEBLEE
with the business operations or capital expenditures. Such investment products or FEARATHMART  MEfEEEER
investment funds held by the Group does not form part of the Group’s core business BEMIBREES  NERESHFEK
operations and subject to fair value changes from time to fime with fair value gains A AEEFEHNHEREERKIRER
or losses recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. In the opinion SUWTERAERIZOEBELN—F 5
of the Directors, such gains or losses associated with the investment is not reflective WRAFETREHRNGEAIERRER
of the daily business operations of the Group, and removal of such gains or losses HWAFEWRRSBIEZRR - EERA
would enable the users of the financial information to better understand the core BT EBANZE KA EE IR R
operating performance of the Group. SENBREBEE  UMRZEREK

BESEMEEHEREE THRAEED
RS -

il Investment income from financial assefs at FVTPL represents investment income (il & AFEFABZNEREERB W AIE
earned by the Group which primarily includes interest income from structured bank REBAFKEMBERA  TEBEARE
deposits purchased by the Group. As part of the Group’s cash management policy FFBEEMNEBERITEROFEWEA -
to manage excess cash, the Group purchased investment products from financial EAAERENERBBERSNET —B
institutions o achieve higher interest income without inferfering with the business ReBBEBR ASEETTEXEBLEE
operations or capital expenditures. Such structured bank deposits do not form part FEAZTHMART  MEfEEEER
of the Group’s core business operations. In the opinion of the Directors, the income BER UWERESHMBERA 254
associated with the structured bank deposits is not reflective of the daily business FEVESRIT 17 AR 00 T4 PR AN & B A0 3 75 38
operations of the Group, and the removal of such income would enable the users of EW—Hoy EZRA HEAEBERTE
the financial information to better understand the core operating performance of the HREBABOBRANRREAEENEEER
Group. EE WHMBRZE WA EMEERER

EETHRASENROLERSE -

liv  Exchange (gain)/loss represents the financial impact in movements of exchange (vl B} (Uz5) /BIEBEEXREH T E Y AL

rates primarily on the Group’s fixed bank deposits which is denominated in Hong BB ENTHRTTERANT BT E -
Kong dollars. Other than the fixed bank deposits, the Group does not have other BREHRITERI  REBIUEEME KX
significant foreign currency denominated financial assets and liabilities. In the opinion INEFTENEREERBEBE -EERAE

of the Directors, such exchange gains or losses associated with fixed bank deposits HEMRRITEREANZEEL KR E
are not reflective of the daily business operations of the Group, and the removal BUARMAEENRAEEBES - WM
exchange gains or losses would enable the users of the financial information to BRIEN Wk BB EMEEREREE
better understand the core operating performance of the Group. THRAEENZOKEEE -

(v Bank and other interest income primarily represents interest income from bank ~ (v)  $R1T R E AR S A T B IRITF MG

deposits from the savings accounts. In the opinion of the Directors, such interest ERPEGOMERA -EERA  ZF
income is not reflective of the daily business operations of the Group, and the FEWAN R REAEER B EEREES -
removal of such interest income would enable the users of the financial information Wi Rz EF S WMABETBERERE
to better understand the core operating performance of the Group. FTMASENZOLEES -
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FINANCIAL POSITION

Property, Plant and Equipment, Rights-of-Use Assets and Deposits Paid
for Acquisition of Property, Plant and Equipment

During the Reporting Period, the Group acquired property, plant and equipment
and incurred expenditure on construction in progress of RMB60.4 million (2023:
RMB38.5 million) and RMB48.4 million (2023: RMB111.1 million), respectively,
mainly for the purpose of (i) upgrading and expanding the service capacity of
our hospital operations, rehabilitation service operations and haemodialysis
outpatient centres; (i) construction cost incurred at Phase Il medical facility at
our Kangxin Hospital; and {iii) construction for the development of our Kanghua
Qingxi Healthcare Complex.

At 31 December 2024, the Group has right-of-use assets of RMB280.1 million
(2023: RMB284.3 million) which includes leasehold lands of RMB212.0 million
(2023: RMB216.7 million) and leasehold land and buildings relating to leases
of RMB68.2 million (2023: RMB67.6 million) recognised in accordance with IFRS
16. During the Reporting Period, the Group entered into new lease agreements
for the use of properties in the PRC ranging from 2 to 5 years and is required to
make fixed monthly payments. On lease commencement, the Group recognised
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities of RMB2.8 million (2023: RMBO.5 million)
relating to each of those new leases during the Reporting Period.

During the Reporting Period, the Group recognized an addition of RMB30.9
million in property, plant, and equipment due to the acquisition of subsidiaries.
On the acquisition date, the Group also recognised an addition of RMB36.1 million
in right-of-use assets and RMB36.1 million in lease liabilities for properties in the
PRC, with remaining lease terms ranging from 1to 13 years.

At 31 December 2024, the Group has deposits paid for acquisition of property,
plant and equipment amounting to RMB29.5 million (2023: RMB36.2 million). The
deposits mainly represent deposits paid for construction cost of Phase Il medical
facility at our Kangxin Hospital and amount paid for acquisition of new medical
equipment and other new facilities as the Group continues to upgrade its medical
facilities and expand its operation capacity.
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Other Asset

Other asset represented a brand introduction fee paid by the Group to procure
the introduction of the “Artemed” brand by Silver Mountain Capital Limited (“Silver
Mountain”) o Kangxin Hospital under a management arrangement with Silver
Mountain in 2022 ("Management Arrangements”). Details of the Management
Arrangements are set out in the Company’s announcement dated 23 May 2022.
Pursuant to the Management Arrangements, Silver Mountain shall provide a
series of services with a view to improving and optimising the operations of
Kangxin Hospital including the introduction of a German medical group “Artemed”
to Kangxin Hospital to participate in daily management and operations,
overseas and domestic resources, research capabilities, clinical achievement
transformation, policy innovation, cooperation with medical colleges, key scientific
construction, medical informatics, medical payment system, quality control, expert
collaboration and cost control. The “Artemed” license holder has granted Kangxin
Hospital for a non-exclusive right to use Artemed brand in Mainland China. As at
31 December 2024, other asset of RMB17.4 million has been reclassified to and
included in assets classified as held for sale.

Accounts and Other Receivables

The account receivables of the Group primarily consisted of balances due from
social insurance funds, certain corporate customers and individual patients.
As at 31 December 2024, accounts receivables amounted to RMB265.6 million
(2023: RMB256.7 million), of which 66.2% (2023: 68.8%) were aged within 90
days. Average accounts receivables turnover days for the current year is 46.4
days (2023: 43.5 days). The increase in accounts receivables and accounts
receivable turnover days was primarily due to the increase in balance due from
social insurance funds and other government authorities, and certain corporate
customers, as well as impact in acquisition of the haemodialysis services
business in January 2024. As at 31 December 2024, the Group has carried out
credit assessment on its accounts receivables and a net provision of impairment
loss of RMB4.3 million (2023: impairment loss of RMB2.8 million) has been
charged to profit or loss during the Reporting Period.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The other receivables of the Group primarily consisted of prepayments
to suppliers and others. As at 31 December 2024, total other receivables
amounted to RMB46.9 million (2023: RMB45.5 million) and primarily comprised
(i) prepayments to suppliers of RMB11.3 million (2023: RMB8.6 million); (i) other
receivables comprising prepayments to other non-trade suppliers, security
deposits and other prepaid expenses and others amounted to RMB37.9 million
(2023: RMB39.3 million), which is offset by a net provision expected for credit loss
of RMB2.2 million (2023: RMB2.4 million).

Disposal Group Classified as Held for Sale

On 20 December 2024, the Board resolved to dispose of 55% equity interest of
Kangxin Hospital to Silver Mountain or its affiliates. As the demerger of Kangxin
Hospital conducted under PRC laws, pursuant to which Chongging Kanghua
Zhonglian Healthcare Management Co., Ltd.* ("Chongqing Kanghua Property”), a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, has been established to hold the land
and buildings underlying the operations of Kangxin Hospital, was completed
and the land and buildings were transferred to Chongging Kanghua Property,
Kangxin Hospital was in a condition ready for immediate sale. The assets and
liabilities of Kangxin Hospital have been presented separately in the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2024.

On 9 January 2025, the Company entered into a sale and purchase agreement
with an independent third-party, Beijing Pantheon Health Management Co., Ltd.*
(“Pantheon Health”), a company established in the PRC and is under common
control with Silver Mountain, for the disposal of 55% equity inferest in Kangxin
Hospital at a consideration of RMB34.9 million. The disposal was later completed
on 8 February 2025.
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Accounts and Other Payables and Provisions

The accounts and other payables and provisions of the Group primarily consisted
of accounts payables, accrued expenses, receipt in advance, payables for
acquisition of property, plant and equipment, provision for medical dispute
claims, other tax payables and others. As at 31 December 2024, accounts
and other payables and provisions increased to RMB758.8 million (2023:
RMB660.3 million) primarily attributable to: (i) an increase in accounts payable
to RMB357.9 million (2023: RMB317.3 million), mainly due to the acquisition of
the haemodialysis services business in January 2024; (i) a decrease of accrued
expenses fo RMB90.5 million (2023: RMB96.1 million); (iii) an increase in receipt in
advance to RMB250.0 million (2023: RMB197.5 million) which mainly represents
temporary funds received from social insurance fund; and (iv) an increase in
payables for acquisition of property, plant and equipment to RMB26.3 million
(2023: RMB20.6 million); and (v) an increase in provision for medical dispute
claims to RMB2.9 million (2023: RMBI1.2 million), comprising a net provision for the
Reporting Period of RMB7.5 million (2023: RMB3.1 million).

Net Current Assets and Net Assets

As at 31 December 2024, the Group recorded net current assets of RMB236.9
million (2023: RMB328.8 million) and net assets position of RMB1,462.3 million
(2023: RMB1,497.5 million).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES
Financial Resources

The Group continued to maintain a strong financial position with cash and
cash equivalents of RMB242.6 million (2023: RMB305.2 million) and fixed bank
deposits of RMB65.8 million (2023: RMB63.4 million) as at 31 December 2024. The
Group continues to generate steady cash inflow from operations and coupled
with sufficient cash and bank balances, in the opinion of the directors of the
Company, the Group will have adequate and sufficient liquidity and financial
resources to meet the working capital requirement of the Group for at least the
next twelve months following the end of the Reporting Period.

As at 31 December 2024, as part of the Group’s cash management activities,
the Group had investments (classified as financial assets at FVTPL) in aggregate
of RMB394.0 million (2023: RMB383.4 million), primarily consisting of, (i) a fund
investment of RMB24.0 million (2023: RMB33.4 million). In 2021, the Group
entered info a partnership agreement with two independent third parties for the
establishment of a fund, namely, Guangdong Bosong Kanghua Equity Investment
Partnership, L.P.), a limited partnership established under the laws of the PRC.
The purpose of the fund is to achieve investment returns and capital appreciation
through carrying out investment, investment management and other activities
in accordance with PRC laws, business scope under business registration, and
the partnership agreement. To the extent permitted by the applicable laws, the
fund will invest primarily in the fields of medical services, biotechnology, medical
equipment, and medical informatics. The initial term of the fund shall be seven
years. As at 31 December 2024, the fund had made equity investments in two
(2023: two) unlisted companies and the aggregate carrying amounts of the equity
investments was RMB24.0 million (2023: RMB33.4 million), which were measured
at fair values. During the Reporting Period, the Group recognised a fair value
loss of RMB9.4 million (2023: nil) in relation to fund investment; and {jii) structured
short-term bank deposits of RMB370.0 million (2023: RMB350.0 million),
representing low-risk structured investment products issued by commercial banks
in the PRC for variable investment returns. Majority of these structured deposits
are with maturities of less than six months and the principal is generally renewed
when matured.
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As part of the Group’s cash management policy fo manage excess cash, the
Group purchases investment products from financial institutions to achieve
higher interest income without interfering with business operations or capital
expenditures. The Group carefully balances the risks and returns associated
with the investment products when making the investment decisions. The senior
management of the Group is closely involved in scrutinizing any decision of
the Group to purchase investment products. The investment products should
generally satisfy the following criteria, including: (i) its term should generally not
exceed one year; (ii) it should not interfere with the Group’s business operations
or capital expenditures; (iii) it should be issued by a reputable bank which the
Group has a long-term relationship, preferably exceeding five years; and (iv) the
underlying investment portfolio should generally be low risk.

Cash Flow Analysis

The table below sets forth the information as extracted from the consolidated
statement of cash flows of the Group for the years indicated:

ERAEEENERBRRENE S —17
ReERRR AKEETHELEERE
EHEARATHNARET  MemEEEERE
MIREBEM  NWERESHNME KRS - A%
BESEHBREARR SERGERE
EmmREREKE AEESREERETT
N2EASEEREEREEMN — Y
AR REEMBENAGUTERERE 8
RO HE S B - RTEE—F : (I EET
WEARBMIEREBEFELEAR - (i
HEMEASEARMAFERE (—REB
54) REARFEEMRITET  RiVE
ERREHEABTRAERR -

RERENN

TEBINARERFAREE 2 HARS
RERMBHER

2024 2023

—E-MEF ZE=F

Change RMB’000 RMB'000

HE ARETFT ARET T

Net cash flows from operating activities & EBFFRES R EFH +37.2% 280,132 204,195

Net cash flows used in investing activities & EBIFTAIR S R E/F 8 -18.9% (87,331) (107,724)

Net cash flows used in financing activities & EBIFTAR SR EFH +353.0% (251,705) (55,563)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash B & RIS ZEY CAd)

equivalents HANFRE N/ATiE A (58,904) 40,908

Net cash flows from operating activities

During the Reporting Period, the net cash generated from operating activities
amounted fo RMB280.1 million (2023: RMB204.2 million), representing a year-on-
year increase of 37.2%, the increase is primarily attributable to the deterioration of
our performance in adjusted EBITDA for the Reporting Period, but partly offset by
various changes in working capital include: (i) decrease in inventories amounted
to RMB4.6 million (2023: decrease of RMB14.8 million); (i) increase in accounts
and other receivables amounted to RMB13.6 million (2023: increase of RMB16.2
million); and fiii) increase in accounts and other payables amounted to RMB99.3
million (2023: decrease of RMB44.6 million). Total income tax paid during the
Reporting Period amounting to RMB53.1 million (2023: RMB52.1 million).

Guangdong Kanghua Healthcare Group Co., Ltd. Annual Report 2024

RETHABREMNEFER

RIpEHE REEDAERESFEAAR
280 BB T (ZE_=F: AR¥204.2
BET) @ BEFTREEIN37.2% - 2L mE
53 R B PI R 3R B 48 5 22 EBITDA BY
RREE S TEEESSEE K -
BE IGERLAEARBIEEL(ZE
TEFE RO AREUSEET) ;i) BUER
FREMERRIBEINEARKIZOEET
TEC=FENARE62EET) ¢ Kl
JERMBER R EM BB = AR 993
ABET(ZE-=ZF:BLARK4WMEE
T0) c RREHME NS RAEAEARE
S531BEBIL(ZE=F: ARKS218E8T) -



Management Discussion and Analysis

Net cash flows used in investing activities

During the Reporting Period, the net cash used in investing activities amounted to
RMB87.3 million (2023: RMB107.7 million), representing a year-on-year decrease
of 18.9%. The decrease is primarily attributable to: (i) a decrease in purchase of
property, plant and equipment to RMB65.4 million (2023: RMB98.3 million); {ii)
a decrease in deposits paid for acquisition of property, plant and equipment
to RMB21.3 million (2023: RMB32.6 million); (iii) a recorded net cash used in
purchase of investments in financial assets at FVTPL of RMB20.0 million (2023: net
proceeds from disposal of RMB187.5 million); (iv) a decrease in investment income
received from financial assets at FVTPL to RMB7.8 million (2023: RMB12.1 million);
(v) no change in fixed bank deposits (2023: net placement of RMB65.4 million)
during the Reporting Period; and (vi) net cash inflow on acquisition of subsidiaries
(Kanghua Haemaodialysis Group) of RMB6.1 million (2023: cash used in acquisition
of additional interest in subsidiaries (mainly Kangxin Hospital) of RMB108.1 million
and deposits paid for acquisition of subsidiaries of RMB0.8 million).

Net cash flows used in financing activities

During the Reporting Period, the net cash flows used in financing activities
amounted to RMB251.7 million (2023: RMB55.6 million) and primarily consists of: (i)
new bank loans raised of RMB181.9 million (2023: RMB68.2 million); (i) repayment
of bank loans of RMB283.4 million (2023: RMB33.0 million); (i) net repayments to
non-controlling shareholders of subsidiaries of RMB75.1 million (2023: RMB26.9
million); (iv) repayments of principal portion of lease liabilities of RMB62.1 million
(2023: RMB41.7 million); and (v) decrease in interest paid amounted to RMB13.1
million (2023: RMB22.2 million).
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Significant Investment, Acquisition and Disposal
Acquisition of Kanghua Haemodialysis Group

On 15 December 2023, the Company entered info an acquisition agreement with
Dongguan YouWang Enterprise Investment Co., Ltd., an independent third party,
pursuant to which the Company had agreed to acquire 70% equity interest in
Kanghua Haemodialysis and its subsidiaries (Kanghua Haemodialysis Group) at
a consideration of RMB7.7 million. The acquisition was completed on 9 January
2024 and Kanghua Haemodialysis has since become a non-wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company.

The acquisition has been accounted for using the acquisition method. The
consolidated financial statements for the Reporting Period include the results
of Kanghua Haemodialysis Group for the period from the acquisition date to 31
December 2024. The Group has elected to measure the non-controlling interests
in Kanghua Haemodialysis Group at the non-controlling inferests’ proportionate
share of the Kanghua Haemodialysis Group’s identifiable net liabilities. The
amount of goodwill arising as a result of the acquisition was RMB114.2 million.

Disposal of Equity Interest in Kangxin Hospital

On 20 December 2024, the Board resolved to dispose of 55% equity interest of
Kangxin Hospital to Silver Mountain or its affiliates. As the demerger of Kangxin
Hospital (which was conducted under PRC laws, pursuant to which Chongging
Kanghua Property has been established to hold the land and buildings
underlying the operations of Kangxin Hospital) was completed and the land and
buildings were transferred to Chongging Kanghua Property, Kangxin Hospital
was in a condition ready for immediate sale. The assets and liabilities of Kangxin
Hospital have been presented separately in the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2024.

On 9 January 2025, the Company entered into a sale and purchase agreement
with Pantheon Health for the disposal of 55% equity interest in Kangxin Hospital
at a consideration of RMB34.9 million. As at 31 December 2024, the disposal of
Kangxin Hospital was undergoing negotiation with Pantheon Health and the
completion of the transaction was subject to various conditions as set out in the
sale and purchase agreement. The disposal was later completed on 8 February
2025.

Save as disclosed in this report, the Group had no significant investment,
acquisition or disposal during the Reporting Period.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Cash Management Activities

As part of the Group’s cash management, the Group has from time to time
purchased investment products (structured bank deposits) issued by a reputable
PRC commercial bank with terms ranging from 56 days to 189 days and
investment funds to achieve higher interest income without interfering with
business operations or capital expenditures. The investment products are not
rated by any credit rating agency but is classified as low-risk by the issuing bank
and may involve liquid listed securities. The Group carefully balances the risks
and returns associated with the investment products when making the investment
decisions. The senior management of the Group is closely involved in scrutinizing
any decision of the Group to purchase investment products. Furthermore, the
Group has also invested in investment fund and equity investment fund for the
purpose of generating long-term investment returns. It has been the strategy
of the Group to explore new potential investments projects and capital market
investments in order to diversify business risk as well as broaden income source
and spectrum of the Group and eventually maximizing shareholders’ values.
The Company considers that these investment funds involve scopes that covers
quality capital market stocks and high value-added health industries which are in
line with PRC's development trajectories in the healthcare and technology space
which is highly relevant to the Group’s core business. The Directors consider that,
through appropriate market screening of investment projects by the funds, they
will in the long term be a reasonable investment of the Company and potentially
facilitate the Group’s entry into the relevant healthcare space and establishing
strategic cooperation with relevant players in the market.

Capital Expenditure

The Group regularly makes capital expenditures to expand its operations,
maintain its medical facilities and improve its operating efficiency. Capital
expenditure primarily consists of purchases of property, plant and equipment
(including capital expenditure in construction in progress). The capital expenditure
of the Group during the Reporting Period was RMB108.8 million (2023: RMB149.5
million). The Group has financed its capital expenditure mainly through cash flows
generated from operating activities and bank loans.
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USE OF PROCEED FROM THE INITIAL PUBLIC OFFERING

The Company’s H shares were listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange on 8
November 2016. The Company’s net proceeds from the initial public offering
of its H shares amounts to approximately RMB782.6 million (equivalently to
approximately HK$874.9 million) after deducting underwriting commissions and
all related expenses. The net proceeds from the initial public offering have been
and will be utilised in accordance with the purposes set out in the Prospectus.

Up to 31 December 2024, of the net proceeds from the initial public offering,
(i) RMB78.3 million, representing approximately 10% of the net proceeds, have
been fully utilised and used as general working capital; (i) RMB134.7 million,
representing approximately 17.2% of the net proceeds, have been utilised and
used on expansion of our current operations and upgrading our hospital’s
facilities; and (i) RMB208.8 million, representing approximately 26.7% of the net
proceeds, have been utilised and used for acquisition and potential acquisition
of businesses. As at 31 December 2024, out of the balance of the unutilised
net proceeds of RMB360.8 million, part of such proceeds have been used fo
purchase certain financial products (classified as financial assets at FVTPL) or
placed in fixed bank deposits to achieve higher interest income and capital return
without interfering with our business operations or capital expenditures to earn
better return on our excess cash balance, and the remaining balance have been
kept at the bank accounts of the Group (included in bank balances and cash). As
at the date of this report, the Company does not anticipate any material change
to its plan on the use of proceeds as stated in the Prospectus.
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The following table sets forth the intended purposes for the net proceeds from the
initial public offering, the utilisation of such proceeds and the timeline of utilisation

estimated by the management:

Net proceeds
from the inifial public
offering intended

Management Discussion and Analysis

SRR EC) S il

TREIERAFABREMBRBFENHE
ERE  ZEMBRENSRBERAREEE
fAETHE) B HIR -

for the purpose Utilisation during Expected timeline
as disclosed Utilisation up to the year ended for the utilisation
inthe Prospectus ~ 31December 2024 31 December 2024 Unutilised amount - of the unutilised
Purpose (RMB million] (RMB million) (RMB million) (RMB million] - amount Mere
ARERFRERE 2 BECECmE
RENERLHEE tZA=t-H tZA=t-H
P ERE WBARBR LEENDARR ABALHE KAKDA
A& (AE¥EER) (AE¥BEER) ARBEER (AREBER) SHENEBHR
Expansion of the Group’s current operations and 704 8.5 0.0 61.9 Bythe end of
upgrading of hospital facilities 31 December 2025
BARSERBEB R RBR R RZZ-R%+=A
=t—HA
Expansion of operating capacity and capability in 2817 126.2 0.0 155.5 Bythe end of
multi-disciplinary specialised treatment and 31 December 2025
diagnosis and upgrade of medical facilities
BAZBENRSENDRENAR RZZZRF+=A
FHRBE RS =t+—RA
Expansion of hospital management operations 783 - 0.0 78.3 Bythe end of
31 December 2025
BABRERSE R-ZE-R%+=A
=t—HA
Expansion of healthcare operations in the PRC 2739 208.8 0.0 65.1 Bytheend of
through selective mergers and acquisitions 31 December 2025
RARELEHBEANTENBERE RZZ-R%+=A
=t—B#
Working capital and other general corporate 783 783 0.0 - -
purposes
BEASRAM-RATRE
Total 782.6 8 0.0 360.8

@t

Note: Such timeline is an estimation of the management only and is subject to change on
account of the Group’s operating conditions and market conditions from time to time.
In particular, it should not be taken as an indication that any potential transaction is

under negotiation and/or will materialise.

The expected utilization of the proceeds, particularly related to expansion plans, has
been delayed primarily due to the Group’s current focus on allocating management
resources towards recovery from the impacts of COVID-19 and adjustments to
industry changes, especially various healthcare reforms and national policies. The
Company will review the intended use of proceeds and will make an announcement
as and when required under the Hong Kong Listing Rules.
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INDEBTEDNESS
Bank Loans

As at 31 December 2024, the Group had a secured bank loan of carrying amount
of RMB74.4 million and an unsecured bank loan of carrying amount of RMB154.7
million (2023: secured bank loans of RMB318.8 million). During the Reporting
Period, the bank loan facility in respect to the development of the Phase Il medical
facility and financing the operations of Kangxin Hospital (being the RMB420.0
million fixed asset facility agreement and RMB200.0 million financial leasing
agreement) was fully repaid and cancelled.

As at 31 December 2024, the Group had two bank loan facilities and details are
as follows:

(i) RMB330.0 million fixed asset facility agreement with Bank of Dongguan
Co., Ltd. and carries variable interest rate using five-year LPR (Loan Prime
Rate) offered by the People’s Bank of China plus 0.5%, at each drawn
down date and adjusted annually. Loan principal can be drawn down
up to 25 April 2026 with full repayment term of 15 years from each drawn
down date. As at 31 December 2024, the carrying amount of this variable-
rate secured bank loan amounted to RMB74.4 million (2023: RMB47.2
million). The main purpose of the loan is to finance payments for the
construction development and fixed assets purchase of the Kanghua
Qingxi Healthcare Complex (the Group’s elderly medical and healthcare
complex development in Qingxi Town, Dongguan City). The bank loan is
secured with (i) financial guarantees provided by the Company and Mr.
Wang Junyang, the chairman of the Group; and (i) pledge of leasehold
land held by a subsidiary of the Company with carrying amount of
approximately RMB77.6 million as at 31 December 2024 (2023: RMB79.3
million).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

(ii) RMB299.0 million revolving credit facility agreement with Bank of
Dongguan Co., Ltd. and carries variable inferest rate using one-year LPR
(Loan Prime Rate) offered by the People’s Bank of China plus 0.85%, at
each drawn down date and adjusted annually. Loan principal can be
drawn down up to 29 May 2026 with full repayment term of 3 years from
each drawn down date. As at 31 December 2024, the carrying amount
of this variable-rate unsecured bank loan amounted to RMB154.7 million
(2023: N/A). The main purpose of the loan is to provide operating cash
flow for Kanghua Hospital. The bank loan is unsecured with financial
guarantees provided by the Company and Mr. Wang Junyang, the
chairman of the Group.

In connection with the bank loan facility above, Mr. Wang Junyang, the chairman
of the Group, provided guarantees and undertakings in favour of the relevant
lender. The financial assistance provided by Mr. Wang Junyang is exempted from
the connected transaction requirements under Chapter 14A of the Hong Kong
Listing Rules by virtue of Rule 14A.90.

Contingent Liabilities

The Group is subject to legal proceedings and claims in the ordinary of business
primarily arising from medical disputes brought by patients. Provision for medical
disputes is made based on the status of potential and active claims outstanding
as at the end of the relevant period, and primarily taking into account any judicial
appraisal or court determination against the Group. As at 31 December 2024,
except for those disputes with provision made, the total stated claim amount
of the Group’s on-going medical disputes was approximately RMB14.3 million
(2023: RMB13.9 million) and there were certain medical disputes without claim
amount stated. Based on the Group’s assessment, as at 31 December 2024,
approximately RMB2.9 million (2023: RMB1.2 million) had been provided and
included in accounts and other payables and provisions of the Group.

As at 31 December 2024, the Group had no contingent liabilities or guarantees
that would have a material impact on the financial position or operation of the
Group.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEENWR DN

Pledge of Assets

As at 31 December 2024, leasehold land (included in right-of-use assets) with net
carrying amount of RMB77.6 million (2023: RMB79.3 million) had been pledged
to secure a banking facility granted to the Group. At 31 December 2023, certain
property, plant and equipment of the Group with net carrying amount of RMB14.4
million (31 December 2024: nil) had been pledged to secure a banking facility
granted to the Group.

Capital Commitments

The capital commitments of the Group were primarily attributable to construction
costs relating to the expansion and renovation of the Group’s medical facilities.
As at 31 December 2024, the capital commitments in respect of property, plant
and equipment contracted for but not provided in the consolidated financial
statements were RMB153.7 million (2023: RMB178.8 million).

Financial Instruments

The Group’s financial instruments primarily consisted of accounts and other
receivables, financial assets at FVTPL, fixed bank deposits, bank balances and
cash, restricted bank balances, accounts and other payables, amounts due to
non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary, bank loans and lease liabilities. The
management of the Company manages and monitors these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Exposure to fluctuation in Exchange rates

The proceeds raised by the Company in its initial public offering of its H Shares
is denominated in Hong Kong dollars. The Group deposits certain of its financial
assets in Hong Kong dollars, and is mainly exposed to fluctuation in exchange
rates of Hong Kong dollars against RMB. The Group is therefore exposed to
foreign exchange risk.

The Group has not used any derivatives financial instruments to hedge against its
exposure to currency risk. The management manages the currency risk by closely

monitoring the movement of the foreign currency rates and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should such need arise.

Gearing Ratio

As at 31 December 2024, the Group’s gearing ratio (total interest-bearing bank
loans divided by total equity and multiplied by 100%) was 15.7% (2023: 21.3%).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EMPLOYEES, REMUNERATION POLICIES AND TRAINING SCHEMES

The Group’s comprehensive staff remuneration policy comprise basic salary
determined with reference to the individual’s position, seniority and length of
service, performance bonus determined with reference to the metrics specific to
the individual's job function and other benefits. The Group regularly benchmarks
against available market data and adjusts its remuneration structure with a view
to remaining competitive. As at 31 December 2024, the Group had a total of
4,320 (2023: 3,946) full-time staff. Total staff related costs for the Reporting Period
(excluding directors’ and supervisors’ emoluments) amounted to approximately
RMB686.6 million (2023: RMB631.8 million). The Group endeavours to ensure
that the compensation level of its employees remains competitive and in line
with market conditions and its employees are appropriately rewarded based on
their performance within the general framework of the Group’s salary and bonus
system.

The Group provides structured training and education programmes to enable
its staff to consistently deliver high quality services. These programmes aim to
equip the staff with a sound foundation of the medical principles and knowledge
as well as practical skills in their respective practice area and foster a high
standard of practice, organisation capability and vigilant attitude. Regular internal
and external mandatory trainings are organised for medical staff to keep them
abreast of the latest development in healthcare. From time to time, the Group
identifies and sponsors its staff with high development potential to undertake
further studies and professional training in prestigious academic institutions
and participate in industry conventions. Medical teams also benefit from the
experience and knowledge exchange during seminars and sharing sessions
regularly held. The Group encourages medical staff to apply for professional
and technical qualifications and enrol in specialised training programmes and
assessments from time to time, including induction training for new employees,
development training for young and middle-aged core talent, medical service
quality training and management fraining for young core talent, with a view
to ensuring that their relevant professional competencies meet the required
standards. Through various training and education programmes, the Group also
aims to foster a proactive risk reporting culture among staff, which is important in
the early detection of clinical failure and damage control.
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Report of the Board
EEERE

The Board is pleased to present this annual report and the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2024.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group is principally engaged in the operation of private hospitals (provision
of hospital services), provision of rehabilitation and other healthcare services,
provision of haemodialysis services and provision of elderly healthcare services in
the PRC.

Details of the principal activities of the principal subsidiaries of the Company are
set out in Note 41 to the consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The description of principal risks and uncertainties that the Group may be facing,
a fair review of the Group’s business during the year, and the probable future
business development of the Group are provided in the Corporate Governance
Report and the Management Discussion and Analysis section on pages 81 to
104 and on pages 12 to 55 respectively of this annual report. Also, the financial
risk management objectives and policies of the Group can be found in Note 39
to the consolidated financial statements. An analysis of the Group’s performance
during the year using financial key performance indicators is provided in the
Financial Highlights on pages 4 to 5 and Financial Summary on page 293 of this
annual report respectively. In addition, discussions on the relationships with its
staff, customers and suppliers is also contained in the Environmental, Social and
Governance Report section on pages 105 to 153 of this annual report. Discussions
on the Group’s environmental policies and compliance with relevant laws and
regulations which have a significant impact on the Group are contained in this
annual report on page 57.
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

The Group is subject to national and local environmental laws and regulations in
the PRC, including with respect to hospital sanitation, diseases control, medical
wastes management, and discharge of wastewater, pollutants and radioactive
substances. The Group is conscious of its environmental protection obligations
and is committed to the sustainable development of the environment and society.
The Group has established internal rules regarding environmental protection and
actively seeks to implement ecofriendly technologies and clinical environment
where feasible. The Group believes that it has maintained good relationship with
the communities. With respect to medical wastes management, the Group has
engaged qualified third parties to arrange proper disposal for all of its hospitals
in accordance with applicable laws and regulations.

To the best of the Group’s knowledge, during the year ended 31 December 2024
the Group had complied with the applicable environment laws and regulations in
the PRC in all material respects.

Please refer to pages from 105 to 153 of this annual report for the Environmental,
Social and Governance Report of the Company prepared in compliance with the
provisions set out in the ESG Reporting Guide in Appendix C2 to the Hong Kong
Listing Rules.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND REGULATIONS

There was no incident of non-compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
had a significant impact on the Group during the Reporting Period.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

The Group’s financial results for the year ended 31 December 2024 are set out in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on
page 175 of this annual report.
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USE OF PROCEEDS FROM INITIAL PUBLIC OFFERING

The H Shares of the Company were listed on the Main Board of the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange on 8 November 2016. The Company’s net proceeds from the
initial public offering amounted to approximately RMB782.6 million (equivalent
to HK$874.9 million) after deducting underwriting commissions and all related
expenses. As of the date of this annual report, the Company did not anticipate
any material change to its plan on the use of proceeds as stated in the
Prospectus.

For a description of the utilisation of the proceeds from the initial public offering,
please refer to pages 50 to 51 of this annual report.

DIVIDEND

Subsequent to the end of the Reporting Period, a final dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2024 of RMB15 cents (2023: nil) per Share amounting to
approximately RMB50.2 million (2023: nil) in aggregate has been proposed by
the Directors. Such dividend is subject to approval by the Shareholders at the
AGM. The final dividend will be paid on or around Friday, 25 July 2025 to the
Shareholders whose names appear on the register of members of the Company
on Friday, 27 June 2025.

For the purpose of determining the entitlement to the proposed final dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2024, all transfer instruments of the H Shares
together with the relevant share certificates shall be lodged with the Company’s
H Shares registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited at Shops
1712-16, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong
Kong for registration no later than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 24 June 2025.

There is no arrangement that a shareholder of the Company has waived or
agreed to waive any dividend.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company during the
Reporting Period are set out in Note 27 to the consolidated financial statements.
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RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company during
the Reporting Period are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and Note 40 fo the consolidated financial statements, respectively. At 31
December 2024, the Company had distributable reserve available for distribution
of approximately RMB314.4 million (2023: approximately RMB346.5 million).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the Reporting Period are set out in Note 14 to the consolidated financial
statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group has a highly diversified customer portfolio, including individual patients
as well as business corporations and government administrations who purchase
healthcare services for their employees. For the year ended 31 December
2024, the Group’s largest customer or the five largest customers in aggregate
contributed to less than 1% of the Group’s total revenue.

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group’s largest supplier and the
five largest suppliers in aggregate contributed to approximately 23.4% and
58.1%, respectively, of the Group’s total purchases, including pharmaceuticals,
medical consumables, medical equipment, construction and renovation
services, electricity supply and non-healthcare related ancillary management
services (“Total Purchases”). The Group’s largest supplier, Dongguan Yuheng
Pharmaceuticals Co., Ltd. ("Yuheng”), accounted for approximately 23.4% of the
Group’s Total Purchases. Yuheng has been an Independent Third Party during
the Reporting Period. Yuheng is a wholesaler of pharmaceuticals and medical
equipment primarily to hospitals in the PRC. The Group’s relationship with Yuheng
began in 2010. The Group has a long term agreement that does not impose
any minimum purchasing commitment on the Group and the Group may place
orders with Yuheng at its own discretion. The pricing of the relevant products is
defermined at the time the relevant order is placed with reference to market price.
The agreement sets out the framework of delivery, settlement, inspection and
quality control, product defects, compensation arrangements for delivery failure,
medical equipment training, packaging and warranty. The agreement is for an
indefinite period but the Group may terminate it if Yuheng commits a material
breach or fails to deliver the relevant products within a prescribed period. The
Group has a 90-days credit period with Yuheng.

None of the Directors, the Supervisors or any of their respective close associates
(as defined under the Hong Kong Listing Rules), or any Shareholders, which to
the knowledge of the Directors, directly or indirectly own more than 5% of the
Company’s issued share capital has any interests in the Group’s five largest
customers or suppliers for the year ended 31 December 2024.
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DONATIONS

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the charitable contributions and other
donations made by the Group amounted to approximately RMB0.09 million in
aggregate.

SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as of 31 December 2024 are set
out in Note 41 to the consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Reporting Period up to the date of this annual report are:

Executive Directors
Mr. Wang Junyang (Chairman)
Mr. Chen Wangzhi (Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Wong Wai Hung (Vice Chairman)
Ms. Wang Aigin

Non-executive Director

Mr. Lv Yubo

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Yeung Ming Lai
Dr. Chen Keji
Mr. Chan Sing Nun

SUPERVISORS

The Supervisors during the Reporting Period and up to the date of this annual
report are:

Mr. Chen Shaoming (Chairman of the Supervisory Committee)
Mr. Wang Shaofeng
Mr. Yue Chunyang
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DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTION,
ARRANGEMENT OR CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in Note 34 to the consolidated financial statements, no
transaction, arrangement or contracts of significance to which the Company or
any of its holding companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries, was a party and
in which a Director or a Supervisor, or any entity connected with any Director or
Supervisor, had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted as of
31 December 2024 or at any time during the Reporting Period.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in Note 34 to the consolidated financial statements, none of the
Controlling Shareholders has or had a material interest, either directly or indirectly,
in any contract of significance, whether for the provision of services or otherwise,
to the business of the Group to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was
a party during the Reporting Period.

NON-COMPETITION AGREEMENT

Pursuant to the Non-Competition Agreement, the Controlling Shareholders
have undertaken that they will not, and will also procure their respective close
associate(s) (as appropriate) (other than the Group) not to, either directly or
indirectly, compete with the Group’s principal business (which is primarily to
provide hospital services) and granted to the Group the option for new business
opportunities, option for acquisitions and pre-emptive rights. During the Reporting
Period, the Company did not receive any Offer Notice (as defined under the
section headed “Relationship with our Controlling Shareholders” in the Prospectus)
from the Controlling Shareholders.

The Company has received confirmations from the Controlling Shareholders
confirming their compliance with the Non-Competition Agreement for the year
ended 31 December 2024 for disclosure in this annual report. The independent
non-executive Directors have also reviewed the Controlling Shareholders’
compliance with the Non-Competition Agreement for the year ended 31
December 2024.
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EMOLUMENTS OF THE DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND THE FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Details of the Directors” and Supervisors” emoluments and the five highest paid
individuals are set out in Notes 9 and 10 to the consolidated financial statements.

Mr. Lv Yubo has waived emoluments in acting as a non-executive Director.
No other Director has waived or agreed to waive any emoluments during the
Reporting Period.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

During the Reporting Period, none of the Directors or their respective associates (as
defined under the Hong Kong Listing Rules) had engaged in or had any interest
in nay business which competes or may compete, either directly or indirectly, with
the business of the Group.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

The Company has purchased appropriate liability insurance for its Directors,
Supervisors and senior management. The permitted indemnity provisions are set
out in such liability insurance.

Save as disclosed above, no permitted indemnity provision was made by the
Company during the Reporting Period and no permitted indemnity provision was
in force as at the date of this annual report.
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DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS" AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS IN
SECURITIES

As of 31 December 2024, the interests and short positions of the Directors, the
Supervisors and the chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as nofified to the Company and the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests and short positions which he/she is keen to taken or deemed
to have under such provisions of the SFO), or as recorded in the registered
maintained by the Company under section 352 of the SFO, or as notified to the
Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code were
as follows:
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The Company (@ ZARRF
Approximate
percentage of
Approximate  the Company’s
percentage in total issued
Shares of the  share capital®
same class® VNG|
Number HEER BEITRE
Name of Director Class of Shares ~ Nature of interest of Shares B A7 P #xE
BEEnR Bz 40 48 Bl EaMtE RHEE BMOBIEY HHHOBESEY
Mr. Wang Junyang Domestic Shares  Inferest in a controlled 222,500,000 89% 66.54%
TEBRE W& corporation’ (Long position)
REEHEE R (41 7)
Mr. Chen Wangzhi Domestic Shares  Interest in a controlled 27,500,000 1N% 8.22%
PRAE R RNE K corporation; family interest of  (Long position)
spouse® (47 8)
REEHEEN R
LB R E=R"Y
Ms. Wang Aigin Domestic Shares  Interest in a controlled 27,500,000 1N% 8.22%
B+ RNE K corporation®; family interest of  (Long position)
spouse® (47 8)
REZEHEEN R
BRI =Y
Mr. Wong Wai Hung Domestic Shares  Interest in a controlled 25,000,000 10% 7.48%
FEELEE RNE K corporation® (Long position)
REEGEE R (47%)
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Notes:

M

(2)

(3)

(4)

(5)

Mr. Wang Junyang holds (i) 97.46% in Kanghua Group, which in turn holds
197,500,000 Domestic Shares (long position); and (i) 50% in Xingye Group
(directly of 2% and indirectly through a controlled corporation, Dongguan
Kanghua Investment Development Co., lid. (R EEEXR EHREBR A
Al), of 48%), which in turn holds 25,000,000 Domestic shares (long position).
Therefore, Mr. Wang Junyang is deemed to be interested in 222,500,000
Domestic Shares through interest in controlled corporations by virtue of the
SFO.

Each of Mr. Chen Wangzhi and Ms. Wang Aigin holds 50% in Xingda Property,
which in turn holds 27,500,000 Domestic Shares (long position). Therefore,
each of Mr. Chen Wangzhi and Ms. Wang Aigin is deemed to be interested
in 27,500,000 Domestic Shares through interest in controlled corporation by
virtue of the SFO.

As Mr. Chen Wangzhi and Ms. Wang Aigin are husband and wife, each of
them is deemed to be interested in all the Shares held by them in aggregate
by virtue of the SFO.

Mr. Wong Wai Hung holds 34.0% in HH International (as defined below),
which in turns holds 100% in Weishun Property (as defined below), which in
turn holds 100% in Kangwei Industrial (as defined below), which in turn holds
48.0% in Xingye Group. Xingye Group held 25,000,000 Domestic Shares.
As Mr. Wong Wai Hung controls more than one third of the voting power at
the general meeting of Xingye Group, Mr. Wong Wai Hung is deemed to be
interested in the same number of Shares in which Xingye Group is interested
by virtue of the SFO.

The shareholding percentages are calculated on the basis of 250,000,000
Domestic Shares and 84,394,000 H Shares issued by the Company as of 31
December 2024.
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Associated corporations of the Company
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(bl A EIEEEE

Approximate
percentage inferest
in the associated

corporation
Name of Director Associated corporation Nature of interest 1 AR B
EENE TR L E ERME BN E D
Mr. Wang Junyang Kanghua Group Beneficial owner 97.46%
TEHEE RESH EnEAA
Mr. Wang Junyang Xingye Group Beneficial owner; interest in a controlled 50.0%
FTEHEE L E corporation®
BERlEAA  REESEENER"

Mr. Wong Wai Hung Xingye Group Interest in a controlled corporation®? 48.0%
TEERE MR EE AR PR R
Mr. Chen Wangzhi Xingda Property Beneficial owner; family interest of spouse 100%
BREE X & 4 EEYR EREAA  EBOREER
Ms. Wang Aigin Xingda Property Beneficial owner; family interest of spouse 100%
ITEHRL Bz % ERBEAEA BEBNREER
Note: B aE
(1) Mr. Wang Junyang holds (i) 97.46% in Kanghua Group, which in turn holds N EEBEERENREREEENI7.46%

197,500,000 Domestic Shares (long position); and (i) 50% in Xingye Group T % - i B EE &R [ A58 197,500,000

(directly of 2% and indirectly through a controlled corporaﬂon Dongguan
Kanghua Investment Development Co., lid. (REET R EK EEREGR A 50% 1 &
7]), of 48%), which in turn holds 25,000,000 Domestic shares (long position).
Therefore, Mr. Wang Junyang is deemed to be interested in 222,500,000
Domestic Shares through interest in controlled corporations by virtue of the

RAER (FE): RilEEEREN
(EEHFE 2 BB %‘J
FERETRELEREARA

M5 H 48%) 'ﬁﬁﬂﬁ%%ﬂ']%ﬁ
25,000,000 % A E R (57 &) ° FEitt -

SFO. *ETE“*%&HET“M%J ITEBEEW
BREB PRGBS T
222,500, oooﬂxméﬂx%m&/\ 2

(2 Mr. Wong Wai Hung holds 34.0% in HH International (as defined below), 2 TE&E iﬁ?‘ﬁi%—rﬁ/m FER(EERT

which in turns holds 100% in Weishun Property (as defined below), which in
turn holds 100% in Kangwei Industrial (as defined below), which in turn holds
48.0% in Xingye Group. As Mr. Wong Wai Hung controls more than one third
of the voting power at the general meeting of Kangwei Industrial, Mr. Wong i ER &
Wai Hung is deemed to be interested in the same amount of interest in Xingye
Group in which Kangwei Industrial is interested by virtue of the SFO.

X)34.0%  MEF EEREFEEIEY
Z GEE R TX)100% - i & IEH %
BEREEE (EER T 100%
BEBAMELEMEAL80% A
RIBHEERERELHBREA
@ LEHBBS Sy —HREE - &
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Save as disclosed above, as of 31 December 2024, to the knowledge of the Board,
none of the Directors, the Supervisors or chief executive of the Company had any
interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV
of the SFO) which were required fo be (i) nofified to the Company and the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and short positions which the Directors, the Supervisors and chief
executive of the Company were taken or deemed to have under such provisions
of the SFOJ; (i) recorded in the register kept by the Company pursuant to Section
352 of the SFO; or (iii) notified to the Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code.

INTERESTS OF SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As of 31 December 2024, according fo the register kept by the Company pursuant
to Section 336 of the SFO and so far is known to, or can be ascertained after
reasonable enquiry by the Directors, the following person/entity had an interest
or short position in the Shares and underlying Shares which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or be directly and indirectly interested in 5%
or more of the nominal value of any class of share capital carrying rights to vote
on all circumstances at general meetings of the Company:

(@) Interests in the Shares of the Company

MENXFIEEEIN BE_ST-_OF+ =
A=+—H BESgma BEAQFE
B EEN TN AR E) 5 H A
EE(EERBHRBEKRGIEXVED) 2 &
B HEERDREEERERNREBEES K
HEIEPEXNTEIRESHBAMNE RN
AINEBBINER AR (BFEARQ R
BF  EERTRAHBEESKEEESG
CEHEEBRIXEE AR EEREENRE R
KA AN ABRRARIRES RBEK
BIE 3526 E 2 B MAMEZRE AR
i) BIFZEST R ANE AR E RE B
RFTEIRERS BUK A o

FERRER

HE_Z-_NF+-_A=+—8 ' ZBARQ
AIIREB S R ERAIE 6 IKRTFENZTRL
fit  REBARIALEEMAXKATLREEELE
BERBET U TAL/ EERRMD LA
RO EEESTHNARBREZFLHE
1EBHIEEXVEE 2 X35 28 Z A& SCB R AR A
BRI E  KEEXEEEENA
ARAIRRRE EEEABRATEEERS
AT EE R IR A R B 5% 2k A LA aR -

(@ RARFRDOER

Approximate
percentage of
Approximate  the Company’s

percentage in total issued

Shares of the  share capital®

same class® R E]

Number HERERN BBRITRA

Name Class of Shares ~ Nature of interest of Shares B 12 B i waE

wE/ A8 % 47 48 5 RS BROHE HMABEILY HHEILLO

Mr. Wang Junyang Domestic Shares  Interest in a controlled corporation 222,500,000 89% 66.54%
ITEBEE ME Bk REEHEB R ERD (Long position)
(#E)

Kanghua Group Domestic Shares  Beneficial owner” 197,500,000 79% 59.06%
BES ME R EnfEBAl (Long position)
(#FE)
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Approximate
percentage of

Approximate the Company’s

percentage in total issued
Shares of the  share capital®
same class® RN
Number HEER BBITRA
Name Class of Shares  Nature of interest of Shares B 43 B4 4
mE/ AR R 12 5 Al ERMEE ROBE HBOBEILY HHBEIELY
Mr. Chen Wangzhi Domestic Shares  Interest in a controlled corporation®?; 27,500,000 1% 8.22%
FREEAR E A NE & family inferest of spouse® (Long position]
REFHEBER? (F8)
LR R k="
Ms. Wang Aigin Domestic Shares  Interest in a controlled corporation®?; 27,500,000 1% 8.22%
FTEYHRL RE R family interest of spouse® (Long position]
REFEFERRER? (FE)
[EE BRI datl
Xingda Property Domestic Shares  Beneficial owner? 27,500,000 1% 8.22%
BEY % NE R EmfEAAY (Long position)
(FR)
Xingye Group Domestic Shares  Beneficial owner® 25,000,000 10% 7.48%
HEEE NE Kk EREAAY (Long position]
(HFE)
Mr. Wong Wai Hung Domestic Shares  Interest in a controlled corporation® 25,000,000 10% 7.48%
ITEERE NER REZEHEB R R (Long position)
(FE)
HH International Investment  Domestic Shares  Interest in a controlled corporation® 25,000,000 10% 7.48%
Limited ("HH ME % REZEHEE R ERY (Long position)
International’) (#FE)
EFERRERRAR
(DE=ZEERD)
Dongguan Weishun Domestic Shares  Interest in a controlled corporation®) 25,000,000 10% 7.48%
Property Investment Co., W& % RGN EB R R (Long position]
Ltd. ["Weishun Property”) (177)
REMREIENEREER
NG L))
Dongguan Kangwei Domestic Shares  Interest in a controlled corporation® 25,000,000 10% 7.48%
Industrial Investment WE R REESEE M ERY (Long position]
Co., Ud. ["Kangwei (17%)

Industrial”)

REMRREREXREER
AR ([REEX])
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Approximate

percentage of

Approximate the Company’s
percentage in total issued
Shares of the  share capital®

same class® EARAT
Number HEER BRITRA
Name Class of Shares  Nature of interest of Shares B 12 Bl ks
mE/ LR B 12 5 5l EHtE BROEE BMHABIELY HABIHLY
Wang Chi Yeung H Shares Beneficial owner 20,000,000 23.70% 5.98%
TEH HAR EREAEA (Long position)
(#FE)
Lin Lijun ("Mr. Lin“) H Shares Interest in a controlled 11,146,200 13.21% 3.33%
MRE (TMEE]) HA% corporation’ [Long position)
REEH AR R RS (#FE)
LVC Assefs Management  H Shares Interest in a controlled 11,146,200 13.21% 3.33%
Limited H % corBoroﬁon“] (Long position)
REFHER R RS (#FE)
LVC KH Investment L.P. H Shares Beneficial owner® 11,146,200 13.21% 3.33%
HAR EmfEAAY (Long position)
(FR)
Haitian (HK) Holdings H Shares Beneficial owner 5,052,600 5.98% 1.51%
Limited (formerly named ~ H % EmEEA (Long position)
as “Haitian (HK) Financial (HFE)
Development Limited”)
PN (’iﬁ\iﬁ) ERARRA]
(RIMEEX () 2@
BRAERDAE])
Zhan Yongxiang H Shares Beneficial owner 5,021,966 5.95% 1.50%
oK HA% ExEBA (Long position)
(#FE)
Chen Zhaoming H Shares Beneficial owner 4,825,700 5.72% 1.44%
BRIk BA HA% ERBEBA (Long position)
(#FE)
Mialkos Tomasz Jakub H Shares Beneficial owner 4,687,400 5.55% 1.40%
H % BEER A (Long position)
(#FE)
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(2)

(3)

(4)

(5)

(6)

Mr. Wang Junyang holds (i} 97.46% in Kanghua Group, which in turn holds
197,500,000 Domestic Shares (long position); and (i) 50% in Xingye Group
(directly of 2% and indirectly through a controlled corporation, Dongguan
Kanghua Investment Development Co., lid. (RS EEEXR EHRER AR A
Al), of 48%), which in turn holds 25,000,000 Domestic shares (long position).
Therefore, Mr. Wang Junyang is deemed to be interested in 222,500,000
Domestic Shares through interest in controlled corporations by virtue of the
SFO.

Each of Mr. Chen Wangzhi and Ms. Wang Aigin holds 50.0% in Xingda
Property. As each of Mr. Chen Wangzhi and Ms. Wang Aigin controls more
than one third of the voting power at the general meeting of Xingda Property,
each of Mr. Chen Wangzhi and Ms. Wang Aigin is deemed to be interested in
the same number of Shares in which Xingda Property is interested by virtue of
the SFO.

As Mr. Chen Wangzhi and Ms. Wang Aigin are husband and wife, each of
them is deemed to be interested in all the Shares held by them in aggregate
by virtue of the SFO.

Mr. Wong Wai Hung holds 34.0% in HH International, which in turn holds
100% in Weishun Property, which in turn holds 100% interest in Kangwei
Industrial, which in turn holds 48.0% in Xingye Group. Xingye Group held
25,000,000 Domestic Shares. As Mr. Wong Wai Hung controls more than
one third of the voting power at the general meeting of Xingye Group, each
of Kangwei Industrial, Weishun Property, HH International and Mr. Wong Wai
Hung is deemed to be interested in the same number of Shares in which
Xingye Group is interested by virtue of the SFO.

Mr. Lin holds 100% in LVC Assets Management Limited, which in turn holds
100% in LVC KH Investment L.P. Each of Mr. Lin and LVC Assets Management
Limited is deemed to be interested in the same number of Shares in which
LVC KH Investment L.P. is interested by virtue of SFO.

The shareholding percentages are calculated on the basis of 250,000,000
Domestic Shares and 84,394,000 H Shares issued by the Company as of 31
December 2024.
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(b)  Substantial shareholders of other members of the Group b) AEBEEMKEARNEZRRE
Approximate
percentage
interest held
by the substantial
Name of member shareholder
Name of shareholder of the Group Nature of interest FERREF
BRREE A8 REBHRENEEB EmtE BaBABED
Kangdi Enterprise™ Renkang Hospital Beneficial owner 15%
BT ERM CER &R EREAA
Ms. Zhang Dandan™? Renkang Hospital Beneficial owner 15%
SR FHT 2 0 CER %R EnEAA
Ms. Wang Aier™ Renkang Hospital Beneficial owner 13%
TERL LM (a0 EREAA
Notes: B &E
(1) Pursuant fo an entrusted management agreement, each of Kangdi Enterprise, N REZXEEHR RTEE KT

Ms. Zhang Dandan and Ms. Wang Aier irrevocably vested their entire voting
power at any general meeting of Renkang Hospital to the Company.

(2)  Kangdi Enterprise is held as to 50% by Mr. Wang Zhengren and as to 50% by
Ms. Wang Keying, all of whom are members of the Wang Family and cousins
of Mr. Wang Junyang.

(3)  Ms. Zhang Dandan is a member of the Wang Family and aunt-in-law of Mr.
Wang Junyang.

(40 Ms. Wang Aier is a member of the Wang Family and aunt of Mr. Wang
Junyang.

Save as disclosed above, as of 31 December 2024, to the knowledge of the
Directors, no other person had, or were deemed or taken to have interest or short
position in the Shares or underlying Shares which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which
were recorded in the registry kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the
SFO.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or
any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or existed
during the Reporting Period.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBT SECURITIES

At no time during the Reporting Period was the Company or any of its subsidiaries
a party fo any arrangement to enable the Directors, the Supervisors or chief
executive of the Company (including their spouses or children under 18 years of
age) to acquire benefits by means of acquisition of shares in, or debentures of,
the Company or any other body corporate.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Company had complied with the
applicable requirements under Chapter 14A of the Hong Kong Listing Rules with
respect fo connected transactions and continuing connected transactions. Details
of the Group’s non-exempt connected transactions are set out below:

A.  One-off Connected Transactions
Project Management Services

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 25 June
2021, Kanghua Healthcare Investment (a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company) has engaged Kanghua Real Estate Development (which
is owned as to 80% by Xingye Group and 20% by Xingda Property) as
management services provider in connection with the development of
the Kanghua Qingxi Healthcare Complex. The underlying land use rights
were acquired by the Group as disclosed in the announcement of the
Company dated 23 July 2020. Construction work of the main facilities had
commenced in 2021. Pursuant to the agreement between the parties, the
management fee payable by Kanghua Healthcare Investment to Kanghua
Real Estate Development shall be 2% of the construction component of
the development cost of the project, but in any event shall not exceed
RMB15,600,000 in aggregate.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, project management fee of
RMB1,509,000 was paid by Kanghua Healthcare Investment to Kanghua
Real Estate Development.

Report of the Board
EEERE

EEESH

AARTEILBBEERATARAE
B2 MU TAERBOOEOIRNHE
HRFEEZEFAD -

EENRESWERNIERES
R

A ¥R & HA ] A fa] B ) R 2 &) 3k B AR AT Y BB
REEERS—T  REF  EERARQF]
ERTBRAB (BREEFSE ZEBI KM
182 FR)FIMAEM T Al RERBEAR
B EAEMEA BB REHMER -

BFERXS

BE_T_MFt+_A=+—HILEFE K
RAEMABRELMRAUNEVATHEEA
IRGEFBEAEALRGZBEBRENR - K
SENFRRBEALIZFBNOT ¢

A —RERERS
A EERG

HMARBAMR T %A
“THEMASHERE BREBEERR
B(ARBNEZEMBLR) EstRE
B« FENR (BMARABEHAR—
TETFLAT=BENRERRE
AEBECDWEABALNERE) T8
FEEMWAERME (HHEERBEES80%
K BUZ YRR 20%) 1E R B B AR TS
HER FTEREVERIEER =
T —FRB - RBFTOATLOG
& REBREREERAFEERMERN
BXNMNERBERAEBFEXAZE
REL Y H) 2% @ HEER A S KT
i A R ¥15,600,000 7T ©

HE_Z-_WF+_A=+—81tF

B BEBERECNBERMER
FIHEEIEE ARK1,509,0007T °

EREEEREERNARAR F1 2024

71



Report of the Board
EEERE

Continuing Connected Transactions

Annual cap
for the year ended
31 December 2024

Actual
transaction value
for the year ended

(Note) 31 December 2024
(RMB million) (RMB million)
Nature of the connected BE-Z-MF BE-Z-_MF
Continuing connected person’s interest in the +ZA=+—8 +ZHA=+—H
transaction under Connected transaction LEENFELR LEENER
T &FETH person EXZHHEEAL (B &E) RE5EE
HEBRERS BEAL RIS (AR®EET) (ARBBEET)
The Kanghua Hospital Lease  Kanghua Group  The land and buildings under 51.3 511
Agreement FRES the lease are owned by
REBREE HE Kanghua Group and leased to
Kanghua Hospital
HEESENEERX R
K8 T B2 B8 B ) & 3 A0
BZEY
The Renkang Hospital Lease  Tongli Enterprise  The land and buildings under 9.8 9.7
Agreement RHEZ the lease are owned by Tongli
CERBRESEmE Enterprise and leased to
Renkang Hospital
HANEBEXENEERXEE
KRB FCRERA L
BEY
Note: The renewal of annual cap under each of the Kanghua Hospital Lease Ma EEFERREERE RCREER

HEBZSERATEE_F_-_0F
TZA=t+—BI=ZEFENFE

Agreement and the Renkang Hospital Lease Agreement for the three years
ending 31 December 2025 is set out in the announcement of the Company

dated 16 December 2022.
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The Kanghua Hospital Lease Agreement

On 10 April 2016, Kanghua Hospital (a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company), entered into the Kanghua Hospital Lease Agreement with
Kanghua Group in relation to the lease of land and buildings underlying
Kanghua Hospital from Kanghua Group for a term of 10 years commencing
from 1January 2016 to 31 December 2025.

Rent

The rent payable under the Kanghua Hospital Lease Agreement is
determined with reference to (i) the actual GFA used by Kanghua Hospital
during the year (which shall not be less than 254,896.1 sq.m.); and (i) the
monthly rental per sq.m. For the year ended 31 December 2024, the actual
GFA used by Kanghua Hospital was 338,687.88 sq.m. and the monthly
rental per sq.m. was RMB12.62.

The Renkang Hospital Lease Agreement

On 10 April 2016, Renkang Hospital (a 57%-owned subsidiary of the
Company), enfered info the Renkang Hospital Lease Agreement with Tongli
Enterprise in relation to the lease of land and buildings underlying Renkang
Hospital from Tongli Enterprise for a term of 10 years commencing from 1
January 2016 to 31 December 2025.
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Rent

The rent payable under the Renkang Hospital Lease Agreement is
determined with reference to (i) the actual GFA used by Renkang Hospital
during the year (which shall not be less than 73,265.6 sq.m.); and (i) the
monthly rental per sq.m. For the year ended 31 December 2024, the actual
GFA used by Renkang Hospital was 96,437.13 sq.m. and the monthly rental
per sq.m. was RMB8.42.

Review by and confirmation of independent non-executive Directors of the
Company

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the above
continuing connected transactions, and after due and careful enquiry with
the management of the Group, confirmed that such transactions were:

(i) carried out in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(il made on normal commercial terms or better; and

(il carried out according fo the terms in the relevant transaction
agreements, which are fair and reasonable, and in the interests of
the Shareholders as a whole.

The independent non-executive Directors are satisfied that they have
received and reviewed sufficient information to give the confirmations
above.
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Confirmation of the auditor

As to the requirement set forth in Rule 14A.56 of the Hong Kong Listing
Rules, the auditor of the Company has written fo the Board to confirm that
it has not been aware of any matter which leads it fo believe the aforesaid
continued connected transactions:

(i) have not been approved by the Board;

(i)  are not carried out in accordance with the related transaction
agreement in any material respects; and

(il exceed the annual cap.

Details of the related party transactions of the Group are set out in Note 34
to the consolidated financial statements.

Save as disclosed in this annual report, none of the related party
transactions constituted connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions under Chapter 14A of the Hong Kong Listing Rules, which
are subject to announcement or independent shareholders’ approval
requirements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED SECURITIES

During the Reporting Period, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENT

The Company had not entered into any equity-linked agreement during the
Reporting Period, nor did any equity-linked agreement subsist at the end of the
Reporting Period.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles or the PRC
Company Law which oblige the Company to offer new Shares on a pro-rata basis
to existing Shareholders.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION OF HOLDERS OF LISTED SECURITIES

The Company is not aware of any tax relief or exemption available to the
Shareholders by reason of their respective holding of the Company’s securities.
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BANK BORROWINGS

Details of the bank borrowings of the Group as at 31 December 2024 are set out
in Note 25 to the consolidated financial statements.

CASH MANAGEMENT

As part of the cash management policy fo manage excess cash, the Group had
purchased investment products from financial institutions and invested in certain
financial product issued by a PRC commercial bank to achieve higher interest
income without interfering with its business operations or capital expenditures
during the Reporting Period.

The Group carefully balances its needs for interest income and the risks
associated with financial products by investing in simple financial products issued
by reputable financial institutions. The Company’s senior management, including
its chief executive officer and chief financial officer, is involved in these investment
decisions. The Company’s senior management periodically reviews investment
strategies and investment portfolios to ensure they achieve the Group’s cash
management objectives. Before making a proposal to invest in financial products,
the head of the finance department of the relevant hospital or Group company
must assess the cash flow and operational needs and capital expenditures of
such hospital or company. If the cash flow exceeds its operational needs and an
appropriate low-risk investment opportunity is available, the head of the relevant
finance department will submit the investment proposal to the Company’s
senior management for approval. Regardless of investment size, a proposal
to invest in any investment products must first be reviewed and approved by
the Company’s chief financial officer, who is also responsible for reviewing the
relevant documentation and negotiation with the counterparty. After the chief
financial officer approves the proposal, it must also be approved by (i) the chief
executive officer, if the investment amount exceeds RMB10 million; or (i) the
executive Directors and the independent non-executive Director with appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise as required under the Hong Kong Listing Rules, if the investment
amount exceeds RMB100 million.

In assessing a proposal o invest in a financial product, a number of criteria must
be met, including:
o the term of the financial product should generally not exceed one year;

o the proposed investment must not interfere with our business operations or
capital expenditures;
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o the financial product must be issued by a reputable bank with which we
have a long-term relationship, preferably exceeding five years; and

J the investment portfolio of the financial product should generally bear low
risk.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance practices. The Board is of the opinion that the Company has
complied with all the applicable code provisions contained in part 2 of the
Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix C1 to the Hong Kong
Listing Rules throughout the Reporting Period. Principal corporate governance
practices adopted by the Company are set out in the section headed “Corporate
Governance Report” on pages 81 to 104 of this annual report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and fo the best
of the Directors’ knowledge, as at the date of this annual report, the Company
had maintained the public float of the issued Shares as required under the Hong
Kong Listing Rules.

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE OBLIGATIONS PURSUANT TO THE HONG
KONG LISTING RULES

The Company does not have any other disclosure obligations under Rules 13.20,
13.21 and 13.22 of the Hong Kong Listing Rules.

CLOSURE OF THE REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the AGM

The register of members of the Company will be closed from Monday, 19 May
2025 to Wednesday, 18 June 2025, both days inclusive, during which period
no transfer of Shares will be effected. In order to determine the identity of the
Shareholders who are entitled to aftend and vote at the AGM, all share transfer
documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with
the Company’s H Share Registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East,
Wanchai, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 16 May 2025.
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For determining the entitlement to the proposed final dividend

The Board proposes a final dividend of RMB15 cents per Share (inclusive of
applicable tax) for the year ended 31 December 2024. The dividend proposal
will be submitted for consideration at the AGM. If such proposed dividend
distribution is approved by the shareholders, the final dividend will be distributed
to those Shareholders whose names appear on the register of members of the
Company on Friday, 27 June 2025. The register of members of H Shares of the
Company will be closed from Wednesday, 25 June 2025 to Friday, 27 June 2025,
both days inclusive, during which no transfer of H Shares will be registered. In
order to qualify for the entitlement to the final dividend, all transfer instruments
of the H Shares together with the relevant share certificates shall be lodged
with the Company’s H Shares registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor
Services Limited at Shops 1712-16, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road
East, Wanchai, Hong Kong, before 4:30 p.m., on Tuesday, 24 June 2025 for
registration.

IMPORTANT EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 9 January 2025, the Company entered info a sale and purchase Agreement
with an independent third party, Beijing Pantheon Health Management Co., Ltd.*
for the disposal of 55% equity interest in Kangxin Hospital at a consideration of
RMB34.9 million. The disposal was later completed on 8 February 2025. Kangxin
Hospital ceased to be a subsidiary of the Company and the financial results of
Kangxin Hospital will no longer be consolidated into those of the Company. The
Company will account for its remaining 45% equity interest in Kangxin Hospital as
an interest in associate under equity method. The Group will lease the land and
building of Chongging Kanghua Property to Kangxin Hospital for its operations.
The Company is still in the progress of preparing the initial accounting for the
disposal up to the date of this annual report. Details of the above contractual
arrangements are set out in the Company’s announcement dated 9 January
2025.

Save as disclosed in the above, there are no important events after the Reporting
Period and up to the date of this annual report.
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AUDITOR

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 3 February 2023, Ernst
& Young ("EY”) has resigned as the auditor of the Company with effect from 3
February 2023 and Bakertilly has been appointed as the auditor of the Company
with effect from 3 February 2023 to fill the vacancy following the resignation of EY.
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu ("Deloitte”) has resigned as the auditor of the Company
with effect from 31 December 2021 and EY has been appointed as the auditor
of the Company with effect from 3 January 2022 to fill the vacancy following the
resignation of Deloitte.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024
have been audited by Bakertilly. A resolution will be submitted to the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company to reappoint Bakertilly as auditor of the
Company.

Save as disclosed above, the Company has not changed its auditor during any of
the past three years.

For and on behalf of the Board

Wang Junyang
Chairman

Dongguan, the PRC
31 March 2025
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Report of the Supervisory Committee
EEERE

To the Shareholders:

The Supervisory Committee, in compliance with the relevant laws and regulations
and the Articles, has conducted its work in accordance with the fiduciary principle,
and has taken up an active role to work seriously and with diligence to protect the
interests of the Company and the Shareholders.

During the Reporting Period, the Supervisory Committee had reviewed cautiously
the operation and development plans of the Company and provided reasonable
suggestions and opinions to the Board. It also strictly and effectively monitored
and supervised the Company’s management in making significant policies and
decisions to ensure that they were in compliance with the laws and regulations of
the PRC and the Articles, and in the interests of the Shareholders.

We have reviewed and agreed to the Report of the Board and audited
consolidated financial statements proposed by the Board for presentation at the
AGM. We are of the opinion that the Directors and the chief executive and other
senior management of the Company are able to strictly observe their fiduciary
duties, to act diligently, to exercise their authority faithfully in the best interests
of the Company and to work in accordance with the Articles. We are witnessing
better operations and internal controls.

Up to the date of approval of this report, none of the Directors and chief executive
and senior management members of the Company had been found to have
abused their authority, damaged the interests of the Company or infringed upon
the interests of the Shareholders. None of them was found to be in breach of any
laws and regulations or the Articles. The Supervisory Committee is satisfied with
the achievement and cost effectiveness of the Company during the Reporting
Period and has great confidence in the future prospects of the Company.

For and on behalf of the Supervisory Committee

Chen Shaoming
Chairman

Dongguan, the PRC
31 March 2025
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Corporate Governance Report

The Board is pleased to present this Corporate Governance Report for the year
ended 31 December 2024. The Board is of the opinion that the Company has
complied with all applicable code provisions contained in part 2 of the CG Code
as set out in Appendix C1 to the Hong Kong Listing Rules throughout the year
ended 31 December 2024.

The Board is committed to promoting good corporate governance to safeguard
the interests of the Shareholders and believes that maintaining a high standard
of corporate governance is essential to the success of the Company and would
provide a practice enhancing greater accountability and transparency and
meeting the expectations of the Group’s stakeholders. The Company will continue
to review and enhance its corporate governance to ensure that it will continue fo
meet the applicable requirements of the CG Code.

COMPANY’S CULTURE

The Board believes that corporate culture underpins the long-term business,
economic success and sustainable growth of the Group. A strong culture enables
the Company to deliver long-term sustainable performance and fulfil its role as a
responsible corporate citizen. The Company aims to build a strong organisational
culture to cultivate a sense of belonging among its staff through various staff
functions and events. The Group believes that the creation of a healthy and
harmonious working environment will improve staff morale and productivity in the
long term.

The Board sets and promotes corporate culture and expects and requires
all employees to reinforce. All of our new employees are required to attend
orientation and training programs so that they may better understand our
corporate culture, structure and policies, learn relevant laws and regulations,
and raise their quality awareness. In addition, from time to time, the Company
will invite external experts to provide training to our management personnel to
improve their relevant knowledge and management skills.
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The Group is a leading healthcare operator in the PRC, committed o providing
high-quality, patient-centred and innovative medical services. The Board sets the
tone for the corporate culture of the Group, which is based on the core principles
of acting lawfully, ethically and responsibly in all aspects of its business. The
Board also defines the purpose, values and strategic direction of the Group,
and fosters a culture that embraces forward-looking vision, change readiness
and competitive edge. The Board ensures that the desired culture is embedded
and reflected consistently in the Group’s operating practices, workplace policies
and practices, and stakeholder relations. The Board monitors and evaluates the
culture of the Group through various measures and tools over time, such as:

- Workforce engagement: The Board engages with the employees of
the Group through regular communication, feedback and recognition,
and supports their professional development, career progression and
empowerment.

- Employee retention and training: The Board values the talent and expertise
of the Group’s employees, and strives to retain and attract high-performing
and motivated staff by offering competitive remuneration, benefits and
fraining opportunities.

- Stringent financial reporting: The Board oversees the financial performance
and reporting of the Group, and ensures that the Group maintains high
standards of financial integrity, transparency and accountability.

- Effective and accessible whistleblowing framework: The Board encourages
and protects the reporting of any misconduct, malpractice or wrongdoing
within the Group, and provides a clear and confidential whistleblowing
mechanism for employees and other stakeholders to raise their concerns
without fear of refaliation.

82 Guangdong Kanghua Healthcare Group Co., Ltd. Annual Report 2024

AEBRTEELNBERELRE  BRHINE
HEL - ABER/TLONEINERRY - &
ZERAEENCECIIES A &M
DRERBE2HEMRETE BRERKE
BEENZORAAGER -EFGNCEEAR
SENRE  EBEBENMBET R - AT ER
ERENRS BEBERMEFEZHXL -
EEEMREBLEAEASREN EE
BEE BIBRKEBEBUARFOHEBERPR
REBLER ZEZ2REZBREBETR
HAREECETRIER MRS -

\Xt

H:BEeRBTHIR K
Tﬁ$%lmEI§L I A
mgﬁﬁﬁ*%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ%%

F o

\
]

>4+4H$>\<ﬁ|—|

SRk
k=113
S|

- EEBREBREI) ZEFTERLEE
BEEMTREREXEMG  WiRBRM
EBFHINGTH BRI EEIKe
B N8 kRS R R IE SRR
HET -

- BRHNIBHRE EFEERELEE
WM RELBRRIBEN BRAKEHE
REBBLE - FHAEREEETE
RIERIZRE -

- ﬁﬁ&ﬁ@%ﬁﬁﬁm¢%$AW@
WIREHANEBAEMRTHTS
BITRIX AT ROER I%ﬁa
KBt H 0 & R AR RE AR R
HHl - EREEMELERBRMABTE
1HE X |IE



Corporate Governance ReporT

- Legal and regulatory compliance: The Board ensures that the Group
complies with all applicable laws and regulations in the PRC and other
jurisdictions where it operates, and adheres to the Code of Conduct and
group policies that govern its ethical and responsible behaviour.

- Staff safety, wellbeing and support: The Board prioritises the safety,
wellbeing and support of the Group’s employees, especially during

the COVID-19 pandemic, and provides them with adequate protective
equipment, health screening, counselling and assistance.

By taking info account the corporate culture in various contexts, the Board
believes that the culture is aligned with the purpose, values and strategy of the
Group, and supports its long-term success and sustainability.

THE BOARD
Board Composition

The Board currently comprises eight Directors, including four executive Directors,
one non-executive Director and three independent non-executive Directors.

Executive Directors

Mr. Wang Junyang (Chairman)

Mr. Chen Wangzhi (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Wong Wai Hung (Vice Chairman)

Ms. Wang Aigin

Non-executive Director

Mr. Lv Yubo
Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Yeung Ming Lai

Dr. Chen Keji
Mr. Chan Sing Nun
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The brief biographical details of the Directors are set out in the section headed
“Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management” on pages 154 to 165 of this
annual report. The overall management and supervision of the Company’s
operation and the function of formulating overall business strategies were vested
in the Board.

During the Reporting Period and up to the date of this annual report, the Board
has met the requirements of Rules 3.10 and 3.10A of the Hong Kong Listing Rules
relating fo the appointment of at least three independent non-executive Directors
with at least one independent non-executive Director possessing appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise and the requirement that the independent non-executive Directors
represent at least one-third of the Board.

The Company has received annual confirmation on independence from each
independent non-executive Director pursuant to the requirements under the Hong
Kong Listing Rules. The Company considers that each independent non-executive
Director is independent in accordance with the independence guidelines as set
out in Rule 3.13 of the Hong Kong Listing Rules.

All Directors, including independent non-executive Directors, have brought a wide
spectrum of valuable business experience, knowledge and professionalism to
the Board for its efficient and effective functioning. Independent non-executive
Directors are invited to serve on the Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee
and the Remuneration Committee.

The CG Code requires the Directors to disclose to the Company the number and
nature of offices held in public companies or organisations and other significant
commitments as well as their identities and the time involved. The Directors have
agreed to disclose to the Company their other commitments in a timely manner.
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Board Independence

The Company recognizes that Board independence is key to good corporate
governance. The Company has in place effective mechanisms that underpin an
independent Board and those independent views. The current composition of the
Board, comprising more than one third of independent non-executive Directors
and the members of the Audit Committee are all independent non-executive
Directors which exceed the independence requirements under the Listing Rules.
The Nomination Committee, Remuneration Committee and Audit Committee
all comprising at least two-thirds by independent non-executive Directors. The
remuneration of independent non-executive Directors is subject to a regular
review fo maintain competitiveness and commensurate with their responsibilities
and workload. The independence of each independent non-executive Director is
assessed upon his/her appointment and annually.

Directors are requested to declare their direct or indirect interests, if any, in
proposals or transactions to be considered by the Board at the Board meetings
and abstain from voting, where appropriate. External independent professional
advice is available to all Directors, including independent non-executive Directors,
whenever deemed necessary. The independent non-executive Directors have
consistently demonstrated strong commitment and the ability to devote sufficient
time to discharge their responsibilities at the Board.

The Company has also established channels through formal and informal means
whereby independent non-executive Directors can express their views in an
open manner, and in a confidential manner, should circumstances requires. The
implementation and effectiveness mechanism to ensure independent views and
input are available to the Board is reviewed annually.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Mr. Wang Junyang is an executive Director and the chairman of the Board. Mr.
Chen Wangzhi is an executive Director and the chief executive officer of the
Company. Mr. Wong Wai Hang Ricky is a senior management member and the
chief financial officer of the Company. The three of them have separate roles.

Relationship between Directors and Chief Executive

Certain Directors and the chief executive officer of the Company are members of
the Wang Family. Please refer to the section headed “Directors, Supervisors and
Senior Management” on pages 154 to 165 of this annual report for details.
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ROLE AND FUNCTION OF AND DELEGATION BY THE BOARD

The Board is responsible for and has general powers for the management and
conduct of the business of the Company. It delegates day-to-day management
of the Company to the executive Directors and the senior management of the
Company within the control and the authority framework set by the Board. The
delegated functions and responsibilities are periodically reviewed by the Board.

The Board reserves its decision on all major matters of the Company, including:
approval and monitoring of all policy matters, overall strategies and budgets,
internal control and risk management systems, material transactions (in particular
those that may involve conflict of interests), financial information, recommendation
for appointment of Directors and other significant financial and operational
matters. For details, please refer to the Arficles.

In addition, the Board has also delegated to the Audit Committee, the Nomination
Committee and the Remuneration Committee various responsibilities as set out in
their respective terms of reference. Further details of these committees are set out
in this corporate governance report.

All Directors shall ensure that they carry out duties in good faith, in compliance
with applicable laws and regulations, and in the interests of the Company and
the Shareholders at all times.

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance to indemnify its
Directors in respect of legal actions against them.

CHANGES IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND
CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Save as disclosed in this annual report, there has been no change in information
required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Hong Kong Listing Rules
since the date of the 2024 interim report of the Company.
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INDUCTION AND CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Each newly appointed Director shall receive formal, comprehensive and
tailored induction on the first occasion of his appointment to ensure appropriate
understanding of the business and operations of the Company and full
awareness of director’s responsibilities and obligations under the Hong Kong
Listing Rules and relevant statutory requirements.

Directors will be continuously updated on the statutory and regulatory regime
and the business environment to facilitate the discharge of their responsibilities.
Directors are also encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. The joint
company secretaries of the Company update the Directors on the latest
developments regarding the Hong Kong Listing Rules and other applicable
regulatory requirements from fime to time, to ensure compliance and enhance
their awareness of good corporate governance practices.

During the Reporting Period, all Directors, namely Mr. Wang Junyang, Mr. Chen
Wangzhi, Mr. Wong Wai Hung, Ms. Wang Aigin, Mr. Lv Yubo, Mr. Yeung Ming Lai,
Dr. Chen Keji and Mr. Chan Sing Nun, had participated in continuous professional
training to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills in relation to their
contribution to the Board.

Directors’ knowledge and skills are continuously developed and refreshed by,
inter alia, the following means:

° participation in continuous professional training seminars and/or
conferences and/or courses and/or workshops on subjects relating to,
inter alia, corporate governance, directors’ duties and legal and regulatory
changes organised and/or arranged by the Company and/or professional
bodies and/or lawyers;

o reading materials provided from time to time by the Company to Directors
regarding legal and regulatory changes and matters of relevance to the
Directors in the discharge of their duties; and

o reading news, journals, magazines and/or other reading materials
regarding legal and regulatory changes and matters of relevance to the
Directors in the discharge of their duties.
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE

The Company has adopted the Model Code as a code of conduct of the
Company for Directors’ and Supervisors’ securities transactions. Having made
specific enquiry of all Directors and Supervisors, the Directors and the Supervisors
have complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code during
the Reporting Period. Employees who are, or likely to be, in possession of
unpublished inside information in relation to the Company or the Shares are
prohibited from dealing in the Shares during the black-out period.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the Directors entered into a service contract with the Company for an
initial term of three years. According to these service contracts, each Director's
term of office (a) three years commencing from the date when their respective
appointments were approved by the Shareholders; and (b) subject to termination
in accordance with their respective terms. The service contracts may be renewed
in accordance with the Articles and applicable laws, rules or regulations.

None of the Directors or the Supervisors has entered or is proposed to enter
info any service contract with the Company which is not determinable by the
Company within one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

BOARD MEETINGS AND GENERAL MEETINGS

The Company has adopted the practice of holding Board meetings for at least
four times a year at approximately quarterly intervals pursuant to code provision
C.5.1 of the CG Code. Notice of not less than fourteen days are given for all
regular Board meetings to provide all Directors with an opportunity to aftend and
include matters in the agenda for a regular meeting pursuant to code provision
C.5.3 of the CG Code.

All Directors are provided with agenda and relevant information in advance
before a Board meeting. They have access to the senior management and the
joint company secretaries of the Company at all times and, upon reasonable
request, may seek independent professional advice at the Company’s expense.
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Minutes of Board meetings are kept by the secretary to the Board with copies
circulated to all Directors for information and records. Minutes of Board meetings
and committee meetings record sufficient detail of the matters considered by the
Board and the committees and the decisions reached, including any concerns
raised by the Directors. Draft minutes of Board Meetings and committee meetings
are sent to the Directors for comments within a reasonable time after the date
on which a meeting is held. The minutes of the Board meetings are open for

inspection by Directors.

During the Reporting Period, the Board convened four meetings. A summary of
the attendance record of the Directors is set out in the table below:

Corporate Governance Report
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Number of meetings attended/eligible to
attend during the year ended 31 December 2024

REZ-E-MFE+ A=+t HLEEHH Attendance rate
Name of Directors Y] HE/ THEERRE HER
Executive Directors HTES
Mr. Wang Junyang (Chairman) TEBRE(ZE) 4/4 100%
Mr. Chen Wangzhi (Chief Executive Officer) BRFE Bt & (77483 4/4 100%
Mr. Wong Wai Hung Vice Chairman) TRERE(FEE) 4/4 100%
Ms. Wang Aigin FEHLT 4/4 100%
Non-executive Director FHITES
Mr. Lv Yubo aEREE 4/4 100%
Independent Non-executive Directors BIFHTES
Mr. Yeung Ming Lai BB EE 4/4 100%
Dr. Chen Keji BRAER 4/4 100%
Mr. Chan Sing Nun BREELE 4/4 100%

During the Reporting Period, the Company convened one annual general
meeting on 26 June 2024. All Directors attended the annual general meeting.

During the Reporting Period, the Chairman held a meeting with independent non-
executive directors without presence of other directors.

RBEERE ARARR T _WEXA
T+ RNBEBRA-ABRRBEAE - FIEES
HHEREAFRS -

REBEMAE > TREBYIFNTESTSRT—
REHMEEHFENEH -

EREEEREERNARAR F1 2024

89



Corporate Governance Report
TEERME

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely, the Audit Committee, the
Nomination Committee and the Remuneration Committee, to handle particular
responsibilities of the Board and the Company’s affairs. All Board committees of
the Company are established with defined written terms of reference that have
been uploaded to the respective websites of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and
the Company, and are provided with sufficient resources to discharge their duties.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established the Audit Committee in compliance with Rules 3.21
and 3.22 of the Hong Kong Listing Rules with written terms of reference in
compliance with the CG Code and the roles and responsibilities delegated to
the Audit Committee by the Board. The Audit Committee is primarily responsible
for considering issues relating to the appointment of external auditor and their
independence; reviewing the Group’s financial information and overseeing
the Group’s financial reporting system, risk management and internal
control procedures; supervising the Company’s internal audit system and its
implementation; reviewing connected transactions and their compliance with the
relevant terms and rules; reviewing the interim and annual results of the Group
prior to recommending them to the Board for approval; and other matters that the
Board has authorised it to deal with.

The Audit Committee consists of three independent non-executive Directors, Mr.
Chan Sing Nun (chairman of the Audit Committee), Mr. Yeung Ming Lai and Dr.
Chen Keji.
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During the Reporting Period, the Audit Committee held four meetings. At the
meetings, the Audit Committee reviewed the annual results announcement and
annual report of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2023, the interim
results announcement and interim report of the Group for the six months ended
30 June 2024, considering issues relating to the external auditor and their
independence and appointment, matters relating to the audit of the Group’s
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024, as well
as the risk management and internal control procedures, reviewed connected
transactions and the arrangements that allow employees to raise concerns about
the possible misconduct and made suggestions to the Board. A summary of the
attendance record of the Audit Committee members is set out in the table below:
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Number of meetings attended/eligible to
attend during the year ended 31 December 2024

REZ-Z-MFE+-A=+t-HLEEHH Attendance rafe
Name of committee member ZEBREHA HE/THEERRY HEE
Mr. Yeung Ming Lai gkt 4/4 100%
Dr. Chen Keji BRESE 4/4 100%
Mr. Chan Sing Nun BREgELE 4/4 100%

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established the Nomination Committee with written terms of
reference in compliance with the requirements of the CG Code and the roles
and responsibilities delegated to the Nomination Committee by the Board. The
Nomination Committee is primarily responsible for preparing the procedures and
criteria for determining the candidates for Directors and the senior management
of the Company and conducting preliminary review on their qualifications and
credentials, including proposing to the Board on its size and composition in
accordance with the Company’s operating results, assets and shareholding
structure; reviewing the procedures and criteria for determining the candidates for
Directors and the chief executive officer of the Company and making proposals
to the Board; looking for the qualified candidates for Directors and chief executive
officer; reviewing and making proposals on the candidates for the Directors and
chief executive officer; reviewing and making proposals on the candidates for
the other senior management, on which the Board needs to resolve and other
matters that the Board has authorized it to deal with.

The Nomination Committee consists of one executive Director, Mr. Wang Junyang
(chairman of the Nomination Committee), and two independent non-executive
Directors, Mr. Yeung Ming Lai and Dr. Chen Keiji.
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The Board has adopted a board diversity policy and discussed all measurable
objectives set for implementing the policy. Please refer to “Board Diversity Policy”
on page 94 of this annual report for more details.

The Nomination Committee will assess the candidate or incumbent on criteria
such as integrity, experience, skill and ability to commit time and effort to carry
out the duties and responsibilities. The recommendations of the Nomination
Committee will then be put to the Board for decision.

During the Reporting Period, the Nomination Committee held one meeting.
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At the meeting, the Nomination Committee (i) reviewed the structure, size and & F - IERZES(RTEETEHEE - A
composition of the Board; (il reviewed the independence of the independent non- IR K B/ A : (iR B IFITE EHE
executive Directors; and (jii) reviewed the Company’s director Nomination Policy 321 : K il sd A R RN E IR G B K KL
and Diversity Policy. A summary of the attendance record of the Nomination %t bk - R4 EE@RELFCHEEE
Committee members is set out in the table below: BN T
Number of meetings attended/eligible o
attend during the year ended 31 December 2024
REZE-Z-_MF+-A=+-HLEEHRH Attendance rafe
Name of committee member ZEEHENE R/ THEE R HEE
Mr. Wang Junyang TEBEE N 100%
Mr. Yeung Ming Lai oE i 7 100%
Dr. Chen Keji BRAEREE 7 100%
PROCEDURE FOR NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS REEFEEF
When there is a vacancy in the Board, the Nomination Committee evaluates the HEESHIREmHE  BELE 8B HE
balance of skills, knowledge and experience of the Board, and identifies any E&FrEIG - M LER W= H2
special requirements for the vacancy. The Nomination Committee will then identify ~ BEEEAFHENR - IREBZ B € 5:HF4
suitable candidates and convene a Nomination Committee meeting to discuss BAZW AFIRGRZESSH  MIEEES
and vote on the nomination of directors and make recommendation to the Board ~ #77 uTuma ERE WHEEEHBETES
on the candidatel(s) for directorship. AR
CRITERIA FOR NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS REEENEE
The Nomination Committee will consider candidates who possess the 1RZZE € ZE A EENZEHRE

particular skills, experience and expertise that will best complement the Board's
effectiveness at that time.

In considering the overall balance of the Board’s composition, the Nomination

Committee will give due consideration to the board diversity policy of the
Company.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established the Remuneration Committee with written terms of
reference in compliance with the CG Code and the roles and the responsibilities
delegated to the Remuneration Committee by the Board. The Remuneration
Committee is primarily responsible for formulating the criteria for and conducting
assessment on the Directors and senior management as well as determining
and reviewing the remuneration policies and plans for the Directors and senior
management, including formulating remuneration plans and proposals in
accordance with the terms of reference of the Directors and senior management
and the importance of their positions as well as the remuneration benchmarks
for the relevant positions in other comparable companies; the remuneration
plans and proposals including but not limited to criteria, procedures and
main assessment system for performance assessment, main proposals and
regulations on award and punishment; reviewing the performance of the
Directors and senior management and conducting annual assessment on their
performance and results; supervising the implementation of the remuneration
policies of the Company and other matters that the Board has authorised it
to deal with. The Remuneration Committee has adopted the second model
described in paragraph E.1.2(c) under Appendix C1 to the Hong Kong Listing
Rules (i.e. make recommendation to the Board on the remuneration packages of
individual executive Director and senior management member).

The Remuneration Committee consists of two independent non-executive
Directors, Mr. Chan Sing Nun (chairman of the Remuneration Committee], Mr.
Yeung Ming Lai, and one executive Director, Ms. Wang Aigin.

The primary goal of the Group’s remuneration policy is to enable the Directors
and senior management to be competitively rewarded having regard to the
Group's operating results, roles and responsibilities and individual performance
of the direcfors and senior management and comparable market practices.

Details of the Directors” emoluments and the five highest paid individuals are set
out in Notes 9 and 10 to the consolidated financial statements.
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The remuneration of the members of senior management (for the avoidance of
doubt, excluding Directors and Supervisors) by band during the Reporting Period
is set out below:

R SREREOREFH (52
R TREEERES) RFHGEES
mF -

Number of individuals

Remuneration band H N E (EE-PN ¢
HK$1-HK$500,000 1% 7T 2 500,000 7% 7T 1
HK$500,001-HK$1,000,000 500,0017% T & 1,000,000 78 7T 4
HK$1,000,001-HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 T & 1,500,000 78 7T 1

During the Reporting Period, the Remuneration Committee held one meeting. At
the meeting, the Remuneration Committee reviewed the matters relating to the
reviewing and made proposals on the remuneration package of Directors and
senior management of the Company and made suggestions fo the Board. A
summary of the attendance record of the Remuneration Committee members is
set out in the table below:

RBERE  FHEZE SRR —REZF - N
et FNZEEEZEHRTARAES
EeREBEBNFMTEARERE RIEL
B UYMEFSELREZ FHRESMK
BHFTHEMEHN X :

Number of meetings attended/eligible to
attend during the year ended 31 December 2024

REZ-E-NE+-A=+-HLFEHH Attendance rate
Name of committee member ZEEHERE HE/THESERE =
Ms. Wang Aigin FEHLT N 100%
Mr. Yeung Ming Lai B8Rt 7N 100%
Mr. Chan Sing Nun RERLAE N 100%
BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY EEFLZ bR

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy and discussed all measurable
objectives set for implementing the policy, which will form the basis of the Board's
considerations in 2024. The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of
having a diverse Board with a view to enhancing its effectiveness and achieving
a high standard of corporate governance. It endeavors to ensure that the Board
has a balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate o the
requirements of the Company’s business. Selection of candidates will be based
on a range of diversity perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service. The ultimate decision of all Board appointments
should be based on merit and contribution that the selected candidates will bring
to the Board. The Nomination Committee has reviewed the board diversity policy
to ensure its effectiveness and considered that the Group achieved the objectives
of its board diversity policy for the year ended 31 December 2024.
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The Board currently comprises of eight directors, of which four are executive
directors, one is non-executive director and three are independent non-
executive directors. Among which, one director is female and seven directors
are male and one in the age group of 30-40; two in the age group of 41-50;
two in the age group of 51-60; and three in the age group over 61. The Board
has an appropriate mix of skills, experience and diversity that are relevant to
the Company'’s strategy, governance and business; executive leadership &
strategy; accounting professionals/financial management expertise and legal
professionals/regulatory and compliance/risk management.

The Board targets to maintain at least the current level of female representation,
with the ultimate goal of achieving gender parity.

WORKFORCE DIVERSITY

The gender ratio in the workforce (including senior management) for the year
ended 31 December 2024 is 27:73 (male:female). The total gender diversity of the
Group is considered balanced as the Group is mainly engaged in the operation
of hospitals where a maijority of the labour forces including nurses and healthcare
workers are female and the Group will continue to maintain the gender diversity
in workforce. For further details of gender ratio, please refer to the disclosure in
the Environmental, Social and Governance Report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance duties
including but not limited to:

(@) to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in
the corporate governance report;

(b)  to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors, Supervisors and senior management; and

(c)  to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements.

During the Reporting Period, the Board had reviewed the above corporate
governance duties.
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DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR FINANCIAL
REPORTING IN RESPECT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024 which give a true
and fair view of the affairs of the Company and the Group and of the Group’s
financial performance and cash flows. The Directors also acknowledge their
responsibilities to ensure that the consolidated financial statements of the Group
are published in a timely manner.

The management of the Company has provided to the Board such explanation
and information as are necessary to enable the Board to carry out an informed
assessment of the Company’s consolidated financial statements, which are put
to the Board for approval. The Company provides all members of the Board with
updates on the Company’s performance, positions and prospects.

The Directors were not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions which may cast significant doubt upon the Group’s ability fo continue
as a going concern.

The statement prepared by the auditor of the Company regarding their reporting
responsibilities on the consolidated financial statements of the Company is set
out in the Independent Auditor's Report on pages 166 to 174 of this annual report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for the risk management and internal control systems
of the Group and for reviewing their effectiveness at least annually. The Audit
Committee assists the Board in fulfilling its oversight and corporate governance
roles in the Group’s financial, operational, compliance, risk management and
internal controls, and the resourcing of the finance and internal audit functions.

Appropriate policies and controls have been designed and established to ensure
that assets are safeguarded against improper use or disposal, relevant rules and
regulations are adhered to and complied with, reliable financial and accounting
records are maintained in accordance with relevant accounting standards and
regulatory reporting requirements, and key risks that may impact on the Group’s
performance are appropriately identified and managed. The systems and internal
control procedures can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance
against material misstatement or loss, as they are designed to manage, rather
than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives.
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The Board has in place internal control procedures in ensuring any continuing
connected fransactions are conducted in compliance with their terms and the
applicable requirements under the Hong Kong Listing Rules.

An internal audit function has been established to perform regular financial
and operational reviews and recommend necessary actions to the relevant
management. The internal audit function is to ensure the risk management and
internal control procedures are in place and function properly as intended. The
internal audit function also reviews the continuing connected transactions of
the Group and the adequacy and effectiveness of the relevant internal control
procedures. The results of the internal audit are reported to the Audit Committee.
The independent non-executive Directors, in performing their review of the
continuing connected transactions of the Group, also take into account the
findings of the internal audit function.

Clinical risks are particularly relevant to the Group’s hospital operations and a
key area of the Group’s clinical governance. The Group has adopted a three-tier
risk management approach to identify, assess, mitigate and handle these risks.
At the first line of defence, the hospitals’ front-line staff, guided by clearly defined
procedures, are responsible for identifying, assessing and monitoring risks
associated with day-to-day operations. The hospital managers and executives,
as the second line of defence, implement rules and procedures, provide
coaching and support, and deal with, and analyse unusual and unexpected fact
patterns and outcomes detected or anticipated by their staff. They ensure that
risks are within the acceptable range in the ordinary course of business and that
the first line of defence is effective. They also continuously benchmark against
international best practice and collate lessons learnt from past incidents to
identify areas of improvements. As the final line of defence, the Audit Committee
and the internal audit function of the Company ensure that the first and second
lines of defence are effective through constant inspection, monitoring and making
recommendations to improve the relevant processes. On an ongoing basis,
each hospital of the Group reviews and assesses the status of potential risks
which may impact on its ability to achieve its business objectives and/or those of
the Group. This review process includes assessment as to whether the existing
system of internal controls continues to remain relevant, adequately addresses
potential risks, and/or should be supplemented. The results of these reviews are
regularly reported to the senior management and the Board. Such top-down and
company-wide risk management system is intended to cover every aspect of the
Group's clinical operations.
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The Board from time to time and at least annually reviews the significant risk
factors affecting the operations of the Group as a whole and is cognizant that
the unprecedented COVID-19 pandemic has become a relevant risk factor to the
hospital operations (including, in particular, the health and safety of patients and
staff) of the Group. Although the COVID-19 pandemic in the PRC was ended; it
remains to be seen whether similar pandemic will emerge in the future, which
could result in material and long-term disruptions to the Group’s operations.

The Audit Committee was satisfied as to the implementation and effectiveness
of the Group’s risk management and internal control procedures. There were
no matters of material concerns relating to financial, operational or compliance
controls. The Board is satisfied with the effectiveness and adequacy of the risk
management and internal control procedures of the Group during the Reporting
Period.

In addition to the review of risk management and internal controls undertaken
within the Group, the external auditor also assessed the adequacy and
effectiveness of certain key risk management and internal controls as part of their
statutory audits. Where appropriate, the external auditor’'s recommendations are
adopted and enhancements to the risk management and internal controls will be
made.

WHISTLEBLOWING POLICY

The Company expects and encourages employees of the Group and those
who deal with the Group (e.g. suppliers, customers, creditors and debtors) to
report to the Company, in confidence, any suspected impropriety, misconduct
or malpractice concerning the Group. The Company adopts the whistleblowing
policy to provide reporting channels and guidance on reporting possible
improprieties and reassurance to whistleblowers of the protection that the Group
will extend to them in the formal system.

The whistleblowing policy will be reviewed on a regular basis, any suspected
cases will be reported to the Audit Committee.
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ANTI-CORRUPTION POLICY

The Company does not tolerate any form of bribery, whether directly or indirectly,
by, or of, its Directors, officers, employees, agents or consultants or any persons
or companies acting for it or on its behalf. The Company adopts the anti-
corruption policy in assisting the employees in recognising circumstances which
may lead to or give the appearance of being involved in corruption or unethical
business conduct, so as to avoid such conduct which is clearly prohibited, and to
promptly seek guidance if necessary.

The anti-corruption policy will be reviewed on a regular basis, and any confirmed
cases will be reported to the Board.

DISSEMINATION OF INSIDE INFORMATION

With respect to the procedures and internal controls for the handling and
dissemination of inside information, the Company:

(i) is aware of its obligations under the SFO and the Hong Kong Listing Rules
and the overriding principle that inside information should be announced
immediately if it is the subject of a decision;

(il conducts its affairs with close regard to the applicable laws and regulations;

[il  has established a policy and implemented guidelines for monitoring,
reporting and disseminating inside information to our shareholders,
investors, analysts and media by pursuing broad, non-exclusive distribution
of information through channels such as financial reporting, public
announcements and its website. These policies and guidelines also identify
who are the Company’s authorised spokespersons and their responsibilities
for communications with stakeholders; and

liv)  has communicated to all relevant staff regarding the implementation of the
policy and relevant trainings are also provided.

The Company discloses inside information to the public as soon as reasonably
practicable unless the information falls within any of the safe harbours as
provided in the SFO. Before the information is fully disclosed to the public, the
Company ensures the information is kept strictly confidential. If the Company
believes that the necessary degree of confidentiality cannot be maintained or
that confidentiality may have been breached, the Group would immediately
disclose the information to the public. The Company is committed to ensuring that
information contained in announcements or circulars are not false or misleading
as to a material fact, or false or misleading through the omission of a material
fact in view of presenting information in a clear and balanced way, which
requires equal disclosure of both positive and negative facts.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the total fees paid/payable in respect
of audit and non-audit services provided by the Group’s auditor are set out below:

- e

HE-_Z-_NWE+-A=+—HItEE ' K
EEZHMRENESMIERTREE N,

JEAHEREBIT
RMB’000
ARBF
Services PR 7%
— Audit services in connection with the audit of the consolidated ~ — 8 EAiﬂ%?*ﬁrf METEZE
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024 ZEZNF+ A=+ —HALFE
provided by Bakertilly RIERE IS MR BT RS 1,650
— Review of inferim condensed consolidated financial statements — KEIRHENEHNEZ S M4\ A
for the six months ended 30 June 2024 provided by Bakertilly =+HIEREANFEERES
iR 250
Total A&t 1,900
JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES BMEARME

Ms. Chau Hing Ling of Vistra Corporate Services (HK) Limited, an external service
provider, has been engaged by the Company as one of the joint company
secretfaries. Her primary contact person at the Company is Mr. Wong Wai Hang
Ricky, the chief financial officer of the Company and the other joint company

secretary.

During the Reporting Period, both of Ms. Chau Hing Ling and Mr. Wong Wai Hang
Ricky have undertaken not less than 15 hours of relevant professional training in

compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Hong Kong Listing Rules.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTOR
RELATIONS

The Board believes that effective communication with investors is essential for
establishing investors’ confidence and attracting new investors. The Group also
recognises the importance of transparency and timely disclosure of corporate
information which enables investors to make the best investment decision.

The Company adopted the shareholders communication policy, which set out the
framework the Company has put in place to promote effective communication
with shareholders so as to enable them to engage actively with the Company and
exercise their rights as shareholders in an informed manner. The shareholders
communication policy will be reviewed on a regular basis by the Board.

The Company has established a range of communication channels with its
Shareholders, investors and other stakeholders. These include (i) the publication
of interim and annual reports and/or dispatching circulars, notices, and other
announcements; (i) the annual general meeting or extraordinary general meeting
providing a forum for Shareholders to raise comments and exchanging views
with the Board; (i) updated and key information of the Group available on the
Company's website and the Stock Exchange’s website; (iv) the Company’s website
offering communication channel between the Company and its stakeholders; (v)
the Company’s share registrar in Hong Kong serving the Shareholders in respect
of all share registration matters; and (vi) convening investor meeting and/or
analyst briefings, which are led by our executive Directors and investor relations
team with existing and potential investors.

Published documents together with the latest corporate information and news are
available on the Company’s website at http://www.kanghuagp.com. Investors
can also communicate with the Company through email at kh@kanghuagp.com.

Having considered the multiple channels of communication, the Board is satisfied
that the shareholders communication policy has been properly implemented
during the Reporting Period and is effective.
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DIVIDEND CONSIDERATIONS

The payment of dividend is to allow the Shareholder to participate in the
Company’s profits whilst retaining adequate reserves to sustain the Group’s
operations and future growth. The declaration, form, frequency and amount
of dividend to be paid by the Company must comply with relevant laws and
regulations and the Articles. In deciding whether to recommend any dividend, the
Board will take into account a number of factors, including financial performance,
reserves, operations and liquidity requirements and development plans of the
Company. The Board will comprehensively consider other relevant factors as
appropriate from time to time. The Company does not have a fixed dividend
distribution ratio.

PRC laws require that dividends be paid only out of the profit for the year
calculated according to PRC accounting principles, which differ in many aspects
from the generally accepted accounting principles in other jurisdictions, including
the IFRS. Distributions from the Company and its subsidiaries may also become
subject to any restrictive covenants in bank credit facilities, convertible bond
instruments or other agreements that the Company or its subsidiaries may enter
into in the future.

The amount of any dividend actually distributed to the Shareholders will depend
upon the Group’s earnings and financial condition, operating requirements,
capital requirements and any other conditions that the Directors may deem
relevant and may be subject to approval of the Shareholders. The Board has
an absolute discretion to recommend any dividend for any year. There is no
assurance that dividends of any amount will be declared or distributed in any
year.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Procedures for Shareholder(s) to Convene an Extraordinary General
Meeting ("EGM")

Shareholders requesting the convening of an EGM shall proceed in accordance
with the procedures set forth below.

The Shareholders individually or jointly holding over 10% of the Shares with the
voting power at the proposed meeting have the right to request the Board to
hold the EGM or a class meeting in writing. According to laws, administrative
regulations and the Articles, the Board shall give written feedback to agree or
disagree to hold the EGM or the class meeting within ten days after receiving the
proposal.
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If the Board agrees to hold the EGM or the class meeting, a meeting notice shall
be given within five days after the Board makes such a resolution. Changes to the
original proposal in the notice shall be approved by the relevant Shareholders.

If the Board disagrees to hold the EGM or the class meeting or fails to give
feedback within ten days after receiving the request, the Shareholders individually
or jointly holding over 10% of the Shares have the right to request the Supervisory
Committee to hold the EGM or the class meeting in writing.

If the Supervisory Committee agrees to hold the EGM or the class meeting,
a meeting notice shall be given within five days after receiving the request.
Changes to the original proposal in the notice shall be approved by the relevant
Shareholders.

If the Supervisory Committee fails to give the notice of the EGM within the specified
period, it shall be deemed that the Supervisory Committee does not convene
or preside over the Shareholders’ meeting. Shareholders who individually or
jointly hold 10% or more of the Shares for not less than 90 consecutive days
may convene and preside over the EGM by themselves. The expenses of the
Shareholders” meeting held by the Supervisory Committee or Shareholders by
themselves shall be borne by the Company.

Procedures for Shareholder(s) o Put Forward Proposals at a General
Meeting

When the Company holds a Shareholders’ general meeting, the Board, the
Supervisory Committee and the Shareholders individually or jointly holding over 3%
of the Shares have the right to submit proposals to the Company. Shareholders
individually or jointly holding over 3% of the Shares may put forward interim
proposal and submit to the convener in writing ten days before the EGM.
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Procedures for Directing Shareholders’ Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to the Board
in writing through Mr. Wong Wai Hang Ricky, the chief financial officer and joint
company secretary of the Company. His contact details are as follows:

Address:

Unit 3207, Metroplaza Tower 2
223 Hing Fong Road, Kwai Fong
New Territories, Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2428-2880

Fax: (852) 2428-2630

Email: kh@kanghuagp.com

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at the general meetings of
the Company.

CHANGE IN CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

A special resolution has been passed at the annual general meeting, H
shareholders’ class meeting and domestic shareholders’ class meeting of the
Company held on 26 June 2024 to amend certain amendments (the “Proposed
Amendments”) to the current articles of association of the Company and adopt
the amended Articles of Association. The Proposed Amendments are in relation
to, among others, the Change of Company Name and updates in view of the
abolition of the Mandatory Provisions for the Articles of Association of Companies
to be Listed Overseas and the Letter about Suggestions on Amendment to Articles
of Association of Companies to be Listed in Hong Kong on 31 March 2023, and in
accordance with relevant laws and regulations such as the Guidelines for Articles
of Association of Listed Companies. A copy of the amended Articles of Association
has been posted on the website of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

Save as disclosed above, the Company did not make any other changes to its
constitutional documents of the Company during the Reporting Period.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

The Board is pleased to present the environmental, social and governance report
of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2024 (the "ESG Report”). The
contents of the ESG Report are in compliance with the relevant environmental,
social and governance reporting guidelines set out in Appendix C2 to the Hong
Kong Listing Rules.

The ESG Report covers the Group’s operations at Kanghua Hospital (including
Kanghua Hospital — Huawei Clinic), Renkang Hospital, Kangxin Hospital, Renkang
Elderly Care Centre, the haemodialysis services operations (the Kanghua
Haemodialysis Group) and the rehabilitation operations ( the Anhui Hualin Group)
(collectively, the “Relevant Operations”).

Any opinions or suggestions in relation to the ESG Report may be sent to the
Company's email address at: kh@kanghuagp.com.

1. ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE MANAGEMENT
SYSTEM

1.1 Core values in environmental, social and governance

The Group is committed to integrating corporate, social and
environmental responsibilities into various aspects of the Group’s
operations for achieving sustainable development. To this end,
the Group has implemented various environmental, social and
governance policies:

(@ compliance with the requirements of the laws, rules and
regulations on the corporate environment, society and
governance;

(b)  promotion of the establishment and improvement of relevant
management systems and mechanisms in corporate
environment, society and governance;

(¢ emphasis on delivering patient-centric healthcare services with
the highest possible ethical and professional standard;

(d  active engagement with stakeholders to identify changing
needs in corporate, social and environmental aspect of the
Group's operations; and

(el  encourages staff to save energy, cherish resources, support
and promote measures on energy-saving and emission
reduction.
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The Group has set up a special working group formed by the
management and hospital executives and managers of each
hospital and operating facilities to promote the above policies and
prepare the relevant disclosures and report to the Board.

The communication and responses among the stakeholders

As part of the Group’s sustainable development objectives, the

REBEBKY TEBEIENE -
ﬁ%@%%ﬁ@&iﬁh&“
BRI ERITHRABREERAS
LAYEE) FillESR R AR B AERE I R
WHEESER -

1.2 HHhEEBHEDE

{’Eﬁﬁ‘%ITﬁ‘%’é EEZRN—

Group maintains communication with stakeholders through various CAREEBBZBEREBERRE
channels with a view to proactively responding to stakeholders’ f’ﬁ%ﬁ'ﬁ%iﬁﬁ CBEEE B ER
requests and fostering the Group’s capability in fulfilling its DERNE KRR ERNEEE 474
environmental and social responsibilities: BITREREEEME :
Stakeholders Communication and responses Key issues
BHoE BB fE FEEH
Investors/shareholders Shareholders’ general meetings, Corporate governance and strategic
annual reports and interim reports, development and directions
results announcements, corporate
announcements, investors conferences
BEE/RRE KRR FmERHRE  EEL CEBEARERERESMA

Government and regulatory
authorities

BT R EE#E

Staff

i
H

HhEAE REERE

Regular communications, field visits,
meetings, operating information
disclosure and reporting

THER- &
LB s

Labour union, regular communications
between staff and management, staff
activities, regular in-house publications,
trainings and education, responsibility
and accountability systems

BITe BIHEREERT
BTE%  THARTY

BEERBEGE

AR -
- BRI B2
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Strict compliance with applicable laws
and regulations, license, maintaining
and renewal hospital classification, anti-
corruption, environmental protection,
responsive to the government's latest policies
and directives on healthcare

EREREREERER BB #Ek
EEERSE RES -RERE 2

B 76 78 B R B0 SR ISR B 4 3

Staff retention, collegiality, quality standard,
ethical practice, career progression,
development and training, workplace health
and safety, fair and reasonable reward and
punishment mechonisms
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Stakeholders
HHE
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Communication and responses

BB D

RIE - HEREBRSE

Key issues

FEER

Suppliers

HER

Patients

Community

o

Healthcare facilities

BEKE

Due diligence, meetings, negotiations,
regular review of cooperation and
quality check, internal audit of
procurements and prescriptions by
doctors

BRRT &% %M THEES
EREERE  KBAMEZNLE
BE 73

Day to day operations and communications,
dedicated customer service, satisfaction
surveys and feedback, service complaints
and response systems

BERELRBR ZENEPRY

MEERAEERE  RGREF RO E
ES)

Community activities, public health
awareness events, free medical
consultations, regular in-house
publications, donations, supporting
charitable causes

HEES ARFLEEREY 2 E
BEEH THALNY BE X
FHREFX

Mutual cooperation and patient referrals,
technical assistance to lower-tier
hospitals, multisite doctor practice

MEAERBAEZ R TRERE
HEARE - BEZHAE

Stable and uninterrupted supply of quality
pharmaceuticals, medical consumables
and medical equipment on terms no less
favourable than market, proper qualifications
and licenses, service support and training on
equipment, anti-corruption, environmentally
preferable purchasing

BB T % B R SRR E B R b
EEENER BEREMRBERE -
HENERLER REORBFR
Bl RIBE - RIREKEE

Clinical standard and the Group’s reputation
as a quality and ethical healthcare services
provider, patient satisfaction, anti-corruption
(e.g. refusing “red packets”)
BASRERAEEERBERSERE
ENBRERGRHBNEE BEREE -
REBH(WMERTAE])

Improving the community’s awareness of
public health and safety and the profile
of the Group as a socially responsible
healthcare services provider, addressing
healthcare needs from the underserved and
unprivileged

ReatRHEARFEERT2HOEH LK
SEFEREHEEENERRKREME
MR BRERBTIENEEEERE
HERER X

Delivery of optimal clinical solutions to
address the different needs of patients,
referral of patients requiring acute, complex
and critical care from lower-tier hospitals to
the Group, the Group’s influential presence
in the industry
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

The Group regularly keeps track of the latest national and regional
environmental laws and regulations and adopts all necessary measures
to comply with them. The Board considers that wastewaters and solid
wastes (particularly medical wastes) produced by the Group’s hospitals and
operating facilities are particularly relevant to environmental protection.
The Group is compliant with applicable laws and regulations, including,
the Law of the PRC on the Prevention and Control of Water Pollution, the
Regulations on Urban Drainage and Sewage Treatment, the Regulations
on the Management of Medical Waste and the Law of the PRC on the
Prevention and Control of Environmental Pollution by Solid Waste in all
material respects. During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group
had not been subject to any material penalties in relation to environmental
protection.

Developing sustainable best practices requires modification of staff
behavior, and this occurs most frequently through ongoing staff education.
Education and supporting processes are one of the most critical elements
to effective implementation of environmental protection initiatives and
reduction in environmental footprint.

In particular, with the outstanding performance of Kanghua Hospital in
the National Greening Action promoted by the PRC, it was recognised
as the “Model National Greening Unit”, which is one of the few Grade A
Class Ill hospital in the PRC bestowed with such award. Kanghua Hospital
has achieved a green space and greening coverage ratio of over 60%,
providing patients with a pleasant hospital environment surrounded by
greenery. In 2024, Kanghua Hospital was assessed as Dongguan City's
“Guanxianghua” domestic waste classification specialty hospital as a
testament to our efforts in environment awareness and protection.

2.1 Wastewaters

Hospitals discharge considerable amounts of chemicals and
microbial agents in their wastewaters. Many substances contained
in the wastewaters, such as chemicals, medicine residues as
well as pathogenic resistant bacteria and viruses, resist normal
wastewater treatment and could pose a danger to public health and
the environment if released untreated into the public sewer system.
Due to the chemical and biochemical contaminants, the wastewaters
treatment requires specialised technologies and processes that
cannot be feasibly conducted at the source. The Group engages
a qualified and licensed service provider to process all of the
wastewaters produced by its hospitals. Before the wastewaters
are processed by the service provider, they are stored in dedicated
facilities fo ensure they will not contaminate the primary water supply
for human consumption and clinical use.
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The table below sefs forth the discharge volume of wastewaters by
the Relevant Operations for the years indicated:

RIE - HEREBRSE

TREBIRATFEABELR
B SR E -

Change 2024 2023
) —E-mEF —ZT-=
Wastewaters discharge (fon) 37K BE R (E) +29.5% 521,529 402,877
Wastewaters discharge per gross & B S8 T 18 8955 /K BE AR
floor area (ton/gross floor area) (Mg, 3EEEETR) +26.2% 0.98 0.77

The increase in wastewaters discharge in 2024 was primarily due to
the increase in water usage by the Relevant Operations of the Group
in particular due to the acquisition of our haemodialysis services
operations in January 2024 which resulted in the increase in the
overall water usage during the year.

The discharge of wastewaters is integral to the Group’s clinical
operations and is generally expected to increase in line with business
growth. The management does not currently consider that it is
feasible to implement any initiatives or policies to control or reduce
the amount of wastewaters discharge without compromising sanity
and clinical safety, which are of overriding importance to public
health and safety. The Group regularly reviews its wastewaters
treatment protocols with a view to ensuring there is no inadvertent
contamination of its water supply and that the wastewaters will be
properly handled by the hospitals and haemodialysis outpatient
centers before treated by the service provider. The management
believes that the wastewaters produced by the hospitals and
haemodialysis outpatient centers, after properly treated by the service
provider, will pose minimal risks to the environment.
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2.2 Hazardous solid wastes

Hospital operations, in general, generate a variety of solid medical
wastes in the diagnosis, treatment or immunization of patients
or in research that can pose a danger to public health and the
environment if not properly treated and disposed of. Materials
containing pathogens are infectious can cause diseases if exposed.
These include:

o human anatomical waste: waste from surgery and autopsies
on patients with infectious diseases;

° sharps: disposable needles, syringes, saws, blades, broken
glasses, nails or any other item that could cause a cut; and

o pathological: tissues, organs, body parts, human flesh, fetuses,
blood and body fluids.

Non-infectious but hazardous wastes include:

o pharmaceuticals: drugs and chemicals that are returned from
wards, spilled, outdated, contaminated, or are no longer
required; and

. radioactive: wastes contaminated with radioactive substances
used in diagnosis and treatment of diseases.

The Group’s hospitals and haemodialysis outpatient centers have in
place a comprehensive medical waste management system:

1. Identification and segregation of waste types: segregation of
different types of wastes at source (wards, operation theaters,
laboratories, examination rooms etc.) with color coding systems
and clear operation guidelines and handbooks, supervised by
responsible staff. Effective segregation diminishes total waste
and the hospital’s environmental footprint;
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2. Transport & storage of waste: use of puncture proof and leak
proof containers; bags are properly tied and sealed; use of
special containers for radioactive wastes; use of designated
transport trolleys and timely collection; and storage in covered
areas remote from normal passages with security measures to
prevent unauthorized tempering;

3. Identify the need for use of personal protective equipment:
special clothing, gloves, masks and eye protection identified
and provided to the healthcare works responsible for waste
transportation and disposal; and

4. Proper disposal of waste: collection and subsequent
disposal by qualified and licensed service provider (including
incineration, landfill or chemical/biochemical treatment, as
appropriate to the type of wastes) specialized in medical
wastes disposal. On account of the hazardous nature of these
wastes, they are not typically recycled.

The table below sets forth the volume of hazardous solid medical
wastes produced by the Relevant Operations for the years indicated:

BEYMEREFEST  ERAK
RERBHEZRER KT
ZEWRERES  (EH
BMHEENERTE £
RERNERFHERR
RS : MR TFHEERBELL
FRENEERE WK
Mz 2B RERE
BAMA:

a8 Il {5 R {18 A B o 5K Y
FE BALMBREED
B MEENBREASR
HEKRRE FE RE
KRR IRE : &

HEREEY: BERRK
EREEVEENSER
AR RS REER (BEE
FREWEI R HIE
HB YRR &
WERBRBRE - AR Z
SEMABEENE AR
A BB R -

TREIINFATRFEBRAEER
BEENEZERERENE

Change 2024 2023
i —EBmEF —E_=F
Hazardous solid wastes (kg) BEEEED (AT +1.1% 498,344 492,707
Hazardous solid wastes per gross S E & H)
floor area (kg/gross floor area) BEEEEEY
(Afr/REEME) -1.4% 0.933 0.947

The increase in hazardous solid medical wastes produced in 2024
was primarily due to the acquisition of our haemodialysis services
operations in January 2024, which increased the use of personal
protfective equipment and production of medical wastes.
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The disposal of hazardous solid medical wastes is integral to the
Group’s clinical operations and is generally expected to increase
in line with business growth. The management does not currently
consider that it is feasible to implement any initiatives or policies to
control or reduce the production of hazardous solid wastes without
compromising sanity and clinical safety, which are of overriding
importance. For example, many surgical tools, protective masks and
gloves and syringes are strictly for one-time use only; extending their
use may reduce waste production but is not clinically acceptable as
it significantly increases the risks of cross-infection among patients
and staff. The Group regularly reviews its waste management
system with a view to ensuring that all of the steps in the chain are
properly followed with the safety of the patients and staff as top
priority. One of the key steps in managing the hazardous wastes is
proper identification and segregation because: (i) this ensures no
hazardous wastes are inadvertently mixed with domestic wastes
and disposed without proper treatment, potentially posing harm
to public safety and environment; and (ii) the service provider
processes the wastes collected according to the identification and
segregation by the hospitals. The hospitals have a responsibility
and accountability system for waste management at the source
and provide regular trainings to the front-line staff to ensure that the
guidelines and handbooks are strictly adhered. The management
believes that the hazardous solid wastes produced by the hospitals
and haemodialysis outpatient centers, after properly treated by the
service provider, will pose minimal risks to the environment.
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2.3 Domestic wastes 23 HEERR
The Group's operations generate domestic wastes that are non- AEBMEBRRLAZE BE -
infectious and non-hazardous from the offices, dormitories, kitchens, BiFE  FHEESIFEREEIESR
rooms, including bed linens, utensils, paper, etc. These wastes are S EENR  BFEK EAm -
identified and segregated at source and are eventually collected, BH BR%E - ZEFNRIRE
treated and recycled by general wastes service providers. T LA R RS BE - RAREH—AREE
MR IREE K E - BREREIK
BHA -
The table below sets forth the volume of domestic wastes produced TR REFEBELEE
by the Relevant Operations for the years indicated: BEANEFNRE :
Change 2024 2023
g —E-mE —ZT_=%F
Domestic wastes (kg) HETENR (AT) -1.7% 2,643,032 2,689,119
Domestic wastes per gross floor FRERBNEENR
area (kg/gross floor area) (RfT/EEER) -4.2% 4,950 5166

The decrease in domestic wastes produced in 2024 was primarily
due to the decrease in the volume of pandemic prevention materials
used by the Relevant Operations of the Group, together with the
Group’s stringent cost control and waste reduction measures being
implemented.

The Group is conscientious about the environment and is committed
to the recycling of domestic wastes where feasible. This primarily
includes the recycling of paper, plastic, metal and glass. The
Group mandates its staff to segregate the domestic wastes into
appropriate categories for proper handling by the service provider.
The Group also promotes “paper-less” office, including double-
sided or secondary paper printing except for official documents,
multimedia form of presentation in meetings and increasing the use
of office automation system fo reduce administrative paperwork. The
hospitals have an engineering department to salvage any usable
parts or components from decommissioned equipment and furniture,
such as televisions, computers and hospital beds, before they are
disposed of. The Group may also donate obsolete but functional
items, such as computers, to various charitable organisations. The
Group will continue to explore feasible initiatives to reduce domestic
waste production and enhance its recycling efforts.
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B -

HERELA®RE

2.4 Energy consumptfion 24 BERBRE
Healthcare systems are among a community’s largest consumers B RS L%?iﬁﬁ*j(ﬁ’l BEREE
of energy. Hospitals are generally open 24 hours a day and have Mgz — o —B K24/
sophisticated energy needs, such as particular air flow controls FZ ﬁﬁﬂﬁ%’émﬁﬁ’] LRk
and specialized heating, ventilation and air-conditioning systems. ﬁﬂﬁﬁmﬁfﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁ’ﬂ
The Group’s hospitals’ and operating facilities” energy consumption LJ—L& o REBE B K&
primarily includes electricity and water. EIERE E’J Be /ﬂi HEEZEEK
The table below sets forth the consumption of the Relevant TREFRFAREFEBELEE
Operations for the years indicated: BHEREE
Change 2024 2023
b5k —E-NE T o=
Electricity (kilowatt-hours) BN (FEE) +6.3% 43,080,922 40,541,267
Electricity consumption intensity BHERE
(kilowatt-hours per gross floor (BREEBETRE)
area) +3.6% 80.68 77.88
Water consumption (fon) JKFE (W8) +17.1% 931,018 794,748
Water consumption intensity IKFERE
{fon per gross floor area) (FREmEE) +14.2% 1.74 1.53
Electricity consumption is primarily attributable to air-conditioning, BIHREEZERANER K
water heating, lighting and energy demanding medical equipment FRAA N = FERE MO B8 A 3R 4 (D MRI
such as MRI and X-ray. The Group’s initiatives aimed at reducing X&) AEBEERIHA

electricity consumption include:

o explore the feasibility of using air heat pump water heater and
gas-fired boiler;

J installation of inverter-type air-conditioning systems that are
more energy-efficient;

o installation of high efficiency LED light sources;
o promote staff awareness and control measures ensure lights

are off when no one is using;

o an energy saving task force is set up to perform regular
inspections of air-conditioning systems and other electrical
systems to ensure no unintended or unusual usage;

] ]4 Guangdong Kanghua Healthcare Group Co., Ltd. Annual Report 2024
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o installation of motion-triggered lightning systems in escalators
and elevators;

° maximize the use of natural sunlight via roof windows;
o implement a system of inspecting office buildings; every
administrative department is responsible for the inspection of

power consumption and timely turning off related electrical
appliances, including lighting, air conditioning and so on;

J installation of automatic door closers in wards with a view
to increasing energy efficiency by limiting the amount of air
movement required, as well as the space that needs to be
cooled; and

J gradually replace obsolete equipment with new equipment
that are certified for energy efficiency.

Water consumption is primarily attributable to cooling equipment,
plumbing fixtures, landscaping, medical process rinses, pure water
systems and domestic uses (sinks, showers, toilets). The Group’s
initiatives aimed at reducing water consumption include:

o leak detection and repair;

o use of high-efficiency showerheads;

J use of low-flow plumbing fixtures;

. use of motion sensor-activated faucets and flow control;

o use of waterless medical vacuum pumps;

o use of reject water produced in the reverse-osmosis process;

o use full loads in sanitizers, sterilizers and laundry washing
machines, consistent with infection control requirements; and

o minimize water use for irrigation with rain/soil moisture
controllers and only during times when wind and evaporation
are lowest.
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B HEREARS

2.5

The Group achieved remarkable water saving on account of, among
other water-saving initiatives, the installation of more than 1,500 high-
efficiency waterheads at Kanghua Hospital.

In the past, Kanghua Hospital has been awarded by the Dongguan
Water Authority under the Dongguan Municipal People’s Government,
the "Water-Saving Unit of Dongguan” upon passing evaluations on
various aspects, including water-saving rules and regulations, water-
saving containers and infrastructure, water usage planning and
management and water-saving mechanism implementation.

The Group will continue to oversee the effectiveness of the above
initiatives and explore new and innovative ways to achieve water
saving, which will in turn contribute to electricity saving.

During the Reporting Period, our electricity and water consumption
have increased by 6.3% and 17.1%, respectively, which was mainly
attributable to expanded scale of operations due to the acquisition
of our haemodialysis services operations in January 2024. We will
continue to enhance our efforts in minimizing consumption, including
more extensive installation of efficient water saving sprinkler systems,
electronic lighting sensors and automatic water tap sensors.

Antibiotics prescription

Antimicrobial resistance is a global public health challenge, which
is aggravated by the overuse of antibiotics. Increased antimicrobial
resistance is the cause of severe infections, complications, longer
hospital stays and increased mortality. Antibiotics over-prescription is
also potentially associated with an increased risk of adverse effects,
more frequent re-aftendance and increased medicalization of self-
limiting conditions.

Inevitably, doctors at the Group’s hospitals prescribe antibiotics to
patients from time fo time. The Group is committed to the judicious
prescription of antibiotics by eliminating unnecessary or sub-optimal
prescriptions. The Group’s continuous efforts have maintained
antibiotics prescription at a reasonable and acceptable rate.

11 6 Guangdong Kanghua Healthcare Group Co., Ltd. Annual Report 2024
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The Group’s clinical governance tracks a number of parameters to
gauge the prescription of antibiotics as set forth in the table below
(the information below only include those operations that provides

B

tHER

CLIN

E/n#&%

AEENBRKREEFRGHENE
ZRANETSE  FEHIT
RUATERHERBERHAARS

hospitalised (inpatient and outpatient) services): B (TR EM2) RBRKEEE
%)
2024 2023 Standard
Kanghua Hospital REER —E-NEF —E-= oA
Rate of antibiotics prescription FZEEMERREFX
for Outpatients 10.6% 12.0% <20%
Rate of antibiotics prescription NEZETARES
for emergency freatment AR LR 24.4% 25.6% <40%
Rate of antibiotics prescription FREEMEERRH X
for inpatients 41.1% 43.3% <60%
2024 2023 Standard
Renkang Hospital —EER —ENF —T-= Z4E
Rate of antibiotics prescription FiZBEMAEZRRAX
for Outpatients 13.0% 13.4% <20%
Rate of antibiotics prescription MERETARES
for emergency freatment AR & 21.8% 25.2% <40%
Rate of antibiotics prescription FhrEEMERRA X
for inpatients 55.7% 57.4% <60%
2024 2023 Standard
Kangxin Hospital BB —EMEF —EZ=F R
Rate of antibiotics prescription P BEMERERH X
for Outpatients 3.1% 3.5% <20%
Rate of antibiotics prescription MEZRAFARES
for emergency freatment AR & 3.6% 5.6% <40%
Rate of antibiotics prescription FRBEMERE X
for inpatients 18.3% 14.0% <60%

EREEREEERAARAR 52024 117/



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RIR - HERERRE

2024 2023 Standard
Anhui Hualin Group ZHERES —EMEF —T-= RE
Rate of antibiotics prescription IEEMERE X
for Outpatients 3.3% 13.3% <20%
Rate of antibiotics prescription MERETARES
for emergency freatment AR L X 0% 0% <40%
Rate of antibiotics prescription FRBEMERE X
for inpatients 3.6% 15.3% <60%

The Group's initiatives to the judicious prescription of antibiotics
include:

o providing education and clinical decision support to doctors
and patients regarding the long-term and community-wide
consequences of overusing antibiotics;

o patients should be educated of the importance of following the
use of antibiotics according to prescription;

o doctors should always follow the principle of rational, safe and
effective antibiotics prescription;

o antibiotics should be prescribed only for bacterial infections
whenever possible and in the proper dose for the correct
duration;

o narrow spectrum antibiotics should be chosen whenever

possible to avoid destroying populations of beneficial bacteria
along with the disease-causing bacteria;

] ] 8 Guangdong Kanghua Healthcare Group Co., Ltd. Annual Report 2024
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o publish internal clinical guidelines for doctors to follow,
especially for common infections, with a view to improving
antibiofics use;

] rotating use of different classes of antibiotics where possible;

o accountability systems to prompt responsible prescription of
antibiotics by doctors;

. strictly prohibit any form of advantages or rebates provided by
pharmaceutical companies to incentivize doctors to prescribe
more antibiotics; and

o regular communications with regulators and healthcare
organizations, including the Chinese Center for Disease Control
and Prevention, to understand the latest community threats
and outbreaks with a view to modifying antibiotics prescription
strategy as appropriate.

EMPLOYMENT

The success of the Group depends critically on its ability to attract, develop
and retain its staff. The Group adheres to fair and open recruitment
practices, and provides its staff with adequate protection of rights. During
the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group continued to strive for
improvements and innovations in staff support, development and training
to create a safe and comfortable working environment and provide a fair
and collegial learning and development platform. The Group prides itself on
maintaining harmonious relationships with its staff in the spirit of “Kanghua
People”. As of 31 December 2024, the Group had a total of 4,320 (2023:
3,946) full-time staff and all employees are primarily located in the PRC.
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BIE HEBRERRE

3.1 Recruitment 31 1REE

Recruitment is an important component to the continuous growth BEEAEEFEERNEEMR
of the Group. The Group's recruitment process is merit based and BXED S o AN 5 E HY R BE IR A2 BRER
is open to all qualified personnel. In addition to infernal recruitment BESHA EBRMEBEERBATL
by job promotion and rotation, the Group also carries out external FIRR o BRBBBAI S F R TR
recruitment activities. Healthcare professionals are highly sought after HEITREABEE SN - AN & B IR
in Guangdong Province. Therefore, the Group strategically extends RONGIIBEE )RR - BEEE AT
its recruitment efforts to other provinces in the PRC. The Group EEREBIED A - A%
implements a series of internet recruitment campaigns to reach a BB m P B EME HER
wide base of potential candidates and on campus recruitment drives BEI{E - AEEER—FIE
in key medical schools and nursing schools in multiple provinces to Bt AR R B ABE 8 2 00

attract talent out of Guangdong Province. Teaching affiliations with REAN TEZEEHOFEESR
academic institutions enable the Group to identify potential young By R EREERETRERES
healthcare professionals and recruit them early on. The Group also BARSIBREIAL - REH
has in place various referral schemes to identify potential candidates HEMEEN R ERRREATY
from its existing staff's social networks. Referred staff generally has BIEBEEFHBREEXZATLA
higher refention rates and increased engagement. The Group audits FHETHRE - KAEETRHIE 2
and verifies staff identify and background as part of the recruitment BB ENRBEFEIHEN
process to ensure no child labor or forced labour is employed. HRYEBEREA EHES
Depending on the position being hired, the Group also conducts THRBERBERS LEMEA °
background checks fo ensure the veracity of information provided ERBEREN—H9  ~&EH
by the potential candidate. The Group has adopted a Recruitment EERZMZEETIGMHEES
Process Management Policy to standardize its recruitment practice. BRIAGEREINEARES

o RFREANOBL  A5H
NEETERBENERELER
BARBHNEHEE - AKED
ROCRERIZEESIE) AL R

B RAREAL -
The Group strictly abides by the relevant laws and regulations such REBEBRETHBERER
as the Labor Law of the PRC and the Labor Contract Law of the PRC, ISR EE AR AR B B E) Kk
and enters into labor contracts with its staff. Each of the Group’s (PEAREMBLHERZE)
hospitals and operating facilities has adopted a labor union to protect WEETFIVBEER - K&
the rights and inferests of its staff and encourage them to participate BERBREREERMBIEKILT
in the management of the Group's operations. GAREE TN KiER - sk

BET2EAEEKLEER -

3.2 Equal opportunities employer 32 FEmME#E
The Group is an equal opportunities employer. The Group provides rEBERVTERERT - A&EH
equal opportunities to all staff in a fair, transparent and non- BABEIRERY - FEH - B
discriminatory environment. Female staff has equal opportunities RIRFHRHETERE LB
as male staff, and would not prejudiced because of pregnancy. No IHEHESHEETI VSRS T
religious or racial discrimination is tolerated in recruitment and career eRAABEEMIEMR ERER
development. BEERPTADREMREE

BRI -
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The table below sets forth the employees (who are primarily our
full time employees) by age group and gender by the Relevant

RIE - HEREBRSE

TREIATFERREEED
RERARNMERIBOMET (X

Operations as at the years indicated: ZEBMNEZBES) AS:
As cn 31 December 2024
Kanghua
Kangxin Renkang Elderly  AnhuiHualin -~ Hemodialysis
Kanghua Hospital Renkang Hospital Hospital Care Centre Group Group Total Stoff
BEER CERER BUOBR CREER ZHEREE NRENEE BAY
Age Group/ ERER,/  Mde Female Male Female Male Female  Male Female Male Female  Male Female  Male Female
Gender 3] ] b'g g x 5 b4 3 'S 5 z E b'g i z
Age5lorabove  STERE A £ 92 69 58 30 18 12 2 40 44 4 4 7287 199
Agebetween  31E50%%
310 50 25 644 99 189 5 132 8 24 78 33 28 N0 546 1422
Agebelow30  30FZEMT 170 709 50 200 13 102 0 7 108 44 0 9% 35 1538
537 1422 207 419 89 246 29 81 20 778 42 23 1134 3159
As at 31 December 2023
BE_Z_=%+_A=+—H
Kangxin Renkang Elderly Care
Kanghua Hospital - Renkang Hospital Hospital Centre Anhui Hualin Group Total Staff
REER CREk FOER CRERR RHEREE ZAY
Age Group/ FRER/ Male Female  Male Female  Male Female  Male Female  Mole Female  Male Female
Gender tERl g S g x 2 X 5 X i S L x
AgeSlorabove  S13EZiS L 88 64 4 29 1 o a e 56 8 202
Age befween NE505
3110 50 278 610 98 157 60 18 8 24 75 372 519 1280
Age below 30 0FEIAT 165 753 25 186 16 123 0 16 82 337 288 1415
531 1427 7 37 88 253 28 8 221 765 1039 2,898
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BIE HEBRERRE

3.3 Staff remuneration and retention 33 BIFMKEEE

The Group's comprehensive staff remuneration and retention policy
is designed with a view to rewarding staff performance and long
term staff retention. It primarily includes: (i) economic components
comprising basic salary determined with reference to the individual's
position, seniority and length of service, performance bonus
determined with reference to the metrics specific to the individual's
job function and other benefits; and (ii) non-economic components
comprising personal development, job challenge and satisfaction,
recognition, work environment, work safety and career advancement.
The Group regularly benchmarks against available market data
and adjusts its remuneration structure with a view to remaining
competitive. While financial incentives are an important factor in
staff retention, the Group recognizes that they alone are not enough
to improve recruitment and retention in a sustainable manner.
Therefore, the Group places equal emphasis on non-economic
factors, in particular personal development, work environment and
collegiality. The Group's career advancement track is transparent and
achievable. The Group provides a platform and support for its staff to
undertake medical education and research in their field of choice.

With a view to retaining and developing talent, the Group actively
identifies high potential staff and provide them with additional
training opportunities, industry exposure and an accelerated career
track. By providing training for new skills and tuition reimbursement
for external courses, the Group’s staff will feel valued, important and
invested in the Group. The Group regularly carries out staff appraisals
to discuss achievements, strengths, and areas for development, and
to set personal objectives with a view to ensuring they feel motivated
and appreciated for their contribution. The Group maintains open
channels of communication with its staff to keep them informed
of the latest developments and provide them with opportunities to
voice their opinions. The Group also recognises that its healthcare
professionals, in particular doctors and nurses, may be subject to
a high pressure and demanding work environment from time to
time due to their job nature, which may result in attrition. The Group
actively monitors the emotional wellbeing of its staff and provide
counselling and supporting arrangements where appropriate. The
Group regularly gauges the working hours of its staff to identify
any staff with excessive workloads and makes alternative staffing
arrangements if necessary. The Group aims to build a strong
organisational culture to cultivate a sense of belonging among its
staff through various staff functions and events. The Group believes
that the creation of a healthy and harmonious working environment
will improve staff morale and productivity in the long term.

1 22 Guangdong Kanghua Healthcare Group Co., Ltd. Annual Report 2024
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In 2024, the Group began the year with 3,946 (2023: 3,848) full-
time staff, added 728 (which included 243 full-time staff of Kanghua
Haemodialysis Group acquired in 2024) (2023: 362) full-time staff and
lost 354 (2023: 264) full-time staff during the year. As at 31 December
2024, the Group had a total of 4,320 (2023: 3,946) full-time staff. The
attrition rate of full-time staff (including doctors, nurses, administrative
and other support staff) of the Group for 2024 was 8.6% (2023: 6.8%).
The attrition rate of doctors of the Group for 2024 was 13.4% (2023:
5.9%). The increase in aftrition rate was primarily aftributable to the
volatility in turnover of professional staff which reflects the shortage
of, and intensifying competition for , talent in the healthcare market in
general.

Training and development

The Group provides structured training and education programmes
to enable its staff to consistently deliver high quality services. These
programmes aim to equip the staff with a sound foundation of the
medical principles and knowledge as well as practical skills in their
respective practice area and foster a high standard of practice,
organisation capability and vigilant attitude. Regular internal and
external mandatory trainings are organised for medical staff to
keep them abreast of the latest development in healthcare. From
time to time, the Group identifies and sponsors its staff with high
development potential to undertake further studies and professional
training in prestigious academic institutions and participate in
industry conventions. Medical teams also benefit from the experience
and knowledge exchange during seminars and sharing sessions
regularly held. The Group encourages medical staff to apply for
professional and technical qualifications and enroll in specialised
training programmes and assessments from time to time, including
induction training for new employees, development training for young
and middle-aged core talent, medical service quality training and
management training for young core talent, with a view to ensuring
that their relevant professional competencies meet the required
standards. Through various training and education programmes, the
Group also aims to foster a proactive risk reporting culture among
staff, which is important in the early detection of clinical failure and
damage control.

3.4
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B HEREARS

The Group has adopted a Continuing Education and Training
Management Policy. The training system is supported by three major

components:

o the science and education department is primarily responsible

for training on clinical skills;

o the nursing department is primarily responsible for training on

nursing and patient caretaking skills; and

. the human resources department is primarily responsible
for comprehensive training on staff management capability,

cultural values and technical skills.

The table below sets forth the number of training hours provided to
the Group's staff of the Relevant Operations for the years indicated:

AEBEERMN(EBEHEEIE
BHIE) - ZEIHIER =
ZHERE D X

e HMHUBEIZEBMKRIAEE
R

e HEERENTIZHFTRENLR
Fhm BREEIETI K

e ANERHEIEAEEET
BN  XeEBENIEK
M RE ) 2 EFF -

TREIRATFERBRAKE
EBOREEE TREMNEIIR
2

2024 2023
—EMF —TE-=F
Male  Female Total Male  Female Total
Bt eg W5 Bt pegis B
Number of participants 28 AR
Doctors 2= 6,425 6,343 12,768 10,546 6,004 16,550
Nurses e 586 36,990 37,576 515 39,570 40,085
Others Efh 245 325 570 588 910 1,498
7,256 43,658 50,914 11,649 46,484 58,133
2024 2023
—E-F —ZEZ=F
Male  Female Total Male  Female Total
B peg 3 HEb B4 pega BET
Training man-hours (Hours) 55 I 85 £ (/)N B)
Doctors Ba 70,837 67,956 138,793 121,812 39,466 161,278
Nurses Fidum 7,262 74,876 82,138 4,238 43,146 47,384
Others Hih 2,989 4,302 7,291 2,642 4,243 6,885
81,088 147,134 228,222 128,692 86,855 215,547

The decrease in the number of participants was primarily due to the
steady normalization of training activities conducted for existing staff
(non-newly recruited) as the impact of COVD-19 began to subside in
2023. However, the significant increase in training man-hours was
due to the high attrition rate of nurses in 2024 which necessitated
more training for newly joined nurses; furthermore, in response to
recent national policy changes in the healthcare system, we have
provided more trainings to our staff in general to familiarize them

with new standards and protocols.
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3.5 Workplace health and safety

The Group highly values occupational safety and strives to eliminate
potential workplace health and safety hazards. The Group maintains
an internal audit and inspection program to ensure the safety of
the hospital premises for patients, the public and staff. The aim of
the audit process is to ensure that the workplace is continuously
monitored and that deficiencies in relation to set standards are
remedied. The Group ensures that each of its hospital departments is
periodically inspected and audited for safety issues, such as medical
treatment safety, environment safety and occupational safety.
The Group actively encourages staff to report health and safety
incidents and risks on a no repercussion basis, and the learning
from proactive monitoring and findings from incident reviews is
used to improve further and refine training programmes, policies
and working practices. For the year ended 31 December 2024, the
Group had, in all material respects, complied with applicable laws
and regulations that have a significant impact on the Group relating
to providing a safe working environment and protecting employees
from occupational hazards.

The Group is committed to improving the construction of infection
prevention and control systems at both the hospital level and
discipline level, further clarifying the functions of infection prevention
and control teams, revising the infection prevention and control
policies, processes and contingency plans, and strengthening
the relevant training and education with a view to consistently
standardizing infection prevention and control management.
The Group conducts regular sanitisation to contain the potential
spread of infectious diseases at its hospitals. The Group has
established surveillance systems to closely monitor the prevalence of
nosocomial infections at its hospitals and ensure that such incidents
are maintained at a very low level in compliance with applicable
standards. The Group also provides periodical occupational safety
education and training to augment its staff's awareness of safety
issues. The Group provides its staff with regular health assessment
to monitor their overall health. In particular, the Group adopts
stringent assessment protocols for its staff that are regularly exposed
to high-risk environments such as radiation and clinical wastes to
ensure their exposure is within acceptable safety limits. Such staff
are provided with adequate protective gears and are regularly
required to take days off to minimize the long term health effects of
radiation. Each relevant staff is required to follow specific procedures
and guidelines laid down by the hospital, including Medical Staff
Occupational Exposure Protection and Reporting Policy. From
time to time, the Group engages third party experts to assess the
effectiveness of the hospitals’ safety and protective measures.

3.5
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The Group recognizes that medical violence has in recent years REERBINBERIEFERE
become a workplace safety hazard faced by many medical KRATEFZEBEEEABSHEEE
professionals in the PRC. In light of this, the Group has established NIIEGFE2EE BENIL
internal guidelines and provided trainings to better prepare its staff REE B HIFE N ED S| I 12 15
in handling such situations, including sefting a risk assessment of Bl - AR B T 4r o ZEE iR 12
patient violence, implementing an on-line direct reporting system BHEER  BEHEEERNE
for adverse events of hospitals and adhering to the Regulations on Barh - MABRATR E M8
Prevention and Treatment of Medical Disputes recently issued by mEELRES  URBERER
the government and taking info account the actual circumstances of BITEEN(BEREAU DA EE
the hospitals to establish an early warning management system for BIEG) £ BREBERIER
patient safety. The department of security is able to dispatch security BUYBELETREEERBR R
officers experienced in handling incidents of medical violence. BRI EREBER IS
The Group also works closely with the police bureaus and law HHELREYENTRAE &
enforcement agencies who will be able to dispatch officers in short VEBAT  AEETEHERER
notice fo the hospitals if necessary. BRAEREZDEE  BEH
BE 1T B2 31 8 AN 18 58 e R (A 1) B8 B
IKEBEAER -
The table below sets forth key health and safety information of the TR REEBRALEHE
Relevant Operations for the years indicated: BOEERERLEZEHR
2024 2023 2022
—E-MEF —E-=F T
Number of staff contracting B EEERAEETAH

infections due to occupation = - -
Number of staff deaths due to ABEFXT BT AR

occupation = = =
Number of staff disabilities due o~ B 25K 8 T A £

occupation = S S
Number of man-days lost due to BEAEAGRIEX

occupation related injuries or THXE

illness - - 137
The relevant key metrics of our health and safety indicators had RImEBRE - RMOREEELT S
remained at a reasonable and acceptable level during the Reporting RIEHERAREE —B#IST
Period. B R A EZRKE o
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SERVICE QUALITY

As embodied in the Group’s motto “Empathic e Virtuous Medical Practice”
(B E RS« BEEHE), the Group adopts a patient-centric approach in
treating all patients, the well-being of whom form the core of its values. The
Group places a high priority on providing patients with consistently high
quality service and support, which is crucial to its long-term success. The
Group provides patient care in an ethical manner, and at the best possible
quality, taking into consideration patient safety, patients’ satisfaction and
service efficiency.

4.1

Patient satisfaction and complaints

The Group’s hospitals and outpatient centers have a dedicated
customer service department fo collect and gauge patient feedbacks.
The customer service department is an important component
in ensuring that patient experience is positive through proactive
outreach and responsive communication. The table below sets forth
key operating data of the Group’s customer service for the years

RIE - HEREBRSE

RBEE

HMAEERE [BERT « B0
FrEgRE  AEBERMARE LR
BERBRABESFTLNTN  BER
FEEEBEZL AKESEERS
BERK-ENEBERBEIS &
HERMBRWEHREZ - ERIIBE
2 -BEMEERRBRE K&
BMASFEROT I - ABA LD
EERTERMAER-

41 BEBREBENKFR

AEBNERMFIZPRLREE
BEXFPRBBAKERAERE
[ §8 © 3B T B IE (R RS M FE 1R
EERE FPREHEERS
ERBESNBEREKED - T
RN R FEAEEE PR

indicated: B ESRKEEIE
Change 2024 2023
BPX L ki —T-=F
Number of patients served Rk 8 E AR +12.4% 199,792 177,720
Customer service man hours R A TR -3.6% 2,464,576 2,556,407

The increase in number of patients served was primarily due
to the expanded scale of operations with the acquisition of our
haemodialysis services operations in January 2024; and further
improved efficiency and automation of certain aspects of outpatient
customer service at Kanghua Hospital and Renkang Hospital in 2024
through online platforms.

RBEEANREMERHNE
T MF— A KRB IRET RS
EHMmBREERERS E
EFBRELCEEBRER T _MF
EBBLTRE—FRATMZ
ERETHTHNRERBHE -
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The Group continuously review and streamline patient registration AEEgKERITEEEER
process and provide regular staff customer-service training. The SR WRETEHEIEFAR
hospitals and outpatient centers also conduct patient satisfaction BiF - Bl RFIZH LM HE
surveys. Such results serve to establish a baseline fo monitor changes TEEMBEERAE -EBEERA
in patient experience and satisfaction in specific area of service PRI B T ARSI R A
delivery. These surveys primarily include: BEBRIRBEEFLHELE -
ZERAEFEBRE -
e call back interviews with inpatients, outpatients and physical e BHEMBNGAKREE PP
examination patients; BERERBE
e surveys delivered through short messaging services; o  RBEERGETRAS:
e on-site questionnaires; and e HEESEHEE K
e comments collection boxes. o ERIEM-
The Group also cooperates with third parties to conduct AEETE NGEE=FEFE
comprehensive surveys and analytical studies from time to time. TEERAE RS -
The subjective nature of the healthcare industry means that the EETENIEEERERAEE
Group occasionally receives patient complaints in the ordinary THEEXBREPE TR E
course of business. The Group has implemented a standardised ERF - AKEEEHAEZRER
customer complaint management at each of its hospitals with EREELELEPIRFER  UR
a view to promptly, accurately and comprehensively collecting REREFAKREEERE -
feedback from patients, addressing patients’ concerns, continuously AR EBY)  BERSRIAR
improving clinical processes and ultimately delivering service of BEEREMEERfRSKERN
the highest standard to patients. The Group generally classifies RS - REB—MRGEERFS
patient complaints in three major categories of importance: (i) critical R=EZREBZHEM  (1BRERF
complaints, which may involve deficiencies in clinical quality resulting ZERFIESREHEHBEE
in adverse effects to patients, medical disputes attracting media ETFNEENEREEMRE - 5l
attention and intervention from regulatory authorities, extremely BRI REEAMTENE
poor service atfitude, verbal abuses or assaults on patients, or any By BREBEEHEZESL -8
complaints regarding medical ethics; (i) regular complaints, which BEETERIREBEI I RERE
may involve general service attitude, environment, accommodation, B IR AR ¢ (i) — AR R - % 5F
hospital or infer-departmental processes resulting in inconvenience WA R — IR REE - iR
to patients, billing error, repeated assessment, pricing or lack of 51w Bl AR ERR
communication or language skills; and (i) immaterial complaints, IR B RN TNE FHEHER -
which may involve mere service recommendations or frivial BERE  EEXBRZ BRNE
comments, or complaints that are frivolous, vexatious or are primarily SR RFEZRF - ZF
aftributable to the patients’ individual condition. WA RE e R RIS R S IE I

Atam o BEY  EEEFE S E
Z AR B E B AR ©

1 28 Guangdong Kanghua Healthcare Group Co., Ltd. Annual Report 2024



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

The table below sets forth the number of each category of complaints
received by the Group for the years indicated:

RIE - HEREBRSE

TR PR F AN R
BRI EA ¢

Change 2024 2023

RS —E-mEF —ZT-=
Number of critical complaints R IR R BB +5.2% 61 58
Number of regular complaints EHAR R EE -20.8% 38 48
Number of immaterial complaints ~ 3FE&E B3k & B -9.0% 71 78
Total EEt -7.6% 170 184

Patients may lodge a complaint by mail, telephone, touch-screen
terminals or in person. The Group has dedicated facilities to record
the complaint process on a confidential basis to safeguard the
interests of all parties involved and ensure that the complaint
processes are conducted fairly with proper records. The hospitals
have a complaint office, a unit led by a highly experienced hospital
manager and dedicated to the management of patient complainants.
The complaint office acts as the complainant point of contact,
explains the complaint process to the complainants, directs patient
complaints to appropriate departments and governance committees
for detailed investigation and root-cause analysis, conducts in-
depth fact-finding, proactively oversees and manages the complaint
processes, coordinates and communicates with the parties involved,
accurately records all relevant findings on a confidential basis and
formulates the appropriate replies to the complainants. All initial
complaints and views will be handled and responded to directly by
the complaint office. The Group is committed to resolving all patient
complaints in the shortest period of time, or on the spot, if possible,
though resolution of critical complaints generally requires a longer
period of time. For critical complaints involving clinical safety or
possible health implications, the Group proactively takes immediate
actions to prevent and minimise adverse effects on patients. The
hospital policy mandates every complaint to be properly lodged and
processed through the system and prohibits staff from reaching a
private seftlement with the complainants, which may potentially place
the hospital in a disadvantaged situation if such complaints were to
escalate further.

BEABBHM  EE BEREE
R H B RRERF - AEEE
BFRERERTTARE - BRER
B UREMEL2EZ TN
REERKRFBRAFETLERS
Bk BRiRARFRAE -
HEREENEBREEEEER
EMBEEEBERF - KHP
NE BT AR - AIRER
AFRERFRIE - EEBERE
ERMEMAERBEGRFINLET
HARERREAIN - ETRA

ERE  BEEE MEERF
MAZ - BATS R T T 0 A NUE
B ARE T NS ME A
MERLZELEBRFA -IHE
NERFEBERBREFRAE
ERRELOE BEFREX
BHR—RERRE - BAKED
IR ERERBEAFRMAE R
EIRE - RESBR (AL -
HRPRERZ 2H A R
EMEARS  AEBEBLAE
BERMITE LR FBERDE R
ENTHZE BRERELRES
—ERFEHBBZRERLERR
NpRiE - BZEIFB TEIGHAZE
AL TG ARERFE—F
L ESERERTNLE -

EREEEREERNARAR F1 2024

129



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

B HEREARS

4.2

The Group regards patient complaint management as an important
component for the continuous improvement of clinical safety and
quality. The Group treats each of the patients” complaints seriously
and regards them as the best source for improvement. Complaint
reports are regularly reported to senior management for review. For
every patient complaint, the Group is committed to understanding its
fact pattern and root cause, ascertaining the responsible parties and
areas of improvement. The hospitals organise a monthly complaints
analysis meeting to identify improvement areas in clinical processes,
make recommendations and ensure the relevant administrative
and clinical departments implement the necessary improvements
promptly. In addition, the hospitals organise a quarterly complaints
sharing session on the root cause of the complaints, improvement
processes implemented and lessons learnt with a view to cultivating
a sense of vigilance among staff.

For critical complaints that may escalate into medical disputes, the
complaint office will notify the medical dispute contingency task force,
headed by the director and senior management of the hospital, to
initiate the medical dispute process involving a highly coordinated
effort of various units of the hospital. In 2024, most of the complaints
were resolved amicably with only a few of them escalated into
medical disputes. In 2024, 6 medical disputes cases (2023: 26) were
materialised during the year.

Service quality management

The Group adopts a comprehensive service quality management
system consisting of the following key components:

o structure - the availability of clinical resources, including
medical equipment, hospital governance structure, human
resources, bed to staff ratio, clinical objectives, practice
guidelines and standards;

J process — the clinical processes, including whether clinical
procedures are conducted according to the relevant
specifications, work flow and nosocomial infections; and

o outcome — patient'’s well-being after receiving service, including
efficacy of treatment, recovery progress, health conditions,
satisfaction and complications arising from treatments.
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The service quality management system has a wide scope. In
addition to monitoring the quality of diagnosis (whether it is accurate,
comprehensive and prompt), the quality of tfreatment (whether
it is effective, prompt, thorough and of a reasonable duration),
nosocomial infections control and clinical deficiency (whether
resulting injuries, harm or pain to patients that could otherwise be
avoided), the system also monitors clinical efficiency, reasonableness
of medical fees, the input-output relationship of applied medical
techniques, systematic services and continuum and community
feedback. Under this system, each hospital department is given
quantifiable service quality targets to achieve and parameters
to monitor. Service quality management and improvement is a
continuous process. Any deficiency, once identified, will be handled
promptly with appropriate level of supervision.

High standard of clinical governance maintains the Group’s inpatient
fatality rate consistent with the risks inherent in hospital operations
and industry. As the Group increases its infake of patients with critical
conditions and/or require specialized and complex emergency
procedures that carry higher risks of unfavourable clinical outcome,
its inpatient fatality rate may increase. The table below sets forth the
Group's inpatient fatality rate for the years indicated:
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Change 2024 2023
RS —E-mEF —ZT-=
Total number of inpatient deaths — {EFTm AL T- 422K -24.7% 271 360
% of fotal inpatients 1EER R A BB
Batk N/AZ3E 0.14% 0.20%
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4.3 Patient privacy protection 43 BERRE

The Group’s hospitals have a dedicated medical records
management department to handle patients’ medical records. The
hospitals strictly adhere to applicable laws and regulations in relation
to patient privacy, including Guangdong Province Medical Records
Writing and Management Specifications and Healthcare Institutions
Medical Records Management Rules. The hospitals have stringent
protocols on the creation, maintenance, reviewing and copying,
sealing or unsealing and preservation of patient medical records.
These protocols are also design to ensure that the records are not
accidentally accessed, processed, erased, lost or used without
authorization. Patient medical records are generally kept for 15 years.
Before access to the relevant medical records is granted, patients or
their families will need to produce the original of the patient's identity
documents and a signed consent letter. The medical administration
department is responsible for overseeing and auditing medical
records management.

The Group also promotes patient privacy awareness among staff
by conducting regular training and sharing sessions. Hospital staff
are sensitive to patient privacy and place additional emphasis
on protecting patient privacy during every aspect of the clinical
processes. Save as required by applicable laws and regulations,
patient information can only be released with consent.

Each of the Group’s hospitals has an information technology
department responsible for reviewing and implementing data
protection measures in accordance with relevant laws and
regulations. The hospitals’ resources that store and manage patient
data are physically disconnected from internet access points to
prevent external leakage and tempering activities. The hospitals strictly
adhere to grade three security requirements under the Administrative
Measures for the Graded Protection of Information Security. The
hospitals’ network security, system security and database security are
reviewed from time to time and are comprehensively audited at least
once every year fo ensure the required standards are met.
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The hospitals have formulated policies for privacy data administration
which sets out the overall responsibilities and procedures to ensure
that all users adhere to defined standards. The hospitals have
promulgated internal instructions setting out specific procedures
regarding the handling of documents containing patient data. Staff
are also required to observe the hospitals’ internal instructions on
the security of computer systems (including storage, processing,
transmission and management of classified information, data
encryption and physical security of computer systems). Violation of the
above requirements will result in disciplinary actions. The hospitals
provide regular updates and trainings to staff on data protection to
cultivate their data protection awareness. Staff who need to have
access to sensitive data are also required to enter into a confidential
undertaking with respect to any patient data, operational, financial
and other sensitive information that they may come across.

The hospitals implement strong access controls to information. The
degree of access and control the staff has to sensitive information
is determined by reference to the relevance to their role, their post
and/or seniority and is reviewed from time to time. Any unnecessary
or obsolete access rights will be revoked immediately. All network
actions are recorded on the systems and continuously monitored for
any irregularity. In the event of an information security breach, such
records will enable the hospitals to carry out detailed investigations
and damage control.

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group had, in all material
respects, complied with applicable laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the Group relating to patient privacy.
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4.4 Suppliers

The Group’s suppliers primarily consist of agents and distributors of
pharmaceuticals, medical consumables and medical equipment.
The Group seeks o manage inventory risks by maintaining adequate
inventories and building strong relationships directly with suppliers.
Suppliers are cautiously selected for quality, reputation, price, product
and service offerings and delivery capability. The Group routinely
assesses its suppliers’ performance, credit-worthiness, re-confirm
their qualifications (such as GMP and/or GSP Certificates, where
appropriate) and ensure the compliance status and quality of the
supplies. The Group undertakes reasonable due diligence of its

suppliers’ qualifications, including:

o suppliers are required to provide all relevant qualification

documents and licenses for inspection;

o the procurement department is responsible for verifying the
genuineness, validity and scope of the qualification documents

and licenses;

o the qualification documents and licenses will be provided
to the relevant departments, including warehouse, medical
equipment department and pharmacy department for the
relevant staff to take note of the source of the supplies and their

qualifications; and

o the suppliers shall promptly produce any updates or changes

to the qualification documents and licenses.

]34 Guangdong Kanghua Healthcare Group Co., Ltd. Annual Report 2024

44

HIER

AEBMNHERETEZBEES -
EEREVMEERREARER K
KR - ARB AKBBRER
EFEREEREHERNETFE
R REBGFERR - AEH
BiEEe B2 B Eak
REEBUARRZ (T HIBEEEE
HER - AR BT A HER
MERR - EE EFECHESEM
B E (JIGMP 3k GSP#& & (i
HA)) WHERERENE RAKER
BEE AEBSHHERELR
AEERBAST 81

e HEBMAREMAMEBE
BEXRFFAIERE

s RBHEERKIFELAXMH
EHAAENEEE AN
N EE :

e EBEXHEFABEREIR
HTHEENE  BERE -
RER R AR AEE
B8 TRt EARIRE
REEE Rk

e HEBERBHTEEX
1 B 7 Al & RO (] B #T 3k



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

The Group has adopted a stringent policy that prohibits suppliers
from contacting and offering rebates to doctors to solicit business. If
any supplier is found to be in violation, the Group will immediately
terminate the business relationship. The Group believes that such
practice minimizes the risk of corrupt practices, thereby safeguarding
the quality of the supplies.

The Group has an internal rating system for its suppliers, which can
broadly be classified into:

il excellent suppliers: the Group should increase purchase
volume, and maintain stable relationship with, these suppliers;

(il mediocre suppliers: the Group should gradually reduce
purchase volume with, and pay closer scrutiny on, these
suppliers; and

[iil  poor suppliers: these suppliers are blacklisted and the Group
should no longer purchase from them. These suppliers
typically include those who do not comply with the purchase
agreement, have questionable reputation, always misrepresent
the product price, do not deliver the required quantity at the
required time, deliver supplies with inferior quality, or show no
improvement despite repeated warnings.
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The Group recognizes that purchasing products with reduced
environmental and human health impacts is vital fo sustainable
healthcare. The Group is exploring various ways to achieve
“environmentally preferable purchasing” (‘EPP), an act of purchasing
products whose environmental impacts have been considered and
found to be less damaging to the environment and human health
when compared to competing products. EPP may be feasible to
achieve overall cost saving and waste reduction while meeting
the needs of patients. The Group has begun its EPP efforts with a
few carefully targeted purchasing changes, and if feasible, will
expand the scope of environmental purchasing to select as many
environmentally sound, healthy and safe products as a hospital can
use. The Group believes that EPP may become an important part of
the process toward sustainable operations. Downstream corrections
of environmental or occupational health issues are generally more
costly — in terms of money, labor, technical complexity, and adverse
publicity — than prevention through EPP. By carefully selecting
products, a hospital may achieve:

o a significant reduction in overall impact on the environment,
cost reduction with lower purchase prices or changes that
reduce or eliminate waste disposal, hazardous waste, and/or
the need for worker safety measures;

o a healthier environment for patients and staff through reduced
exposure to hazardous substance; and

o opportunities for positive publicity and promotion.
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Any implementation of EPP is expected to be gradual, and may
require substantial changes to purchasing and clinical configuration
of the hospital. The Group will comprehensively assess the long-term
benefits of EPP, clinical feasibility and business considerations when
making any purchasing changes.

In addition to the purchase of pharmaceuticals, medical consumables
and medical equipment, the Group also relies on various vendors
for engineering and renovation services at the hospital premises
from time to time. The Group uses its best efforts to ensure that these
vendors are properly qualified and will take all appropriate measures
to protect the environment both inside and outside the work site
and limit harmful effects to the public and property due to wastes,
pollution, noise and other nuisances caused by the engineering work.
These vendors are expected to satisfy the applicable requirements
under the Labor Law of the PRC and the Labor Contract Law of the
PRC and provide the workers with adequate social security and
benefits under the relevant laws. The Group pays close attention
on the engineering work and may from time to time engage third-
party supervision to ensure that the engineering work meets the
applicable national engineering specifications and standards and
environmental protection.

RIE - HEREBRSE
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4.5 Anti-bribery and corruption risks

The PRC government has recently enhanced its anti-bribery efforts to
prevent improper payments and other benefits received by doctors,
staff and hospital administrators in connection with the procurement
of pharmaceutical and medical supplies and the provision of
healthcare services. In addition, Grade A Class lIl hospitals in the PRC,
such as the Group’s Kanghua Hospital, are subject to particularly
stringent requirements, including as part of the criteria for such
ratings, requiring all such hospitals to (i) implement internal controls
and risk management measures addressing bribery and corruption
risks; and (i) undergo annual inspections from relevant regulatory
authorities as to their anti-bribery and corruption status. The Group
has implemented the following policies and procedures to address

potential bribery and corruption incidents:

o an anti-bribery function at the Group level led by the chief
financial officer of the Company. This function is in charge
of developing the overall framework of anti-bribery and
corruption policies and procedures and providing guidance
and supervision towards implementing them across every
aspect of the Group’s operations. Each of the Group’s hospitals
will immediately report any suspected incidents of bribery and
corruption to the chief financial officer of the Company, who
will then carry out any further investigations if necessary and
determine the appropriate course of action. From time to time,
the Group provides training to its staff and updates on recent
anti-bribery and corruption issues and practices as they arise;
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the Group has in place a robust whistle blower programme
accessible by staff and business partners, including a
dedicated hotline and an email address, to receive reports of
alleged corruption on a no repercussion basis, with the option
of anonymity. The Group has established a zero-tolerance
policy towards staff accepting any form of bribes. Such policy is
included in the staff handbook and code of conduct. Any of the
staff found in breach of anti-bribery and corruption policy will
be dismissed. The Group also takes appropriate measures to
discourage patients from offering any form of payment or gift
to staff for better or priority services, including displaying the
relevant policies and laws in prominent places in the hospital
premises;

the Group has close oversight over every aspect of the
procurement processes. The Group has established a
systematic multi-tier approval process involving various
departments, dedicated governance committees and
management for different categories of procurement. The
procurement processes are segregated and no particular
individual or department has excessive authority, control
or influence, thereby minimising the risk of corruption or
abuse. Before engaging in any business relationship with
a new supplier, the Group conducts due diligence to obtain
reasonable understanding of its background and its connection
with the Group, including how such supplier was referred to
the Group in the first place. The Group requires its suppliers to
agree fo anti-bribery and corruption provisions in the supply
agreements. In particular, suppliers are prohibited from
soliciting business with the hospital staff directly. Any violation
will result in the Group’s immediate business termination with
such suppliers; and
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o as part of the Group’s key clinical governance, the
Pharmaceutical Administration and Therapeutics Committee at
each of the Group’s hospitals regularly reviews drug prescription
patterns. Any unreasonable or inexplicable irregularities or red
flags indicative of a deliberate attempt to substantially increase
the prescription of certain drugs will be promptly reported and
investigated.

In line with requirements under applicable PRC laws and regulations,
the Group has established a strict “no red packet policy” for medical
professionals not to personally accept any form of payment or
advantages from patients in return for more favourable treatments.
The Group requires all healthcare professionals to report to
management of all instances of red packets offered by patients.
The table below sets forth the number and monetary amount of
red packets rejected by the healthcare professionals for the years

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
BIE HEBRERRE

s (RAKERKEEN—
EREgEED  AEEEK
Bl EEsgEaEY),
BEEZE R EHEREH
MEHTERN - EM 58
REEBEENERTRAL
ERERXTEEAEBRE
BT ARG INE T %Y
RSB EH R RE -

RIBER T B FOERRRE
AEEERRMNEBEHAESIE
B ERABBE] - T/
THEBBERRRESANGE
MR A EAIE A SRS LT ©
AEEREMEBBABRARE
EERSRERHTAEN B
Mo TREIIFRERERMER

indicated: ABERNABEEBE RS :
Change 2024 2023
28 —EmE —ZT_=%F
Number of red packets rejected BRI B EE -0.3% 325 326
Total monetary amount involved P& 5
(RMB) (AR®TT) -4.3% 307,088 320,902

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group had, in all material
respects, complied with applicable laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the Group relating to bribery and corruption.
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COMMUNITY BENEFIT PROGRAMMES

As encompassed in the motto “Empathic e Virtuous Medical Practice”
(BEE A« EEHE), the Group regards social contribution as one
of its core values. The Group prides itself on being a socially responsible
private hospital operator. The Group demonstrates its commitment to
community service through organized and sustainable community benefit
programmes primarily providing: (i) free and discounted care to those
unable to afford healthcare; and (i) services or education designed to
improve community health and increase access to healthcare. These
programmes are purposely designed to create meaningful impact by
responding to identified community needs, as opposed to being random
acts of kindness.

The Group has implemented a comprehensive framework for planning,
delivering and reporting its community benefit efforts, including the
following elements:

° sustainable infrastructure — the Groups has fostered a culture that
supports its community benefit initiatives and has in place operational
elements that sustain the community benefit programmes, such
as clinical resources, staff, budget and supporting policies and
procedures;

° plan for community benefit — through regular communication
with public health organizations and the community, the Group
continuously assesses and prioritizes community health needs and
develops community benefit programmes accordingly;

° account for community benefit — the Group has established effective
administrative and accounting processes to account for and report
community benefit to its stakeholders; and

o evaluate community benefit programmes — the Group assesses the
quality, effectiveness and impact of the relevant programmes and
activities.
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In 2024, the Group organized numerous volunteer programmes and free —EZHF - $E BASAEEMEE
clinics, with a focus primarily on children and elderly people with limited HEMREBEY EEE HEREREE
health awareness and/or access to affordable and adequate healthcare. BEER/REUNEZZINERNE
The free clinics also penetrated remote areas where basic healthcare ERGEIHEERBETIENZERR
resources are scarce. The table below sefs forth certain data of the Relevant E-REGD2NMAANELRBRERE
Operations community benefit efforts for the years indicated: THRERLRE TRHAIINRAREE
FRALEEBHEBNIENSE TH
7%
Change 2024 2023
& —EZEF —_T_=
Volunteer activities SHETTHY
Number of volunteer activities EILEBNRE +4.6% 494 518
Number of staff participants S2HEET AR +819.7% 13,639 1,483
Total number of volunteer man-hours SEETEEABRE +47.2% 16,985 11,539
Free clinics RESD
Number of free clinics REEDRE +860.1% 1,853 193
Number of staff participants 288 T AKX +635.1% 2,301 313
Estimated number of patients served FTAR TS 8B & (& 5T AR +78.4% 12,848 7,200
Total number of free clinic man-hours GCEEDBRTR +76.2% 2,259 1,282
Total amount of compensation provided [AIZ B GEE &L HE T
to staff for participating in free REa R esE
clinics (RMB) (AR¥TT) - - =
The significant increase in both volunteer activities and provision of free REHHE R EBHNEZRNEH
clinics was primarily as a result of our increased efforts in promoting AEEM TZRHRKMBBEE
the Kanghua brand through various community services, in parficular MHEBRBMANDEHEERERE L
at Kanghua Hospital and Kangxin Hospital during the Reporting Period. HEREERREOEK f%gr
In 2024, Kanghua Hospital was assessed as Nancheng Street's 2024 RIZZEZNERT T REHRETE
volunteer service demonstration organization, as a testament to our TNFEER IR REEE EJ«A 75
extensive efforts and promotional activities implemented during the year. ARMREANIENRE TIERERE
Furthermore, Kangxin Hospital increases its free clinics programmes for EB) o AN RAOERTIG AN T HE
local community fo promote ifs services and acceptance in Chongging. HEHEDEE - AHEEERERE

EENRBEME -
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THE STOCK EXCHANGE'S ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND BRFTCRE (B RERMEESD
GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE CONTENT INDEX AR ZEG
A.  Environmental A IRIE
KPI
BRENIER
Aspect Al: Emissions
BHE A : R
Types of emissions and respective The Relevant Operations are not a significant source of All
emissions data greenhouse gas emission Al.2

BE e A R ARR BE I BUR

Greenhouse gas emission in total
BERBAEBINE

Total hazardous and non-hazardous
waste produced and intensity
FFEXABERBREEEVREREE

Measures to mitigate emissions and
results achieved
IR BE P2 B FE I R FT1SBCR

BERAREEBLIFREREBHRNEARR

Wastewaters produced: 521,529 tons (2023: 402,877 tons) Al3
PREEAEREIK © 521,529 M8 (— T — =4F : 402,877 M&) AlL4

Hazardous solid wastes produced: 498,344 kg
(2023: 492,707 kq)

FEABEZERBRERY - 498344 1T
(ZE =% : 492707 A fT)

Domestic wastes produced: 2,643,032 kg

(2023: 2,689,119 kg

PREALIERERY) - 2,643,032 12T
ZEZ=F 1 2,689119A/T)

The Relevant Operations are not a significant source of Al5
greenhouse gas emission
BRASE ETE IR E R BTN E B RRIR
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KPI
BRENES
Description of how hazardous and Handling Al.6
non-hazardous wastes are handled, &
reduction initiatives and results Wastewaters and hazardous solid wastes: handled by
achieved qualified contractors licensed by environmental authorities
HRIEEENBEREYVNTTE . BKRETEREREY  ABREHPIFAINSER
B E & 8 B8 b R PTISECR B R

Domestic wastes: handled by eligible contractors through
tendering

HEERBERY BT ENAREABEREKE

Reduction initiatives

TR E 4+ EHIIE

Domestic wastes: segregation and recycling; promoting
staff awareness and paper-less office initiatives; reuse of
components in decommissioned equipment and furniture
EEBEEY pBREK RS EIEHREAHRA
HiE  BERENARERENMEENEN

Wastewaters and hazardous wastes: production of these
wastes is integral to clinical activities and maintaining a high
clinical standard and environment sanitation. The Group
currently considers it is not feasible to excessively reduce the
production of these wastes without compromising clinical
standards, which are of overriding importance

KR BEERY  ET2RIGVESELRRY
BIRFRERRERRRHERE - AEEB AR
RBERIZEEEMEEE T RE D RIRETH -
ML EEEZEREE  BURBEAL T E AT
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KPI
BERENIES
Aspect A2: Use of Resources
BEA2 : ERER
Direct and/or indirect energy consumption  Electricity: 43,080,922 kw/hr (2023: 40,541,267 kw/hr) A2
by type B 43,080,922 TR (ZZF = = : 40,541,267 T FLEF)
REREA S DM ERE R KHEEER
e
Water consumption in total Water consumption: 931,018 tons (2023: 794,748 tons) A2.2
BFEKE FEKE : 931,018M8 (ZZF = =4F : 794,748 i)
Energy use efficiency initiatives and results  Efficiency improving initiatives A2.3
achieved Mz teHi1 &) A2.4

BETRE AR an st &I R AT AR

Use of energy efficient light source, water heating, air-
conditioning and equipment; staff awareness; regular audit
of energy usage and inspection of energy demanding
processes

FREMENNR KE ZALRZE REEIEH:
EHEZRE A MR EERE K2

Results achieved

BT g R

Energy consumption per gross floor area was slightly
increased by 3.6% despite the acquisition of our
haemodialysis services operations, which expanded our
overall business operation during the year
BRAMBEMERESRMILING.6%  EE W mRK
FEMRIBER - BRTRMANFAREBEKEE

The Group will continue to monitor the effectiveness of the
initiatives on a long term basis

ARER B A AR R B B PR T B RO RUR
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KPI
BREMIER

Water efficiency improving initiatives and  Efficiency improving initiatives
results achieved HasteH 512

R FRKS ST M AT 2R Leak detection and repair; use of efficient and low flow
plumbing fixtures; motion sensor-activated faucets and flow
control, waterless medical vacuum pumps; use full loads in
sanitizers, sterilisers and laundry washing machines
BRI EE RSN ERETEEE B
FEKBESR SO 2N - BREBKEZER  EmERFE
FIHEES  RE S KRR

Results achieved

ViR PES

Water consumption intensity increased by 14.2% primarily
due to the acquisition of our haemodialysis services
operations, which expanded our overall business operation
during the year. The Group will continue to monitor the
effectiveness of the initiatives on a long term basis
KESHFEREIEIN4.2% 0 T2 AR FRUEMBEN
FRAGHER - BARTRMNFNERRBERLE - KXEE

1 4 4B I BRBE 1 5T BBV B

Total packaging material used for finished  The Relevant Operations do not involve significant use of A2.5
products packaging materials
BRMATRAEEMENER REENBBALEEERE TSI RAEFEABEMK

Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural Resources

BHAS : RERRXARER

The significant impacts of activities on the  The Relevant Operations had no significant impact on the A3.1
environment and natural resources environment and natural resources during 2024
and the actions taken to manage them FEAKEEBN S _NFHRBELAAERTES
EBERHHIRBERRABRNEKRY o
ERERREEEEEENTY
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Social B.

i3S

Employment and Labour Practices KPI

BRERETER B A RUE R

Aspect B1: Employment
BB : &

Total workforce by gender, employment  As of 31 December 2024: B1.1
type and age group BHE_ZE_MF+_H=+—8":
IR EREL R FEREREI 5
EE R Total of number of staff of the Group: 4,320 (2023: 3,946)
AEBMETRE 4320 A(Z2 2= :3,946 A)

— by nature of work
—RIFEMLES S

Doctors: 881(2023: 842)
BABIA(ZE_=F :842A)

Other medical, administrative and support staff: 3,439

(2023: 3,104)

HhB&  THREENET : 3,439 A
ZEZ=%F:3104A)

— by gender
— R RIE D

Male: 1,145 (2023: 1,048)
B 1145 A (22 =4 : 1,048 A)

Female: 3,175 (2023: 2,898)
M 3VISA(ZE =4 :2,898A)

- by age group
—IREERMERIE D

Age 51 or above: 442 (2023: 439)
SImRak A b - 442 A(ZZE =4 1 439 A)

Age between 31to 50: 1,974 (2023: 1,804)
IES508% : 1,974 A (ZE =4 : 1,804 A)

Age below 30: 1,904 (2023:1,703)
30BREIAT 1 1,904 A(ZZE =4 : 1703 A)

Employee attrition rate Attrition rate: 8.6% (2023: 6.8%) B1.2
BEMALE KL E 1 8.6%(Z T =4 : 6.8%)
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Employment and Labour Practices KPI
EBEREIER BRENIER
Aspect B2: Health and Safety

EHB2: REHEZE

Relating fo providing a safe working In 2024: B2

environment and protecting employees
from occupational hazards

BEARHELZE2TERRERERES
BEBEMERE

kLt RS

Number of staff contracting infections due to occupation: O
(2023:0)
B EEBERANEIHE  OA(ZEZ=F:0A)

Number of staff deaths: 0 (2023: 0)
BTHTHE :OA(ZEZ=F:0A)

Number of staff disabilities due to occupation: 0 (2023: 0)
FBERANEIHE - OA(ZEZ=F:0A)

Number of man-days lost due to occupation related injuries

or illness: 0 (2023: 0)

ARERFESEIARETNIEBRIRE : 0K
—T=F:0K)

Health and safety measures adopted:
B ERER 2

Regular audit and inspection of operating premises;
ERERRIRERER

proactive risk reporting culture among staff;
EETIREKREBREAE

continuous learning from health and safety incidents and
improvement of processes;
FELRFERZE2ENPEBFLRILEZRRF
regular staff health and exposure assessment;
EEETTE TREKER T

provision of adequate protective gears;
RETHNER

third party inspection and assessment; and
FE=TmERE &

adequate support to handle incidents of medical violence
BTRAXFHARERBERNEMH
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Employment and Labour Practices KPI
EBREREZETIER BRENIER
Aspect B3: Development and Training

[EMEB3 : &EREI

Policies on improving employees’ In 2024: B3

knowledge and skills for discharging
duties aft work

FARAEREBITIEBRENANH#R
FRe R

Description of training activities
iUl Y)

e Sepusfcs

Number of participants in training and development

programmes: 50,914 (2023: 58,133)

2EHI R ERBERENE T AR 50,914 A
“ET =% :58133A)

Doctors: Male 6,425 (2023:10,546)

Female 6,343 (2023: 6,004)
B6,425 A(ZE =4 10,546 A)
L6343 A(ZE =4 : 6,004 A)

Nurses: Male 586 (2023: 515)
Female 36,990 (2023: 39,570)

EL: BEMS86A(ZE=_=F :515A)
136,990 A (ZZE = =4 : 39,570 A)
Others: Male 245 (2023: 588)
Female 325 (2023: 910)
Hith: B 245 A(ZZF =4 : 588 A)

T35 A(ZZE-=F :910A)

Total number of training man-hours: 292,598 (2023: 215,547)
BB TR - 292,598 /N (ZF = =4 : 215,547 /\l¢)

Doctors: Male 70,837 (2023: 121,821)

Female 67,956 (2023: 39,466)
BE1470,837 A(ZZE =4 :121,821 A)
714 67,956 A (ZF = =4 : 39,466 A)

B

Nurses: Male 7,262 (2023: 4,238)
Female 139,253 (2023: 43,146)

L BWT7200A(ZE =4 :4,238A)
27 14139,253 A (ZEZ=4F : 43,146 A)
Others: Male 2,989 (2023: 2,642)
Female 4,302 (2023: 4,243)
Hih: B14E2989 A (T =4 :2,642A)

74302 A(ZEZ=4F : 4243 N)

The Group has a comprehensive Continuing Education and
Training Management Policy
AEERBELENEBREEIEERHE

Training activities include training on clinical skills; nursing
and patient caretaking skills; and comprehensive training on
staff management capability, cultural values and technical
skills
SIS E BRI Bt ~ IR KW A E R 5
ARBETERGE N  ELEERKMKAEN 2 EE
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Employment and Labour Practices KPI
EBEREIER BRENIER
Aspect B4: Labour Standards
[E@B4 : T XA
Employment practices to avoid child and  The Group stringently complies with all national and local B4.1
forced labour laws, including the Labor Law of the PRC and the Labor
By 1EE T K38 45 T ey B 5 1& I Contract Law of the PRC;
REBBRBET—VYBERRMTERE  BE(PEAR
HMELEE) R(PEARKLMBE LB RE)
The Group conducts background checks and reasonable
due diligence on job applicants; and
AEFEHRBURFALETERAECRAERRES
&
labour unions are established to protect the rights and
interests of staff
& T & LAMRIE B THEF R A&
Steps taken to eliminate such practices During 2024, the Group had no non-compliance in this B4.2
when discovered respect
EERER/RBARBREABRLAE R-ZT_OF AEETELFTENHTSREBER
by
Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management
[EEBS : HrEEEE
Policies on managing environmental and  The Relevant Operations do not have a supply chain business  B5

social risks of the supply chain
EIPH AR KA g AR BUR

FRARERBY ERAHERER

It has a stringent criteria in selecting suppliers and conducts
reasonable due diligence to ensure that its suppliers are
appropriately qualified and licensed
HEMEHER T AXRABRBEELETAERBE
EURRHEBREAEENER KSR

The Group will continuously assess the feasibility of
“environmentally preferable purchasing” (EPP)

AREBE S FHER [ RRRB ] EPP RO AT 1T 14
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RIE - HEREBRSE

Employment and Labour Practices KPI
EBREREZETIER BRENIER
Aspect B6: Product Responsibility
[EEB6 : EmEE
Percentage of fotal products sold or Not applicable to the Relevant Operations B6.1
shipped subiject to recalls for safety and  E AR B BB & £
health reasons
EERCEXERAHTRARTH
fEEIEEmMARKNE L
Number of products and service related  In 2024: B6.2
complaints received and how they are == — U4 :
dealt with
EEBRER LRSI FEE AKX Number of crifical complains: 61(2023: 58)
e 7% BABIRREE - 1R (ZT =% : 58)X)
Number of regular complaints: 38 (2023: 48)
EHRFEE : 38R (ZT_=%F : 48R)
Number of immaterial complaints: 71(2023: 78)
FEERFHE - NNR(ZZBZ=F : 781R)
The Group’s hospitals have a comprehensive complaint
management system. In 2024, most of the complaints were
resolved amicably with only a few of them escalated into
medical disputes. In 2024, 6 medical disputes cases
(2023: 26) were materialised during the year.
REBNBRRAZENRFERRS - T4 -
REBARFEERE - EELBARRBEANS -
RIZ-MF  FRARBLEOCRBRUDEN
ZTE=F126R) e
Practices relating fo observing and The Relevant Operations do not involve a significant degree B6.3
protecting intellectual property rights of intellectual property rights
B R RIE B EREGANIED BRREEBL B RERIBENMERE
Quality assurance process and recall The Group has a comprehensive service quality B6.4

procedures
B E T iBE MEmBWEF

management system consisting of structure, process and
outcome. It has a wide scope covering every aspect of
operations. Dedicated customer service department collects
and gauges patient feedback and ensures that patient
experience is positive through proactive outreach and
responsive communication

REBRABERE BEFMEREANZERBE
BERBRR  HHEEEMR RELENGETE - -Z8
EFPRBAFIRERABRERE  TEBEFHHRE
NiERBBRREEARTFER

EREEEREERNARAR F1 2024
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
BIE HEBRERRE

Employment and Labour Practices KPI
EBREREZETIER BRENIER
Consumer data protection and privacy Patient medical records are kept in strict compliance with B6.5
policies, how they are implemented applicable laws and regulations. The Group has stringent
and monitored protocols on accessing these records. The medical
HBEERRERLEBEE  U& administration department is responsible for overseeing
HESTRER A and auditing medical records management
BEBELHEDBRBETERERERARRE - K&
ERAEDRZECHNBERRIE BEFAEERER
ERBELHRER
The Group’s hospitals maintain a certain level of information
security infrastructure and implement strong access controls
to information. Regular audits on the infrastructure are
carried out to ensure relevant standards are met
AEBBREF —TRENERREABREN B
HEDRENOBRES - HeHERREETERE
AR & HE IR %
Staff are trained to be vigilant and sensitive about patient
privacy. Policies and guidelines are implemented to create
working processes that safeguard patient privacy
BTEEIIRHBERBLREFESG NG - EEMEK
B RIESIAR I REZBERILA TIEREE
Aspect B7: Anti-corruption
FEHEB7 : RES
Policies and compliance with relevant Policies and procedures include: B7
laws and regulations that have a ° anti-bribery function at Group level;
significant impact on the issuer relating whistle blower programmes;
to bribery, extortion, fraud and money e close oversight over procurement processes;
laundering o drug prescription patterns; and
BT IR - 80 - MEFRIERE o nored packet policy
MBERNEETHETABEARE BEKERERE:
B AR R AR MR DI e AEEEERREBERERE
o B{HIE
U B ERERERE
e EEYEIRA K
e  HBWABERE
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RIE S RERRSE

Employment and Labour Practices KPI
BERETIER BRENIER

Aspect B8: Community Investment
[EEBS : L BIRE

Focus areas of contribution In 2024, the Group has organised volunteer programmes B8.1
ZXEREE and free clinics, with a focus primarily on children and
elderly people with limited health awareness and/or access
to affordable and adequate healthcare. The free clinics also
penetrated remote areas where basic healthcare resources
are scarce
—EoNE AEEEBETIRELRREGY B
EHRNEREFESL BB AESTAERRHE
BRENZERZA - RESDMARAINERBRE

TR R Y /R 2 340 [
Resources confributed In 2024: B8.2
e mEIR ZE PO

Number of volunteer man-hours: 16,985 (2023: 11,539)
2EFE TR A SRS - 16,985/\FF
ZE = 111,539/ 1)

Number of free clinic man-hours: 2,424 (2023: 1,282)
BB LREA : 2,424/ (ZT = =4 1,282/ )

Total amount of compensation provided to staff for participating

in free clinics: RMBO (2023: RMBO)

M2ELEGDHNE TIRHNMMNERE - ARKOT
“ZT=F: AR®O0T)
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Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

£ EEkeREEE

DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. WANG Junyang, aged 42, is an executive Director and chairman of the
Board. He is primarily responsible for the overall business operation and
strategic planning of the Group. Mr. Wang was appointed as the executive
Director in December 2015 after the Company was converted into a joint stock
limited liability company. Mr. Wang has approximately 18 years of industry and
management experience, and is familiar with modern enterprise management,
capital operations and marketing. Mr. Wang joined Kanghua Hospital in August
2007 and has held various positions since then, including assistant to general
manager responsible for hospital operations from August 2007 to July 2009,
manager of the business department responsible for business development
from August 2009 to November 2012 and vice general manager of the business
department responsible for business management and overall strategic
development of the hospital since December 2012. Mr. Wang has also served as
director and general manager responsible for business management and overall
strategic development of Kanghua Group since August 2007 and Xingye Group
since December 2008. Mr. Wang has served on the fourth council of Dongguan
City Houjie Chamber of Commerce (REEMEHHEFMUEEEEE E) since
December 2009, and currently serves as The Vice Chairman of the Sixth Session
(RmEHEEE/NEBE/E). In 2012, Mr. Wang served as the president of
the fifth council of Dongguan Young Enfrepreneurs Association (3 52 1 & F 1
¥xpeFAEEESE K, and currently serves as the honorary chairman
of the Federation of Young Entrepreneurs (& F &2 KBt A ). In June 2014, Mr.
Wang was awarded Outstanding Young Dongguan Businessman (18 5 & F 5=
7% ) by the World Dongguan Entrepreneurs Convention Organising Committee [t
REmAeMEEZE B g) In 2022, Mr. Wang served as the Vice Chairman of
the 12th Session of the Dongguan Federation of Industry and Commerce and the
Executive Committee member of the 13th Session of the Guangdong Federation
of Industry and Commerce. Mr. Wang was also appointed as a nonexecutive
Director of Dongguan Rural Commercial Bank Co., Ltd from August 2016 to May
2024. Mr. Wang is a member of the Wang Family and is the cousin of Mr. Wong
Wai Hung Simon and nephew of Mr. Chen Wangzhi and Ms. Wang Aigin.

Mr. CHEN Wangzhi, aged 54, is an executive Director and the chief executive
officer of the Company. Mr. Chen is primarily responsible for the overall hospital
operations and management of the Group. Mr. Chen was appointed as the
executive Director in December 2015 after the Company was converted into a
joint stock limited liability company. Mr. Chen has over 18 years of experience
in the healthcare industry. Mr. Chen joined Renkang Hospital in August 2005
when it was established as a limited liability company in the PRC and has since
served as the chairman responsible for hospital operations and development.
Mr. Chen joined Kanghua Hospital in September 2005 when it was established
as a limited liability company in the PRC and has since served as the chairman
and general manager responsible for hospital operations and development. He
was principally responsible for supervising the construction and development of
Kanghua Hospital and Renkang Hospital from which he had gained extensive
experience in hospital management and development. Under the leadership
of Mr. Chen, Kanghua Hospital and Renkang Hospital have developed a
management style reflective of the values and characteristics of the “Kanghua”
brand and obtained many prestigious accreditations and recognitions. Mr. Chen
obtained an executive master's degree in business administration (5 #% & 12
A B TEE ) from Sun Yat-sen University (AP (L1 KX %) in December 2014. Mr.
Chen is a member of the Wang Family and is uncle-in-law of Mr. Wang Junyang
and spouse of Ms. Wang Aigin.
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Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

Mr. WONG Wai Hung Simon, aged 36, is an executive Director and vice chairman
of the Board. He is primarily responsible for the overall business operations
and strategic planning of the Group. Mr. Wong was appointed as the executive
Director in December 2015 after the Company was converted into a joint stock
limited liability company. Mr. Wong has approximately 14 years of hospital
management experience. Mr. Wong joined Kanghua Hospital in July 2010 and
has since served various roles, including assistant to chairman responsible for
implementing and executing chairman’s decisions from July 2010 to April 2012,
manager of the finance department responsible for the overall supervision of
the financial affairs of the hospital from May 2012 to June 2013, and vice general
manager of the business department responsible for hospital administration
management since July 2013. Mr. Wong actively participates in the business
communities in Dongguan. He has served as the vice chairman of the Hong
Kong Houijie Clansmen Association (& & /2 5 [ 48 &) since January 2016.
Mr. WONG was appointed as a member of the standing committee at the 14th
Dongguan Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference
(PERARBAHEGRAE THERETZEGHKZEZE). In 2023, he was
recognized as one of the "Outstanding Young Entrepreneurial Entrepreneurs (&
F5FRE D EXK) in Dongguan City. In February 2025, he was appointed
as a non-executive director and a member of the Consumer Rights Protection
Committee of Dongguan Rural Commercial Bank Co., Ltd. Mr. Wong obtained a
bachelor’s degree in management from the California State University, Northridge
in December 2010. Mr. Wong is a member of the Wang Family and is the cousin
of Mr. Wang Junyang and nephew of Mr. Chen Wangzhi and Ms. Wang Aigin.

Ms. WANG Aiqgin, aged 54, is an executive Director. Ms. Wang is primarily
responsible for the overall financial management and capital investment of the
Group. Ms. Wang has approximately 27 years of group management experience,
in particular group financial management. Ms. Wang joined Renkang Hospital
in August 2005 when it was established as a limited liability company in the
PRC and has since served as a supervisor and a vice general manager of the
finance department responsible for financial management. Ms. Wang joined
Kanghua Hospital in September 2005 when it was established as a limited
liability company in the PRC and has since served as a vice general manager
of the finance department responsible for financial management. She was also
substantially involved in the construction and development of Kanghua Hospital
and Renkang Hospital. Ms. Wang has also served as a director and vice general
manager of Kanghua Group since June 2002 and Xingye Group since June 1997,
and has obtained significant experience in implementing and executing group
control systems in financial management, human resources management, risk
management, audit management and cultural management. Ms. Wang is a
member of the Wang Family and is the aunt of Mr. Wang Junyang and Mr. Wong
Wai Hung Simon, and spouse of Mr. Chen Wangzhi.
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Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

£ EEkeREEE

Non-executive Director

Mr. LV Yubo, aged 74, is a non-executive Director. He is primarily responsible for
overseeing the corporate development and strategic planning of the Group. Mr.
Lv joined the Group in June 2016 and was appointed as non-executive Director
in June 2016. Mr. Lv has more than 48 years of extensive experience in hospital
management. Since October 1974, Mr. Lv has played an instrumental role in the
development of Guangdong Provincial Hospital of Traditional Chinese Medicine
(3 & B %), which has now become one of the largest hospitals of
traditional Chinese medicine in the PRC. Mr. Lv had served numerous managerial
roles at Guangdong Provincial Hospital of Traditional Chinese Medicine, including
vice director (&% &) and director (% & ). Mr. Lv has served in a number of
healthcare associations in the PRC, including deputy chairman (& & &) of the
China Hospital Association (1 B &5 %€ ) since February 2006, chairman (& &)
of the Guangdong Provincial Association of Chinese Medicine (/& 5 & 1 &

E &) since August 2010 and chairman (= £ Z& &) of the Chinese Medicine
Hospital Division of the China Hospital Association (7 B £ P 17 & & 22 &
&) since August 2015. Mr. Lv is well regarded in the medical profession in the
PRC and has received numerous awards, including Outstanding Contribution
to Chinese Hospitals (71 B3 & fr 22 H & k) from the China Hospital Association
(R B EE BT 2 ) in 2006, Nohonol Outstanding Director of the Chinese Medicine
Hospital (& B /% & f%n & % Bt &) from the China Association of Chinese
Medicine (% /1 &5 ) in September 2007, Outstanding Management
Personnel ({8 & & E% )\ Z“) from the China Association of Chinese Medicine
(Fh ¥ B8 BXE5 @) in 2014 and the First Class Sci-Tech Advancement Award of
Guangdong Province (& 3 & B} # 28 — % %) from the People’s Government
of Guangdong Province (E R & A K BUfT) in 2015. Mr. Lv graduated from
Guangdong Provincial University of Continuing Technology Education (& 5
% 2 B K 2) in July 1981 majoring in English, and Guangdong Economics
Management Cadre College (& 5 & 4 /% & 12 2 Z8 2 Fx ) in July 1988 majoring
in organisation management (48 4% & ¥ ). Mr. Lv obtained an executive master’s
degree in business administration (= & & £ A 8 L& & ) from Lingnan
(University) College of Sun Yat-sen University (#F LI A 2248 5 22 f% ) in December
2005.
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Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. YEUNG Ming Lai, aged 76, is an independent non-executive Director. He
is primarily responsible for supervising and providing independent judgment
to the Board. Mr. Yeung joined the Group in June 2016 and was appointed as
independent non-executive Director in June 2016. Mr. Yeung has approximately
40 years of hospital operation experience, particularly in financial management,
personnel management, human relations and marketing. He dedicated much
of his career to the Adventist Hospitals in Hong Kong. Mr. Yeung started as an
assistant accountant at Hong Kong Adventist Hospital (& 78 7 %2 28 B3 ) in July
1968. He became the vice president for finance of Hong Kong Adventist Hospital
in April 1977. He left Hong Kong in October 1979 to pursue advanced training
in hospital administration under sponsorship from the Hong Kong Adventist
Hospital. Mr. Yeung had also served as an administrative residency at hospital
administration at the Kettering Medical Center in Kettering, Ohio, the United States
from March 1981 to March 1982. He returned to Hong Kong and became senior
vice president of both Hong Kong Adventist Hospital and Tsuen Wan Adventist
Hospital (£ & % %2 & Ft) in April 1982. Shortly affer, Mr. Yeung was appointed
as president of Tsuen Wan Adventist Hospital in July 1983. Under the leadership
of Mr. Yeung, Tsuen Wan Adventist Hospital developed into a modern healthcare
institution providing advanced multi-disciplinary healthcare services. He left the
hospital in April 1992 and later emigrated to Canada to pursue other interests. Mr.
Yeung returned to Hong Kong and had served as president and chief executive
officer of both Adventist Hospitals from January 2006 to December 2015. Mr.
Yeung left his positions at both Adventist Hospitals in December 2015.

Mr. Yeung obtained a diploma in business administration from the South China
Union College in Hong Kong in June 1979 and a master’'s degree in hospital
administration from Loma Linda University in California, the United States in March
1982. In recognition of his remarkable contributions to the Adventist Hospitals in
Hong Kong, the Adventist University of Philippines bestowed a doctorate degree
in humanities upon Mr. Yeung in March 2009.
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Dr. CHEN Keji, aged 94, is an independent non-executive Director. He is primarily
responsible for supervising and providing independent judgment to the Board.
Dr. Chen joined the Group in June 2016 and was appointed as independent non-
executive Director in June 2016. Dr. Chen is a renowned cardiologist in the PRC
with over 68 years of experience in the medical industry. Dr. Chen has played
a pivotal role in the development of the Xiyuan Hospital of China Academy of
Chinese Medical Sciences (/1 Bl F1 & &} £ fc 75 26 & Bt ), where he currently
serves as chief researcher (& f& #f 7 §) and the lifetime researcher (4% &
19 8 of the China Academy of Traditional Chinese Medicine (B8 1 & #ff 95
Bt ). Dr. Chen has worked at the Chinese Medical Science Xiyuan Hospital (&
T & BT 78 58 B B ) since April 1956, and has served various roles, including
resident doctor ({¥ Pz B2 £f), attending doctor (334 B2 Aifi), associate chief doctor
(&= £ &AM, associate researcher (EIfft 75 &), department head (%= = £),
chief doctor (== 1T B fill), researcher (#f 9t & ), tutor for doctor of philosophy
students (18 == 4 A ) and vice director (&IFT & ). Dr. Chen has made significant
contributions to the medical profession in the PRC. He was elected as the fellow
of Chinese Academy of Sciences (H B 2} 2[5 Bt 1) in 1991. He received the First
Lifu Academic Award (88 — Ji& 37 2K 1 %8 %% £ i 4%) for Chinese Medicine from
the Lifu Medical Research Foundation (3z 35 & 28 58 X E £ € ) in Taiwan in
1994. He was awarded the Wu Jieping Medicine Prize (= f& F & £ 4%) by the
Wuijieping Medicine Prize Committee (2 fi& S & 2 #2578 & 8 &) in 2009. He
received a First Class National Science and Technology Progress Award (B R &}
B 25 88— % 88 from the State Council (75657 ) in 2004. He also received an
honorary doctorate of science from Hong Kong Baptist University in 2004, and an
honorary doctorate of medicine (48 1% 1) from the Macau University of Science
and Technology in 2010. He received a Lifetime Achievement Award (4% & ik 5t #%)
from the China Association of Chinese Medicine (/& /1 & 2 22 &) in 2014 for
his contribution to the academic development of TCM. He became the honorary
president (# 2 & &) of the Hong Kong Association for Integration of Chinese-
Western Medicine (& /4 H 78 & 45 & & B &) in 2009, the honorary academic
advisor (4% 2 2 1f7 E5 ) of the Hong Kong Association of Traditional Chinese
Medicine (& 7 /1 82 2€) in 2011, and the director of the academic committee
(E4i1Z B & % {T) of the State Key Laboratories of Quality Research in Chinese
Medicines (F 425 S5 B R EEE 5 = ) of the University of Macau (JRFIRE)
and the Macau University of Science and Technology (8 P9 £ 5 K £) in 2011
and the honorary president (%2 & &) of the Chinese Association of Integrative
Medicine (77 B #° 75 & 45 4 2 ) in 2015. Dr. Chen graduated from Fujian
Medical University (1872 2RI K2 (formerly Fujian Medical College (127 B8 £55% )
in July 1954, majoring in medicine (& /& % ).
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Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

Mr. CHAN Sing Nun, aged 50, is an independent non-executive Director. He is
primarily responsible for supervising and providing independent judgment to the
Board. Mr. Chan was appointed as a Director in December 2015; his appointment
as independent non-executive Director was officially confirmed in June 2016.
Mr. Chan has approximately 26 years of experience in auditing, accounting
and financial management. From 1998 to 2002, Mr. Chan was a senior audit
associate at K.L. Wong & Co., an audit firm. From January 2003 to January 2019,
Mr. Chan was the financial manager of Brandwell Limited, a consulting services
company. Since March 2019, Mr. Chan has been the Financial controller of Muse
Group Holdings Limited. Since September 2009, Mr. Chan has been the audit
principal of Qing Lan C.P.A. Limited, mainly responsible for audit planning and
supervision, internal control assessment, tax advisory, corporate secretarial
services and business development. Mr. Chan had served as an independent
non-executive director of Differ Group Holding Company Limited (a company
formerly listed on the GEM board with stock code 8056 and currently listed on
the Main Board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange with stock code 6878) from
November 2013 to March 2025. Mr. Chan has been the company secretary
of Platt Nera International Limited (Stock code:1949) since November 2021. In
January 2021 resigned as an independent non-executive director of Fameglow
Holdings Limited (Stock code: 8603). Mr. Chan also is the director of A2Z Hotel
Equipment Limited, a company that is principally engaged in tableware trading.
Mr. Chan is a certified public accountant of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and a member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants. Mr. Chan graduated from the City University of Hong Kong in 1998,
and obtained a higher diploma in professional accounting.
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SUPERVISORS

Mr. CHEN Shaoming, aged 46, is the chairman of the Supervisory Committee. He
is primarily responsible for supervising the daily operations and management of
the Group. Mr. Chen joined the Group in September 2005 and was appointed as
our Supervisor and the chairman of the supervisory committee in December 2015.
Mr. Chen has more than 18 years of financial management experience in the
healthcare industry. Mr. Chen joined Kanghua Hospital in September 2005 when
it was established as a limited liability company in the PRC and has since served
various roles, including manager of the finance department from September
2005 to April 2007, financial controller of the finance department from May 2007
to December 2013 and supervisor since March 2013. Mr. Chen participated in
the construction and development of Kanghua Hospital from which he gained
valuable hospital management experience. Mr. Chen has served as a financial
controller of the finance department of Kanghua Group since November 2012.
Mr. Chen graduated from Guangdong Economic Management College (&R &
47 & 38 B IR 2Bt ) and obtained a diploma in accounting in July 2003.

Mr. YUE Chunyang, aged 50, is a supervisor and is currently the general
manager of Kanghua Hospital primarily responsible for managing its overall
information technology system, administrative and ancillary functions. Mr. Yue
Chunyang has approximately 21 years of hospital management experience. Mr.
Yue joined the Group in February 2003 and participated in the establishment of
Kanghua Hospital. Since the commencement of operations of Kanghua Hospital
in November 2006, he has assumed various managerial roles at Kanghua
Hospital primarily to develop and manage its information technology system,
administrative and ancillary functions. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Yue had
gained his industry experience from Qintai General Labour Union Computer
School (Z & 8 T g5 B # £ #7) in Lushan County of Henan Province (/] 7
% &1L %) as a teacher from August 1997 to October 1999, and Lushan County
Communication Administration (& | £ % {5 /) as a staff member from July
1999 fo January 2003. Mr. Yue graduated from Zhengzhou University (54| A £2)
and obtained a bachelor’s degree in computer science and technology in August
1997.
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Mr. WANG Shaofeng, aged 41, is a Supervisor. He is primarily responsible for
supervising the daily operations and management of the Group. Mr. Wang joined
the Group in October 2006 and was appointed as our Supervisor and employee
representative of the Supervisory Committee in December 2015. Mr. Wang
has approximately 17 years of human resources experience in the healthcare
industry. Mr. Wang joined Renkang Hospital in October 2006. From October 2006
to February 2007, Mr. Wang worked at Renkang Hospital as a network engineer
in the information department. From March 2007 to August 2007, Mr. Wang was
seconded to Kanghua Hospital to receive on-the-job training in the procurement
department and the human resources department. In September 2007, Mr.
Wang became formally employed by Kanghua Hospital and has since served as
head of the human resources department responsible for recruitment, payroll,
performance, training and employee relations. In November 2021, Mr. Wang
has been transferred to the operation department of Kanghua Hospital to serve
as the operoﬂon manager. Mr. Wang graduated from Dongguan University of
Technology (3R 5232 T &%) with a bachelor's degree in computer science and
technology in June 2006. In August 2018, Mr. Wong acquired the occupational
qualification of Enterprises Human Resource Management (Second Level),
awarded by the Ministry of Human Resources and Social Security of the PRC.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Dr. JIA Guoliang, aged 81, is a clinical vice general manager of the Company
since June 2016. He is primarily responsible for overseeing the clinical operations
of the Group’s hospitals. Dr. Jia is a renowned cardiologist in the PRC with more
than 55 years of experience in the medical industry. He joined Kanghua Hospita

in March 2008 and currently serves as a vice director of Kanghua Hospital and
the head of the Cardiovascular Center. Before joining the Group, from August
1968 to December 1974, Dr. Jia had worked at the Xinjiang Military Region Sixth
Division Hospital (¥ 58 & [& 7S Al &P ) as a military surgeon. From January 1975
to October 2005, Dr. Jia had worked at the First Affiliated Hospital of the Fourth
Military Medical University (28 71 % & X2 [f & —F7) as an attending physician
in cardiology (/0 A &} == 34 88 4 ), associate director (& == E) and director (=
f£), where he undertook clinical, teaching and operational responsibilities.
From October 2005 to February 2008, Dr. Jia had worked at the Cardiovascular
Hospital of Xi An No. 1 Hospital as a director (& ). Dr. Jia has made substantial
contributions to cardiovascular healthcare, particularly in military medicine,
in the PRC. He has served as a committee member of numerous medical
associations and editorial board of medical journals. In addition to a Third Class
Prize in Technology Improvement ( = % &} #% 3 4 #%) awarded by the National
Commission for Scientific and Technological Research (B X &l 2 K fi1 & 8 €)
in December 1996, Dr. Jia had received more than 18 awards from the General
Logistics Department of the Chinese People’s Liberation Army (/P Bl A R ## 7 E
48 1% E) 78 for the contribution of his research projects in military medicine (Z Bx
% 2. Dr. Jia received a Life-fime Award in Interventional Cardiology in the PRC
(7R B A A D 22 4% A BR Bk 28) and a Distinctive Contribution Award (5 51l
& Bt 28) from the Chinese Medical Association (£ &% 22 &), respectively, in
March 2005. Dr. Jia continues to actively pursue his endeavours in cardiovascular
healthcare. His recent appointments include consultant for the interventional
cardiovascular diseases branch of the Chinese Medical Association (7 2 % £
2L IMERESD ) in 2013, committee member for the cardiologist branch of
the Chinese Medical Doctor Association (1 B BBl i 2 L & AR ERT 5 &)

in 2014 and consultant for the editorial board ofC}uneseJournoIofGenonm
Heart Brain and Vessel Diseases (4 % 2 4 .0 i [l & 75 % 55) in 2016. Dr. Jia
possesses the chief doctor qualification.
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Dr. LI Zhiwei, aged 57, is a clinical vice general manager of the Company since
June 2016. He is primarily responsible for overseeing the clinical operations of the
Group’s hospitals. Dr. Li is an industry leading general surgeon in the PRC with
more than 33 years of experience in the medical industry. He joined Kanghua
Hospital in February 2006 and currently serves as a vice director of Kanghua
Hospital and the head of the Department of Hepatobiliary and Pancreatic Surgery.
Dr. Li also participated in managing the development and operation of Kanghua
Hospital from which he gained valuable hospital management experience.
Before joining the Group, from August 1990 to December 2005, Dr. Li had focused
his practice on hepatobiliary surgery at the 301 Military Hospital (301 225 ), where
he had served various roles, including resident doctor (13 Bz & £ifl), chief resident
doctor (42 {% Fx % Bl ), attending doctor (= & % Bl ), ward inspection chief
attending doctor (& 5 42 = & B Rl) and associate chief doctor (&l == 1T & A,
Dr. Li is substantially involved in the development of general surgery and medical
associations in the PRC. He was complimented to be an advanced teaching
individual (%% 3 T £{E A ) twice by the PLA Postgraduate Medical School (E &
# & EB3) in 1997 and 2001, respectively, for his outstanding performance in
teaching and teaching management. Dr. Li graduated from First Military Medical
University (25 — 5 & K &) with a medical bachelor's degree in July 1990. He
obtained a master's degree in general surgery and doctoral degree in clinical
medicine from the postgraduate medical school (E 8 #E {& £ ) of 301 Military
Hospital (3012 B ) in July 1995 and July 2003, respectively. Dr. Li obtained the

chief doctor qualification in hepatobiliary surgery in January 2009.

Ms. LIN Yan, aged 62, is a clinical vice general manager of the Company since
June 2016. She is primarily responsible for the overall management of the nursing
work of the Group’s hospitals. Ms. Lin is a highly experienced nurse with more
than 40 years of experience in the medical industry. Ms. Lin joined Kanghua
Hospital in September 2010 and has since served as the head of the Nursing
Department. Before joining the Group, from July 1983 to October 2010, Ms. Lin had
served various roles at Second Affiliated Hospital of Sun Yat-sen University (7 1L
KE B % — 8 F), including nurse, head nurse of operating theatre, head
of nursing department and deputy head of outpatient office. Ms. Lin has made
distinguished contributions in the nursing profession in the PRC, with far-reaching
influence in the field of operating room nursing within the PRC, in particular
Guangdong Province. She participated in the publication of many professional
practice guides in nursing, including main editor (= #&) for Practical Surgical
Nursing (& i F 17 # 32 £ ) published by the Sun Yat-sen University Press (7
1Ll K & i iR 4 ), which received a First Class Prize in Outstanding Teaching
Materials ({8 55 ##7 — % #2) in Southern China universities from the China
University Presses Association (9 B X 22 ) iz #% &), participating editor (£ 47
for Guide on Improving the Core Competence of Professional Nurse (5 3 7 +
%0y 88 7 2 3% 5 @) published by the Guangdong Provincial Publishing Group
(& H & H k& E), and participating editor (£ #7) for Clinical Care Document
Specifications (F& IK 7 ¥2 3 & 7 #3) published by the Guangdong Provincial
Publishing Group. Ms. Lin obtained a diploma in advanced nursing from the
Evening School of Sun Yat-sen University Zhongshan School of Medicine (9 I
ERIARERAZ) in June 1989. Ms. Lin graduated from the Hunan University of
Chinese Medicine (4 £ A1 %& & X 2) in January 2010. She obtained the chief
nurse qualification (2= {E ¥ A ) in December 2007.
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Mr. WANG Baizhi, aged 49, is an operation vice general manager of the
Company since June 2016. He is responsible for the overall administrative and
ancillary operations of the Group’s hospitals as well as overseeing the Group’s
hospital management business. Mr. Wang has approximately 19 years of hospital
management experience. Mr. Wang joined Renkang Hospital in August 2005
when it was established as a limited liability company in the PRC and has since
served as the vice general manager of Renkang Hospital, and as the general
manager of Renkang Hospital since November 2015, primarily responsible for the
hospital's administrative and ancillary operations. Mr. Wang also participated in
the construction and development of Renkang Hospital. Before joining the Group,
from March 1998 to July 2003, Mr. Wang had worked at China Construction Bank
responsible for auditing and loan management. Mr. Wang obtained a diploma
in mechanical manufacturing engineering and design from the Dongguan
University of Technology (5 523 T £ ) in June 1998.

Mr. WONG Wai Hang Ricky, aged 46, is a chief financial officer and a joint
company secretary of the Company and appointed as the secretary to the
Board since September 2023. Mr. Wong has more than 22 years of experience
in accounting and finance. He is primarily responsible for the overall financial
management, capital investment, investor relations and corporate finance of the
Group. Mr. Wong joined the Company as chief financial officer in December 2015.
Before joining the Group, from December 2002 to November 2015, Mr. Wong
had worked at Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, where he was responsible for leading,
managing and supervising audits for listed and multi-national companies. Mr.
Wong has also cultivated transactional experience in his previous roles, including
acquisitions, debt offerings and initial public offerings. Mr. Wong was a senior
manager at Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu before he joined the Group. Mr. Wong
is a certified public accountant of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and CPA Australia. Mr. Wong obtained a bachelor’s degree of
commerce maijoring in accounting and finance with merit from the University of
New South Wales in April 2000, and a master's degree of commerce majoring
in advanced information systems and management from the University of New
South Wales in May 2003.
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Ms. CHEN Li, aged 53, is a financial controller of the Company since June
2016. She is primarily responsible for the overall financial management of the
Group’s hospitals. Ms. Chen has more than 31 years of experience in financial
management. Ms. Chen joined Kanghua Hospital in September 2005 when it
was established as a limited liability company in the PRC and is currently serving
as financial controller in the finance department. Ms. Chen also participated in
managing the financial operations of Kanghua Hospital during its construction
and development phase from which she gained valuable hospital financial
management experience. Before joining the Group, from September 1992 to
March 2004, she had served various roles at Dongguan City Guangcai Hotel
(R Z= B ¥ OB JE), a subsidiary of Guangdong Fortune Colour Picture
Tube Co., Lid. (E R & #1 % & B & & 2 7, including accountant, accounting
supervisor, cost supervisor and project manager. She has also served as the
vice chairman (2] & &) of the Dongguan Social Insurance Associatfion (5 = T
&R % % €) since January 2016. Ms. Chen obtained a diploma in financial
accounting from Changsha University of Workers (£ 8 T X2 in June 1992.
She graduated from Dongguan Party School ( 5= # % ) in December 1998.

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Mr. WONG Wai Hang Ricky, one of the joint company secretaries of the Company,
is also a senior management member of the Company. Please refer to “Senior
Management” in this section for his biography.

Ms. CHAU Hing Ling was appointed as a joint company secretary of the Company
since 27 June 2016. She joined Vistra Corporate Services (HK) Limited since June
2013 and currently serves as an executive director of Corporate Services of Vistra
Corporate Services (HK) Limited, where she leads a team of professional staff to
provide a full range of company secretary services. Ms. Chau has over 20 years
of experience in the corporate services industry.

Ms. Chau is currently the company secretary of several companies listed on the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange. Ms. Chau received a master of laws majoring in
corporate and finance law from the University of Hong Kong in November 2007.
She has been a fellow member of The Chartered Governance Institute (formerly
known as the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators) in United
Kingdom and The Hong Kong Chartered Governance Institute (formerly known as
the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries) since May 2013.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B RS

@ pakertilly
R B ] PR

To the shareholders of

Guangdong Kanghua Healthcare Group Co., Ltd.

(Formerly known as Guangdong Kanghua Healthcare Co., Ltd.)

(A joint stock company incorporated in the People’s Republic of China with limifed
liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Guangdong Kanghua
Healthcare Group Co., Ltd. (formerly known as Guangdong Kanghua Healthcare
Co., Ltd.) (the “Company’) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) set out on pages 175 to 292, which comprise the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 31 December 2024, and the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes fo the consolidated financial statements, including material
accounting policy information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of
the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2024, and
of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards as issued by
the International Accounting Standards Board ("IASB”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
("HKSAs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA"). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of
the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter

BREITEE

Independent Auditor’s Report
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

ATREFKNEEERETEE

Impairment assessment of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets of Chongqing Kanghua Zhonglian Healthcare

Managemem‘ Co Lid. (" Chongq/ng Kanghua Property”)
EEFEEHERE R A

During the year ended 31 December 2024, Chongqing
Kanghua Zhonglian Cardiovascular Hospital Co., Ltd. ("Kangxin
Hospital”) underwent a demerger conducted under the laws of
the People’s Republic of China, pursuant to which Chongging
Kanghua Property was established, as a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, to hold the land and buildings
underlying the operation of Kangxin Hospital.

As at 31 December 2024, Chongging Kanghua Property
had property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets
transferred from Kangxin Hospital with aggregate carrying
amount of RMB653,631,000, representing approximately 24%
of total assets.

The Group’s management considered the future economic
benefits arising from Chongqing Kanghua Property’s property,
plant and equipment and right-of-use assets shall become
uncertain following the disposal of Kangxin Hospital and
performed an impairment assessment by assessing the
recoverable amount of the property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets of Chongqing Kanghua Property based on
valuations of fair value less costs of disposal prepared by an
independent external valuer.

Significant unobservable inputs was involved in the assessment
of the recoverable amount, including the assumptions on
replacement cost, deduction for obsolescence, capitalisation
rate and the selection of comparable market transactions. The
outcome is sensitive to the expected future market conditions.

The accounting policies, significant accounting judgements and
estimates and disclosures for impairment assessments are
included in notes 2.4, 3, 14 and 15 to the consolidated financial
statements.

] ([BEEFENE]) BIYF - BiE KRR EUAREFEEER BT

We evaluated the methodologies, assumptions and estimates
used in the valuation by:

- Obtaining and inspecting the valuation reports prepared
by the independent external valuer engaged by the Group
and on which the directors’ impairment assessment of
property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets of
Chongqing Kanghua Property was based on;

- Assessing the independent external valuer’s qualifications,
experience and expertise in the properties being valued
and considering their objectivity; and

- Discussing with the independent external valuer, to
understand the valuation methodologies applied and the
key estimates and assumptions adopted in their valuations
and assess their reasonableness and the consistency with
industry norms by comparing the significant unobservable
inputs, such as replacement cost, deduction for
obsolescence, capitalisation rate and comparable market
transactions adopted by the independent external valuer
with available market data.

In addition, we evaluated the adequacy of related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements.
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B 2B S

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued) ERETSE )

Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

FRREETEE RITRBETRNAEEBRETSE
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Key audit matter

B ES SR

Independent Auditor’s Report
B AR S

BASRE RTS8 (

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

AITRE R RIZARET SR

Assessment of recoverable amounts of Kanghua Haemodialysis cash generating unit (‘Kanghua Haemodialysis CGU")

FEEENRENEEELEN ([FEMRENTHELELEN )BT E 2 5F

As at 31 December 2024, the Group had goodwill, property,
plant and equipment and right-of-use assets allocated to the
Kanghua Haemodialysis CGU, comprising Dongguan Kanghua
Haemodialysis Healthcare Investment Management Co., Ltd.
and its subsidiaries, with an aggregate carrying amount of
RMB172,161,000, representing approximately 6% of fotal assets.

The Group’s management performed an annual impairment
assessment by assessing the recoverable amounts of
the Kanghua Haemodialysis CGU based on value in use
calculations, with the assistance from an independent external
valuer.

Significant judgement was involved in the assessment of the
recoverable amounts, including the assumptions on budgeted
revenue, discount rates and growth rates. The outcome is
sensitive to the expected future market conditions and the
actual performance of the Kanghua Haemodialysis CGU.

The accounting policies, significant accounting judgements
and estimates and disclosures for impairment assessments
are included in notes 2.4, 3 and 16 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RIZE-_NMFE+-_A=+—H  E£EEHE YE- K
ERREARERAHEESRERENBRENRECELSE
U(BRERERENRENERREEEARAGT REN
BRR)  #ERmEASARKI72,161,0007T ' HEELELY
6%°

BEEEEEBAEBIIEEMNBE M EBRETEEA
EBENER LFAFEENRETRSELEUN T RO
B RETFERERS -

EFHE R ESENBRT S REAAE - BREBERA
MR ERIBERXNER - BRHIBHARETIGINON K E
EMBAENRSELEUNERRRTE

BEIE - EAEH B RIS ROV RS O BB A
GAMBERENE24 3R16 -

We evaluated the methodologies, assumptions and estimates
used in the value in use calculations by:

(i comparing the budgeted revenue and expected growth
rates with historical results of the Kanghua Haemodialysis
CGU;

(il  comparing the discount rates with relevant industry’s
weighted average cost of capital;

[il  comparing the long term growth rates to current market
condition; and

(iv  assessing the sensitivity of management estimates and
assumptions used in evaluating whether a reasonably
possible change in assumptions could cause the carrying
amounts to exceed their recoverable amounts

In addition, we assessed the independence, objectivity and

competence of the external valuer engaged by management

and evaluated the adequacy of related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements.

AITRHEEREETESAAN A - BR &b - TAS:
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter

ERET SR

BRESEIE B

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

RITRE RN ERIZRARE T B8R

Contingent liabilities arising from medical disputes

BRI R '

As at 31 December 2024, the Group had contingent liabilities
arising from medical disputes of RMB14,292,000 and a
provision for medical dispute claims of RMB2,885,000.

There are inherent risks associated with the Group’s clinical
activities which may result in unfavourable medical outcomes
not caused by clinical decisions. The Group may be subject to
legal proceedings and claims that arise in the ordinary course
of business, which primarily include medical dispute claims
brought by the former patients.

Provision for medical dispute claims is made based on the
status of potential and active claims outstanding at the end of
the year, and taking into consideration the assessment and
analysis of external experts and the total claim exposure.
However, where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated
reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability,
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Significant judgements and estimates were involved in the
assessment of probability of an outflow of economic benefits to
the medical disputes and its financial impact to the consolidated
financial statements.

The accounting policies, significant accounting judgements
and estimates and disclosures for the provision and contingent
liabilities arising from medical disputes are included in notes 2.4,
3, 23 and 31 to the consolidated financial statements.
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We evaluated management’s assessment in respect of medical
disputes by:

(il obtaining an understanding of management’s process
in developing the estimation on the outflow of economic
benefits;

(il  obtaining the list of medical disputes from management
and arranging litigation search to check for the status of
the medical disputes and the completeness of the list of
medical disputes;

[iil  obtaining and reading legal proceeding letters, judicial
appraisal reports, expert opinion letters, judgement
letters and medical records, if any, relevant to the medical
disputes;

(iv  discussing with management and the Group’s legal
counsel on the estimated outcome of the pending medical
disputes, with reference to legal precedents of any similar
cases; and

(v} evaluating the adequacy of the provision and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE ANNUAL REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Annual Report, other than
the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS AND THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with IFRS Accounting Standards as issued by the IASB and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible
for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or fo cease
operations or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting
process.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B RS

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report
that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a body, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

J Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by
the directors.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

] Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern
basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether
a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease fo continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Plan and perform the group audit to obtain sufficient appropriate audit
evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business units
within the Group as a basis for forming an opinion on the group financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and review of
the audit work performed for purposes of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought
to bear on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.
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B RS

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh
the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s
report is Li Man Chun Jesse.

Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong

31 March 2025

Li Man Chun Jesse

Practising certificate number P08302
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
reBEnkHEMEERER

Year ended 31 December 2024
HE-_Z-_NE+-_A=1+—HILEE

2024 2023
—EZEF —E=F
Notes RMB’'000 RMB’000
Bt 5 AR®T T ARBT T
Revenue & 5 2,055,670 2,041,858
Cost of revenue Wz AR (1,733,797) (1,677,488)
Gross profit EH 321,873 364,370
Other income HEA 5 53,521 46,279
Other expenses, gains and losses, net HEMAX - Wk EIEFE 6 (7,333) (6)
Net provision for impairment losses under the EHEEBEEREXETZ
expected credif loss model BEBERETE (4,277) (2,768)
Administrative expenses THAX (277,102) (242,391)
Finance costs & A A 7 (23,627) (12,055)
Profit before taxation B 5t BiD& A 8 63,055 153,429
Income tax expense Frisfif = 1 (52,582) (62,406)
Profit and total comprehensive income for the year 7R 4F & i I & & 1 WA 4858 10,473 91,023
Profit/(loss) and total comprehensive income/(loss) T~ %1 & T8 JE 5 AN E 5 F|,
for the year attributable fo: (BB R2EKRA
(BE) 1%
Owners of the Company ZN/NETEZ SN 15,337 121,062
Non-controlling inferests FEVEAR (4,864) (30,039)
10,473 91,023
RMB cents RMB cents
ARED ARES
Earnings per share st gkl
Basic HAR 13 4.6 36.2
Diluted #E 13 4.6 36.2
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e IR R R

31 December 2024
—ZEZWE+=ZA=+—H

2024 2023
—EZF —E-=F
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
Mo ARETT ARET T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - BERZE 14 1,143,686 1,128,116
Right-of-use assets ERREE 15(a) 280,147 284,265
Goodwill Bk 16 143,325 29,101
Other asset HmEE 20 - 18,417
Deposits paid for acquisition of property, WHEME - BB &
plant and equipment REENRE 29,506 36,181
Financial assets at fair value through profitor loss & A F{EF AEZER
TREE 21 24,000 33,400
Deferred tax assefs R IEEE 26 10,390 =
Total non-current assets IRBEEEE 1,631,054 1,529,480
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Inventories BE 18 66,441 71,975
Accounts and other receivables JFE U B 5k e EL At i L3RR 19 312,537 302,278
Financial assets at fair value through profitor loss & A F{EF AEZER
TREE 21 370,000 350,000
Restricted bank balances SR AR 1T SRR 22 3,088 2,732
Fixed bank deposits TEHIERITIF R 22 65,800 63,350
Bank balances and cash WITHEB MRS 22 242,604 305,171
1,060,470 1,095,506
Assets classified as held for sale DEABEHECZEE 17 50,01 =
Total current assets REEEHAE 1,110,481 1,095,506
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBAE
Accounts and other payables and provision JRE 1~ B AR B B Ath 8 A< SRR
LA R 545 23 758,754 660,322
Bank loans — due within one year RITER——FAZH 25 4,000 31,090
Lease liabilities HEaE 15(b) 61,257 47,212
Tax payables FEBEIR 26,386 28,075
850,397 766,699
Liabilities associated with assets classified as HAYEABEHECZEE
held for sale HEENEE 17 23,181 -
Total current liabilities e aEAE 873,578 766,699
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFE 236,903 328,807
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES REERABDEE 1,867,957 1,858,287
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

eI R

31 December 2024
ZEZWFE+=ZA=+—H

2024 2023
—EZmF —E-=F
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
B RE ARET T AREFIT
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRENEE
Amount due to a non-controlling shareholder FET — M B A 7 /9 FEFE AR
of a subsidiary % 58 Fk I8 24 134,248 -
Bank loans — due after one year RITER——F1REH 25 225,067 287,735
Lease liabilities HEalE 15(b) 30,332 60,545
Deferred tax liabilities BRERIBEAE 26 15,963 12,480
Total non-current liabilities FRENEELLE 405,610 360,760
NET ASSETS BEFE 1,462,347 1,497,527
EQUITY g
Share capital A& 7 27 334,394 334,394
Reserves EE 28 1,105,128 1,089,791
Equity attributable to owners of the Company KABER ANELEDS 1,439,522 1,424,185
Non-controlling interests FEIE R M = 22,825 73,342
TOTAL EQUITY AR 1,462,347 1,497,527

The consolidated financial statements on page 175 to 292 were approved and
authorised for issue by the board of directors on 31 March 2025 and are signed

on its behalf by:

Wang Junyang
IES

Director

EF

FIBE2NENGEEMBRRERN_-F
THE=A=t—HEEEFSHENRKE

T WRTIIREREE

Wong Wai Hung
TEH®

Direcfor

EF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

o A 4EE 2 454
GEERESER
Year ended 31 December 2024
BHE-ZT-WNF+-_A=1+—HBLFE

Attributable fo owners of the Company

RAREE AL
Non-
Share Share Capital  Statutory Other  Refained controlling
capital ~ premium reserve reserve reserve  earnings  Sub-total interests Total
BRA BROEE BXRREE LERE EtEE RIEF P FRRER -y
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB000  RMB000  RMB000  RMB'O00  RMB'O00  RMB'OO0  RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTR ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARBTR
Inote28)  [note28)  (note28]  (nofe 28]
(Ptzkos) (Misk2s)  (MsE2s)  (Mizhos)
At 1 January 2023 [restated) W=-E-=%-f-AH
(&5 334,394 698,214 53,394 141,413 1477 27015 1,499,007 15521 1,514,528
Profi/lloss) and fotal ERERN/ (B58) R

comprehensive income/ 2ERA/ (B8)

floss) for the year ag - - - - - 121062 121062 30,039 91,023
Acquisifion of addiional inferests  JE& I B 2 RIS 25

in subsidiaries (note 33) (Fit£35) - - - - 195884) - 195884 87,827 (108,057
Appropriation fo statutory reserve  FREUZ TE Bl - - - 42920 - 42920 - - -
Capital contribution from FERRETE

non-controlling shareholders - - - - - - - 33 33
At 31 December 2023 and WZZ-=%+-F

at1January 2024 =t-BER

“2-mE-R-B 334,394 698,214 53,394 184,333 (194407) 348,257 142485 73,342 1497527
Profit/loss| and fotal EnERl/ (B8 R

comprehensive income/ AN/ (BE)

(loss| for the year BE - - - - - 15,337 15,337 (4,864) 10,473
Acquisition of subsidiaries note 35) Y& Hi B2 &1 (Fi & 35) - - - - - - - (45653 (45,653
Appropriation fo sfafufory reserve  1REUATE - - - 18,190 - 18190 - - -
At 31 December 2024 RZB-MEFZA

S 334,394 698,214 53,394 202523  (194407) 345404 1439522 22,825 1,462,347
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

ll‘mAiﬁlﬁl)ﬂlE%

Year ended 31 December 2024

HE_Z-_WF+-_A=+—HILFE
2024 2023
—E-EF —F-=F
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
Bt 5 AREET T ARBT T
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES LTS RERE
Profit before taxation ﬁ?%ﬁ Al S ) 63,055 153,429
Adjustments for: MATIEBFR{ERE :
Net provision for impairment losses under the EEEEEE ﬁEZTIETZ
expected credit loss model WEEEEE TR 4,277 2,768
Bank and other interest income AT REAF 2A 5 (6,000) (4,918)
Investment income from financial assets at fair BRAT A AIBRH
value through profit or loss TREERRERA 5 (7,797) (12,092)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment M - BERRETE 8 106,683 106,914
Depreciation of right-of-use assets TREEENE 8 43,172 36,165
Fair value loss on financial assets at fair value BT EFT ABTD
through profit or loss PREEMNATEER 6 9,400 882
Loss on disposals of property, LEME  BER
plant and equipment BEEE 6 350 190
Finance costs %ﬁﬁﬁi$ 7 23,627 12,055
Unrealised foreign exchange (gain)/loss KREHINE (U zs) BB (2,307) 2,722
Gain on early termination of lease contract TE AR IEES S 82 (32) -
Provision for medical dispute claims, BB 5@%1,\% -
net of reversal OB A 23 7,470 3,129
Amortisation of other asset H b & E#E 20 1,000 1,000
242,898 302,244
Decrease in inventories FERD 4,571 14,771
Increase in accounts and other receivables JFE s AR 35K % EL i JE W K
N (13,574) (16,163)
Increase/(decrease) in accounts and JE A BR 3R B Bt
other payables and provision FEATRRIB R B
2, Chd) 99,303 (44,590)
Cash generated from operations KEFRSERE 333,198 256,262
People’s Republic of China Enterprise B EAREM
Income Tax paid EFTISH (53,066) (51,844)
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid ENBEEREH - (223)
Net cash flows from operating activities RETBMBEERETHE 280,132 204,195
EREEEREERNARAR F1 2024
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

= A L=
GERERER
Year ended 31 December 2024
HE-Z-_WF+-A=1T—HILEHFE

2024 2023
—EIWEF =%
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
Bt 5 AREET T ARBT T
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES REFZHMERTRE

Purchases of property, plant and equipment BEME  BRENIERE (65,431) (98,257)
Payments for leasehold land MET AR 15(a) (272) —

Purchases of financial assets at fair value through 88 B 3% A F{ET ABZEH

profit or loss CRMEE (750,000) (868,000)
Proceeds from disposal of financial assefs at fair ~ H &R A FEF ABZER

value through profit or loss T RE E TS RIA 730,000 1,055,549
Deposits paid for acquisition of property, plantand U EE ¥ % « BB N & &

equipment [EENEfE (21,281) (32,628)
Placement of fixed bank deposits FEEHRRITFER (257,530) (191,138)
Withdrawal of fixed bank deposits REUE BR1TTF K 257,530 125,758
Placement of restricted bank balances THZREIRITE R (709,165) (861,509)
Withdrawal of restricted bank balances TREUZ PR I ER1T 45 4 708,809 861,056
Investment income received from financial assets & A F{ETF AEBZHH

at fair value through profit or loss © A B I A IR E A 5 7,797 12,092
Interest received 2 S 5 6,000 4,918
Proceeds from disposals of property, plant and HEWE - KEREZBEBE

equipment FRIE 80 159
Acquisition of additional interests in subsidiaries W BB B A B B IME 2 35 = (108,057)
Net cash inflow on acquisition of subsidiaries W i — [ B A &)

WE RN F5E 35 6,132 =
Capital contribution from non-controlling interests ~ FE4E AR 25T & - 33
Deposits paid for acquisition of subsidiaries WEMNB AR EMike 35 - (7,700)
Net cash used in investing activities BRETEFMARESFEE (87,331) (107,724)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES METBAERERE
New bank loans raised EESNIMIBITER 181,917 68,248
Advances from immediate holding company HEERABNBR 177,000 =
Repayment to immediate holding company ERXTHEEZERAR (177,000) =
Advances from non-controlling shareholders of B 8 X B Y SR AR AR R B K

subsidiaries - 28,902
Repayments to non-controlling shareholders of EBRTHB AR

subsidiaries FEIE AR AR SR (75,100) (55,763)
Principal portion of lease payments HENFAEHS (54,918) (41,742)
Interest paid BB (20,249) (22,206)
Repayment of bank loans BRTRITER (283,355) (33,002)
Net cash flows used in financing activities MEEBFARSREFE (251,705) (55,563)
NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN CASH AND RERREEEY ORD)

CASH EQUIVALENTS 12 hnF AR (58,904) 40,908
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year RETNNRE LIRS EED 305,171 264,337
Cash and cash equivalents included in disposal A BERBIEHED

group classified as held for sale HEARNEE R

R FEY) 17 (3,520) -

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net bR P B B FE (143) (74)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ATEND OF YEAR, RERMNRERELE

REPRESENTING BANK BALANCES AND CASH BY) > BRITESRRIRS 22 242,604 305,171
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2.1

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

EREEBEREBRM AR QA Guangdong Kanghua Healthcare
Group Co., Ltd. (formerly known as Guangdong Kanghua Healthcare Co.,
Ltd.) (the "Company”) was established as a limited liability company in
the People’s Republic of China (the "PRC") and its overseas listed ordinary
shares (the "H Shares”) are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the "Hong Kong Stock Exchange”). In the opinion
of the directors of the Company, the Company’s immediate and ultimate
holding company is 3R 5 B % & &£ & A R 2~ & (Dongguan Kanghua
Investment Group Co., Ltd.) ("Kanghua Group”), a limited liability company
established in the PRC. The addresses of the registered office and principal
place of business in Hong Kong of the Company are disclosed in the
corporate information section to the annual report.

The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”)
are principally engaged in the provision of hospital services, provision of
rehabilitation and other healthcare services, provision of haemodialysis
service and provision of elderly healthcare services in the PRC. Details of the
Company's subsidiaries are set out in note 41 to the consolidated financial
statements.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with IFRS Accounting Standards, issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (the “IASB”) and include applicable disclosures required by
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited ("Listing Rules”) and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared on a historical cost
convention, except for certain financial assets that are measured at fair
value. These consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi
(RMB) and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand (RMB’000),
except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements
of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2024. A subsidiary is an
entity (including a structured entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by the
Company. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights
that give the Group the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the
investee).

21

e MR RMEE
For the Year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z-_WF+-_A=+—HILEFE

REAREBEHR

EREEERESERNHAR AT (A
BEREEBERMNERAR) (AR
ADEREARLME (THE]) KL
R—EBEREERREAERII LT E
B (THR]) EBEBERSMER
NAE (BB ERES - AR
RAEFEAR ARAMNERMNRKE
BARRRETREREEEBRA
Al ((EEER]  —MARHEKINE
REMERA) - ARFEMPRERLE
BEBERMAMURERFRI QA
B —H e

RABREWMB LR (Sl AEE])
TEARTEEEREERRS  EH]
BB R B 8BRS - R AR AT
AR Ko 4 it & IR R 7% o AR Y
BRRFBENGEMERRMEN

mREXE

ZEREMBHRRCRIEABEERES
RUAZER ((BREFTENZBE])
M B0 BIBR B 7 R E R B A A K
BREBBHERHMARRAES L
AR (T ETRAU) R ENEREE
REBRABGH ZHBERERE - &%
FUBHRREBELXNAERERE -
HETRAFEFENSREEDNR
Sh o ZREREMBHRRUAARE (TA
REDZ25 BBIHAEN B
BEOUBRAAZSENTRZETA
R&TTl -

A AREE

REMBHRREBBAKRERBEE_ZT
“WFEFA=+—HLEFEZHH
BR-MERARASAARERKNKEE
ERcER(BREEABEER) - A
SEAERZA2EREHRERM
Bz ZOHERERN L EEE
BEHZREHROES (IR TAS
BRAENTEREURBAEE
BN FE%EaR  AKEA
BRI -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RE R RMEE

For the Year ended 31 December 2024

BE—

2.1

T_MOFE+-_A=1T—RALFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)
Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights results
in control. When the Company has less than a majority of the voting or
similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and
circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an investee,
including:

(a)  the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the
investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
(c)  the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same
reporting period as the Company, using consistent accounting policies. The
results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which the Group
obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that such
control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group and to the non-
controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests
having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity,
income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between
members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three
elements of control described above. A change in the ownership interest
of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity
fransaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises the related
assets (including goodwill), liabilities and any non-controlling interest; and
recognises fair value of any investment retained and any resulting surplus
or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share of components previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss or
retained profits, as appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if
the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

1 82 Guangdong Kanghua Healthcare Group Co., Ltd. Annual Report 2024

21

im S B A
e AREEE)

R—RIEATHEES BRERTK
EHIE 2 HEE - WARAESE PRI
BUHRAZHREIALUEN - X
%fﬁ’é%’%ﬁﬁ%é%ﬁ%ﬂxéﬁﬁ%ﬁ’]
BAIBEER—UHBEERER
B

@ HEREHKEGEEFAEANEG
okegri

bl HMENLHMELNERN: &
0 AEENEEELEERERE

(= PN P S e
BHER - LRB—HETERER -
MEBAR XA AN RERSEHEL
BEGEAR URESEAKREE
PRI R IE -

BRLEMEEARSEEAD DEBR
AEBERRBHEE ANMIFE Hﬂ% E
BB E G IR s E L B R AR o
PIERERNARIREERAE - i
WA AXEERAEEKERFZ
MXESNRERETNEEARET
ZEH -

A EE RB RN LA =8
HEEEE B EHIEES - Al
AEECEFNTHESTHEREER
AT E - — BRI ZIEE
BB EELRKREITHENBLT
RS HANE -

i A 6% B 2k 5 3 — I B BB 2 B) 2 #2
B AEBUEEREREE (BB
B) BEREM IR © WHER
PrREEMRE 2 A FERBSETE
A EEZ B EAL - TN E
EERaERIAREDHBOE
MOBRBRIRE DN (HEE) -
HWAKREEERLERBEELAR
AR BRARIRE -



2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A ISR R M

For the Year ended 31 December 2024

HE-_Z-_NFE+-A=+—HILFE

22 B BRREEZEH

AEERAEERBREEREDT
5 BB 7 R B B SR BE AT A -

The Group has adopted the following amendments to IFRS Accounting
Standards for the first time for the current year's financial statements.

Amendments to IFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback

BB B 1 5 RIS 16 SRS FT A E#MEEmHEE &
Amendments to IAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current (the 2020
Amendments’)

Bl et ZRIE 1R IBET AR

Amendments to IAS 1

R ERIE1RIEFT A

Amendments to IAS 7 and IFRS 7

BRI E 79 R BRI EERE 7RIS T A

HEESEB B nE ([ —FE_FFE57])
Non-current Liabilities with Covenants (the 2022 Amendments”)
WERZERFEmBEE ([ —FE = —F &)

Supplier Finance Arrangements

HERHBEZE

The nature of the impact of the amendments to IFRS Accounting Standards
that are applicable to the Group are described below:

ERARAEENBEREYHHRSENS
FPEABRT AN ME RFEFRIAT

() The 2020 Amendments provide clarification and additional guidance (a)
on the assessment of right to defer settlement for at least twelve
months from reporting date for classification of liabilities as current or
non-current, which:

R _RHEEIARFGHEEE
BEERD+ —EAZRESN
BAADBABER/RBDNIERD
TERBB W IR ERIMES| B -

o specify that the classification of liabilities as current or non-
current should be based on rights that are in existence at the
end of the reporting period. Specifically, the classification should
not be affected by management intentions or expectations to
seftle the liability within 12 months.

o clarify that the settlement of a liability can be a transfer of cash,
goods or services, or the entity's own equity instruments to the
counterparty. If a liability has terms that could, at the option
of the counterparty, result in its settlement by the transfer of
the entity's own equity instruments, these terms do not affect
its classification as current or non-current only if the entity
recognises the option separately as an equity instrument
applying IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation.

AIABERENREHR
FENENDBRRE N
FRB-ABEME D
TEHREEENR T @A
NENBEZERNES

e -

BERBEENASARS
BFTEZERES BV
R NELBEEBREL
BA-fMBEARKR A
RRZHEFHEETEH
BEERERAAEST
HEN Z2EERERE
REFTERIE 2R R T
B 27 @5 HER R E
BAERT AR  ZFK
RTEEEDBERRE N
FERE °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RE R RMEE

For the Year ended 31 December 2024
HE-Z-_WF+-A=1T—HILEHFE

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES
(Continued)

(a)

(Continued)

For rights to defer settlement for at least twelve months from reporting
date which are conditional on the compliance with covenants, the
2022 Amendments specifically clarify that only covenants that an
entity is required to comply with on or before the end of the reporting
period affect the entity’s right to defer settlement of a liability for at
least twelve months after the reporting date, even if compliance with
the covenant is assessed only after the reporting date. The 2022
Amendments also specify that covenants with which an entity must
comply after the reporting date (i.e. future covenants) do not affect the
classification of a liability as current or non-current at the reporting
date. However, if the entity’s right to defer settlement of a liability is
subject to the entity complying with covenants within twelve months
after the reporting period, an entity discloses information that enables
users of financial statements to understand the risk of the liabilities
becoming repayable within twelve months after the reporting period.
This would include information about the covenants, the carrying
amount of related liabilities and facts and circumstances, if any,
that indicate that the entity may have difficulties complying with the
covenants.

In accordance with the fransition provision, the Group has applied
the new accounting policy to the classification of liability as current
or non-current retrospectively. The application of the amendments in
the current year had no material impact on the consolidated financial
statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE IFRS ACCOUNTING

STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and amendments of IFRS
Accounting Standards, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in
these financial statements. The Group intends to apply these new and
amendments of IFRS Accounting Standards, if applicable, when they

become effective.
Amendments to IFRS 9 and IFRS 7

Bl B B s 2 AN 95 %

Bl PR B 7 o 2E B 7 SRASFT AR
Amendments to IFRS 9 and IFRS 7
Bl B 22 AN ZE 95 %

BB B i S R E 7 5RABET AR
Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28

Bl B s i S ERI 1098 &
BIPR &5 2ERI S 28 SRS ET A

Amendments to I1AS 21

BB 5T 2ERIE 2157185 A

IFRS 18

B0 % B 765 i & 2E RI 2518 5%

e MR RMEE
For the Year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z-_WF+-_A=+—HILEFE

2.3 CRMERRER BT
HEEASTHEER
AEBETENZEMHERETEAT
51| 2 98 4R 1B () R A2 SR B 7 AT BIBR B 75
HBEERESFTENREBITAR - KK
BENZSHABERS B REENE
FHERI RAERT AL R A (@A)

Amendments fo the Classification and Measurement of Financial
Instruments?®
PHLAHBRAERANSETA

Contracts Referencing Nature-dependent Electricity’
BRIGFEEARCENREET 7.2 ER)’

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate
or Joint Venture’

REZHAB LT EAE LR FENEEL EHATE

Lack of Exchangeability?
= Al 2R
Presentation and Disclosure in Financial Statements?

BB#HZZ 25 RIFE!

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date o be determined. L RFE B Bk 2 & F R F = HE
AR

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1January 2025. g RZE-_hF—A—Hzx 2 %R
B0 4F [ BRFE AR A o

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1January 2026. 3 RZTEZRF—A—HBx2%RE
B0 4F [ AR AR A o

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2027. 4 RZTEZ+EF—A—Hzx2%RE
B0 4F [ AR AR A o

EREEEREERNARAR F1 2024
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR AR MR

For the Year ended 31 December 2024
HE-Z-_WF+-A=1T—HILEHFE

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE IFRS ACCOUNTING

STANDARDS (Continued)

Further information about those IFRS Accounting Standards that are
expected fo be applicable to the Group is described below.

() The amendments to IFRS 9 clarify the recognition and derecognition
for financial asset and financial liability and add an exception which
permits an entity to deem a financial liability to be discharged before
the seftlement date if it is settled in cash using an electronic payment

system if, and only if certain conditions are met.

The amendments also provide guidance on the assessment of
whether the contractual cash flows of a financial asset are consistent
with a basic lending arrangement. The amendments specify that
an entity should focus on what an entity is being compensated for
rather than the compensation amount. Contractual cash flows are
inconsistent with a basic lending arrangement if they are indexed to a
variable that is not a basic lending risk or cost. The amendments state
that, in some cases, a contingent feature may give rise to contractual
cash flows that are consistent with a basic lending arrangement both
before and after the change in contractual cash flows, but the nature
of the contingent event itself does not relate directly to changes in
basic lending risks and costs. Furthermore, the description of the term
“non-recourse” is enhanced and the characteristics of “contractually
linked instruments” are clarified in the amendments.

The disclosure requirements in IFRS 7 in respect of investments
in equity instruments designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income are amended. In particular, entities are
required to disclose the fair value gain or loss presented in other
comprehensive income during the period, showing separately those
related to investments derecognised during the reporting period and
those related to investments held at the end of the reporting period.
An entity is also required to disclose any transfers of the cumulative
gain or loss within equity related to the investments derecognised
during the reporting period. In addition, the amendments introduce
the requirements of qualitative and quantitative disclosure of
contractual terms that could affect the contractual cash flow based
on a contingent even not directly relating to basic lending risks and

cost.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE IFRS ACCOUNTING
STANDARDS (continued)

(a)

(b)

(Continued)

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2026, with early application permitted. The
application of the amendments is not expected to have significant
impact on the financial position and performance of the Group.

IFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in Financial Statements, which
sets out requirements on presentation and disclosures in financial
statements, will replace IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements.
This new IFRS Accounting Standard, while carrying forward many of
the requirements in IAS 1, infroduces new requirements to present
specified categories and defined subtotals in the statement of profit
or loss; provide disclosures on management-defined performance
measures in the notes to the financial statements and improve
aggregation and disaggregation of information to be disclosed in the
financial statements. In addition, some IAS 1 paragraphs have been
moved to IAS 8 and IFRS 7. Minor amendments to I1AS 7 Statement of
Cash Flows and IAS 33 Earnings per Share are also made.

IFRS 18, and amendments to other standards, will be effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2027, with early
application permitted. The application of the new standard is
expected to affect the presentation of the statement of profit or loss
and disclosures in the future financial statements. The Group is in the
process of assessing the detailed impact of IFRS 18 on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.

e ISR AR M RE

For the Year ended 31 December 2024
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RE R RMEE

For the Year ended 31 December 2024
HE-Z-_WF+-A=1T—HILEHFE

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 24 EBRESFTHER

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The
consideration transferred in a business combination shall be measured
at acquisition date fair value, which shall be calculated as the sum of the
acquisition-date fair values of the assets transferred by the Group, the
liabilities assumed by the acquirer to the former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by the acquirer in exchange for control of
the acquiree. For each business combination, the Group elects whether to
measure the non-controlling inferests in the acquiree at fair value or at the
proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. Acquisition-
related costs are expensed as incurred and included in administrative
expenses.

The Group determines that it has acquired a business when the acquired
setf of activities and assets include an input and a substantive process that
together significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets
and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and designation
in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances and
pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the separation
of embedded derivatives in host contracts by the acquiree.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost (being the excess of the aggregate
of the consideration transferred and the amount recognised for non-
controlling interests and any fair value of the Group’s previous interest held
over the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the fair
value of the net assets acquired is in excess of the aggregate consideration
transferred, the Group re-assesses whether it has correctly identified
all of the assets acquired and all of the liabilities assumed and reviews
the procedures used to measure the amounts fo be recognised at the
acquisition date. If the reassessment still results in an excess of the fair
value of net assets acquired over the aggregate consideration transferred,
then the gain on bargain purchase is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated
impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for impairment annually or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
value may be impaired. The Group performs its annual impairment test
of goodwill as at 31 December. For the purpose of impairment testing,
goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date,
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units (“CGUs"), or groups
of CGUs, that are expected to benefit from the combination, irrespective
of whether other assets or liabilities of the acquiree are assigned to those
units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of the
CGU (group of CGUs) to which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable
amount of the CGU (group of CGUs) is less than the carrying amount, an
impairment loss is recognised. An impairment loss recognised for goodwiill
is not reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a CGU (or group of CGUs) and part
of the operation within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated
with the operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount of
the operation when determining the gain or loss on disposal. Goodwill
disposed of in these circumstances is measured based on the relative
values of the operation disposed of and the portion of the CGU retained.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RE R RMEE

For the Year ended 31 December 2024
HE-Z-_WF+-A=1T—HILEHFE

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 24 EREFTTHERE)

Fair value measurement

The Group measures certain of its financial assets at fair value at the end
of each reporting period. Fair value is the price that would be received to
sell an asset or paid fo transfer a liability in an orderly fransaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement
is based on the presumption that the fransaction to sell the asset or transfer
the liability takes place either in the principal market for the asset or liability,
or in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market
for the asset or liability. The principal or the most advantageous market
must be accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is
measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when
pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their
economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a
market participant's ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset
in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that
would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair
value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the
use of unobservable inputs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Fair value measurement (Continved)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in
the consolidated financial statements are categorised within the fair value
hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

o Level 1 - based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities

o Level 2 — based on the valuation techniques for which the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement is observable,
either directly or indirectly

o Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the consolidated financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing
categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement as a whole) af the end of each reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual impairment
testing for an asset is required (other than inventories, deferred tax assets,
financial assets and a disposal group classified as held for sale), the asset's
recoverable amount is estimated. An asset's recoverable amount is the
higher of the asset's or CGU's value in use and its fair value less costs of
disposal, and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does
not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from
other assets or groups of assets, in which case the recoverable amount
is determined for the CGU to which the asset belongs. In testing a CGU
for impairment, a portion of the carrying amount of a corporate asset is
allocated to an individual CGU if it can be allocated on a reasonable and
consistent basis or, otherwise, to the smallest group of CGUs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RE R RMEE

For the Year ended 31 December 2024
HE-Z-_WF+-A=1T—HILEHFE

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 24 EREFTTHERE)

Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an asset
exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged
to profit or loss in the period in which it arises in those expense categories
consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to whether
there is an indication that previously recognised impairment losses may
no longer exist or may have decreased. If such an indication exists, the
recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss
of an asset other than goodwiill is reversed only if there has been a change
in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of that asset,
but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that would have
been determined (net of any depreciation) had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment
loss is credited to profit or loss in the period in which it arises.

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a)  the party is a person or a close member of that person’s family and
that person
(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(il has significant influence over the Group; or

[iii)  is a member of the key management personnel of the Group
or of a parent of the Group;

or
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2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR AR M RE

For the Year ended 31 December 2024
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24 EREFTTHERE)

Related parties (Continued) RaHE T ()
(b}  the party is an entity where any of the following conditions applies: bl BEFAEBER/AE TIEM—
TR -
i) the entity and the Group are members of the same group; il ZEBEASEBR —%
EHKE QT
il one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or i), —ERBAS—HEE(HE—
of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the other entity); EBOEAR HMBRF
ZRARMBAT) B E R
AIEERE
il the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same third i) ZEBEAEHRR %
party; =HHMEEDRE:
(iv)  one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entfity vy —EBAR—FE=FHEEH
is an associate of the third entity; aBERE ME—EBA
A—F=—HEBHNBER
A
[v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of v ZEBARAEEFHELR
employees of either the Group or an entity related to the Group; SEfHEBCERBNES
M 2 7R 7 E’\J%”Eﬁgﬂi?éﬁﬂﬁ
2l
(vl the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified Vil ZEEBRBBQIEBEMIALTE
in (al; i Sl HL RIHE I
(vil o person identified in (allil has significant influence over the viil () EEPAIIATHZE

entity or is a member of the key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part, (viii)
provides key management personnel services to the Group or
to the parent of the Group.

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in progress, are
stated af cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.
When an item of property, plant and equipment is classified as held for
sale or when it is part of disposal group classified as held for sale, it is not
depreciated and is accounted for in accordance with IFRS 5 Non-current
Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations ("IFRS 5°), as further
explained in the accounting policy for “Non-current assets and disposal
group held for sale”. The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
comprises its purchase price and any directly aftributable costs of bringing
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RE R RMEE

For the Year ended 31 December 2024
HE-Z-_WF+-A=1T—HILEHFE

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 24 EREFTTHERE)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation (Confinued)

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment have
been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is normally
charged to profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In situations
where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a
major inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as a
replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant and equipment
are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group recognises such
parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them
accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the cost of
each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual value over its
estimated useful life. The estimated useful life of each asset is as follows:

WE - BB RRERTE (&)

ROE - -BEEEREBERBRAEFR
FrolBe it nEERREES
BERZEXHELHHEBRaETH
B - B HERIEE AETBREN
AXEREEREEMNKEETER
LA ME - BERZEAT
HEE G AIANKEERAZIESWE
TR 55 B 5 M s M Bl BB 5 7 2 P 4F 8
MEBEERBRME L ELITE -

WEDAEGERE G ERFEH
MEEEME  BEEREBENKAE
HRHEEFE - RREENMGEA
ERFMIT

Buildings Over the shorter of the lease terms of the related land or 50 years
’F RARHIRAE NS0 F (UREE BE)

Leasehold improvements 10-20 years

HERE 0= 204

Medical equipment 5-10 years

BERE 5F10F

Office equipment 5-10 years

N 5Z104F

Motor vehicles 5years

i 5%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different
useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a reasonable basis among
the parts and each part is depreciated separately. Residual values,
useful lives and the depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at least at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant part
initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss
on disposal or retirement recognised in profit or loss in the year the asset
is derecognised is the difference between the net sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the relevant asset.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation (Continued)

Construction in progress is stated at cost less any impairment losses, and
is not depreciated. It is reclassified to the appropriate category of property,
plant and equipment when completed and ready for use.

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains,
a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right
to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all
leases, except for short-term leases. The Group recognises lease liabilities
to make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to
use the underlying assets.

(a)  Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement date of the
lease (that is the date the underlying asset is available for use). Right-
of-use assets are measured at cost, less accumulated depreciation
and any accumulated impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets
includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs
incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement
date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are
depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term
and the estimated useful lives of the assets, as follows:

Leasehold lands

HE T 1274 B
Leased properties Over the lease term
HEWE 1R 1H 5

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group by the end of
the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a purchase option,
depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset.

Over the lease term
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR AR MR

For the Year ended 31 December 2024
HE-Z-_WF+-A=1T—HILEHFE

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Leases (Continued)
Group as a lessee (Confinued)

(b)  Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement date of the
lease at the present value of lease payments to be made over the
lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including
in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable,
variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and
amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The
lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option
reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and payments of
penalties for termination of a lease, if the lease term reflects the
Group exercising the option fo terminate the lease. The variable lease
payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised
as an expense in the period in which the event or condition that

triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group
uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement
date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of lease
liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced
for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of
lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in
the lease term, a change in the lease payments (e.g., changes to
future lease payments resulting from a change in an index or rate) or
a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying

asset.

(c/)  Short-term leases

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its
short-term leases of leased properties (i.e., those leases that have a
lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and
do not contain a purchase option). Lease payments on short-term
leases are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over

the lease term.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Leases (Continued)
Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease inception (or when
there is a lease modification) each of its leases as either an operating lease
or afinance lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are classified as operating
leases. When a contract contains lease and non-lease components, the
Group allocates the consideration in the contract to each component on a
relative stand-alone selling price basis. Rental income is accounted for on a
straight-line basis over the lease terms and is included in revenue in profit
or loss due fo its operating nature. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating
and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of
the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as
rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in
which they are earned.

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental
to ownership of an underlying asset to the lessee are accounted for as
finance leases.

Sale and leaseback transactions

The Group applies the requirements of IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers ("IFRS 15”) to assess whether sale and leaseback fransaction
constitutes a sale by the Group. For a transfer that does not satisfy the
requirements as a sale, the Group as a seller-lessee accounts for the
transfer proceeds as bank loans within the scope of IFRS 9 financial
Instruments ("IFRS 9).

Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement
Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently

measured at amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive
income, and fair value through profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RE R RMEE

For the Year ended 31 December 2024
HE-Z-_WF+-A=1T—HILEHFE

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 24 EREFTTHERE)

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)
Initial recognition and measurement (Continued)

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the
financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics and the Group’s
business model for managing them. With the exception of accounts
receivable that do not contain a significant financing component or for
which the Group has applied the practical expedient of not adjusting the
effect of a significant financing component, the Group initially measures
a financial asset at its fair value plus in the case of a financial asset not
at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Accounts receivable
that do not contain a significant financing component or for which the
Group has applied the practical expedient are measured at the transaction
price determined under IFRS 15 in accordance with the policies set out for
“Revenue recognition” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised
cost or fair value through other comprehensive income, it needs to give rise
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and inferest ("SPPI") on
the principal amount outstanding. Financial assets with cash flows that are
not SPPI are classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss,
irrespective of the business model.

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets refers to how it
manages its financial assets in order to generate cash flows. The business
model determines whether cash flows will result from collecting contractual
cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both. Financial assets classified
and measured at amortised cost are held within a business model with the
objective to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows,
while financial assets classified and measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income are held within a business model with the objective
of both holding to collect contractual cash flows and selling. Financial
assets which are not held within the aforementioned business models are
classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the period generally established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.

1 98 Guangdong Kanghua Healthcare Group Co., Ltd. Annual Report 2024

RELEMECREE (&)
NP RN E (&)

MPERABTEMEENBIORR B
BEMNANRERBE URAKH
ERTHEENEHEN RIS
SEARBEERE D B YRR A
SECEREREE N ETERESE
REVEERER D R & m RUBRF D -
REBZNBRERFEZMRZEA
(HE@MEEY IR FEFARR)
AESREE - UNFESEAREM
A ERERAAEECEABE
BRIEEE AN BURKIZRR T X [
SFER | T EBRRIBEBE R s &
AR RBENRZEE -

TREEFECHSREEREER
ERAEEREHNE (ER/EELS
RAREBEARNSNE]) - 77 A 1R EHK
AYEBRAFEFARMEEEEND
BRAE - RAAYHEREELAER
RAEBARSFNEZRERENEHE
ERNVFEAABGEDENGE B
TimBAERBERA -

AEEEEEMEENEBHEAEAR
SEMMEEESRMEENEER S
mME EBRABERERESTH
WBREHNRERE HESTHEEN
B At TSl AR o B SN D B
it BMEREEIN —BAXHEN
TUREZEFEMEENARDAHNR
TRERBIEMIEAR  MREBEEAF
Bt AEtbzEBRaE BRAENS
BEEAR —BEHENXHAFIER
BMENRERERFBIEFLESBEM
FA YN ELAXBRATRHEN
TREERAHEFTABRRNBLE -

FBER —RIZARPIKTIHEH RED
HRAXNEENSREENEE N
HENR S H (AR EEAEREE X
HEZEEEH)#R -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)
Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using the
effective interest method and are subject to impairment. Gains and losses
are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised, modified or
impaired.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the
statement of financial position at fair value with net changes in fair value
recognised in profit or loss.

This category includes equity investments which the Group had not
irrevocably elected to classify at fair value through other comprehensive
income. Dividends on the equity investments are also recognised as other
income in profit or loss when the right of payment has been established.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of
a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed
from the Group’s consolidated statement of financial position) when:

o the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

o the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the
asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows
in full without material delay to a third party under a “pass-through”
arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset, but has transferred control of the asset.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RE R RMEE

For the Year ended 31 December 2024
HE-Z-_WF+-A=1T—HILEHFE

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 24 EREFTTHERE)

Derecognition of financial assets (Continved)

When the Group has fransferred its rights to receive cash flows from an
asset or has entfered info a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates fif,
and to what extent, it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership
of the asset. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all
of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset,
the Group continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of
its continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises an
associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are
measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group
has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount
of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Group
could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses (“ECLs”) for alll
debt instruments not held at fair value through profit or loss. ECLs are based
on the difference between the contractual cash flows due in accordance
with the contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive,
discounted at an approximation of the original effective interest rate. The
expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of collateral held
or other credit enhancements that are integral fo the contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which there
has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from default events that
are possible within the next 12 months (12-month ECLs). For those credit
exposures for which there has been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses
expected over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing
of the default (lifetime ECLs).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continved)
General approach (Continued)

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit risk on a
financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition.
When making the assessment, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting date with the risk
of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial
recognition and considers reasonable and supportable information that
is available without undue cost or effort, including historical and forward-
looking information. The Group considers that there has been a significant
increase in credit risk when contractual payments are more than 30 days
past due.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual
payments are 90 days past due. However, in certain cases, the Group may
also consider a financial asset to be in default when internal or external
information indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive the outstanding
contractual amounts in full before taking into account any credit
enhancements held by the Group. A financial asset is written off when there
is no reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.

Debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive income and
financial assets at amortised cost are subject to impairment under the
general approach and they are classified within the following stages for
measurement of ECLs except for accounts receivable and contract assets
which apply the simplified approach as detailed below.

Stage 1-  Financial instruments for which credit risk has not increased
significantly since initial recognition and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to 12-month ECLs

Stage 2— Financial instruments for which credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition but that are not credit-
impaired financial assets and for which the loss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs

Stage 3 — Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the reporting date
(but that are not purchased or originated credit-impaired) and
for which the loss allowance is measured at an amount equal
to lifetime ECLs
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RE R RMEE

For the Year ended 31 December 2024
HE-Z-_WF+-A=1T—HILEHFE

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 24 EREFTTHERE)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Simplified approach

For accounts receivable that do not contain a significant financing
component or when the Group applies the practical expedient of not
adjusting the effect of a significant financing component, the Group applies
the simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Under the simplified approach,
the Group does not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a
loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Group
has established a ECL model that is based on the probability of default,
loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and
the exposure at default adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the
debtors and the economic environment.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as loans and
borrowings, or payables, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of
loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction
costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include accounts and other payables,
amount due to the non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary, bank loans
and lease liabilities.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (accounts and other payables and
borrowings/

After initial recognition, accounts and other payables and interest-bearing
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest rate method unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as
through the effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the
effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is included in
finance costs in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial liabilities (Continued)
Financial guarantee confracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those contracts
that require a payment to be made to reimburse the holder for a loss it
incurs because the specified debtor fails to make a payment when due
in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. A financial guarantee
contract is recognised initially as a liability at its fair value, adjusted for
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the
guarantee. Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group measures the
financial guarantee contracts at the higher of: (i) the ECL allowance
determined in accordance with the policy as set out in “Impairment
of financial assets”; and (i) the amount initially recognised less, when
appropriate, the cumulative amount of income recognised.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is
discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated
as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new
liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in
profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is
reported in the consolidated statement of financial position if there is a
currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there
is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost of
inventories are determined on a first-in, first-out basis. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price for inventories less costs necessary to
make the sale.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RE R RMEE

For the Year ended 31 December 2024
HE-Z-_WF+-A=1T—HILEHFE

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 24 EREFTTHERE)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks, and
short-term highly liquid deposits with a maturity of generally within three
months that are readily convertible info known amounts of cash, subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value held for the purpose of meeting
short-term cash commitments.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks and short-term deposits
as defined above, less bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand
and form an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or constructive)
has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable that a future outflow
of resources will be required to settle the obligation, provided that a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised for a
provision is the present value at the end of the reporting period of the future
expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation. The increase
in the discounted present value amount arising from the passage of time is
included in finance costs in profit or loss.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the
consideration required fo settle the present obligation at the end of
the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash
flows estimated to seftle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the
present value of those cash flows (where the effect of the time value of
money is material).

Income tax
Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating to

items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss,
either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured af the amount expected to
be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and
tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period, taking into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the end of the reporting period between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences,
except:

° when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of
goodwill or an asset or liability in a fransaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss and does not give rise to
equal taxable and deductible temporary differences; and

° in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, when the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences,
and the carryforward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses.
Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax
losses can be utilised, except:

° when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary
differences arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability
in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time
of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss and does not give rise to equal taxable and deductible
temporary differences; and

. in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax assets are only recognised
to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will
reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RE R RMEE

For the Year ended 31 December 2024
HE-Z-_WF+-A=1T—HILEHFE

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 24 EREFTTHERE)

Income tax (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each
reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred
tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed
at the end of each reporting period and are recognised to the extent that it
has become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow
all or part of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the liability
is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and only if the
Group has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets and
current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the
same taxable entity or different taxable entities which intend either to settle
current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and
seftle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in which significant
amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or
recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there is
reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all attaching
conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an expense
item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis over the periods that
the costs, for which it is intended fo compensate, are expensed.

Revenue recognition
Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of
goods or services is transferred to the customers at an amount that reflects
the consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for
those goods or services.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount, the
amount of consideration is estimated to which the Group will be entitled
in exchange for fransferring the goods or services to the customer. The
variable consideration is estimated at contract inception and constrained
until it is highly probable that a significant revenue reversal in the amount
of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when the associated
uncertainty with the variable consideration is subsequently resolved.

Revenue from the provision of hospital services, provision of rehabilitation
and other healthcare services, provision of haemodialysis services,
provision of elderly healthcare services, clinical trial and related income
and local health services income are recognised over time and measured
under the output method, because the customer simultaneously receives
and consumes the benefits provided by the Group. The progress tfowards
complete satisfaction of a performance obligation is measured based on
the output method, which is to recognise revenue on the basis of direct
measurements of the value of the goods or services transferred to the
customer to date relative to the remaining goods or services promised
under the contract, that best depicts the Group’s performance in transferring
control of goods or services.

Revenue from other sources

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis over the lease
terms.

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the effective interest
method by applying the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future
cash receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter
period, when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’ right to receive
payment has been established, it is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of the
dividend can be measured reliably.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RE R RMEE

For the Year ended 31 December 2024
HE-Z-_WF+-A=1T—HILEHFE

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 24 EREFTTHERE)

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received or a payment
is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer before the Group transfers the
related goods or services. Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue
when the Group performs under the contract (i.e., transfers control of the
related goods or services to the customer).

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation of such
borrowing costs ceases when the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period
in which they are incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other
costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Employee benefits

Pension scheme

The employees of the Group are required to participate in a central
pension scheme operated by the local municipal government. The Group
is required to contribute a certain percentage of their payroll costs to the
central pension scheme. The contributions are charged to profit or loss as
they become payable in accordance with the rules of the central pension
scheme.

The Group’s subsidiary in Hong Kong operates a defined contribution MPF
Scheme under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for all
of its employees. Contributions are made based on a percentage of the
employees’ basic salaries and are charged to profit or loss as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of
the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the subsidiary in an
independently administered fund. The subsidiary’s employer contributions
vest fully with the employees when contributed info the MPF Scheme.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Employee benefits (Continued)
Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the undiscounted amount
of the benefits expected to be paid as and when employees rendered the
services. All short-term employee benefits are recognised as an expense
unless another IFRS requires or permits the inclusion of the benefit in the
cost of an asset.

Foreign currencies

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi
("RMB”) , which is the Company’s functional currency. Each entity in the
Group determines its own functional currency and items included in the
financial statements of each entity are measured using that functional
currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by the entities in the
Group are initially recorded using their respective functional currency rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency
rates of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period. Differences
arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in
profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of
the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when
the fair value is determined. The gain or loss arising on translation of non-
monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition
of the gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation
difference on the item whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in
other comprehensive income or profit or loss is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or profit or loss, respectively).

In determining the spot exchange rate to use on initial recognition of
the related asset, expense or income (or part of it} on the derecognition
of a non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability relating to advance
consideration, the date of the transaction is the date on which the Group
initially recognises the non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising
from the advance consideration. If there are multiple payments or receipts
in advance, the Group determines the transaction date for each payment
or receipt of advance consideration.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RE R RMEE

For the Year ended 31 December 2024
HE-Z-_WF+-A=1T—HILEHFE

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 24 EREFTTHERE)

Non-current assets and disposal groups held for sale

Non-current assets (and disposal groups) are classified as held for sale
if their carrying amount will be recovered principally through a sale
transaction rather than through continuing use. This condition is regarded
as met only when the asset (or disposal group) is available for immediate
sale in its present condition subject only to terms that are usual and
customary for sales of such asset (or disposal group) and its sale is highly
probable. Management must be committed to the sale, which should be
expected to qualify for recognition as a completed sale within one year
from the date of classification.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving loss of control of a
subsidiary, all of the assets and liabilities of that subsidiary are classified
as held for sale when the criteria described above are met, regardless
of whether the Group will retain a non-controlling interest in the relevant
subsidiary after the sale.

Non-current assets (and disposal groups) classified as held for sale are
measured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less costs to
sell, except for financial assets within the scope of IFRS 9 and deferred tax
assetfs which continue to be measured in accordance with the accounting
policies as set out in respective sections.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATIONS

The preparation of the Group’s consolidated financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and
their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities.
Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in
outcomes that could require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below.

Impairment of goodwiill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least on an annual
basis. This requires an estimation of the value in use of the CGUs to which
the goodwill is allocated. Estimating the value in use requires the Group to
make an estimate of the expected future cash flows from the CGUs and
also to choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present
value of those cash flows. The carrying amount of goodwill at 31 December
2024 was RMB143,325,000 (2023: RMB29,101,000). Further details are set
outin note 16.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of impairment for all
property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets at the end of each
reporting period. Property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets
with finite useful lives are tested for impairment when there are indicators
that the carrying amounts may not be recoverable. An impairment exists
when the carrying value of an asset or a CGU exceeds its recoverable
amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its
value in use. The carrying amounts of non-financial assets with finite useful
lives are disclosed in notes 14 and 15.

3.

e MR RMEE
For the Year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z-_WF+-_A=+—HILEFE

E RS HE R G

RAEAKENGRAMBEHRRE B2
BREFLHEFEM2HMBA -
EERAEBENSENEREN 2 WEN
REABEREAHE - Bt RKREK -
BHZEBRREGFAOTHBAREA
EERARAUTFEEERREAN
REEFLERNHE -

CREASES

BRERARZEIZBREAREMRES
HRE/RT—RBAMRFEEERBE
FREEWREAFABRRER 2 X EMF
THEERZBRLAT

B RE

AEBELEBFET—ABERSHE
ERE BErEZ2s4REALTED
fmEyReEESMN 2 FREEE
Bt AEEMEREEZGFA
HRBEReELEEMN ZTEHARKRS
MEBETHE WEERE ZMIAX
Ut EZEReRE2RE- R =&
—WHFF+ A=+ B ZEERAEE
B ANREE143,32500070 (ZE - =4 :
AR #29101,0007T) < # — FH 15
R mERMIFE16

ME - BERRBAREREEERE

AEBRESREBRTFEMBEME -
BMEREEARFEREEEESTM
BEDS - RNENRERKEER
RN BN EHAFERAFTHERNY
¥ BEMREBEUNGFEREEELETT
BERA - WEESXBRSCEESEMD
BREERAE KO ¢ (EAFE
BHEKAHEFEAEENRSE)
B BERE -AIEAFHERIE
SREEMNBRMERM 4TS HEE -

EREEEREERNARAR F1 2024

211



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RE R RMEE

For the Year ended 31 December 2024
HE-Z-_WF+-A=1T—HILEHFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATIONS
(Continued)

)

EREHE R #)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued) hEt T~ EERAE (&)
Provision for medical dispute claims ERADRERE

The Group may be subject to legal proceedings and claims that arise in
the ordinary course of business, which primarily include medical dispute
claims brought by the former patients. Provision for medical dispute claims
is made based on the status of potential and active claims outstanding
at the end of each year, and taking into consideration the assessment
and analysis of external experts and the total claim exposure. Where it
is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required, or
the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events
and whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the Group. As at 31 December 2024, the Group had contingent
liabilities arising from medical disputes of RMB14,292,000 (2023:
RMB13,949,000).

The situation is closely monitored by the directors of the Company and
provision will be made as appropriate. Where the final actual claims are
greater than expected, a material dispute claims expense may arise,
which would be recognised in profit or loss for the period in which such a
claim takes place. The provision for certain medical dispute claims at 31
December 2024 was RMB2,885,000 (2023: RMB1,222,000). Further details
are set out in note 23.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATIONS
(Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Estimated allowance for inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The
Group regularly reviews its inventory levels in order to identify slow-moving
and obsolete inventories. When the Group identifies items of inventories
which have a net realisable value that is lower than its carrying amount, the
Group estimates the amount of write-down of inventories as allowance for
inventories. If the net realisable value of inventories of the Group becomes
lower than its carrying amount subsequently, additional allowance may
be required. The carrying amount of inventories at 31 December 2024 was
approximately RMB66,441,000 (2023: RMB71,975,000).

Provision for ECL for accounts and other receivables

The Group collectively assesses ECLs for accounts and other receivables,
except for certain credit-impaired debtors which are assessed for
ECLs individually. The measurement of ECL under IFRS 9 for the Group’s
accounts and other receivables requires judgement on, in particular, the
estimation of the amount and timing of future cash flows when determining
impairment losses and the assessment of any significant increase in
credit risk. These estimates are driven by a number of factors, where
the change of the factors which result in different levels of allowances, a
lower/higher impairment loss may arise. The Group uses an assessment
of both the current and forecast general economic conditions to estimate
the probability of default, the loss given default and the impact on the
forward-looking information. At the end of each reporting period, the
Group assesses whether there has been a significant increase in credit
risk for exposures since initial recognition by comparing the risk of default
occurring over the expected life between the reporting date and the date
of initial recognition. The Group considers reasonable, supportable and
available information that is relevant and available without undue cost or
effort for this purpose. This includes quantitative and qualitative information
and also forward-looking analysis.

The information about the ECLs on the Group’s accounts and other
receivables is set out in note 39(iii).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR AR MR

For the Year ended 31 December 2024
HE-Z-_WF+-A=1T—HILEHFE

4.  OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the executive directors of the Company, being the
chief operating decision maker (the “CODM"), for the purposes of resource
allocation and assessment of segment performance focuses on the types
of services provided.

During the year, the Group commenced the business engaging in provision
of haemodialysis services along with the acquisition of Dongguan Kanghua
Haemodialysis Healthcare Investment Management Co., Ltd. ("Kanghua
Haemodialysis”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Kanghua
Haemodialysis Group”) (as detailed in note 35(i)), and it is considered as a
new operating and reportable segment by the CODM.

For management purposes, the Group is organised into business units
based on their products and services and has four (2023: three) reportable
operating segments as follows:

(a)  Hospital services: Provision of hospital services including:
(i) inpatient healthcare services which
generally refer to the treatment of patients
who are hospitalised overnight or for an
indeterminate period of time; (i) outpatient
healthcare services generally refer to the
treatment of patients who are hospitalised
for less than 24 hours; and (iii) physical
examination services which generally refer
to the clinical examination of individuals
for signs of diseases and health advisory

services.
(b)  Rehabilitation and Provision of rehabilitation services generally
other healthcare refers to the provision of special care
services: services to patients with permanent or

long-term physical or mental disabilities.
Other healthcare services include elderly
healthcare and training services for the

disabled.
() Haemodialysis Provision of haemodialysis services generally
services: refers to treatments that replicate kidney’'s

function to remove wastes in blood for
patients with kidney disease or failure.

(d)  Elderly healthcare Provision of elderly healthcare services,
services: including assisted living, adult daycare, long-
term care, residential care and hospice care

to the aged patients.

These operating segments also represent the Group’s reportable segments.
No operating segments identified by the CODM have been aggregated in
arriving at the reportable segments of the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Segment revenues and results

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results by operating

segments:

Year ended 31 December 2024

Rehabilitation

e MR RMEE
For the Year ended 31 December 2024
HEZZT-_WNF+-_A=+—HIEFE

and other
healthcare Elderly
Hospital services  Haemodialysis healthcare
services BEREM services services Total
BRRH% BERY NRENRE ZFEBERK @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBF ARBT R ARET R ARETR ARBTR
Segment revenue 2 Bz
External sales SMEBIHE 1,838,532 128,449 75,770 12,919 2,055,670
Segment profit B85 F 288,747 26,672 1,442 5,002 321,873
Other income H A 53,521
Other expenses, gains and Hif% e kBE
losses, net FEE (7,333)
Net provision for impairment EHREEEEER
losses under the expected credit B T Z R EE1E
loss model BEFE (4,277)
Administrative expenses THAX (277,102)
Finance costs BMERK (23,627)
Profit before taxation B 75t B 7 63,055

EREEEREERNARAR F1 2024

215



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RE R RMEE

For the Year ended 31 December 2024
BHE-ZT-WNF+-_A=1+—HBLFE

4.  OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 4., REHHFER (&)
Segment revenues and results (Continued) D EW R EE (E)
Year ended 31 December 2023 B2 -_=%#+-_A=+—H
1EFE

Rehabilitation

and other
healthcare Elderly
Hospital services healthcare
senvices REREM services Tofal
Bl R BERB ZERERY st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARBTFT
Segment revenue ik 16
External sales shEBsHE 1,887,888 141,243 12,727 2,041,858
Segment profit syl 333,073 26,819 4,478 364,370
Other income Hip A 46,279
Other expenses, gains and HioRY - ks RES
losses, net FE 6)
Net provision for impairment BHREEBEER
losses under the expected credit 18 [ 2 R E &
loss model BEEE (2,768)
Administrative expenses THAX (242,391)
Finance costs BEKAK 12,055)
Profit before taxation PRI ATE M 153,429
There were no inter-segment sales during both years. R EFE I E D S EHEE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same as
the Group’s accounting policies described in note 2.4. Segment profit
represents the profit earned by each segment without allocation of other
income, other expenses, gains and losses, net, net provision for impairment
losses under the expected credit loss model, administrative expenses and
finance costs. This is the information reported to the CODM for the purposes
of resource allocation and performance assessment.

Except as disclosed above, no other amounts are regularly provided to the
CODM of the Group and therefore, no further analysis is presented.

Segment assets and liabilities

The CODM makes decisions according to the operating results of each
segment. No analysis of segment assets and segment liabilities is
presented as the CODM does not regularly review such information for the
purposes of resources allocation and performance assessment. Therefore,
only segment revenue and segment results are presented.

Geographical information and information about major customers

All revenues are generated in the PRC where almost all of the non-current
assets of the Group are located. The Group has a highly diversified patient
portfolio. No single patient contributed over 10% to the Group’s total revenue
during both years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RE R RMEE

For the Year ended 31 December 2024
BHE-ZT-WNF+-_A=1+—HBLFE

5. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME 5. W&k EAMKA
Revenue from contracts with customers ZE&4MER
An analysis of revenue is as follows: WD mT :
o)  Disaggregated revenue information @ DFHEER
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue from contracts AT B2 £ BIR & &5 22 5 5
with external customers by operating segments: INERE B S AR ZE DT -
Year ended 31 December 2024 BE_ZE_MmWE+=-H=+—H
IEFE
Rehabilitation
and other
healthcare Elderly
Hospital services Haemodialysis healthcare
services BEREM services services Total
BRR% BRRK RSB R A ZEBRERE mit
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETR ARBTR ARETR ARETR ARETR

Types of goods or services ERBREER
Hospital services: Bl iR -
- Inpatient healthcare services  — R BB IR 1,086,353 - - - 1,086,353
- Quipatient heathcare senvices  —FIZ EBR7% 644,936 - - - 644,936
—Physical examinafion senvices  — BRI 107,243 = = - 107,243
1,838,532 - - - 1,838,532
Rehabilitation and other healthcare 518 Bt E th E /&
services: R -
- Rehabilitation hospital and -REBR LA
ofher healthcare services BERK - 54,350 - - 54,350
—Rehabilitafion centre services and  —E 18 & 0 IR 2
other services At iR - 74,099 - - 74,099
- 128,449 - - 128,449
Haemodialysis services MARET R - = 75770 = 75,770
Elderly healthcare services ZEBRBRY - - = 12,919 12,919
1,838,532 128,449 75,770 12,919 2,055,670
Timing of revenue recognifon I BB E
Services fransferred overfime BEB RN R 1,838,532 128,449 75,770 12,919 2,055,670
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A HRRMEE

For the Year ended 31 December 2024
BE-_Z-_ME+-_A=+—BIFE

Wz R AU A ()

BEFAK W (&)

5. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME (Continued) 5.
Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

DK E R ()

(a)  Disaggregated revenue information (Continued) (a)

Year ended 31 December 2023

HE-_Z-_=-F+-A=+—H

LLEFE
Rehabilitation
and other
healthcare Elderly
Hospital services healthcare
senvices REREM senvices Total
L EERE EERERE Bt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR
Types of goods or services EmREER
Hospital services: Bl -
- Inpatient healthcare services R BER% 1,079,614 - - 1,079,614
- Outpatient healthcare services -FYBER% 655,978 - - 655,978
—Physical examination services Bk 152,296 - - 152,296
1,887,888 - - 1,887,888
Rehabilitation and other healthcare 18 R £ th &
services: TR -
- Rehabilitation hospital and -REBRRAM
other healthcare services BERE - 73,868 - 73,868
- Rehabilitation centre senvicesand ~ —BE{E S L IRH &2
other services E 1t R - 67,375 - 67,375
- 141,243 - 141,243
Elderly healthcare services ZERERE - - 12,727 12,727
1,887,888 141,243 12,727 2,041,858
Timing of revenue recognition W TR R
Services fransferred overfime EEBRBESR 1,887,888 141,243 12,727 2,041,858

EREEEREERNARAR F1 2024



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R RMEE
For the Year ended 31 December 2024
BHE-ZT-WNF+-_A=1+—HBLFE

5. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME (Continued) Wi & MW A (&
Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued) BEFREHWER (&)
(o)  Disaggregated revenue information (Continued) @ HFEWR=RERE)
The following table shows the amounts of revenue recognised for the TREIFAFIEHNERENTF
year that were included in the contract liabilities at the beginning of NEBRW RS FE
the year:
2024 2023
—EE —B-=F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREET T ARBT T
Hospital services BB AR 49,052 42,769
Rehabilitation and other healthcare B8 I Bt B 5 IR 7S
services 1,323 63
Elderly healthcare services EZEBERY - 129
50,375 42,961
(b)  Performance obligations b) BAEME

Information about the Group’s performance obligations is
summarised below:

Provision of hospital services, provision of rehabilitation and other
healthcare services, provision of haemodialysis services and
provision of elderly healthcare services

The Group provides hospital services, rehabilitation and other
healthcare services, haemodialysis services and elderly healthcare
services. The performance obligation represents the provision of
these services, which is satisfied when these services are rendered.
Such services are recognised as a performance obligation satisfied
over time as the Group is entitled to receive its service income
according fo the relevant operating performance from the patients
and the patients simultaneously receive and consume the benefits
provided by the Group’s performance as the Group performs.

All hospital services, rehabilitation and other healthcare services,
haemodialysis services and elderly healthcare services are
for periods of one year or less. As permitted under IFRS 15, the
transaction price allocated to the remaining performance obligations
for contracts is not disclosed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME (Continued)

e MR RMEE
For the Year ended 31 December 2024
HEZZT-_WNF+-_A=+—HIEFE

3 R LA (49

Other income E A
An analysis of other income is as follows: Hp W ADHTaT -
2024 2023
—E-MEF —ZEI=F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Mo e ARET T ARET T
Government subsidies 8 478 B 5,417 2,275
Investment income from financial assets X A F{ET ABZH S /L
at fair value through profit or loss BEMNKRERA 7,797 12,092
Clinical frial and related income & R AR 50 S AE RE A 19,488 13,246
Fixed operating lease income EEEBEERA 4,391 3,877
Bank and other interest income IR1T R E A F 2 WA 6,000 4,918
Local health service income =R T TN 2,696 2,618
Others i) 7,732 7,253
53,521 46,279
Notes: B 5T

(i) The government subsidies mainly represent subsidies on costs incurred for
operation of rehabilitation centres and hospitals, research and development
projects, medical related seminars and other subsidies with no unfulfilled

conditions aftached.

(ii) The amount represents investment income mainly in the form of dividend
income or interest income from financial assets at fair value through profit or

loss.

0 BSHETERENGRETGE
BEREER L R ERAES HEAER
B8 B AR B8 A PR A A AO AN B B A
K E AR R AL o

il ZeBEEXTEUNRATEFAERS

B2 B A E A B B A A B A
FEARRERA -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR AR MR

For the Year ended 31 December 2024
BHE-ZT-WNF+-_A=1+—HBLFE

6. OTHER EXPENSES, GAINS AND LOSSES, NET 6. HMHX - WaKkBEFE
2024 2023
—E-E T =%
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBET T AREF T
Fair value loss on financial assets BATEFABENESHEE
at fair value through profit or loss NFEEE (9,400) (882)
Net exchange gain [ 5,k o 05 B8 2,504 1,126
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEME  BERZENEISR
equipment (350) (190)
Donations B (87) (60)
(7,333) (6)
7. FINANCE COSTS 7. BLERAR
An analysis of finance costs is as follows: BERRHDTAT
2024 2023
—EUE —E-=F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARBT T
Interest on bank loans IRITERFIE 9,563 14,627
Interest on amount due o immediate EREEZERAT
holding company (Note) FIEA B () 3,084 =
Interest on lease liabilities HEBEMNE 7,71 7,543
Other finance charge Hth B 752 i 11,680 2,646
31,498 24,816
Less: Amount capitalised in property, plant W R WE REE
and equipment BERba e (7,871) (12,761)
23,627 12,055

The capitalised borrowing costs represent the borrowing costs incurred

by a subsidiary on borrowings raised specifically for the construction in FIMERIIZEFEENEREENE

progress during the year. LA o

Note: The interest expense was arising from amount due to immediate holding Mizt: FMEHIREBBE-_ZTZ_WF
company which was drawn and fully seftled during the year ended 31 +Z A=+ ALEFERIRESE
December 2024. BB EN BEEERARFIE
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8.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR RMEE
For the Year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z-_WF+-_A=+—HILEFE

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 8. KEBiANER
The Group's profit before taxation is arrived at after charging: REEZ RGN &R T8 B
1&IZER
2024 2023
g Jul 11} -2 —EZ=F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARBT T ARBT T
Directors’ emoluments (note 9) E=We (FFEE9) 3,625 2,493
Other staff costs: HAh B TR :
Supervisors’ emoluments (note 9) EEMe HeE9) 890 749
Other salaries, allowances and bonus Efh¥e - R RIEL 641,948 593,773
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RKAEFIET B 3K
(defined contribution scheme) (REHKETED 44,657 38,056
Total staff costs 8 T @A 691,120 635,071
Cost of inventories recognised as expenses BRAFAXHNFERA
(representing pharmaceutical products, (FEPTR &M - M R EM)*
consumables and others used)* 872,838 882,91
Depreciatfion of property, plant and equipment* #1% « &= KR @ E* 106,683 106,914
Depreciation of right-of-use assets* ERAEEENE" 43,172 36,165
Research and development expenditure 834 589
Short-term lease expenses REEER 1,894 1,639
Variable lease rentals in respect of hospitals* ~ E2EEfR A ﬁﬁ R EHEMES" 14,823 13,425
Auditor's remuneration 1,650 1,750
# The cost of revenue for the year amounted to RMB1,733,797,000 (2023: # A R U A B AR 2 AR #51,733,797,000
RMB1,677,488,000), mainly included cost of inventories of RMB872,838,000 (T =4 : AR¥E1677,488,000
(2023: RMB882,911,000), depreciation of property, plant and equipment of T) ITEREFERAARE

RMB80,788,000 (2023: RMB84,161,000), depreciation of right-of-use assets of
RMB30,150,000 (2023: RMB23,234,000), variable lease rentals of 10,509,000
(2023: RMB8,384,000) and other staff costs of RMB588,022,000 (2023:

RMB547,324,000).

872,838,00075(_3::¢ AR
882,911,0007T) - ¥ 2 - B K&
E ARKS80,788,000C (— - =
£ ANR%84,161,0007T) ~ fF A ##E
BEE AR30,150,0007T (=&
— =4 : AR¥23,234,0007T) * A
FHEML AR10,509,0007T (=
T — 4 AR#8,384,000T) K E
B THRA AR # 588,022,0007T (=
T—=4F: AR¥547,324,0007C) °

EREEEREERNARAR F1 2024
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR AR MR

For the Year ended 31 December 2024

BHE-_Z-_WF+-_A=+—HILFE

DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND SUPERVISORS'
EMOLUMENTS

Mr. Wang Junyang, Mr. Chen Wangzhi, Mr. Wong Wai Hung, Ms. Wang
Aigin and Mr. Lv Yubo are the directors of the Company for both years. Mr.
Chen Wangzhi is also the chief executive of the Group and his emoluments
disclosed below include those for services rendered by him as the chief
executive.

Mr. Yeung Ming Lai, Dr. Chen Keji and Mr. Chan Sing Nun are the
independent non-executive directors of the Company for both years.

Executive directors’, non-executive director’s, independent non-executive
directors’ and supervisors’ emoluments for the year, disclosed pursuant
to the Hong Kong Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of

EE - THRIRESME

RWEFEE  EEHELE RESEL -
FTRERE FEHRIRB RS
ERARABES - REREETZAN
SEMTTRARE - T SR ER 15 R B
T BERERITHRAEFTREHRE

RREFE H#BELE RAUEER
ERREEEERTRRFILIERIT
B=x-

REFELMAA - FERRIREIE
383(a) ~ (o)~ () B R DR (REE
ENRER) ROIFE 28 RFEREHIT
EF FMTEFE BUFNTES

Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as follows: REEMeEEDT
Retirement
benefit
Salaries and Performance scheme
allowances related contributions
Fees FeR bonuses BINER Total
we 2E  RREBRS SR 5
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARBTR ARETR ARBT T ARBT T
Year ended 31 December 2024 BE-Z-METZA
St-RLEE
Executive directors: HiES:
Mr. Wang Junyang TEGEE 180 - - - 180
Mr. Chen Wangzhi RERLE 180 1,260 539 33 2,012
Mr. Wong Wai Hung TRERE 180 577 - 14 A
Ms. Wang Aigin IEYut 180 120 - 2 302
Non-executive director: FNTES:
Mr. Lv Yubo RS it - - - - -
Independent non-execuiive direciors: B FEHITES -
Mr. Yeung Ming Lai BHERE 120 - - - 120
Dr. Chen Kej BAIEEE 120 - - - 120
Mr. Chan Sing Nun RELE 120 - - - 120
Directors’ emoluments EETE 1,080 1,957 539 49 3,625
Supenvisors: EE:
Mr. Chen Shaoming ROBEE - - - - -
Mr. Wang Shaofeng ToEEE - 140 9% 16 250
Mr. Yue Chunyang iy e - 315 301 2% 640
Supevisors' emoluments i - 455 395 40 890
1,080 2412 934 89 4,515
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR RMEE
For the Year ended 31 December 2024
HEZZT-_WNF+-_A=+—HIEFE

DIRECTORS’ CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND SUPERVISORS’ 9. EF - -THHEZKEEZME &)
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)
Retirement
benefit
Salaries and Performance scheme
allowances related contributions
Fees ek bonuses RINER Total
ik 28 RRERRS FE Fehy
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARBTT ARBTR AEBTR ARBTR
Year ended 31 December 2023 BE-Z-=F+CR
St-RLEE
Execufive direclors: BES:
Mr. Wang Junyang TEHRE 180 - - - 180
Mr. Chen Wangzhi BERLE 180 1,260 - 30 1470
Mr. Wong Wai Hung TRERE 180 - - - 180
Ms. Wang Aigin TEYRL 180 120 = 3 303
Non-execufive director: FNTES
Mr. Lv Yubo BEREE - - - - -
Independent non-execufive direciors: B FEHITES -
Mr. Yeung Ming Lai BHERE 120 - - - 120
Dr. Chen Kej RAERE 120 - - - 120
Mr. Chan Sing Nun RE&LE 120 = = = 120
Directors' emoluments ik 1,080 1,380 - 3 2,493
Supervisors: £=:
Mr. Chen Shaoming ROBEE - - - - -
Mr. Wang Shaofeng ToEEE - 141 70 15 226
Mr. Yue Chunyang i =Pk - 315 185 23 523
Supervisors' emoluments Z2he - 456 255 38 749
1,080 1,836 255 7 3,242

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above are for their services in
connection with the management of the affairs of the Company and the

Group.

The non-executive director's and independent non-executive directors’
emoluments shown above are for their services as directors of the
Company. There were no other emoluments payable to the independent

non-executive directors during the year (2023: Nil).

Mr. Lv Yubo has waived emoluments in acting as a non-executive director
of the Company during both years. No other director of the Company has

waived or agreed to waive any emoluments during both years.

EXFRBTEEOME HREER
ARA R AR B EHIREA RS

EXFARIERITEE RBILIFNTE
ENMES IR EERAAREEREM
B RIS M S AT o A B E R A
BUFRTESHME (T =%
) o

BEREEERMEFEREERS
REAZEATEZOME - RMEFE
ARBEAMEETHEXRAEREL
AL -

EREEEREERNARAR F1 2024
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RE R RMEE

For the Year ended 31 December 2024
BHE-ZT-WNF+-_A=1+—HBLFE

10.  FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 10. AERSHMES
The five highest paid employees during the year included one director (2023: FAN A maTNEERE —RE
one director), details of whose remuneration are set out in note 9 above. FE(ZZZ=F:—FEFF) HFHM
Details of the remuneration for the year of the remaining four (2023: four) FHEEN EXHEI - FR - 2 THA
highest paid employees who are neither a director nor chief executive of —E_=F AR TEREARAE
the Company are as follows: ENEERITRABNGERFHES
IR IT

2024 2023

—E-mE —E-=F

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARET T ARBTT

Salaries and allowances e MoER 2,841 3,235
Performance related bonuses FIRARAES 3,680 2,075
Retirement benefit scheme contributions R FIFT B 1 26

6,532 5,336
The number of non-director and non-chief executive highest paid PN FATEHEENFESE RIENT
employees whose remuneration fell within the following bands is as BENREFMEE ABAT
follows:

Number of employees

BEEAE
2024 2023
—E-lmF —ZE-=
Hong Kong Dollar ("HK$") 1,000,001 to 1,000,001 ([Exl) &=
HK$1,500,000 1,500,000 7 7T 2 <]
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001,% 7T £ 2,000,000 8 7T 1 1
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7% 7t & 2,500,000 8 7T 1 -
No emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors of the Company or RAEEE  NEBLERAAQRE
the five highest paid individuals (including directors and employees) as an EXAEBRRTMAL(REESRE
inducement fo join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss B)XNMEERRIIBEEMAREE
of office for both years. SN AZNER BRSNSk Ve R RS A o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT Law”) and the
Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, a subsidiary which operates
in Mainland China is subject to corporate income tax at a rate of 25%
on the taxable income for both years. Certain subsidiaries of the Group
in Mainland China are regarded as “small and micro enterprises” and,
accordingly, were entitled to a preferential income tax rate of 5.0% (2023:
5.0%) for the year.

Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime of Hong Kong Profits Tax, the
first HK$2,000,000 of profits of the qualifying group entity are taxed at 8.25%
and profits above HK$2,000,000 are taxed at 16.5%. The profits of group
entities not qualifying for the two-tiered profits tax rates regime are taxed at
a flat rate of 16.5%.

Accordingly, the Hong Kong Profits Tax for the qualifying group entity
is calculated at 8.25% on the first HK$2,000,000 of the estimated
assessable profits and at 16.5% on the estimated assessable profits above
HK$2,000,000. Hong Kong Profits Tax has not been provided as the Group
did not generate any assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during the
year ended 31 December 2024.

1.

e MR RMEE
For the Year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z-_WF+-_A=+—HILEFE

Frig®iB <

BIERBRCEMESRE((REMESHR
ED RTCEMESBRENEBIED - »
AR A 7 B A R ZB T R E AR
S B RR B U A IR B R 25% B 1 E Py
B - AEBERPEANBHNE THE
NAIWB AN BERERA
FEZAS0%(ZE-=F:50%)H1
BEAEMRE -

BESEMNESHOFNESHEMES &
B % = B E 5 E 2,000,000 7 7T 5% A A
i & 58.25% + 1M #2 52,000,000 7 7T
SR TR 516.5% « TRFA B
BHIERANEEE L 2% F1216.5% 5
— R RPF o

gt A B RSB EE E2000,000%
JC A BT HE SR B0 F1 K2 2,000,000 % T LA
FE A ER R R T D 312 8.25%
F165% M RAEEBFER - REZR
—E-_NME+—_A=+—BItFE"
ARAAEEYERNETBELETMER
FaA - MU BT IRE B TS EME -

2024 2023
—E-ME S
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREET T ARBFT

PRC Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT") PR SR (TREMER])
Current tax BN EA R 18 51,369 60,113
Under provision in prior years BEFERETR 8 133
51,377 60,246

Hong Kong Profits Tax BEEM

Current tax B EA7R 18 = 5
Under provision in prior years MAFERENE - 10
- 15
Deferred tax charge (note 26) IRIERLTE 2 ) (T 5E26) 1,205 2,145
52,582 62,406

EREEEREERNARAR F1 2024
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR AR MR

For the Year ended 31 December 2024

HE-Z-_WF+-A=1T—HILEHFE
1. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) N. FriEHissz &)
A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before taxation at FAARRAEZELEMB R KI5 MW
the statutory rate for Mainland China in which the principle place of the B~ R PR MR B A 3 2 0K R A R
business of the Company and the maijority of its subsidiaries are domiciled BrBBARNER HIBMX - &
to the tax expense is as follows: MIEFR AR -
2024 2023
—E A T -=fF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETTT
Profit before taxation B 5% B i A 63,055 153,429
Tax at PRC EIT rate of 25% R25% e B EAEH X
B HIR 15,764 38,357
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes DEEL b 4,47 2,576
Income not taxable for tax purposes HAERBA (1,130) (850)
Tax losses not recognised RERTIBE 1B 40,141 27,501
Concessionary tax rate BEHRE (1.117) (1,602)
Tax effect of deductible temporary differences AR FERHY A 0
not recognised ERER2 GBS 274 -
Utilisation of deductible temporary differences & F3 5 Ail A FE 72 HY T?D VR
previously not recognised TRER I BBTE - (220)
Utilisation of tax losses previously not HABTRERNNIEEE
recognised (5,545) (3,012)
Under-provision of EIT in prior years BEFELEMEN
BHETE 8 133
Under-provision of Hong Kong Profits Tax BEFREEENGEN
in prior years BELR = 10
Effect of different tax rate of a subsidiary EHMENEERECENMBA
operating in other jurisdiction TR E 2 &8 (5) (3)
Others H 45 (474)
Income tax expense PS B X 52,582 62,406
12. DIVIDEND 2. BRE

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, a final dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2024 of RMB15 cents (2023: nil) per share amounting
to approximately RMB50,159,000 (2023: nil) in aggregate has been
proposed by the directors of the Company which is subject to approval
by the shareholders of the Company in the forthcoming annual general

meeting of the Company.

228 Guangdong Kanghua Healthcare Group Co., Ltd. Annual Report 2024

WMERHERE  ARAREFEHRRE
HE_Z-_WF+-_A=+—HIF
ERBRESRARBSS (ZE==
FE) 5 HHARKS50,159,0007T
ZEZ=FE) AFLARAIRRE
RARFREERRBFERS L -



13.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE

COMPANY

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on:

e MR RMEE
For the Year ended 31 December 2024
BEZT-MF+-A=+—HLFE

13. RABFEEABREERER

BREABNNFEER

2024 2023
e 1122 —F-=F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AREET T ARBT T
Earnings: BF :
Profit for the year attributable to owners of the AR T EF R AT AR 7
Company for the purpose of calculating BEARGEAFEE RH
earnings per share 15,337 121,062
Number of shares
RHE R
2024 2023
—E-ME —F-=
Number of shares: RHEE
Weighted average number of ordinary shares I 51 8 & B H K 2 F 4
for the purpose of calculating basic earnings & 38 A% hn i S 159 21
per share 334,394,000 334,394,000

The Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in issue during the
years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023. The diluted earnings per share
amount is the same as the basic earnings per share amount for the years

ended 31 December 2024 and 2023.

HE-T-_WEFER-_FT-_=-F+=A
=S+—HLFE AEETEDET
BESSTBER BE_ZT_NFK
—E =+ A=+ HLEEE
B sRMNcHETREARN &
EIEIS
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RE R RMEE

For the Year ended 31 December 2024
BHE-ZT-WNF+-_A=1+—HBLFE

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 4. 9% - BENRE

Leasehold Medical Office Motor  Construction
Buildings  improvement  equipment  equipment vehicles in progress Total
EF HE%E  BERE WORE b= EEIR o
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTL AREFR ARETT ARETT ARETn AREFR ARET:
CosT A
At1January 2023 RZB-=%-f-H 205,100 503,730 665,995 147,594 15,909 332,834 1,871,162
Additions NE - 7,906 17,536 11,508 1,526 1,070 149,546
Disposals/write-off &/ Mish - = 19,788 (2,787) (49) - 22,624
Transfer EE - 1,404 = - - [1,404) -
At 31December 2023and  MZZ-=%F
1January 2024 +ZA=+—-Ak
“Z-mF-A-H 205,100 513,040 663,743 156,315 17,386 442,500 1,998,084
Acquisifion of subsidiaries W EE M B 2 &l (M7 35)

[note 35) - 16,377 13,955 587 - - 30,919
Additions NE - 2,922 43,824 13,630 36 48,425 108,837
Disposals/write-off & /i - - (16,302) (2,587) (608) - (19,497)
Transfer £z 136,171 6,500 - - - (142,671 -
Reclassified asheld forsale  E# 2 EAEEHE

(note 17) (sE) - - (87,705) (16,526) (2,103) - (106,334)
At 31 December 2024 RZEZWE

+-A=1+-H 341,271 538,839 617,515 151,419 14 348,254 2,012,009
ACCUMULATED ZithE

DEPRECIATION
At1January 2023 W-ZE-=%-A—H 23478 17372 474185 102,081 12,413 - 785,329
Provided during the year FREE 4873 28,907 58,917 12,663 1,554 - 106,914
Write-back of depreciation R E /M SEIEITE

upon disposals/write-off  EI% = = (19,601 (2,629) (49) 5 (22,275
At 31December 2023and  MZT_=%F

1 Jonuary 2024 +ZAZ+-HRk

“E-|WFE-A—-AH 28,351 202,079 513,501 12,119 13,918 - 869,968
Provided during theyear  FREE 5,759 31,690 53,843 14,344 1,047 - 106,683
Write-back of depreciation R E /Hi BRI E

upon disposals/write-off  E1% = = (16,020) (2,442) (605) = (19,067)
Reclossified as held forsole 518 ABIELE

lnote 17) (Mz7) - - (75,617) (11,545) (2,099) - (89,261)
At 31 December 2024 RZZ-|mE

+-A=1+-H 34,110 233,769 475,707 112,476 12,261 - 868,323
NET CARRYING AMOUNT  EREIFE
At 31 December 2024 RZZZME

+-A=t+-8 307,161 305,070 141,808 38,943 2,450 348,254 1,143,686
At 31 December 2023 RZBZ=F

+-A=1t-H 176,749 310,961 150,242 44196 3,468 442,500 1,128,116
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15.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continuedl

Additions to construction in progress included interest expense of
RMB7,871,000 (2023: RMB12,761,000) that was incurred and capitalised
during the year.

As at 31 December 2023, the net carrying amount of the Group’s property,
plant and equipment held under a sales and leaseback arrangement
included in medical equipment was RMB14,387,000 with further details set
out in note 25(c).

Impairment assessment

During the year ended 31 December 2024, Kangxin Hospital (as defined in
note 41) underwent a demerger conducted under the laws of the People’s
Republic of China, pursuant to which Chongging Kanghua Property (as
defined in note 41) was established, as a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, to hold the land and buildings underlying the operation of
Kangxin Hospital.

As at 31 December 2024, the management of the Group conducted
impairment assessment on property, plant and equipment and right-
of-use assets of Chongging Kanghua Property, which were transferred
from Kangxin Hospital, with carrying amount of RMB519,207,000 and
RMB134,424,000, respectively, due to loss incurred for the year. The Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the relevant assets based on the
higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use by reference fo
a valuation report prepared by an independent professional valuer. The
carrying amount of the relevant assets does not exceed the recoverable
amount based on their fair value less costs of disposal and no impairment
has been recognised.

As at 31 December 2023, the management of the Group conducted
impairment assessment on the property, plant and equipment and right-
of-use assets before the demerger held by Kangxin Hospital with carrying
amount of RMB530,850,000 and RMB137,406,000, respectively, due to loss
incurred for the year. The recoverable amount has been determined based
on a value in use calculation by reference to a valuation report prepared by
an independent professional valuer.

LEASES
The Group as a lessee

The Group has lease contracts for certain of its hospitals, office premises
and staff quarters used in its operations. Lump sum payments were made
upfront to acquire leasehold lands from the owners with lease periods of
50 years and no ongoing payments will be made under the terms of these
land leases. Leases for leased properties are entered info for a fixed term
of one fo twelve years, but may have variable lease payments as described
below.

14.

15.

e MR RMEE
For the Year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z-_WF+-_A=+—HILEFE

M - BERHE #)

ERIRAEREFRNBLEREER
{ERF B R ARET7,871,000T (=F
=% AR¥12,761,0007T) ©

R—_E-_=%F+-_A=+—H8B" K
SERERMAELZHETREREND
¥ BEERZEHNEEDFEARK
14,387,000 CEFF A BERE - E—F
SEIBE M EE 25(0)

B R 4

HEZ-_MF+-_A=+—H1HF
ErBEOBR (Ex RMFE4) RES
EAREKMBERETD L B
ERIYAARRNEENBLAREER
EYE(EEILNTEN)  UEEEL
Bl EAEN L REF -

RZEBE-_WF+_A=+—8 %
EEEESEERENE(EARELE
) BRE{E 5 Bl A A R # 519,207,000 7T
%A R134,424000 T Y % - &
MBI RE A S ERITRERT S
THERFERELEE KAEB2EE
VEEGBEMBREMNGEERS B
ANFEREEXAMEREBEMRSE Z
BeEGAAEEEN RO S -
HEAENFEREYEBEEEEAN
FEREERAGTER A W E &5
A b W SRORE o

R-_E-_=ZF+=-_A=+—H ' K&&
EEREYRLERFEE S LARE
E5 Bl A AR 530,850,000 TR AR
#£137,406,000 T % - BB K& 1B
MERAEEEETRESE  HER
FRNEEEBE - AJ B BEEREFE
BEBNE T2EBIUEEMGHERM
RENHERSETE -

HE
AREBERAEA

AEBTAREEEMANE T &b -
MAGRRBEIBEENHESHN R
BERELHMBEGRR  SURXTIES
HBARSOFHNHEELMARE N —
RUERIE MEFETHENR-H
EMENHAONEEHR—E+=F
RIS ERIBER MM R EHENR -

EREEEREERNARAR F1 2024
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RE R RMEE

For the Year ended 31 December 2024
HE-Z-_WF+-A=1T—HILEHFE

15. LEASES (continued) 15. HE #®)
(a)  Right-of-use assets  (FREEE
The carrying amounts of the Group’s right-of-use assets and the FRAEEGAREEZREE
movements during the year are as follows: RETHMT
Leasehold
land and
Leasehold buildings
lands FHEELT KR Total
HE LT Bg¥F st
RMB000 RMB000 RMB000
AREFT AREBFT AREFT
COST 24
At 1January 2023 RZEBE-_=%F—H—H 238,714 215,361 454,075
Additions NE - 514 514
Termination of leases HE 4R - (712) (712)
At 31 December 2023 and R-E-=F
1January 2024 +ZA=+—HBkK
—ZE-pE—HF—H 238,714 215,163 453,877
Acquisition of subsidiaries Uiz i BT /&8 2 &) (Bf 5% 35)

(note 35) - 36,143 36,143
Additions NE 272 2,828 3,100
Termination of leases HE 4R - (1,342) (1,342)
At 31 December 2024 A vt

+-—A=+—H 238,986 252,792 491,778
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION ZEE
At 1January 2023 RZZE-_=%—H—H 17,104 17,055 134,159
Provided for the year FARHE 4,949 31,216 36,165
Termination of leases ME&IE - (712) (712)
At 31 December 2023 and R_EZ=F

1 January 2024 +ZA=+T—8k

—E-NFE—H—H 22,053 147,559 169,612
Provided for the year FRRE 4,956 38,216 43,172
Termination of leases ME&I - (1,153) (1,153)
At 31 December 2024 R-ZT - NF

+-—A=+—H 27,009 184,622 211,631
NET CARRYING AMOUNT ERTEEE
At 31 December 2024 RZEZMMF

+-—A=+—H 211,977 68,170 280,147
At 31 December 2023 i =

Tr=HSar=—1= 216,661 67,604 284,265

FHREERENE (CT_=%:
Jillrg t) K8 I B E HR(E
RHEFIE 2N

For the details of the impairment assessment of the right-of-use
assets of Chongging Kanghua Property (2023: Kangxin Hospital),
please refer to note 14.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

15. LEASES (Continued)

(b)

Lease liabilities

15.

The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the movements during

izl

(b)

e ISR AR M RE

For the Year ended 31 December 2024
HE-_Z-_NE+-_A=+—HItEE

(= /)=
= (/&)

/

HER®E

FRAMEEABZREERES

the year are as follows: e
2024 2023
—E-MEF —E-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T T ARET T
Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—BZEKAE 107,757 148,985
New leases MEE 2,828 514
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 35) W B B B8 A &) (BT 5% 35) 36,143 -
Interest accrued JEETFI B 7,171 7.543
Early termination of lease contract RAMKILEHEEESR (221) -
Payments R (62,089) (49,285)
Carrying amount at 31 December RT+ZA=+—HBZE@EE 91,589 107,757

Analysed into: am v

Current portion mENEL 61,257 47,212
Non-current portion FERBHD 30,332 60,545
91,589 107,757

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is presented below:

HERE 22

DHHIRIAT -

2024 2023
—EI@EF —BEC=F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREET T AR®TT
Lease liabilities payable: ENHEEEE:
Within one year —FR 61,257 47,212
Within a period of more than one year —F BN ERRFR
but not exceeding two years HIE R 7,864 52,91
Within a period of more than two years MEL 1 ETBBERTH
but not exceeding five years HIE R 12,367 6,355
Within a period of more than five years BB AFH RN 10,101 1,279
91,589 107,757

EREEEREERNARAR F1 2024



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RE R RMEE

For the Year ended 31 December 2024
BHE-ZT-WNF+-_A=1+—HBLFE

15. LEASES (Continued) 15. #HE#)
(c)  The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relafion to leases are as (0 SEENERBRISELOT :
follows:
2024 2023
e 1122 —EC=F
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBETT ARETT

Interest on lease liabilities HEBEZFE 7,7 7,543
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets  {FREEE 2 TEM X 43,172 36,165
Expenses relating to short-term leases HEHHEERECRY

lincluded in administrative expenses) GTATTHAX) 1,894 1,639

Variable lease payments notincluded inthe KMATREBEFENAEHE

measurement of lease liabilities (included ~ ~tEx (G ATTE R SZ)

in administrative expenses) 4,314 5,041
Variable lease payments not included inthe R AFIEBETEN A EHE

measurement of lease liabilities (included <28 (GF AU ZE AL A)

in cost of revenue) 10,509 8,384
Gain on early fermination of lease confract  IRATAR IEFAE A K 2 Wik

lincluded in other incomel (B AE AU A) 32 =
Total amount recognised in profit or loss RESERZESHE 67,092 58,772
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

LEASES (Continued)

(d)

(e)

Variable lease payments

The Group’s lease contracts for hospitals are either with only fixed
payments or contain variable lease payments that are based on the
gross floor area occupied and minimum annual lease payments that
are fixed over the lease terms. The amounts of fixed and variable

lease payments paid/payable to relevant lessors are as follows:

e MR RMEE
For the Year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z-_WF+-_A=+—HILEFE

15. % E \/%5/
A AEEEHR

AEERBRIILNBEEANE
ARBEENRABSERMER
mEEmEN A ERENTIAR
Eﬁ%ﬂﬂimﬁﬁigﬁﬁﬁ
BN TEBEEAN
IE&Tmﬁfﬁ KA

Fixed Variable Total
payments payments payments
EEF R EIE-SNE IR EE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBFTT ARETFT
Year ended 31 December 2024 BE-ZE-_MF
TZA=+—BLEFE
Leased properties HEWME
— without variable lease payments  — A & 70 & {1 3¢ 16,081 = 16,081
— with variable lease payments — B EHENK 46,009 14,823 60,832
62,090 14,823 76,913
Year ended 31 December 2023 HE_Z-=F
TZA=+—HILEE
Leased properties HEMZE
— without variable lease payments — — & 7] & F & < 3¢ 6,286 - 6,286
— with variable lease payments — B EHEENK 42,999 13,425 56,424
49,285 13,425 62,710
The overall financial effect of using variable payment terms is that A AT BT SRIG R BB T 52
higher rental costs are incurred by increasing occupation of gross Z LAY ERREmMERNGA
floor area of relevant properties. Variable rental expenses are ENEEERHNESKAR - KRR

expected to continue to represent a similar proportion of gross floor

area of relevant properties occupied in future years.

The total cash outflow for leases is disclosed in note 30(c).

KREE  BRPANEHEEFHE
PTG RARR M R AR EE AR
EeBIZRL -
(e) FHERS L AERRMEE30(CH
Ego

EREEEREERNARAR F1 2024
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR AR MR

For the Year ended 31 December 2024
BHE-ZT-WNF+-_A=1+—HBLFE

15.  LEASES (Continued)
The Group as a lessor

The Group leases certain of its properties under operating lease
arrangements. Rental income recognised by the Group during the year
was RMB4,391,000 (2023: RMB3,877,000) (see note 5).

As at 31 December 2024, the undiscounted lease payments receivable by
the Group in future periods under non-cancellable operating leases with its
tenants are as follows:

15.

HE )
AEEEARTEA

AEEHAEREERELTHEETH
ETME-AEERFRBROAS
WA B ARA4391,000T (ZE ==
F£: ANR#3,877,0007T) (EL2HE M
5) °

R-ZE-_MFEF+-_A=+—H &&
ERFEEEAR 2 A HELEHE
R R EA R FE M 2 R BR IR A & - 3an
T

2024 2023
—EMF —E =4
RMB‘000 RMB’000

ARET T ARBTT

Within one year —FR 101 51
Affer one year but within two years —FEREMFER 116 136
217 187

The leases of the properties with committed tenants are negotiated for
terms ranging from one year to three years.
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16.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR RMEE
For the Year ended 31 December 2024
BEZT-MF+-A=+—HLFE

GOODWILL 16. EHE
RMB'000
ARETT
COST 2N
At 1January 2023, 31 December 2023 and R-ZB_=F—A—H ZT_=%F
1January 2024 +—A=+—BER-_Z-_HNFE—F—H 182,013
Addition arising on acquisition of subsidiaries (note 35) U B8 Bt /&8 /2 &85 38 0 (B £ 35) 114,224
Write-off 8 (125,412)
At 31 December 2024 RZE-ZmF+=—A=+—8H 170,825
ACCUMULATED IMPAIRMENT 2 EE
At 1January 2023, 31 December 2023 and RZEBE-_=F—AF—H0 Z8=_=F
1January 2024 +-A=+—BR-_ZE-_MNE—F—H 152,912
Write-off Hi 58 (125,412)
At 31 December 2024 RZZE-_mF+=-A=+—H 27,500
NET CARRYING AMOUNT R FE
At 31 December 2024 RZZE-_mF+=-—A=+—H 143,325
At 31 December 2023 RZEZ=F+=A=+—H 29,101
Impairment testing of goodwill EEEAERY

Goodwill acquired through business combinations is allocated to Anhui
Hualin CGU and Kanghua Haemodialysis CGU for impairment testing.

AETRERR  BBEBA B
MEEESEELXRERACELE
M REMBREN RS ELEN -

EREEEREERNARAR F1 2024
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RE R RMEE

For the Year ended 31 December 2024
HE-Z-_WF+-A=1T—HILEHFE

16. GOODWILL (Continued) 6. BE (&)
Impairment testing of goodwill (Continued) BB E R (&)
The carrying amounts of goodwill allocated to these CGUSs is as follows: PR EZSReELSBMABERE
(ERCRNE
2024 2023
—EINEF —E=F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARBET T AREF T
Anhui Hualin CGU TRHERRSEL BN 29,101 29,101
Kanghua Haemodialysis CGU REMRBNRSEEEN 114,224 =
143,325 29,101
Anhui Hualin CGU THERREEESN
The recoverable amount of the Anhui Hualin CGU has been determined ZHERRSEESEMA AT IO & 5E
based on a value in use calculation by reference to a valuation report EREBFREENE T2EBLE
prepared by an independent professional valuer. The calculation uses cash EHEMRENHERSEET  ZaT
flow projections based on financial budgets approved by management for HERAREEEMENRRAT (=
the next five (2023: five) years. Cash flows beyond the five-year (2023: five- To=F  REF)VBBEENRERE
year) period are extrapolated using a growth rate of 2.0% (2023: 2.2%). A EE -HBARF(ZE_=F: A %)
pre-fax discount rate of 11.8% (2023: 13.4%) is used for this CGU. BHRNREEeREFEA20% (=4 :

22%)HIIE R R - ZINESELEBEN
f%ﬁﬁ”ﬁ% :g:zﬁi : ]3.4%)E@$%ﬁ\']

P E -

Assumptions were used in the value in use calculation of the Anhui Hualin AELRBERRCELEMMNERE

CGU. The following describes each key assumption on which management EREARS - TXEHINEREERE

had based its cash flow projections to undertake impairment testing of 17 P2 Rk (B AR i TEORI IR € R 2 R FT

goodwill: AR S IR R R

Budgeted revenue -  The basis used to determine the value BEWE — AREESETEE
assigned to the budgeted revenue was the W= EEMEAD
revenue achieved in the year immediately AERBEEBEFE
before the budget year, adjusted for A —FRNAERNK
expected economic conditions and market a0 M7 B TR EA A AR
development. R TISEREEL A

5 o

Discount rafe - The discount rate used was before tax and FERE —  FTAMBEEIARME
reflected specific risks relating to the Anhui TRIE - I R 2 R
Hualin CGU. IR BB A AL R

TE R o

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, any reasonably possible RRAREEFRR L ERIRIHOE

change in any of the above assumptions would not cause the carrying MEEA NS (LT LR

amount of the Anhui Hualin CGU to exceed its recoverable amount. RIS EE B REERRBEA

Bl &% o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A HRRMEE

For the Year ended 31 December 2024
HE=

GOODWILL (continued)
Impairment testing of goodwill (Continued)
Kanghua Haemodialysis CGU

The recoverable amount of the Kanghua Haemodialysis CGU has been
determined based on a value in use calculation by reference to a valuation
report prepared by an independent professional valuer. The calculation
uses cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved by
management for the next seven years. Management considered that
a forecast period of seven years is appropriate because the investment
cycle in the healthcare industry is longer than other industries and in
consideration of the development plan of the haemodialysis centres. Cash
flows beyond the seven-year period are extrapolated using a growth rate
of 2%. A pre-tax discount rate of 12.6% is used for this CGU.

Assumptions were used in the value in use calculation of the Kanghua
Haemodialysis CGU. The following describes each key assumption on
which management had based its cash flow projections to undertake
impairment testing of goodwill:

The basis used to determine the value
assigned fo the budgeted revenue was the
revenue achieved in the year immediately
before the budget year, adjusted for
expected economic conditions and market
development.

Budgeted revenue -

The discount rate used was before tax and
reflected specific risks relating to the Kanghua
Haemodialysis CGU.

Discount rate -

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, any reasonably possible
change in any of the above assumptions would not cause the carrying
amount of the Kanghua Haemodialysis CGU to exceed its recoverable
amount.

Kangxin Hospital CGU

Due to losses incurred for consecutive years and potential external
challenges, including the intense competition for professional staff, in the
Chongging region, the Group had fully impaired the carrying amount of
goodwill allocated to the Kangxin Hospital CGU in prior years. The goodwill
aftributable to Kangxin Hospital CGU was written off during the year ended
31 December 2024 following its classification as a disposal group held for
sale (as detailed in note 17).

16.

ZoNFEF-_A=t—RLFE

g

=

EE R ERA (F)
BEMNRENREEL SN

REMREMNRCEESBLA KD
THERBEEREBENE T2EH
VEXGEMGRNOGERSET -
ZABRAEREEEMRENRRL
fﬁgﬁﬁiﬁ SR eRETEN - BEE

R ARBRITENREBHEA
1&??%*9%3‘7% I Z & 2 MR BT
PORRERE At RBLFOTE
BHESEH BRtFHNBESRE
A% R XL - ZRTELE
2 F12.6% BB AT HTER 5K -

FEREMRENRESEEELNE
AEERERARSK - TXHINERE
AETEHEBRERIMBENRERE
e T A RE A0 5 TE 4R (R R -
EEWE — FARETSETESR
W B EMERA
BEEREEEESE
Al —F AR ER K
= Wt TR AR A AR
W58 R AR T
%o
FRE —  PARREIW RN
TRIE - W R B EE M
BENMBReEASBM
B E @ B e

ARRIEFERE  ElERIHREHE
AABAEM B (LT B EEM
BWENBRSELABMNNETRERBE
AT B4 58 o

BOBRESELBM

EEUEA BRFELEBRUALEEME

BERIMNERE (BHEBERABMNAR
ﬁ%) CAEEDBERERNBEFE

TRERLCERBECELEUNEE
FREE ° J?/DEQ IR EELBEMEN
BEREBE_T_MOFt+t_-_A=+—
EIJJ:iJ*%Ei"*EEH’EtH%E’JHj%%H
PRI (FFIBERMET7) -
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For the Year ended 31 December 2024
HE-Z-_WF+-A=1T—HILEHFE

17.

DISPOSAL GROUP CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE 7. 7BABFELEENEES
On 20 December 2024, the directors of the Company resolved to dispose of RZZEZWNFE+A=Z+H A27A
55% equity inferests of Kangxin Hospital fo Silver Mountain Capital Limited EERRMRILERFR DA (TR 1L
("Silver Mountain”) or its affiliates. As the demerger of Kangxin Hospital BERDKEBBARHERLERMN
(which was conducted under the laws of the PRC, pursuant to which 55% &M c FEER O BB D Y (IR
Chongging Kanghua Property, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company BRBEDREET  BULEKIZARA
has been established to hold the land and buildings underlying the 2ENBARIEERENR UFE
operations of Kangxin Hospital) was completed and the land and buildings ROBRELLHEBO T RETF)
were transferred to Chongging Kanghua Property on 25 December 2024, B BZETwREFER_T M
Kangxin Hospital was in a condition ready for immediate sale. F+_A+HAEETEEREY
¥ AUELEREENR TR LE
HIAR RE o
The following assets and liabilities of Kangxin Hospital have been RZZE_MFE+ZA=+—H " EDL
presented separately in the consolidated statement of financial position BRAOATEERBBEERESVE
and were reclassified as held for sale as at 31 December 2024 MAKRFEBZY  EFHERFE
HE -
31 December 2024
—EmF
+=—A=+—H
RMB’000
ARMEEF T
Assets classified as held for sale DERFHIELHERE
Properties, plant and equipment Wz - BB R 17,073
Other asset HiEE 17,417
Deferred tax assets BRI EE 30
Inventories FE 4,095
Accounts and other receivables JE W BR  B% HL fth B WK IR 7,876
Bank balances and cash RITHEBR LIRS 3,520
Total assets classified as held for sale SEAFELENEELE 50,011
Liabilities directly associated with classified as held for sale HEAOBARIELEEZERNEE
Accounts and other payables JE A-F BiR 0 B HL At JE A< TR IE (23,181)
Total liabilities classified as held for sale SEAFELENAELTE (23,181)

Kangxin Hospital is included in the Group’s hospital services for segment
reporting purposes (see note 5). As the anticipated net proceeds of the
disposal exceed the net carrying amount of the relevant assets and
liabilities and accordingly, no impairment loss has been recognised.

On 9 January 2025, the Company entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with an independent third party, Beijing Pantheon Health
Management Co., Ltd. (the “Purchaser”), a company established in the PRC
and is under common control with Silver Mountain, for the disposal of 55%
equity interest in Kangxin Hospital at a consideration of RMB34,936,000.
The disposal was later completed on 8 February 2025.
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e ISR AR M RE

For the Year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z-_WF+-_A=+—HILEFE

INVENTORIES 18. FE
2024 2023
—E-MF ZEZ=F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ETT ARETF T
Pharmaceutical products At 44,530 48,818
Consumables and others FEM R EHAb 21,911 23,157
66,441 71,975

ACCOUNTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

19. FEURERK K H Atb FEUWGKTR

2024 2023
—EE —E=F
RMB’000 RMB‘000

ARBETT ARETT

Accounts receivable S BR 7k 280,197 269,745
Less: Allowance for credit loss B EEEIERE (14,598) (13,015)
Total accounts receivable MR AR5 265,599 256,730
Prepayments to suppliers TEAT B P SRR 11,255 8,587
Others Hih 37,872 39,341
49,127 47,928
Less: Allowance for credit loss B EEEIERE (2,189) (2,380)
Total other receivables H b e G IE 4858 46,938 45,548
Total accounts and other receivables JE U AR S EoAth B W R IB 48 RE 312,537 302,278

The individual patients of the Group usually settle payments by cash,
credit cards and mobile payment or through government’s social
insurance schemes. For credit card and mobile payments, the banks and
counterparties normally settle the amounts approximately 30 days (2023:
30 days) after the fransaction date. Payments by the PRC government's
social insurance schemes will normally be settled by the local social
insurance bureau or similar government departments responsible for
reimbursing medical expenses for patients covered by the government's
medical insurance scheme, which range from 30 to 180 days (2023: 30 to
180 days) from the transaction date. Corporate customers normally seftle
the amounts within 90 days (2023: 90 days) after the transaction date via
bank transfers.

AEBNBAARA—MBARS 28
KR F# S 0E BT R 88
B-HRERRERSIMN  RITR
RZEFRESERHAHELOIOKR
TECZF R LEERER BB
FREBFOERETSISE  BIEEA
HEMTRBEIEEMNWERFTER
REBEFEINREAREEER T AL
BUFERRY - B % H BN T 30E180
i(—i:;_i 30E180K) AEE °
NABPEP— MR ZBEHEIOKR (=
%“@r%%)ﬁ%ﬁﬁ%%ﬁﬁ
?§§UA15°
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RE R RMEE

For the Year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z-_NE+-_F=1+—HBItFE

19.  ACCOUNTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued) 19. FEWERFR R H b B R IE (4)

E U as AR A HR e AR BR SR (FOBR A5
BEERBER) NREHROKE DT

An ageing analysis of the accounts receivable as at the end of the reporting
period, based on the revenue recognition date and net of allowance for

credit loss, is as follows: mr
2024 2023
—E-MF —ZEI=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T
Within 30 days 30 KA 136,837 129,662
3110 90 days 31E£90K 39,063 46,880
9110180 days 91E180 K 17,236 17,256
18110 365 days 181 & 365K 26,193 23,170
Over 365 days HBiE 365 K 46,270 39,762
265,599 256,730
The movements in the allowance for credit loss of accounts receivable are FBUREZRNEESEREZSHNOT
as follows:
2024 2023
—E-MF —E-=F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARET T
At beginning of year REA) 13,015 11,939
Provision for impairment losses, net B EEEE R 4,384 2,708
Amount written off as uncollectible WSE -~ AT Y Bl & R (2,762) (1,632)
Amount reclassified as held for sale EFOEABERENFIE (39) -
At end of year RER 14,598 13,015
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19.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ACCOUNTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

As at 31 December 2024, included in the Group’s accounts receivable
balance are receivables with an aggregate carrying amount of
RMB89,699,000 (2023: RMB80,188,000) which are past due at the
reporting date. Out of the past due balances, RMB72,463,000 (2023:
RMB62,932,000) has been past due for 90 days or more and is not
considered to be in default. The Group rebutted the presumption of default
under expected credit losses model for accounts receivable past due over
90 days based on no significant change in credit quality after understood
these customers’ background as well as the good payment records of and
continuous business relationship with those customers and were adjusted
for forward-looking information for example, the economic growth rates
and unemployment rate which reflect the general economic conditions in
which the debtors operate that was available without undue cost or effect.

As part of the Group’s credit risk management, the Group assessed
accounts receivable collectively based on the rating of probability of default
other than accounts receivable for PRC government's social insurance
schemes and certain credit-impaired debtors of which ECLs are assessed
individually based on the expected cashflow. These receivables consist
of a large number of small patients with common risk characteristics
that are representative of the patients’ abilities to pay all amounts due in
accordance with the contractual terms.

Details of impairment assessment of accounts and other receivables for the
years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023 are set out in note 39iii).

19.

e MR RMEE
For the Year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z-_WF+-_A=+—HILEFE

FEE L B % B LAt FE W FRIE (42)

R-ZZE-NMF+=—A=+—H" ' HA
755 B Y B LA BR R4S R O B UK BR 3K
REEME R A AR 89,699,000 (=
T - =4F: AR¥80,188,0007T) * B
HZEAHE @i - TRBEHRT - A
R#72,463000C (ZZ=Z=F: AR
¥ 62,932,000 70) B B EF90 K sk A £ -
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EFNEERRIFN R R EZ
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TNEFEIBERATAIEHATEEER (1
BB T A A FTRE ) — AR A AR R
R IR R R AR FER)IEH TR -

ERAKEEERREEN—&7 -
AR BIRBE QM R KB4 B KR
FoEFERFLERREEILET
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ZERWIRT B AEAE AR RRE
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e ISR AR MR

For the Year ended 31 December 2024
BHE-ZT-WNF+-_A=1+—HBLFE

20. OTHER ASSET 20. HihEE
RMB’000
ARET T
COST R AR
At 1January 2023 and 31 December 2023 RZEZ=F—H—BRK
—E-=F+=-A=+—8H 20,000
Reclassified as held for sale (note 17) EFOEABENE (MFE17) (20,000)
At 31 December 2024 R-ZZE-_WFE+=-_A=+—H =
AMORTISATION 3
At1January 2023 RZFEZ=F—H—H 583
Charge for the year FAXH 1,000
At 31 December 2023 and 1January 2024 MNZEBEZ_=F+-_H=+—H
Fr=—FE-MFE—-—H—H 1,583
Charge for the year FRZH 1,000
Reclassified as held for sale (note 17) EFoEABELE (ME17) (2,583)
At 31 December 2024 RZZE-_WF+=-—A=+—H =
CARRYING VALUES BRI E
At 31 December 2024 RZE-_WNF+-_A=+—H =
At 31 December 2023 RZZE-—=F+=-A=+—H 18,417

On 23 May 2022, the Company entered into certain management
arrangements (“Management Arrangements”) with Silver Mountain, an
independent third party, pursuant to which Silver Mountain would provide
management of the day-to-day operations of Kangxin Hospital, for a
period of 20 years (“Service Period”) subject to certain ferms and conditions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

20. OTHER ASSET (continued)

Pursuant to the Management Arrangements, Silver Mountain shall provide
a series of services with a view to improving and optimising the operations
of Kangxin Hospital including the infroduction of a German medical group
“Artemed” to Kangxin Hospital to participate in daily management and
operations, overseas resources, domestic resources, research capabilities,
clinical achievement transformation, policy innovation, cooperation with
medical colleges, key scientific construction, medical informatics, medical
payment system, quality control, expert collaboration and cost control.

In return, Kangxin Hospital shall pay to Silver Mountain a fee of RMB20
million (the “Brand Introduction Fee”) to procure the introduction of
“Artemed”, and an annual fixed management fee of RMB10 million together
with variable management fee which is based on certain percentage of
Kangxin Hospital's annual revenue during the Service Period. During the
year ended 31 December 2022, Silver Mountain had procured “Artemed”
to sign a trademark licensing agreement with Kangxin Hospital for a non-
exclusive right to use Artemed brand in Mainland China and the Group paid
the Brand Introduction Fee of RMB20 million to Silver Mountain. According
to the Management Arrangements, Silver Mountain shall refund a certain
portion of the Brand Introduction Fee paid by Kangxin Hospital under
certain circumstances, including, among others, in the event that Kangxin
Hospital is not able to achieve the growth of audited revenue based on an
agreed threshold during the performance period (i.e. the 12-month period
beginning from the 1st day of the month after the completion of the transfer
of management rights of Kangxin Hospital to Silver Mountain). As Kangxin
Hospital met the target growth of revenue for the performance period and
hence the Group was not entitled to refund of the Brand Introduction Fee
from Silver Mountain.

In the opinion of the Directors, the payment of the Brand Introduction Fee
is part of the Management Arrangements with Silver Mountain for its
services during the Service Period and the introduction of German medical
group "Artemed” brand could bring long-term benefits to the operations
of Kangxin Hospital, and accordingly, the Brand Introduction Fee was
amortised over the Service Period.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Brand Introduction Fee
of Kangxin Hospital has been reclassified as asset held for sale in the
consolidated statement of financial position upon the Group’s commitment
to dispose of Kangxin Hospital (as detailed in note 17).

20.

e MR RMEE
For the Year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z-_WF+-_A=+—HILEFE
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e ISR AR MR

For the Year ended 31 December 2024
BHE-ZT-WNF+-_A=1+—HBLFE

21. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS  21.

BAVESABENEREE

2024 2023
—EOF —E-=F
Notes RMB‘000 RMB'000

B 5E ARET T ARETT

Fund investment HewE i 24,000 33,400
Structured bank deposits HEBMRITER i 370,000 350,000
394,000 383,400
Analysed for reporting purposes as: M|MEBOITAT :
Current assets MBNEE 370,000 350,000
Non-current assets ERBEE 24,000 33,400
394,000 383,400
Notes: B 5E

(i) In 2021, the Group entered into a partnership agreement with two
independent third parties for the establishment of a fund, namely, Guangdong
Bosong Kanghua Equity Investment Parinership, L.P. (& 5 $H A8 FF %= % 18 1%
BEEBLE(BRAER)) alimited parinership established under the laws of
the PRC. The purpose of the fund is to achieve investment returns and capital
appreciation through carrying out investment, investment management and
other activities in accordance with PRC laws, business scope under business
registration, and the partnership agreement. To the extent permitted by the
applicable laws, the fund will invest primarily in the fields of medical services,
biotechnology, medical equipment, and medical informatics. The initial term
of the fund shall be seven years. As at 31 December 2024, the fund had
made equity investments in two (31 December 2023: two) unlisted companies
and the aggregate carrying amounts of the equity investments was
RMB24,000,000 (31 December 2023: RMB33,400,000), which were measured
at fair values.

(ii) The Group has structured deposits with commercial banks in the PRC for
variable investment returns. All of these structured deposits are with maturities
of less than six months and the principal is generally renewed when matured.

The above investments were mandatorily classified as financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss as their contractual cash flows are not solely
payments of principal and interest.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

22. BANK BALANCES AND CASH, RESTRICTED BANK BALANCES

AND FIXED BANK DEPOSITS

e MR RMEE
For the Year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z-_WF+-_A=+—HILEFE

22. RITHEBRRT - RHIRIT

AR EMRITER

2024 2023

—EZOF —E-=F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARET T

Bank balances and cash IRITEHR AR 242,604 305,171
Restricted bank balances SR AIRITEE R 3,088 2,732
Fixed bank deposits TFHISR TR 65,800 63,350
311,492 371,253
Less: Restricted bank balances B R AIERITE R (3,088) (2,732)
Less: Fixed bank deposits R EERITIE K (65,800) (63,350)
Total cash and cash equivalents Be MRS EEBYWRTE 242,604 305,171

Bank balances carried prevailing market rates ranging from 0% to 0.375%
(2023: 0% to 0.75%) per annum.

The fixed bank deposits at 31 December 2024 carried fixed interest rate at
4.25% per annum with original maturity of more than 3 months.

Restricted bank balances represented (i) deposits required by the Dongguan
Social Insurance Bureau which are based on annual assessment on the
medical service quality of the hospitals, such deposits will be discharged
upon completion of the annual assessment; (i) proceeds from the initial
public offering of the Company’s H Shares remitted to PRC banks, the usage
of which is subject to relevant approval; and {iii) a fixed-term guarantee
deposit. The restricted bank balances carried fixed interest at a rate of 0.25%
(2023: 0.25%) per annum.

BITEBREMBRITNRE 5
BNF0%E0375% (ZE =4 :0%
Z=0.75%) °

R-ZE-—mE+-_A=+—H0 ETH
BITHERNETEFHEE425%  FRE
HABGB=@A -

ZRHBITEBRIEBIBBERZHER
BERMWET FReBENFEER
EERBEETEMET 7RG
REXFEFEERER  (IEAREH
BITACHBNZEARETCAENE
IRARBE R DT HEFTSEIE i)
THRFBESTFR - SEHIBITHEBIZ
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FTE o
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RE R RMEE

For the Year ended 31 December 2024
BHE-ZT-WNF+-_A=1+—HBLFE

23. ACCOUNTS AND OTHER PAYABLES AND PROVISION 23. BRI N H AL FEA 708 & &
B

2024 2023

—TE-ME —E-=%F

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBETT ARETT

Accounts payable FE TR 3K 357,884 317,263
Accrued expenses i 90,522 96,093
Receipt in advance (note) TE MR IE (i aE) 250,004 197,544
Payables for acquisition of property, plantand ~ UREE ¥ - M= & 2% B 3108

equipment 26,335 20,615
Other tax payables Hh TR 18 4,227 3,626
Others HAh 26,897 23,959
Other payables H fth f& T 5/ I8 397,985 341,837
Total accounts and other payables JE 1S BR 3k I H b FE (T FRIB 42 58 755,869 659,100
Provision for medical dispute claims BEAUNRERE 2,885 1,222
Total accounts and other payables and JRE AT BR 350 B EL i JE A< R TE %

provision BB 758,754 660,322
Note: Bzt :
Included in the balance are contract liabilities of 68,641,000 (2023: RMB50,375,000) EHRBERRAEEERATLENAEN
and advances from the PRC social insurance bureau of RMB181,363,000 (2023: BEAR68,64,0000 (ZE=Z=%F: A
RMB147,169,000) for the daily hospital operations of the Group. R#50,3750007T) R REFBELSREBD

X AR 181,363,000 (ZE-=4F: A
R 147,169,000 7T) °

Contract liabilities included in the receipt in advance are as follows: HATBKZEHNESDBENT -
31 December 31 December 1January
2024 2023 2023
—EIEF —E_=F —E=F
+=ZA=+—8B +ZA=+—H —HA—H
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BT T ARETFT ARMET T
Short-term advances received from WERE P2 57 B TR0
cusfomers
Hospital services B R 64,365 49,052 42,769
Rehabilitation and other healthcare R1ERH M EERT
services - - 63
Elderly healthcare services ZEBRRS 1,904 1,323 129
Haemodialysis services MR E AT RIS 2,372 - -
Total contract liabilities aBHBBEERE 68,641 50,375 42,961
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A HRRMEE

For the Year ended 31 December 2024
BE-_Z-_NE+-_A=t+—BIFE

23. ACCOUNTS AND OTHER PAYABLES AND PROVISION (Confinved) ~ 23. FEATBRFR Iz H th FE {7018 % 3%

(1C )
The credit period of accounts payable ranges from 30 to 90 days from the ENERNEEREHRHBESN
invoice date. F30290K °

ER R B B E R R BR il D AT

The following is an aging analysis of accounts payable based on the date

of receipt of goods: W

2024 2023

—E-F —g-=
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREF T AR®TTT
Within 30 days 30AMAA 86,467 93,390
31to0 90 days 31E90K 118,661 125,006
9110 180 days 91E 180K 77,329 58,841
18110 365 days 1812 365K 36,522 15,200
Over 365 days iR 365K 38,905 24,826
357,884 317,263

BEFRUNMREBRBEAKBEFESNE
EYNATREBRARELNERUD
BE U T REFRUMRERENES:

Provision for medical dispute claims relate to medical disputes in which
the Group is involved as defendants arising from its ordinary course of
business. The following is the movement in the provision for medical
dispute claims:

2024 2023

—EOF —E-=F

RMB’'000 RMB’000

ARBT T ARBF T

At the beginning of the year RER 1,222 1,234
Provision for the year FREE 7,470 3,348
Reversal of the provision B ol B - (219)
Utilisation of the provision BA%E (5,807) (3,141)
At the end of the year RER 2,885 1,222
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e ISR AR MR

For the Year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z-_NE+-_F=1+—HBItFE

24. AMOUNT DUE TO A NON-CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER OF A
SUBSIDIARY

This represented an amount due to Dongguan YouWang Enterprise
Investment Co., Ltd. ("YouWang Enterprise”), the non-controlling shareholder
of Kanghua Haemodialysis as at 31 December 2024.

The amount due is unsecured, interest-free and YouWang Enterprise has
undertaken not to recall the amount within one year from 31 December
2024.

25. BANK LOANS

24. J;fﬁ BB 2 BRI ER R

T)\ 15

BE-_Z_NFE+_A=t—HER
FEMBBEMOFERRRR=ME

HEEREERAR(EEEED X
I8 o

EAREAEERF EENMEHEE
AHFTER _ZE_NF+_A=+—
Bt st —F AU Bl ZFIE °

25. IR1ITER

2024 2023

—EZMNE —T-=
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARBFIT
Variable rate secured bank loan (note (a)) BEMIBITER OFBFZR) (MiFE () 74,369 288,682
Variable-rate unsecured bank loan (note (b)) ﬁ%ﬁﬁfﬁﬁ% OFEF=) (FtsE (b)) 154,698 =
Fixed-rate secured loan (note (c)) EEBEZ (BT =E) (M) = 30,143
229,067 318,825

Analysed into: L=
Bank loans repayable: RITERNATRREES

Within one year or on demand —FANIREK 4,000 31,090
In the second year E-F 4,000 33,408
In the third to fifth years, inclusive E=FZERF (BEEEMSF) 182,699 107,756
Beyond five years B3R A 38,368 146,571
229,067 318,825
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25. BANK LOANS (continued)

Notes:

(a)

As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, the Group had a variable-rate secured
bank loan with an interest rate based on the Loan Prime Rate (LPR) announced
by the People’s Bank of China, adjusted annually from the drawdown date. As
at 31 December 2024, the carrying amount of this loan was RMB74,369,000
(2023: RMB47,150,000), with an effective interest rate of 4.65% per annum
(2023: 4.65%).

This bank loan primarily finances the construction, development, and fixed
asset purchases for the Kanghua Qingxi Healthcare Complex — the Group’s
elderly medical and healthcare complex development in Qingxi Town,
Dongguan City.

As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, this bank loan was secured by:

(i) financial guarantees provided by the Company and Mr. Wang
Junyang, the chairman of the Group; and

(ii) leasehold land held by a subsidiary of the Company, with a carrying
amount of approximately RMB77,553,000 as at 31 December 2024
(2023: RMB79,255,000).

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had another variable-rate secured bank
loan with an interest rate based on the benchmark interest rate for loans set
by the People’s Bank of China, adjusted annually from the drawdown date,
and the carrying amount of the loan was RMB241,532,000, with an effective
interest rate of 5.74%.

This bank loan primarily financed the construction of Phase Two of the
Kangxin Hospital medical facility development.

This bank loan was secured by:

(i) financial guarantees provided by the Company; Mr. Wang Junyang,
the chairman of the Group; and REHTEHK A M AR 2 7 (a
company controlled by Dongguan Xingye Group Co., Ltd. ("Xingye
Group”), a shareholder of the Company (collectively referred to as the
Guarantors”); and

(ii) pledge of the Company’s equity shares in Kangxin Hospital.

This bank loan was fully repaid during the year, and the pledged shares were
released upon settlement.

e MR RMEE
For the Year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z-_WF+-_A=+—HILEFE

/= A £

25. IRITER (&)

GEX

(a)

RZZBE-_WNER-_ZFT=_=F+=A
=t+—B  ~EEHEEFEHEAR
TER  ARERFBEARRITAM
W ERERAE(PR - FEHIRENA
HEETHE R _ME+_-A
=t+—H ZEEFNEEEAAR
#74,369,000C (CZE-=F: AR
#47150,0007T) - ERMEAEF
465%(—F =4 : 4.65%) °

ZRITEFRTEARB/AEELR
REMBRENZFBEREGS
BHBIEERE  BFEDRHER
RELBERTEERE -

RZBE-_WNER-_ZT=-_=F+=A
=+—8 ZRTEXAUTZEE
7

(i HARBARAKREETRFEEES
FTERENOMBER: &

(ii) ARR—FEKMBRARFEAEMHA
Eti RZZTE-_NF+=A
“t+—HNEEEANARE
77,553,000 L (ZBE =4 : A
R #79,255,000 7T) °

R-EBE-—=F4+-A=+—H &&
EHEERIIN—EZEHRFRTE
;o FREPEARBITAMOER
EEFEFGE SFEIRINAHRH
B BRREEA AR 241,532,000
T BERFIE A 574% °

ZROTEFRTEARNRELER -
HERREEREREE -

ZRITEFRARA T FHER -

il BARE AEEXEEEH
RERRETREAMERA
Al(—MAARRBRRRED
BEEEARAA ([HEL
B ) EHleaE) (s HE R
AD)RENH IR K

i) AEEREOERBEE -

I

ZMITERONAFREABHEER -
BEMBRN ENEEERRER

o

EREEEREERNARAR F1 2024

251



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

NT

BE

BB AR

For the Year ended 31 December 2024

—EWFEF A=+ —HIFE

25. BANK LOANS (Continued)

26.

Notes: (Continued)

(b)

()

As at 31 December 2024, the balance comprises one variable-rate unsecured
bank loan with an interest rate based on the LPR announced by the People’s
Bank of China, adjusted annually from the drawdown date. The loan carries
an effective interest rate of 4.3% per annum and primarily serves to provide
operating cash flow for Kanghua Hospital.

The loan is unsecured and financial guarantees have been provided by the
Company and Mr. Wang Junyang, the chairman of the Group.

As at 31 December 2023, the fixed rate secured loan represented a financing
arrangement with Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Leasing Co.,
Ltd., an independent third party. Pursuant to the arrangement, the Group has
transferred legal title of certain items of medical equipment to Industrial and
Commercial Bank of China Leasing Co., Ltd., which shall then be leased back
for use by the Group. Upon expiry of the lease term, the Group has an option
to repurchase these items of medical equipment at a cash consideration of
RMBI1. At 31 December 2023, the carrying amount of these items of medical
equipment was approximately RMB14,387,000, and the loan was guaranteed
by the Guarantors.

The transfers of these medical equipment do not satisfy the requirements
of IFRS 15 to be accounted for as a sale of assets. The Group continued to
recognise the transferred assets under property, plant and equipment and
initially recognised a secured loan in an amount equal to the proceeds
obtained by the Group. As at 31 December 2023, the loan carried an effective
interest rate of 6.74% per annum. During the year, the loan was fully repaid
and the legal title of the medical equipment had been transferred back to the
Group.

All bank loans are denominated in RMB.

DEFERRED TAX

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement of financial
position, certain deferred tax assets and liabilities have been offset. The
following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for financial reporting

25. SR1ITEF (&

26.

BsE : ()

(b) —E-ME+-A=+—R " ##
BRE-FFEEEMRTER  ME
ENFBEARRBITRMILPR  BF

()

PIBRITER

BiITMEMEETRHE - BEFIRER
FMEA3% L TEARREE
Bt 2RI -

ERRERWPAMBERBAR
MAEETREEEGLERME -

R-ZB_=F+_A=+—H BExX
FENEEAERIERBLIE=T
ITREBEEERARITLNERE
K%F RIFZ L AEECDHET

REBEEWNAEMAREET
Ifﬁﬁmﬁﬁ S ERNA HEREE
B AHASEE®A - HEERE -
$¢@E%W/ﬁbi1ﬂﬁ}\iﬁﬁﬁﬁ%

% EEERBIAR - b‘"_y_ F
toA=+-B - REBEREER

B 5 1 18 40 5 A% 14,387,000 7%
Bz ERBERARMER -

ZEERBERBEETITARBRYE
MEERELHRBEAELEEER
EAR AEEEEEIVE  BE
REBETNEEREERVISHE
REFEHERAEHESHNABR
Emaﬁﬁ% cHRZT-=fF4—
A=Z+—H8 BEXMNEREMNXRA
M% W¢¢F ZEREEBHE
2 SEMA AR AREEE
$¢@

KIGAANREETE -

IR SR IR

SLEIERB M BEARRRME

B TR

ERBEERBEETEE -ATH
SAEA TG IR E PTERRE B IR AE SR D AT -

pUrposes:
2024 2023
11 - —E-=F
RMB’000 RN\B 000
ARET T ARET T
Deferred tax assets EERIREE 10,390 -
Deferred tax liabilities RIEFHIBEAE (15,963) (12,480)
(5,573) (12,480)
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e MR RMEE
For the Year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z-_WF+-_A=+—HILEFE

26. DEFERRED TAX (Continued) 26. IEIERLIE (&)
The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets before offsefting during FRNRLEHIBEEREEREEND
the year are as follows: gEamT
Accelerated Pre-operating
tox  Provisionof  expenses  Right-of-use Lease
depreciation ECL writtenoff assefs liabilities Taxloss Total
nERE BRHEEES WHEEEH
it ERE Bx FREEE HEBE HEFR @zt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT AR%TT ARETT ARETT ARET:R
lrestated) ~ (reslated]
(&E35)  (4E3)
Gross deferred tax abilfies/ RZBZ=F-A-BZELH
lassefs) at 1 January 2023 HafE/ (BE) 8% 26,159 13,565 (238) 19,562 (31,583 - 10,335
Deferred fox [credted/charged ERGIA) /B ERRY
fo profitor loss during the year ote 1)~ EREFE (F&ET)
(456) (284) 238 6,520) 9,167 - 2145
Gross deferred fax RZBZ=F+-A=+-HR
liabilfies/lossets| af “ToME-A-A2
31 December 2023 and BERE
1January 2024 8/ (BE)0E 25,703 (3,849) - 13,042 (22.416) - 12,480
Acqisition of subsidicries [nofe 35) W & 2 ) (B 5 35) - 192) - 9,036 (9,036) (7,950) (8,142
Reclassflied fo held for sale (note 17) ENABERELE () - 30 - - - - 30
Deferred fax (credited/charged ERGIA) /MBEEED
fo proftor loss during the year note 11~ SEEFE (i)
(449) (378) = (8,031) 12,263 (2,200) 1,205
At 31 December 2024 R-E-ME+-A
=+-H 25,254 (4,389) = 14,047 (19,189) (10,150) 5573

At 31 December 2024, the Group had unused tax losses arising in Mainland
China of approximately RMB650,610,000 (2023: RMB567,359,000) available
for offsetting against future profits. No deferred tax asset was recognised
in respect of tax losses amounted to approximately RMB610,010,000 (2023:
RMB567,359,000) as they have arisen in subsidiaries that have been loss-
making for some time and it is not considered probable that taxable profits
will be available against which the tax losses can be utilised. The unused
tax losses can be carried forward up to five years from 2026 to 2029 (2023:

2025 to 2028), to offset future taxable profits.

R-ZE-_mME+-_A=+—H K&
B 5 B A b A R R R IE S
BH AR 650,610,000 (ZF ==
F: ANR#567,359,0007T) » A 4K 8
KRGEF - MERREEBROARE
610,010,000 (ZE - =F : AR®
567,359,000 ) HERELEFR B A E -
FERAEZEWNBEARC EIE KM
BRAHERT G ATET R IAKE
ABACZRIEER - AEANHRER
BALZE_R"FE-T-NF(=ZF
T R RFE_FT-)N\F)
BLZAFEHEE  NIEEREHERT
FTi8%8 -

EREEEREERNARAR F1 2024
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e ISR AR MR

For the Year ended 31 December 2024
HE-Z-_WF+-A=1T—HILEHFE

27. SHARE CAPITAL 27. BRZR
Number of
domestic Number of Share
shares H shares capital
NEREE HER B (&N
‘000 ‘000 RMB’000
T TR ARE®TT
At1January 2023, RZTE_=F—H—H"
31 December 2023 and —E-=F+-AF=+—H

31 December 2024 —E-MF+=-A=+—H 250,000 84,394 334,394

28. RESERVES 28. f#1@

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements therein for the
current and prior years are presented in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity on page 178.

Capital reserve

The capital reserve of the Group represents the difference between the net
asset value of the subsidiaries and the nominal amount of the Company’s
shares which were issued as consideration for the subsidiaries at the time
of the group reorganisation in preparation for the listing of the Company’s
shares.

Statutory reserve

According to the relevant laws in the PRC, the Company and its subsidiaries
which were established in the PRC are required to transfer at least 10%
of their net profit after taxation, as determined under the PRC accounting
regulations, to a non-distributable reserve fund until the reserve balance
reaches 50% of the respective registered capital. The transfer to this reserve
must be made before the distribution of dividends to owners. Such reserve
fund can be used to offset the previous years’ losses, if any, and is non-
distributable other than upon liquidation.

Other reserve

Other reserve of the Group represents (i) arose from a group restructuring
that was accounted for as deemed disposal of interests in a wholly-owned
subsidiary, which was fully acquired by a non-wholly owned subsidiary,
from owners of the Company to the non-controlling shareholder of a
subsidiary and (i) the difference between the accumulated loss attributable
to the former non-controlling shareholder of Kangxin Hospital and the
consideration paid by the Group arose from the acquisition of additional
interest in Kangxin Hospital during the year ended 31 December 2023 (see
note 35).
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28.

29.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RESERVES (Continued)
Retained earnings

Included in the retained earnings is an amount of RMB3,561,000 (2023:
RMB2,936,000), which represents restricted retained earnings from Anhui
Hualin Group that are non-distributable other than upon liquidation.

NON-WHOLLY OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH MATERIAL
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

The table below shows details of the non wholly-owned subsidiaries of
the Group that have material non-controlling interests at the end of the
reporting period:

28.

29.

e ISR AR M RE

For the Year ended 31 December 2024
HE-_Z-_NE+-_A=+—HItEE

it ()

FFARBEFFHE AR 3,561,000
T (ZEZ=%F: AR%2936,0007T)
ELXREREENZRHRBEF
BRIEER  BAPRA DR ©

BEEAFERED2HEE
L) NG

TRETAEENGERRABEKR
FFERER IR EMBARNFE:

Profit/(loss) and

Place of incorporation Proportion of ownership total comprehensive
and principal and voting rights held by income/(loss) allocated to Accumulated
Name of subsidiary place of business non-controlling non-controlling interests non-controlling interests
PREFERESN
AR LS FERER B/ (B8R
WELAEER REELEY BERRREELA 2ENE/ (B8 ZitFERER
2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023
ZECmE —To-F ZBCIRE CBoCF ZBCRE ToCF
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARETT ARBTR ARET:
Renkang Hospital and ifs subsidiary, Renkang ~ The PRC/Mainland China 43 43 40 2,298 51,869 51,829
Elderly Care Centre ['Renkang Hospital Group’)
R e YN 30 HE/HE R
(CRERER])
Anhui Hualin Group The PRC/Mainland China 43 43 1,657 1,568 23,170 21,513
CHEREE hE/HER
Kanghua Haemodialysis Group [Note) The PRC/Mainland China 30 - (6,561) - (52,214) -
REMREN &8 (F3) HE/HERD
22,825 73,342

Note: During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group acquired 70% equity
interest of Kanghua Haemodialysis Group. For details of the acquisition,
please refer to note 35.

W Bz -_WFE+=-A=+—H1L
FE AEBWERENRENEE
RIREIN70% AR AE - WHE R THF RS
Bl EREE

EREEEREERNARAR F1 2024
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RE R RMEE

For the Year ended 31 December 2024
BHE-ZT-WNF+-_A=1+—HBLFE

29. NON-WHOLLY OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH MATERIAL 29. BEEARFERERZHFEE
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (Continued) Bt I8 2 = (48)
Summarised financial information in respect of each of the Group's ERBEEERFEREZZAEERS
subsidiaries that has material non-controlling interests is set out below. MEARINMBERBE&RIINT -
The summarised financial information below represents amounts before NTHBERREREEERNAGHE
infragroup eliminations. HATH R o
Renkang Hospital Group CREREER
2024 2023
—EZNE —E-=F
RMB’000 RMB'000

AREF T ARETT

Current assets mMENEE 102,122 85,014
Non-current assets EMENEE 107,080 121,237
Current liabilities MEBE (85,140) (74,609)
Non-current liabilifies FERBEE - (7,675)
Revenue & 245,100 261,577
Profit and total comprehensive income FE N &R ALEE
for the year 95 5,346

Net cash inflow from operating activities BEEBFEFHRSM 31,698 13,329

Net cash (outflow)/inflow from investing activities & EBFTEFEE© (Ghd) RmA (28,397) 6,924

Net cash outflow from financing acfivities MEFHAEFRSRL (7,376) (17.992)
Net cash (outflow)/inflow FHRE GRE)/RA (4,075) 2,261
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29. NON-WHOLLY OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH MATERIAL

e MR RMEE
For the Year ended 31 December 2024
BEZT-MF+-A=+—HLFE

BEEEAFERER ZHFEE

I

/

NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (Confinued) L= NEINE )
Anhui Hualin Group TEHEREE
2024 2023
—ECDEF —EZ=F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AREET T ARBT T
Current assets MENEE 61,646 59,891
Non-current assets FERBEE 27,079 31,787
Current liabilities mENa & (25,710) (28,828)
Non-current liabilities JEREBBE (9.174) (12,819)
Revenue g 128,449 141,241
Profit and total comprehensive income Fm M &R 2R ALE
for the year 3,810 3,710
Net cash inflow from operating activities KEEEAEFREMN 14,276 22,307
Net cash outflow from investing activities KREFEBFEFHRSR (5.241) (2,863)
Net cash outflow from financing activities BEEESAEFRES MM (4,403) (11,374)
Net cash inflow FIRERA 4,632 8,070

EREEEREERNARAR F1 2024
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RE R RMEE

For the Year ended 31 December 2024
BHE-ZT-WNF+-_A=1+—HBLFE

29. NON-WHOLLY OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH MATERIAL 29. BEEARFERERZHFEE
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (Continued) Bt B A B ()

Kanghua Haemodialysis Group REMRBENEE

2024

—ECWEF

RMB’000

AREET T

Current assets MENE E 28,101

Non-current assets EMENE E 70,236

Current liabilities mENa R (116,978)

Non-current liabilities EmEBE (155,407

Revenue Yz 75,770

Loss and total comprehensive loss for the year FABEREEEIBRE (21,871)

Net cash outflow from operating activities KEEBFBFReRD (18,825)

Net cash outflow from investing activities REEESAEFRESME (11,959)

Net cash inflow from financing activities BMEFBFAEFRERA 16,900

Net cash outflow FIRE M (13,884)

30. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWs ~ 30. e HREREBRMEE

(a)  Major non-cash transactions () EEFEEXR
During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group entered into BEZ Ei—l—*Lﬁ] +—H
new lease agreements for the use of leased properties. On the lease \EFE $%@ DTTL*ﬁ ﬁfﬁﬁf’mi
commencement, the Group recognised approximately RMB2,828,000 PAGEFB *ﬂ%%¥ ° ENFEE R -
(2023: RMB514,000) of right-of-use assets and lease liabilities. AEHEREAREELEER

BEHARE2828,000T (==
— =% : AR¥514,0007T) ©
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30. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(Continued)

(b)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities

e MR RMEE
For the Year ended 31 December 2024
BEZT-MF+-A=+—HLFE

30. MERERERMT (2)

b BMEFDELNBEEZSD

Amount
duetoa
non-controlling
shareholder Interest Lease
of a subsidiary Bank loans payable liabilities Total
P
—EMBAR
FERRR
A BTER ERFE HEEE ‘it
(note 24) (note 25) (note 15(b))
(P &F 24) (FEE 25) (P EE15(b))
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETR ARETE ARETE ARETR
At1January 2023 R-E-=%—Af—H 26,861 280,933 467 148,985 457,246
Changes from financing BERGRER
cash flows (26,861) 35,246 (14,663) (49,285) (55,563)
New leases Mg - - - 514 514
Finance costs incurred BEEZBENAR - 2,646 14,627 7,543 24,816
At 31 December 2023 and R-ZE-=%
1January 2024 +ZA=+-Hk
—E-pE—-fF—H - 318,825 431 107,757 427,013
Changes from financing BREREREE
cash flows (75,100) (101,438) (13,078) (62,089) (251,705
Acquisition of subsidiaries W B B 2 R) (P 32 35)
(note 35) 209,348 - - 36,143 245,491
Early termination of lease RELEHEESR
confract - - - (221) (221)
New leases HHE - - - 2,828 2,828
Finance costs incurred EEAZRERA - 11,680 12,647 7,7 31,498
At 31 December 2024 RZZ_WF
+-A=+—H 134,248 229,067 - 91,589 454,904

EREEEREERNARAR F1 2024
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e R RMEE
For the Year ended 31 December 2024
BHE-ZT-WNF+-_A=1+—HBLFE

30. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 30. FEBRERERMT (&)
(Continued)
(c) Total cash outflow for leases 0 HERESRHESRE
The total cash outflow for leases included in the consolidated SFAGZEReRERNEER®
statement of cash flows is as follows: ML AAFEINT

2024 2023

—ECE —EB=F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AREEF T ARBTTT

Within operating activities RIEEEEN 16,717 15,064

Within investing activities RIEEEEN 272 —

Within financing activities R ELEEE A 62,089 49,285

79,078 64,349
The Group regularly entered into short-term leases for rehabilitation REBTEBBEEF L - MRE
centres, haemodialysis centres and staff quarters. As at 31 December MO REIEEIAAHEE -
2024 and 2023, the portfolio of short-term leases is similar to the RZE-_WMFER T -_=F+=
portfolio of short-term leases o which the short-term lease expense A=+—H EHHEEMNEER
disclosed in Note 8. & ELPT 5 8 4 R A9 58 A Tﬁfﬁtﬂi

BN EHEEEEEAS RS
31. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 3. HAEE

The Group is involved as defendants in certain medical disputes arising
from its normal business operations. Except for those disputes with
provision made as disclosed in note 23, the management of the Group
believes that the final result of other medical disputes with total claims of
RMB14,292,000 (2023: RMB13,949,000) as at 31 December 2024 will not
have a material impact on the financial position or operations of the Group
and the amount of outflow, if any, cannot be determined with sufficient
reliability prior to judicial appraisals. Accordingly, no provision is made in
this regard.
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32.

33.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

The Group had the following capital commitments at the end of the
reporting period:

e MR RMEE
For the Year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z-_WF+-_A=+—HILEFE

RB|BERAR  ARRBHATEARAE

2024 2023
—E-EF ZTZ=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREET T ARBFT
Capital expenditure in respect of property, RERE M BImERFEETHE
plant and equipment contracted for but REHOME - BFE REHED
not provided in the consolidated financial BARFE
statements 153,706 178,778

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC are members of state-
managed retirement benefit schemes operated by the PRC government.
The subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain percentage of payroll
costs to the retirement benefit schemes to fund the benefits. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement benefit schemes is to
make the specified contributions.

The Group operates the MPF Scheme for all qualifying employees in Hong
Kong. The assets of the schemes are held separately from those of the
Group, in funds under the control of trustees. The Group contributes 5%
of relevant payroll costs to the MPF Scheme, of which the contribution is
matched with those contributed by the employees. For certain employees,
the maximum monthly contribution is limited to HK$1,500 per employee.
There are no forfeited contributions that may be used by the Group (as the
employer) fo reduce its contributions in future years (2023: Nil).

3. BIx@EAIETE

AEBENTENBAREES HEF
B R S 2 48 0 B R B B AR I AR R A &
RIEKE - ZEM B QR AR ZENKE
MABXMEERIERAETES
LR RIR  (ERBERERRENE - &
SEHZARKBNFENE—EE
EVEHIEEMSRK -

AEEREERBARERERKIL
BIEEE - B CEERANKE
BESHRERE BHEEAEENES
A AKREARBETTEMNESR
ELRERNEH M AN S RIER
R -HRETRE BAKSITE
[REAZEE500ET - WEE R
HERAHEAKE (EREE) AR
ARFREEFOKF(ZT_=F:F) -
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e ISR AR MR

For the Year ended 31 December 2024
HE-Z-_WF+-A=1T—HILEHFE

34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a)

In addition to the amount due to a non-controlling shareholder of a

34.

(a)

subsidiary as mentioned in note 24 and transactions and balances
disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated financial statements,
the Group had entered into the following material related party
balances/transactions during the year:

Name of related

28 B

X5

Bk P R 24 P 2t F& 5 — ) Y /B
FIIEERECR A FIA R ZEFFA
MBEBREMEMAEENR S
RAERRIN - FAREE D FTILIA
TERBEMSHESR S

companies Relationship Nature of transactions 2024 2023
22k YN Ry & REME —BoME —To=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTFRT ARETT
Kanghua Group Shareholder Interest expenses on lease
REE PRER liabilities
MERBEZNEMAX 3,420 5,312
Lease liabilities
HE&RE 40,051 75,241
Variable lease payment
RS NR 51,088 47,770
Interest expense on amount
due to immediate holding
company (note 7)
FE BB R A R RIEF S
Az (FEE7) 3,084 -
Dongguan Tongli. Certain key management Interest expenses on lease
Enterprise Co., Ltd personnel of the Group  liabilities
ReemRNEE have ownership HEBGEZFMERX 655 1,018
BRATA interest Lease liabilities
rEBETIEER MHEARF 7,675 14,418
ANEBHBEFBEREL Variable lease payment
AEFAERNR 9,744 8,654
Dongguan Kanghua A Company owned Project management
Real Estate as to 80% by fee paid
Development Xingye Group ENEEEES
Co., Lid. —AREEEE
RETTH BREE fo 4 2 A 3 W H 80% KA A
BRATA 1,509 580
Dongguan Jingsheng A Company owned Landscape construction
Landscape Engineering as to 99% by fee paid
Co., ltd Xingye Group EREHERE
EEmEREsIR  HAXKE
ER AT HEH 99% H) R A 1703 _
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34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

35.

(a)

(b)

(Continued)

In addition to the guarantee and securities provided by the Group
to the relevant bank, Mr. Wang Junyang, the chairman of the Group
and 5™ E K A M A BR A 7], a company controlled by Xingye
Group also provided guarantees and had pledged its equity shares
in Kangxin Hospital to secure certain bank loans of the Group as
detailed in note 25 as at 31 December 2023.

Compensation of key management personnel of the Group

Key management personnel include directors and supervisors. The
remuneration of the key management personnel during the year is
disclosed in note 9. The remuneration of directors and supervisors
is defermined by the remuneration committee having regard to the
performance of individuals and market trends.

The related party transactions in respect of lease payments as disclosed
in note 34(a) above also constitute continuing connected transactions as
defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

BUSINESS COMBINATION AND ACQUISITIONS

(i)

On 15 December 2023, the Company entered into an acquisition
agreement with YouWang Enterprise, pursuant to which the Company
had agreed to acquire 70% equity interest in Kanghua Haemodialysis
Group at a consideration of RMB7,700,000. The acquisition was
completed on 9 January 2024 and Kanghua Haemodialysis has
since become a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company. The
acquisition has been accounted for using the acquisition method.

34.

35.

2 B

(a)

(b)

e MR RMEE
For the Year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z-_WF+-_A=+—HILEFE

3_\5 % (//?@Ei ,)
(&)

RZEZ=F+=ZA=+—H "
BrAREE R AREEITIREMER
MEEIN REBEFLIELL
ERBEMRKAM AR AE (—
KAEEEEREFHRQR) INE
HERWEERERNRELOERD
RIBLERAEENE TRITE
R GHIBERKIE25) -

REBETEEIEA B F

TEEEERRESFRESE R
REE  FTE2EE A B K HE
BRME - EEREENFH M
HHFMEZESRBEEARRE LT

LBBET

EXWE3Ma I EEBEENTN
B ARSMERGERERS (EE
R EMMRAEUAE) -

EBRSORWE

(i)

RZEBE-_=F+-_A+HH K
NAEIHEEREEII L IWERE
BHARNFTEREUREBARE
7,700,000 7T UK % B 2= MR B 1T &
B K 70% M - WESEHEE R =
T-_NF—ANBREK B
REMBRBENEK BN ABIRIIE
2EMBAR - AXWKEECHER
W B R AR o

RMB’000
AREET T

Total consideration BRAE
Cash deposits paid in prior year BEFEENBAESKRS 7,700
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RE R RMEE

For the Year ended 31 December 2024
BHE-ZT-WNF+-_A=1+—HBLFE

35. BUSINESS COMBINATION AND ACQUISITIONS (continued) 35 EXKEORWEE &)
(i) (Continued) W (&)
Assets and liabilities of Kanghua Haemodialysis Group recognised at UL EE B BRRE R B 2 IR BT
the date of acquisition SENEERAR
RMB’000
AREF T
Assets BE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BEREE 30,919
Deferred tax assefs BERIEEE 8,142
Right-of-use assefs ERAEEE 36,143
Deposits paid for acquisition of property, WHEME BEMRBDNES
plant and equipment 1,859
Inventories ra 3,132
Accounts and other receivables JFE UK BR SR % B b B M SR IR 16,538
Bank balances and cash WITHEBRIRS 6,132
102,865
Liabilities afE
Accounts and other payables JE AT AR 3 B EL il JE A< RR B 9,551
Amount due to a non-controlling shareholder of & 1< — & B /&8 /X B FE 45 A% A% 3R 09 7008
a subsidiary 209,348
Lease liabilities HERE 36,143
255,042
Total identifiable net liabilities AHEAFEELE (152,177)

Non-controlling interests

The non-controlling interests (30%) in Kanghua Haemodialysis Group
recognised at the acquisition date was measured by reference to
the proportionate share of recognised amounts of net liabilities of
Kanghua Haemodialysis Group and amounted to RMB45,653,000.
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35. BUSINESS COMBINATION AND ACQUISITIONS (Continued)

(i)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(Continued) (i)

Goodwill arising on acquisition of Kanghua Haemodialysis Group

e MR RMEE
For the Year ended 31 December 2024
HEZZT-_WNF+-_A=+—HIEFE

35. ¥BEORWE &)

(&)

WERENRENEBEL 2D

=

RMB’000

ARBFTT

Total consideration HRE 7,700

Less: non-controlling interests B IEEE R (45,653
Add: recognised amounts of m:EmRzMKEEEFEE

net liabilities acquired 152,177

Goodwill arising on acquisition WHEEE  EHE 114,224

Goodwill arose on acquisition of Kanghua Haemodialysis Group
because the acquisition included the assembled workforce and
established outpatient centres of Kanghua Haemodialysis Group
and potential corporate synergies. These benefits are not recognised
separately from goodwill because they do not meet the recognition
criteria for identifiable intangible assets.

None of the goodwill arising on the acquisition is expected to be
deductible for tax purposes.

Net cash inflow arising on acquisition of Kanghua Haemodiaysis
Group

WERENRENEBERELR
2 RARWEBEERENRE
TERENEEEIREKIMZ
0 RBE R F T RE - ZF
M an W BT B D AR FH
TRAABRELEENERR

BB ELE ZBES T AMEH
B -

WERENRETEEELEZR
EIMAFR

RMB’000

ARBT T

Total consideration BRE 7,700
Less: utilisation of deposit paid for acquisition & : BRBEFERENBE AR 2 Hike

of subsidiaries in prior year (7,700)

Add: cash and cash equivalents acquired m:2EEReIBEREFEY 6,132

6,132

Impact of acquisition on the results of the Group

Included in the profit for the current year is a loss of RMB21,333,000
attributable to the additional business incurred by Kanghua
Haemodialysis Group. Revenue for the current year includes
RMB75,770,000 generated from Kanghua Haemodialysis Group.

WEHAREXEZRZE

AEERHNBRERKERENDLRE
MEBMEINEBTE - EE
A R # 21,333,000 7T ° A& F E U
HEERENRENEBMESL
AR ¥ 75,770,000 7T °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RE R RMEE

For the Year ended 31 December 2024
HE-Z-_WF+-A=1T—HILEHFE

35. BUSINESS COMBINATION AND ACQUISITIONS (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(Continued)
Impact of acquisition on the results of the Group (Continued)

The ‘pro-forma’ revenue and profit of the Group had Kanghua
Haemodialysis Group been acquired at the beginning of current
year are not disclosed given the short period from 1 January 2024 to
completion date of the acquisition.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group acquired
40% equity interest of Kangxin Hospital from the non-controlling
shareholder at a consideration of RMB108,000,000. Kangxin Hospital
became a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group after the acquisition.
The difference between the accumulated loss attributable to non-
controlling shareholder of Kangxin Hospital of RMB87,884,000 and
the consideration paid by the Group of RMB195,884,000 and was
debited to the other reserve and accumulated in equity.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group acquired 32.9%
equity interest of & i1 & 5z = & iz & 2 A IR 2 A from the non-
controlling shareholder at a consideration of RMB57,000. The Group
owned 90.6% equity interest in Hefei Aikanghui as a result of the
acquisition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

36. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will be
able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return to the
shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The
Group's overall strategy remains unchanged from prior years.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debts, which include lease
liabilities, amount due to a non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary and
bank loans disclosed in notes 15(b), 24 and 25, respectively, net of cash
and cash equivalents and equity attributable to owners of the Company,
comprising share capital and reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on a regular
basis. As part of this review, the directors of the Company consider
the cost and the risks associated with each class of capital. Based on
recommendation of the directors of the Company, the Group will balance
its overall capital structure through the payment of dividends, new share
issues as well as the issue of new debt or the redemption of existing debt.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is measured on
the basis of the total interest-bearing bank loans divided by the total equity.
At 31 December 2024, the Group’s gearing ratio was approximately 15.7%
(2023: 21.3%).

36.

e ISR AR M RE

For the Year ended 31 December 2024
HE-_Z-_NE+-_A=+—HItEE

EREREE

AEEERHERNUABRASEADN
EREERERLE RANEBELE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RE R RMEE

For the Year ended 31 December 2024
BHE-ZT-WNF+-_A=1+—HBLFE

37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 37. RERZTHNEMIA
The carrying amounts of each category of financial instruments at the end RBEHARSEeRm T ANKREAEN
of the reporting period are as follows: I
Financial assets: SR EE
As at 31 December 2024 R-ZB-NE+=A=+t—H
Financial
Financial assets at
assets at fair value
amortised through
cost profit or loss Total
R R A ®AYE
S BR Y FFABRN
TREE TRIEE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT T ARET T ARBT T

Restricted bank balances SR HER 17 45 6k 3,088 = 3,088
Bank balances and cash RITEHR MRS 242,604 = 242,604
Fixed bank deposits TEHARITIF X 65,800 - 65,800

Financial assets included in FT AR U BR SR R E A
accounts and other receivables ERFIEN SR EE 286,063 = 286,063

Financial assets at fair value through BERAFEFABZD
profit or loss TREE - 394,000 394,000
597,555 394,000 991,555
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Financial assets: (Continued)

As at 31 December 2023

e MR RMEE
For the Year ended 31 December 2024
BEZT-MF+-A=+—HLFE

37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (Continued) 37. RERESMNEMITA (&

TRMEE : (8)

RZE_=F+=ZH=+—8

Financial

Financial assets at

assefs at fair value

amortised through
cost  profit or loss Total

2 BT JDN BATE
JIBRE) AT ABRZEM

TREE ETREE mst
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETT ARETET ARBTT

Restricted bank balances

Bank balances and cash

Fixed bank deposits

Financial assets included in accounts
and other receivables

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

ZPRHIERTT 4 R 2,732 = 2,732
RITEHRLES 305,171 = 305,171
FEHIRITIF A 63,350 = 63,350
B A UK BR SR N EL A FE U 5k 0E

K& & E 270,081 = 270,081

BRAFEFABRSNESREE
= 383,400 383,400

641,334 383,400 1,024,734

Financial liabilities:

TRAE:

Financial liabilities at
amortised cost

REBERRTIENERAE
2024 2023
—EZF —ZE=F
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBETT ARET T

Financial liabilities included in accounts and ST AR BR B E b fE A 5RIE

other payables

MNemaE 501,638 457,930

Amount due to a non-controlling shareholder & < — R B B8 /22 7] A FE 458 B A% 2R 3%

of a subsidiary 18 134,248 -
Bank loans IRITER 229,067 318,825
Lease liabilities HEaE 91,589 107,757
956,542 884,512
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For the Year ended 31 December 2024
HE-Z-_WF+-A=1T—HILEHFE

38.

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS

Management has assessed that the fair values of restricted bank balances,
fixed bank deposits, bank balances and cash, financial assets included
in accounts and other receivables, amount due to a non-controlling
shareholder of a subsidiary, financial liabilities included in accounts and
other payables and the current portion of bank loans approximate to their
carrying amounts.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included at
the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current
transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation
sale.

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair
values:

The fair value of the non-current portion of bank loans has been calculated
by discounting the expected future cash flows using rates currently
available for instruments with similar terms, credit risk and remaining
maturities. The changes in fair value as a result of the Group’s own non-
performance risk for bank loans as at 31 December 2024 were assessed
to be insignificant. In the opinion of the directors of the Company, their
carrying amounts are not significantly different from their respective fair
values.

The fair value of the Group’s financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss is determined by reference to recent transaction prices of the
investments or carried at valuations performed by management, external
valuer or related administrators.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

38. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL

INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy

e MR RMEE
For the Year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z-_WF+-_A=+—HILEFE

38. TMITANAIFERLQFER

The following tables illustrate the fair value hierarchy and valuation

techniques of the Group’s financial assets measured at fair value:

Fair value as at 31 December

(&)
NEERE K

TRUPALAEBIZAFEFEND R
BENRFERRLGERM :

RTZA=+—B22A¥E Fairvalue Significant
2024 2023  hierarchy Valuation technique  unobservable inputs
—EoME —ET-=F AQAFEER HEEN BRE AEE
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETRT AR%®TET
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
BRAFEFABRN
TREE
- Fund investment 24,000 33,400 Llevel 3 Market multiple Multiples used in the
ESKE E=ZH approach based recent fransaction
on the recent price (Note 1)
transaction price  FTEARZ B BIEFT
[Note 1) HANEH
ERNABARSEET (1)
B EUE (FsE1)
— Structured bank deposits 370,000 350,000 Level 3 Discounted cash flow Discount rate,
EBMRITER F=H (Note 2) estimated return
BRI IR S (Note 2)
(fF5E2) BEIRE - fhEHIE
(Mt5E2)
Note 1:  In estimating the fair value of the fund investment, the Group engages an MizEl: REETESIREN QA TER - A&
external valuer to perform the valuation which is reviewed by management. ZEEHNEMEEMEITEE - WA
The higher the multiples used in the recent transaction price, the higher the BERBETES - LR SERM
fair value. HANGEEYS  ATFEES -
Note 2:  The higher the discount rate, the lower fair value; the higher the estimated Mizke: BRI WS AFEMIE &5

return, the higher the fair value.

Waim  AFELS -
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e R RMEE
For the Year ended 31 December 2024
BHE-ZT-WNF+-_A=1+—HBLFE

38. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
Fair value hierarchy (Continued)
The Group did not have any financial liabilities measured at fair value as at

31 December 2024 and 2023.

The movement in fair value measurements within Level 3 during the year
are as follows:

38. TMITANQIFERLQFER

e

NEERER (&
RZE_WFR_E-_=F+=A
=+t H AEBITETAIZAFE

FREMERAE-

FAE=ZMAVEFELPOT :

2024 2023
—ENE —E-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBETT AR¥ETT

At 1January Rn—H—H 383,400 508,000
Purchases BB 750,000 868,000
Disposals HE (730,000) (990,000
Fair value change included in other expenses,  sF AEAMFS ~ Wz R EEFEN

gains and losses, net NEEZS (9,400) (2,600)
At 31 December R+Z—A=+—AH 394,000 383,400

During both years, there were no transfers of fair value measurements
between Level 1 and Level 2 and no fransfers into or out of Level 3 for both
financial assets and financial liabilities.

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s major financial instruments include financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss, certain accounts and other receivables, fixed
bank deposits, restricted bank balances, bank balances and cash, certain
accounts and other payables, amount due to a non-controlling shareholder
of a subsidiary, bank loans and lease liabilities. Details of these financial
instruments are disclosed in the respective notes. The risks associated with
these financial instruments and the policies on how to mitigate these risks
are set out below. Management manages and monitors these exposures
to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and effective
manner.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(Continued)

(i

Market risk
Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in relation to
variable-rate bank balances and a bank loan due to the fluctuation
of the prevailing market interest rate. The Group is also exposed to
fair value interest rate risk in relation to fixed-rate fixed bank deposits,
restricted bank balances and a fixed-rate bank loan. The Group
currently does not have a policy on hedging of interest rate risks.
However, management monitors interest rate exposures and will
consider hedging significant interest rate risk should the need arise.

The Group’s exposure to interest rate risk on financial liabilities
is detailed in the liquidity risk management section of this note.
The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is mainly concentrated on
the fluctuation of benchmark interest rate for loans offered by the
People’s Bank of China arising from the bank loan.

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on the
exposure to interest rates for the bank loan and bank balances. The
analyses were prepared assuming these balances outstanding at
the end of the reporting period were outstanding for the whole year.

50 basis points (2023: 50 basis points) increase represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible change
in interest rates. Management does not anticipate a decrease in
interest rate for bank loan and bank balances in the next financial
year having regard to the trends in benchmark interest rate for the
loan offered by the People’s Bank of China and global economic
environment. Accordingly, sensitivity analysis on a decrease in
interest rates is not presented.

If interest rates on the bank loan and bank balances had been 50
basis points (2023: 50 basis points) higher and all other variables
were held constant, the profit for the year would increase by
approximately RMB68,000 (2023: profit for the year would increase
by approximately RMB262,000).
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e ISR AR MR

For the Year ended 31 December 2024
BHE-ZT-WNF+-_A=1+—HBLFE

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(Continued)

(i) Market risk (Continved)
Foreign currency risk

The Group's exposure to currency risk attributable to monetary
assets and liabilities, which are denominated in currencies other
than the functional currency of the entity to which they related. The
Group considers its foreign currency exposure mainly arises from the
exposure of RMB against HK$ and United States Dollar ("USD").

The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency denominated
monetary assets and monetary liabilities at 31 December 2024 and
2023 are as follows:

39. eRiEREEAEREE &)

(i)

mi5E R (&)
SN EEE LB

AEEHEEREAEEERGE
BRANEBIENEEEER
BEZENRAR AEERR
HINER R EBERBARELE
S ESES DT

RZBEZWNER T _=F+=
B=Z+—H  AEBEMNUINESHE
MEBEEREYAGEEREED

T
Assets
BE
2024 2023
—EIWEF —EZ=F
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARBTT

HK$ BIT 66,675 66,210
usD ETT 58 1,182
66,733 67,392

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging policy.
However, the management monitors foreign exchange exposure
and will consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure
should the need arise.
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(Continued)

(i

(ii)

Market risk (Continued)
Foreign currency risk (Continued)

As at 31 December 2024, if HK$ had strengthened/weakened
against RMB by 5% (2023: 5%) with all other variables held constant,
profit for the year would have been higher/lower by approximately
RMB2,784,000 (2023: RMB2,762,000) mainly as a result of the
increase/decrease in net foreign exchange gains on translation of
bank balances and cash and, other receivables denominated in
non-functional currencies of the relevant group entities. If USD had
strengthened/weakened against RMB by 5% with all other variables
held constant, profit for the year would have been higher/lower by
approximately RMB2,000 (2023: RMB49,000) mainly as a result of
the increase/decrease in net foreign exchange gains on translation
of bank balances and cash, other receivables and other payables
denominated in non-functional currencies of the relevant group
entities.

Other price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through fund investment
classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.

For investment in fund investment, the composition of the underlying
investment mainly consists of unlisted equity securities. The Group
has designated a special team to monitor the price risk and will
consider hedging the risk exposure should the need arise. The
Group's post-tax profit for the year would increase/decrease by
RMB2,400,000 (2023: RMB3,600,000), respectively, if the price of the
fund investment had been 10% higher/lower.
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For the Year ended 31 December 2024

BE—

T_MOFE+-_A=1T—RALFE

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(Continued)

(i)

(iii)

Other price risk (Continued)

Management considered the remaining balance of financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss, representing structured bank
deposits, is not subject to material price risk.

Credit risk and impairment assessment
Accounts receivable

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the event of the
counterparties’ failure to perform their obligations at the end of the
reporting period in relation to each class of recognised financial
assets is the carrying amount of these assets as stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position of the Group.

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group collectively
assessed the lifetime ECL based on a rating of probability of default
with reference to external default rate by operating industries of the
counterparty other than accounts receivable for PRC government's
social insurance schemes and certain credit-impaired debtors
of RMB13,881,000 (2023: RMB12,305,000) which are assessed
individually as at 31 December 2024.
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(Continued)

(iii)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)
Accounts receivable (Continued)

The following table provides information about the exposure to credit
risk for trade receivables from PRC government's social insurance
schemes and other trade receivables which are assessed on a
collective basis within lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired).

e MR RMEE
For the Year ended 31 December 2024
BEZT-MF+-A=+—HLFE

39. ¢RiEREEAEREE &)

(iii)

=5 R MORE L (8)
YRR ()

TREHNREZHEHREEBHER
(CREEFEERE) ZERELEF
HERTRBRFTLERRETEZ
B 5 WA R E B 5 UK
HFEREERBROER

Gross carrying amount IREAE
2024 2023
TEIWEF —_T_=%F
Average Trade Average Trade
Type of debtor loss rate receivables loss rate receivables
B AR FHEEE EHREE  THERX E5BWKHIE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T AREFTT
PRC government's social PRI E

insurance schemes REEtEl 0.06% 225,576 0.19% 228,246
Corporate customers TERP 1.21% 14,799 0.40% 11,012
Individual customers (ENT 1.59% 25,941 1.24% 18,182
266,316 257,440
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For the Year ended 31 December 2024
BHE-ZT-WNF+-_A=1+—HBLFE

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES 39. TREBEREBEREX#)
(Continued)
(il ~ Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued) i) 15 E R KR ER G (&)
Accounts receivable (Continued) FEUW AR FR (&)
The following table shows the movement in lifetime ECLs that has TRFBARBE LT AR ER
been recognised for accounts receivable under the simplified R BEEEEENES
approach.

Lifetime ECLs  Lifetime ECLs

(not credit- (credit-
impaired) impaired) Total

2 HRTEHR 2 HRFEHA

EEE1E FEFA
(FEERE) (SERE) wst
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARBTT ARETT

As at 1January 2023 RZE-_=%—H—H 740 11,199 11,939
Loss allowance recognised EEREEEE 265 5,324 5,589
Loss allowance reversed [RECYE =k (295) (2,586 (2,881)
Write-off 49 - (1,632) (1,632)

As at 31 December 2023 and at R-E-=4F

1January 2024 +ZA=+—HRK

R -_WF—H—H 710 12,305 13,015
Loss allowance recognised EEREEEE 284 8,519 8,803
Loss allowance reversed B SERE (264) (4,155) (4,419)
Write-off s - (2,762) (2,762)
Reclassified as held for sale BN BERBELE (13) (26) (39)

As at 31 December 2024 R-ZZE_MEF
+—-A=+—H 717 13,881 14,598
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(Continued)

(iii)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)
Accounts receivable (Continued)

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the Company
has delegated a team responsible for the determination of credit
limits, credit approvals and other monitoring procedures over the
customers to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue
debts. In addition, the Group reviews the recoverable amount of
each individual debt at the end of each year to ensure that adequate
loss allowance is made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard,
the directors of the Company consider that the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced.

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 84.8% (2023: 86.4%)
and 98.9% (2023: 94.6%) of the total accounts receivable were
due from the Group’s largest debtor and the five largest debtors,
respectively.

e ISR AR M RE

For the Year ended 31 December 2024
HE-_Z-_NE+-_A=+—HItEE

39. ¢RiEREEAEREE &)

(iii)

=5 R MORE L (8)
FEW AR (&)

REFEREEERR  KAAQF
ERECZR—EAEGAEETE
ERATPMERELR  FERH
REMEEEF - BRREURE
H iR BB AT o bLHh - A&
BN & F RS ERER A
Yol & 58 - BELRBL A AT Uk Bl & B8
EH RSB REE - Ut = -
ARAEERRAKENEER
RO AR

rEBENEERRBREYE AR
848% (—Z - =4 :86.4%) * &
WER KB FEH98.9% (T - =
F:946%) D RIKARNEEZAK
MEBARAKEBA -

EREEEREERNARAR F1 2024
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RE R RMEE

For the Year ended 31 December 2024
BHE-ZT-WNF+-_A=1+—HBLFE

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(Continued)

(iii)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)
Financial assets included in other receivables

The Group collectively assessed the lifetime ECLs based on the rating
of probability of default other than certain credit-impaired debtors of
RMB1,833,000 (2023: RMB2,180,000) which are assessed individually
as at 31 December 2024 and 2023.

39. eREMREEBERBE#E)

(iii)

=5 AR MORER L (&)

FEARM SRR S B E E

REFMER (MIEETEERE
B AR 1,833,000 (=&
— =4 AR¥2180,0007T) -

R-Z-WFER

—E-=F+4+=

A=t+—HE#&FAEL @R
HE) BB E AR A2 HE

HzEEIE -

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of financial FTAHAMEBGRIBEN S BE ER
assets included in other receivables are as follows: BEEERBENESHNT
2024 2023
—EEF —B_=F
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBT T
At beginning of year R A) 2,380 2,320
Impairment losses reversed EREREEE (427) (398)
Impairment losses recognised ERBEEE 320 458
Reclassified as held for sale BROBRBELHE (84) =
At end of year RER 2,189 2,380
An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date by REBREDHRBERERSY

considering the probability of default of counterparties. The Group
also takes into account the forward-looking information to reflect
the debtors’ probability of default under the current conditions and
forecasts of future economic conditions, as appropriate. As at 31
December 2024, the average loss rate of financial assets included in
other receivables was 9.7% (2023: 15.3%).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A HRRMEE

For the Year ended 31 December 2024
HE-_Z-_NE+-_A=+—HItEE

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES 39. TREMEEBEREX#)

(Continued)

(il ~ Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued) i) 15 E R KR ER G (&)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging AR R FERBEERS R
The tables below show the credit quality and the maximum exposure TRINTERAEBEFEERER
to credit risk based on the Group’s credit policy, which is mainly EEHAZREAEERREA L
based on the customer type and market default rate unless other Mt+tZRA=1+—"HNFEEES
information is available without undue cost or effort, and year-end HomASBEMNEERRANEE
staging classification as at 31 December. The amounts presented are EREPEIRMBENE (B
gross carrying amounts for financial assets. BIBZ A AN ESH A

BRI - MEINZEF S
BiETHEENE@AE -

At 31 December 2024 RZE-_OmFE+-A=+—H
12-month ECLs Lifetime ECLs
1218 A 785
EEFE 2HBHEERR

Simplified ~ Simplified
approach  approach
not credif- credit-
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 impaired impaired Total
Bt @Rk
F-KR  E-BR  EZKR (FREAE) (FEHE) @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARETR ARETR ARBTR AR®Tn ARET:x

Accounts receivable RN - - - 266,316 13,881 280,197
Restricted bank balances RBHRITES

—~Not yet past due —-HAREH 3,088 - = = - 3,088
Bank balances and cash ROBEBRRES

—~Not yet past due —HAEH 308,404 - - - - 308,404
financial assets included in STAE KA

other receivables CREAE

- Normal* ~EE* 20,820 - - - - 20,820

- Doubfful* - R - - 1,833 - - 1,833

332,312 - 1,833 266,316 13,881 614,342
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR AR MR

For the Year ended 31 December 2024
BHE-ZT-WNF+-_A=1+—HBLFE

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

(Continued)

[ii)  Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging (Continued)

39. eRiEREEAEREE &)

i) =8

[\ k2 NMORE RT 1k ()

R= R M FRERDE(E)

At 31 December 2023 RZEZ=F+=ZRA=+—8
12-month
ECls Lifefime ECLs
REAES
FEEE PHESEERR
Simplified Simplified
approach — approach
not credit- credit-
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 impaired impaired Total
Bt Bk
F-BE  F-Be  F-BR GHEERE) (FERE) @5t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETR
Accounts receivable YR - - - 257,440 12,305 269,745
Resricted bank balances RREFTES
—~Not yet past due — R 2732 - - - = 2732
Bank balances and cash ROBHRERE
—~Not yet past due —HAREE 368,521 = = £ = 368,521
Financial assets included in ARt ENFIER
other receivables tHEE
- Normal* —-E& 13,367 - - - - 13,367
- Doubtful* -RE - - 2,180 - - 2,180
384,620 . 2080 257440 12,305 656,545
2 The credit quality of the financial assets included in other receivables is S FRARMERRIBEZ cRAE

considered to be “normal” when they are not past due and there is no
information indicating that the financial assets have significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition. Otherwise, the credit quality of the
financial assets is considered to be “doubtful”.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(Continued)

(iv)

Liquidity risk

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with
management, which has built an appropriate liquidity risk
management framework for the management of the Group’s short,
medium and long-term funding and liquidity requirements. The
Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves,
banking and borrowing facilities, by continuously monitoring forecast
and actual cash flows and matching the maturity profiles of financial
assets and liabilities.

The following tables detail the Group’s remaining contractual maturity
for its financial liabilities. The table has been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest
date on which the Group can be required to pay. The maturity dates
for other non-derivative financial liabilities are based on the agreed
repayment dates.

The tables include both interest and principal cash flows. To the
extent that the undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate at
the end of the reporting period.

e MR RMEE
For the Year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z-_WF+-_A=+—HILEFE

39. ¢RiEREEAEREE &)

(iv)

mENE 2 ER

nBETEBREREAEEER
RAEE VERYBEENORDE
TRRBEEER  UNFEAEH
EREH - FHEERRHES R
BESHHRTE - REBENEES
BRARBRERBANERRESR
E peREERABNIHR
SUETTECE - 16 4 15 58 = B
B RITRIERBRE  EERY
B R -

TRAVNAEENZRA BN
TEHIHNR - W RZBER
BEAMARSRERH  HP
NARBANROZEAHAE
B HMIENTAE SR B ERF 5
B At T BV IE X B A ERE -

KRB EMERARERERE
REIR & BB AR B RS HAROF

EREEEREERNARAR F1 2024
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RE R RMEE

For the Year ended 31 December 2024
BHE-ZT-WNF+-_A=1+—HBLFE

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES 9. ERIEREEREREX &)

(Continued)
(iv)  Liquidity risk (Continued) iv) mEBESRE#E)
Weighted
average Total
effective  On demand undiscounted Total
inferest  or less than More than cash carrying
rafe Tyear  To5years 5years flows amount
mE¥H  BEXY RERRE
BRAZ —£R 1255 BBSE  REAE AREE
% RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
% ARETT ARBTR AR%Tn ARETT ARETR
At 31 December 2024 13
TZB=t+-H
Financial liabiliies included in STAER R R E A
accounts and other payables ERFENERER NATER 501,638 - - 501,638 501,638
Bankloans RITER 4.41% 4179 194,845 40,153 239,177 229,067
Lease liabilfies HEaR 6.00% 65,134 24,919 1,795 101,848 91,589
Amount duefo anon-controlling R —EH B A A
shareholder of a subsidiary FERBEFE NATER - 134,248 - 134,248 134,248
570,951 354,012 51,948 976,91 956,542
At 31 December 2023 R-B-=F
+-A=1+-AR
Financial liabiliies included in STARR R REM
accounts and other payables ERFENERAR N/AT B 457,930 = = 457,930 457930
Bankloans SITEK 5.67% 41807 186517 164213 392597 318825
Lease liabiliies HEEE 5.66% 52,048 61,818 1320 115,186 107,757
551,785 248,335 165,593 965,713 884,512
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A HRRMEE

For the Year ended 31 December 2024
HE-_Z-_NE+-_A=+—HItEE

40. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY 40. 7S BV B RS AR R

BRARBNHRERBROFBHARREK

Information about the statement of financial position of the Company at the

end of the reporting period is as follows: AR :
2024 2023
—EZMmF —E-=F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARETF T
NON-CURRENT ASSET FRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries AR B R A 757,196 787,496
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Other receivables H b W FR I8 1,525 10,501
Financial assets at fair value through BRAFEFABRONESHEE
profit or loss 350,000 350,000
Amounts due from subsidiaries UK BT B R R 3R IE 358,220 338,409
Tax receivables JE U FR 1E 926 924
Restricted bank balances SR HIR 1T 45 84 50 856
Bank balances and cash RITEHEBR MRS 5,218 18,200
Total current assets MEEERLE 715,939 718,890
CURRENT LIABILITIES RBAE
Other payables and accruals HEMENAFIERETEA 404 1,493
Amounts due to subsidiaries FETH B A R 5 10,700 10,700
Total current liabilities REEEHEE 11,104 12,193
Net current assets RBEEFE 704,835 706,697
Net assets EEFE 1,462,031 1,494,193
EQUITY Em
Share capital [N 334,394 334,394
Reserves (Note) bt (HsE) 1,127,637 1,159,799
Total equity AR 1,462,031 1,494,193

EREEEREERNARAR F1 2024
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RE R RMEE

For the Year ended 31 December 2024
BHE-ZT-WNF+-_A=1+—HBLFE

40. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY 40. AR BB IEAR R 3R (%)

(Continued)
Nofe: Bzt :
Movements in reserves: fEEEE
Share Capital Statutory Retained
premium reserve reserve earnings Total
B aE BRGFE EERKE RERBF @st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AREFT ARETT ARETT ARETT
(note (il) (note il (note {iiil)
(PEEG) (P () (P (i)
At 1January 2023 R-_ZT-_=F—H—H 698,214 53,394 37,749 131,206 920,563
Profit and total comprehensive 4 A3 il 2 2 EIRA
income for the year mE = - - 239,236 239,236
Appropriation fo statutory reserve 12 EBUATE 7 & - - 23,924 (23,924 -
At 31 December 2023 and at R-ZZE-=%F
1January 2024 +ZA=+—HK
R-ZZE-mWE—HF—A 698,214 53,394 61,673 346,518 1,159,799
Loss and total comprehensive ~ FREE R 2 EEE
loss for the year meE - - - (32,162) (32,162)
At 31 December 2024 RZZZMEF
+=-A=+—8 698,214 53,394 61,673 314,356 1,127,637
Notes: B

EAFEENBEARMEREFER

(i) The capital reserve represents the difference between the net asset value of (i)

(ii)

(iii)

the subsidiaries and the nominal amount of the Company’s shares which
were issued as consideration for the subsidiaries at the time of the group
reorganisation in preparation for the listing of the Company’s shares.

According to the relevant laws in the PRC, the Company which was
established in the PRC is required to transfer at least 10% of its net profit
after taxation, as determined under the PRC accounting regulations, to a
non-distributable reserve fund until the reserve balance reaches 50% of
the registered capital. The transfer to this reserve must be made before the
distribution of dividends to owners. Such reserve fund can be used to offset
the previous years’ losses, if any, and is non-distributable other than upon
liquidation.

At 31 December 2024, the Company has distributable reserve of
RMB314,356,000 available for distribution (2023: RMB346,518,000).
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(iii)
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REBEHEBEEER RHPBEKID
RRABRERDEEGHERBRERR
E W& 4R 2= 2210% 5 A 8] 99 )k 7
BE BEEREEEREIEMELRD
50%  FOA FE A A 0 KAk B AT A
wEEES 2B ANEHES
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41.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A HRRMEE

PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the Company’s subsidiaries as at 31 December 2024 and 2023

are as follows:

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

4. B ARER

PiINS/NIST e

w3

For the Year ended 31 December 2024
HE-_Z-_NE+-_A=+—HItEE

THOERZT=F

TZA=+—HHOWBAREHNT

ARAZERBATHEENT

Place of
incorporation/ Issued and fully
esfablishment paid share capital/ Percentage of
and operations registered/paid-up capital equity interest attributable
Name of subsidiary A Rk BEORERRE/ fo the Group Principal acfivities
WELRAH 2Em it/ AR AEEEGERER DL IEEH
2024 2023
“E-mE “Z-=F
Directly held
BERE
Dongguan Kanghua Hospital The PRC/ Registered and paid-up 100% 100%  Operation of a hospital
Co., ld. Mainland China capital RMB350,000,000
RERERERARDA e/ B AMRESERARK geBk
350,000,000 7T
Dongguan Renkang Hospital The PRC/ Registered and paid-up 57% 57%  Operation of a hospital
Co., Ltd. "Renkang Hospital’) Mainland China capital RMB60,000,000
=CRBRERAR R/ RER AMRESERARE R28R
(IEREER]) 60,000,000 7
Chongging Kanghua Zhonglian The PRC/ Registered and paid-up 100% 100%  Operation of a hospital
Cardiovascular Hospital Co., Ltd. Mainland China capital RMB64,000,000
('Kangxin Hospital’) (2023: RMB270,000,000]
ERRERBOMERER B/ hE R EMREGER g2ER
ARRA(RUOER]) AR 64,000,007
(ZBZ=F: ARE
270,000,000 7C)
Chongaing Kanghua Zhonglian The PRC/ Registered capifal 100% N/A Property holding
Healthcare Management Co., Lid. Mainland China RMB606,000,000/Paid-up
'Chongaing Kanghua Property’) capital RMB206,000,000
(Note)
EERERHERER mE/hERE EER AR 606,000,000 TER  NEER
BRAR(EBRENR]) T/ EFERNRYE
(PisT) 206,000,000 70
Dongguan Kanghua Healthcare The PRC/ Registered and paid-up 100% 100%  Provision of hospital
Management Co., Lid. Mainland China capital RMB11,000,000 management services
RERERRERERAA HE/ B AMREFERARK RUBRERRY
11,000,000 7t
Kanghua Healthcare Hong Kong/ Ordinary shares HK$10,000 100% 100%  Provision of management
Management (HK) Hong Kong services
Company Limited
REBRER(BE)ERAR  BB/EA Ei@MR100008 7T REER RS

EREEEREERNARAR F1 2024
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RE R RMEE

For the Year ended 31 December 2024
BHE-ZT-WNF+-_A=1+—HBLFE

41. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continved) 4. WERRER (&)
Place of
incorporation/ Issued and fully
establishment paid share capital/ Percentage of
and operations registered/paid-up capital equity interest atfributable
Name of subsidiary HMKL/BUR  BEORGRRE/ o the Group Principal activities
i=yNGIEAE 2EME it/ AR AEEEGERER DL FEEH
2024 2023

—E-ME —E-=F

Dongguan Kanghua Healthcare The PRC/ Registered capital 100% 100%  Investment holding
Industry Investment Fund Mainland China RMB100,000,000/paid-up
Co, Lid. capital RMB41,200,000
[2023: RMBA40,400,000)
REREBRESXRELES RE/RER FEHE 2 A R 100,000,000 RERK
BRAT] T/
EREXARE
41,200,000
(ZB-Z=%:
AR 40,400,0007T)
Dongguan Kanghua Elderly Care The PRC/ Registered capifal 100% 100%  Investment holding
Services Management Co., Lid Mainland China RMB10,000,000/paid-up

capital RMB5,700,000
[2023: RMB5,500,000]

RERERERBER HE/ R FERARE REER
BRAR 10,000,000 7T,/
EHERARS
5700000T (ZB-=F:
AR 5,500,000 7T)
Dongguan Kanghua Medical The PRC/ Registered and paid-up 100% 100%  Investment holding
Rehabilitation Investment Mainland China capital RMB80,000,000
Co,, ld.
RREREREBRREER hE/ B FMRERERARE RERK
NG] 80,000,0007C
Dongguan Kanghua Healthcare The PRC/ Registered and paid-up capital 100% 100%  Investment/property holding
Investment Co., Lid. Mainland China RMB150,000,000
(2023: RMB50,000,000)
RRREREREAERAR e/ B AMREHERARE RE/MEER
150,000,000 7T
(ZEZ=%: AR¥
50,000,0007T)
Dongguan Kanghua The PRC/ Registered and paid-up capital 70% N/A  Investment holding
Haemodialysis Healthcare Investment  Mainland China RMB11,000,000
Management
Co., Ltd. "Kanghua Haemodialysis’)
REREMNRBNBEREEE S8 /AR SMREHERARE TER REER
BRAR ([FRELRER]) 11,000,000 7
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41.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A HRRMEE

For the Year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z-_WF+-_A=+—HILEFE

PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 4. MBELARIER (&)
Place of
incorporation/ Issued and fully
establishment paid share capital/ Percentage of
and operations registered/paid-up capital equity interest atfributable
Narme of subsidiary HMAL/BUR  BEARGREE/ o the Group Principal activities
WELRAH 2E i/ EHER AEEEGERER DL IEEH
2024 2023
“E-mE “Z-=F
Indirectly held
B
Hefei Xingu Medical Rehabilitation ~ The PRC/ Registered and paid-up capital 57% 57%  Investment holding/provision
Investment Co., Lid.* Mainland China RMB1,000,000 of healthcare
management services
AEEAREBERE /R E R AMRESERARE REBR/REZE
BRAG 1,000,000 7T ERRE
Hefei Xinging Medical Management  The PRC/ Registered and paid-up capital 57% 57%  Investment holding/provision
Co,, ltd* Mainland China RMB50,000 of healthcare management
services
AEEEERERERAA" B/ hER EMREHER REZR/REZE
AR 50,0007 ERRE
Anhui Hualin Medical The PRC/ Registered and paid-up capital 57% 57%  Investment holding/provision
Investment Co., Ltd. Mainland China RMB23,390,000 of healthcare management
(*Anhui Hualin’) services
ZHERBERABRL B/ hER AMRESERARE REZR/REBE
(T BER]) 23,390,0007C EER%
Dongguan Renkang Elderly The PRC/ Registered and paid-up 57% 57%  Provision of elderly
Care Centre Co., ld. Mainland China capital RMB5,000,000 healthcare services
('Renkang Elderly Care Centre')
RCREERARAA /R ER AMREHERARK RUREBERE
;3 3:0)) 5,000,000 70
Guangzhou Kangmin Haemodialysis ~ The PRC/ Registered and paid-up capital 70% N/A Operation of haemodialysis
Co., ld.* Mainland China RMB10,000,000 outpatient centre
BNRROLBENHERLA"  HE/HERK AMRESERARE TER BE2ORERTHZHL
10,000,000 7%
Shenzhen Kangcheng Haemodialysis — The PRC/ Registered and paid-up capital 70% N/A Operation of haemodialysis
Centre® Mainland China RMB1,000,000 outpatient centre
AR R B L B/ hER AMRERERARE TER  ERMmRENMZHL
1,000,000 7T
Foshan Kangcheng Haemodialysis Co., The PRC/ Registered and paid-up capital 70% N/A Operation of haemodialysis
Ltd.# Mainland China RMB5,740,000 outpatient centre
BWTRALRETAERAR  FE/PEAH AMREGERARK TER SELRERPIZ R
5,740,000 7

EREEEREERNARAR F1 2024
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RE R RMEE

For the Year ended 31 December 2024
HE-Z-_WF+-A=1T—HILEHFE

41.

PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Place of
incorporation/ Issued and fully
establishment paid share capital/ Percentage of
and operations registered/paid-up capital equity interest atfributable
Narme of subsidiary A Rk BEORERRE/ o the Group Principal activities
WELRAH 2EME i/ EHER AEEEGERER DL IEEH
2024 2023
“E-NE “Z-=F
Guangzhou Chengguang The PRC/ Registered and paid-up capital 70% N/A Operation of haemodialysis
Haemodialysis Centre Co., Ltd.* Mainland China RMB8,000,000 outpatient centre
BNk RERPOERAAY B/ RENK AMREGERARK TER GELRERPIZ R
8,000,000
Guangzhou Kangpu Haemodialysis  The PRC/ Registered and paid-up capital 70% N/A Operation of haemodialysis
Centre Co., Ld.# Mainland China RMBS,000,000 outpatient centre
ENREMRERFOERARY HE/PERH aMREHERARE TEA BEMREWMDHL
8,000,000 7T
Zhongshan Kangcheng Haemodialysis The PRC/ Registered and paid-up capital 70% N/A Operation of haemodialysis
Centre Co., Lid# Mainland China RMB1,000,000 outpatient centre
PSR MRET R OERAR" B/ HENMY FMREHERARE TEA BEMREWFDRL
1,000,000 7T
Jieyang Kangcheng Haemodialysis ~ The PRC/ Registered and paid-up capital 70% N/A  Operation of haemodialysis
Co., Ltd.# Mainland China RMBT,000,000 outpatient centre
BEENMREN AR RE/ B FMREHERARE TER  ERmRENMZPO
1,000,000 7T
Yangjiang Jiangcheng Kangyi The PRC/ Registered and paid-up capital 70% N/A Operation of haemodialysis
HaemodialysisCo., Ltd.* Mainland China RMB1,000,000 outpatient centre
BLTIE R MREN R/ B AMRESERARK TER  ERmRENMZHL
BRAAM 1,000,000 7%
Jiangmen Kangcheng Haemodialysis ~ The PRC/ Registered and paid-up capital 70% N/A Operation of haemodialysis
Centre Co., Lid.# Mainland China RMB1,000,000 outpatient centre
IMRBMRENPOERAR® HE/RERN AMRESERARE TER BL2ORERHZHEL
1,000,000 7T
Zhuhai Kangcheng Hoemodialysis ~ The PRC/ Registered and paid-up capital 70% N/A Operation of haemodialysis
Co., Ltd.* Mainland China RMB1,000,000 outpatient centre
KERMMRENERA R B/ R E R AMREGERARK TER GELRERPIZ R
1,000,000 7
Chengdu Kangmin Haemodialysis ~ The PRC/ Registered and paid-up capital 70% N/A Operation of haemodialysis
Centre Co., Ltd.# Mainland China RMB2,000,000 outpatient centre
KBRROBRETHRLOERAFY  HE/HENMY aMREHERARE TEA BEMREWFDRL
2,000,000 7T
Chengdu Kangcheng Haemodialysis  The PRC/ Registered and paid-up capital 70% N/A Operation of haemodialysis
Centre Co., Ltd# Mainland China RMB2,000,000 outpatient centre
KBEROBRETROERARY  HE/ HENM FMREHERARE TER BEMREWFDHL
2,000,000,
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41.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

e MR RMEE
For the Year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z-_WF+-_A=+—HILEFE

4. MBEARER (&)

Place of
incorporation/ Issued and fully
establishment paid share capital/ Percentage of
and operations registered/paid-up capital equity interest atfributable
Narme of subsidiary HMAL/BUR  BEARGREE/ o the Group Principal activities
WELRAH 2E i/ EHER AEEEGERER DL IEEH
2024 2023
“E-mE “Z-=F
Chengdu Kangyi Haemodialysis Centre The PRC/ Registered and paid-up capital 70% N/A Operation of haemodialysis
Co., Ltd.* Mainland China RMB2,000,000 outpatient centre
RBRBRORETROERAT* HE/ HERS AMREGERARK TER  BEOLRENMZHO
2,000,000
Managed and controlled entitles -
indirectly held
RERRIENER—AERE
Hefei Jingu Rehabilitation The PRC/ Sponsors fund RMB2,000,000 57% 57%  Operation of a rehabilitation
Hospital* Mainland China hospital
R ARERR" e/ B B/REES ARE2000,000 KeERERR
T
Hefei Kanghua Rehabilitation Hospital*  The PRC/ Sponsors fund RMB2,000,000 57% 57%  Operation of a rehabilitation
Mainland China hospital
eERERERR" B/ hE R BiHEE S AK%2,000,000 RERREER
7T
Note: During the year ended 31 December 2024, this company was established to MizE: HE-FT-_WF+-_A=+—H1

hold the land and buildings underlying the operations of Kangxin Hospital.

L These are wholly-owned subsidiaries of Anhui Hualin. The principal activities
of Anhui Hualin and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “Anhui Hualin
Group”) consisted of provision of rehabilitation and other healthcare services.

" These are wholly-owned subsidiaries of Kanghua Haemodialysis. The
principal activities of Kanghua Haemodialysis and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as "Kanghua Haemodialysis Group”) consisted of operation of

haemodialysis outpatient centres and provision of haemodialysis services.

* These are private non-enterprise entitles (& #¥ 3 1& 2 8 i1 ) directly and
indirectly managed and controlled by Anhui Hualin ("Managed and Controlled
Entities”), The Company indirectly exercise legal control and management
over these Managed and Controlled Entities through its 57% equity interest in
Anhui Hualin and Anhui Hualin's direct and indirect sponsor interests in these

Managed and Controlled Entities.

FE - RALZRRAFEREL B
KERBN LTI RET -

# WERRRRBERNZENB LR
Al RHERLEMEBAR (G
[ZHEREE)NI2EHEE
TR AR S EL At B AR TS

i RERARREMBRBETNEZEN
BRR - BEMBERTREHER
A(BREIEENRETEE])ME
EEBBELEMBENFIZH 0O
TSR M BGHE T AR TS

* HERARRBLTEER((XEER
I E A8 ) B N A B TR AR
BRPIFLEEMN - ARFIBEBE
P 22 BRHE TR B 57% % T 22 BUBE AR
RREXEERENERNEER
MEAREEGHZEXEIERE
HEEETEE AR REE -

EREEEREERNARAR F1 2024
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RE R RMEE

For the Year ended 31 December 2024
HE-Z-_WF+-A=1T—HILEHFE

41.

42.

PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the opinion
of the directors of the Company, principally affected the results for the year
or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To give
details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors of the
Company, result in particulars of excessive length.

Except for Kanghua Healthcare Management (HK) Company Limited, all
other subsidiaries listed above are wholly-domestic owned enterprise with
limited liability established in the PRC.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 9 January 2025, the Company entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with the Purchaser (see note 17) for the disposal of 55% equity
interest in Kangxin Hospital at a consideration of RMB34,936,000.

The disposal was later completed on 8 February 2025. Kangxin Hospital
ceased to be a subsidiary of the Company and the financial results of
Kangxin Hospital will no longer be consolidated into those of the Company.
The Company will account for its remaining 45% equity interest in Kangxin
Hospital as an interest in associate under equity method. The Group will
lease the land and building of Chongging Kanghua Property to Kangxin
Hospital for its operations. The Company is still in the progress of preparing
the initial accounting for the disposal up to the date of this annual report.
Details of the above contractual arrangements are set out in the Company’s
announcement dated 9 January 2025.
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42.

MEARER (&)

RNATEEREAELRIIERFESLE
REEXEIBRASBEEEFEE
ZEXBA 2 ARBMBRA - AR
AIEFERR  JHLEMNE QRS
ECHRERBHANITEK -

BREEBERER (BB ARAAIN
P LA L PR 51 B9 E A B JB 2 B B
BRI MEREETHRAZERE -

RERREE

R-ZFE_AFE—-—ANB  ARAHE
B (RM&E17) 5t & RO Bkt 55%
BRITVEEGZ RE/RARE
34,936,000 7T °

HESBEHEENR -_E-_HAF_-A/\B
TR -BROBRANBAAARMNE
DA BELBREANMEEESTEE
AABERRRINBMBES - A2E#
R A H RN E OB & T 45%
B ABRYER & DB AR - A%
EREEREVEN T REFHE
FTELEREEEZRH BHEAFR
HE AR EALESHETY
FSERE - LM AHNLTHENFEH
RAQNFTBBHA-—S-_RAE—ANA

MR -



Financial Summary

HBEE
For the year ended 31 December
BE+-A=1+—HLEE
2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
—EBEomME —E-=f —E-_Z —T-—F CZZT-ETF
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETRT ARETT AR®TT ARETT ARETR
(restated)
(F&&E7))
RESULTS ES
Revenue Wz 2,055,670 2,041,858 1,845,633 1,953,944 1,745,023
Profit (loss) before taxation B AR N (1) 63,055 153,429 69,309 129,209 (26,089)
Income tax expense g Rif X (52,582) (62,406) (43,025) (62,284) (23,967
Profit (loss) and total FrEM (BE) k2|
comprehensive income WA (%)@
(expense) for the year 10,473 91,023 26,284 66,925 (50,056
Attributable to: AN A TR
Equity owners of the Company A AREZRF B A 15,337 121,062 59,697 94,307 (25,372)
Non-controlling interests FEERE (4,864) (30,039) (33,413) (27,382) (24,684)
10,473 91,023 26,284 66,925 (50,056
As at 31 December
Rt=-A=t+—H
2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
ZERINFE —T-=fF T "—T_—F C"T_THF
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETRT ARBTRT AR®TRT ARETIT ARETR
(restated)
(#&=%))
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
Total assets BEE 2,741,535 2,624,986 2,719,334 2,704,602 2,453,901
Total liabilities wafE (1,279,188) 1,127,459) 1,204,806) 1,230,175) (1,046,399)
1,462,347 1,497,527 1,514,528 1,474,427 1,407,502
Equity atfributable fo: WAL EE#
Equity owners of the Company RN AI#EZ A A 1,439,522 1,424,185 1,499,007 1,426,837 1,332,530
Non-controlling interests i 22,825 73,342 15,521 47,590 74,972
1,462,347 1,497,527 1,514,528 1,474,427 1,407,502
Notes: 5T -
) The financial information set out above is prepared in accordance with International (i) P AR RBER M SRS ERRE

Financial Reporting Standards.

(il The financial summary does not form part of the consolidated financial statements. i) BB TEKGEHBREN M0 -
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Definitions
Adiusted EBITDA
[ 48 3 X EBITDA |

AGM
[BSRBF A ]

Anhui Hualin

[ 2B HERR ]

Anhui Hualin Group

EL G

k)

Articles

[E12]

Audit Committee
[EZLE g

Board of Directors or Board

=

CG Code
[EERSFA ]

Company

[ARE] ]

the earnings before accounting for bank and other interest income, interest expenses,
taxes, depreciation and amortisation, fair value gain/loss and investment income from
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) and exchange gain/loss
MBRRITREMFSWA - RIS  BE - EREHE 2TEREBERE
ATEFABGNERNEERERARE R W BB

the annual general meeting of the Company for the year 2024 to be convened and held on
18 June 2025
ARRER _E_AF A AATN\BEARRETH _ZS_NFERRAEFAE

Anhui Hualin Medical Investment Co., Ltd. (% #{#% 75 B8 B 1% & A IR 2 7)), a limited liability
company established in the PRC on 19 December 2016 with 57% of its equity interest being
held by Dongguan Kanghua Medical Rehabilitation Investment Company Limited (5 52 57
EFEREREAR A A, awholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and 43% held by
Hefei Haihua Enterprises Management Consulting Partnership (Limited Partnership) (& E
BECEEEARBEZLE (BRAER)), anIndependent Third Party
THERBEREERAT RZE-—ARE+T AT BEHRBEKIHERDF
HRES B —BARAA2EMBAR (REREREERKREARAAE) KRBT
E=H(ERESECEBEANGELE(BRER))FHES7% K 43%

Anhui Hualin together with the entities the results of which are consolidated into its financial
statements

RHERERFEA AN BHRRTNER

the articles of association of the Company, as amended, modified or supplemented from
fime fo time

RRABEARRER]  BRRBRHAAER

the audit committee of the Board
EETEERETEY

the board of Directors of the Company

ARREEE

the Corporate Governance Code contained in Appendix C1 to the Hong Kong Listing Rules

BB L WARRIMECIAENCEEERTRD

Guangdong Kanghua Healthcare Group Co., lid. (EREZEZEEBRMHER A A, a
joint stock limited liability company established under the laws of the PRC, the H Shares of
which are listed on the Main Board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (Stock code: 3689)
BREREEREBERNARLF  —RKEBBHPEVEERKINRNHNERAF - HHAR
BB P ER L (RS - 3689)
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Controlling Shareholders

[ 2R A% IR

Director(s)

=

Domestic Share(s)

[RE ]

GI’OUp or we or our

NS REAE:A SN

H Sharel(s)

[HAx ]

HK$ or Hong Kong dollars

[Tl

Hong Kong
(&%

Hong Kong Listing Rules
[F& EmRAI

Hong Kong Stock Exchange
[ & B3P

Huaxin Building

[ 08 ]

Definitions

has the meaning ascribed under the Hong Kong Listing Rules

AEB LWARRIMETHRE

the director(s) of the Company

RRAREFHEM—NES

ordinary share(s) in the share capital of the Company, with a nominal value of RMB1.00
each, which are subscribed for and paid up in RMB and are unlisted Shares which are
currently not listed or traded on any stock exchange

RRRRA T EREERARE1.00 T IAARERBAR SEURBRRE E R -
WEHRBAAREERAESFR S LMK HHIE LT

the Company and its subsidiaries

RRABREKE AR

overseas listed foreign invested ordinary sharel(s) in the ordinary share capital of the
Company, with a nominal value of RMB1.00 each, listed on the Main Board of the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange

RRAEBREAFFREEARELOOTTHIRIN ETINE FRAR - RE BB
FIRET

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong

BT BREAEEH

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
PR EBRERTHRE

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited,
as amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time
(BERBMARGMBRARER LMARD  BTRERT - Mk AE M7 &K

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
EREBMAERGAARRAT

refers to the complex (¥ 0,42 ) at Kanghua Hospital which was commissioned to provide
VIP healthcare services
REBRZELE  EoREHEEEERS

EREEEREERNARAR F1 2024
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Definitions

Independent Third Party(ies)

(B E=77 ]

Kangdi Enterprise

Kanghua Group

[FRESHE

Kanghua Haemodialysis

[R5 R 35 17 |

Kanghua Haemodialysis Group

[EREE MR T =

Kanghua Healthcare Investment

[REBFNE

Any entity or person who is not a connected person of our Company within the meaning
ascribed thereto under the Hong Kong Listing Rules

BREEELTHRA BEXEELTRAE TFRE  LIERARBBEALTHEMR
B AL

Dongguan Kangdi Enterprise Co., Ltd. (R 52 B 7 & 2 B R A ), a limited liability
company established in the PRC on 25 July 2014 with 50% of its equity interest held by
Mr. Wang Zhengren (£ B 1=) and 50% by Ms. Wang Keying (E 7 &), all of whom are
members of the Wang Family, being cousins of Mr. Wang Junyang. Kangdi Enterprise holds
a 15% equity interest in Renkang Hospital

RETRTEFERAR — KR ZE-—OF+t A +HRAEFREKINEREME
AR EREBRERCEERTAIERTRFRS0% REHARTIRRENKE K
ITELRENERBERK - RHEEENCRBRFE15% 8

Dongguan Kanghua Investment Group Co., lid. (R MR ERESEBEBR Q2 7)), a
limited liability company established in the PRC on 29 March 2002 holding approximately
59.06% interest in the Company. It is owned as to 97.46% by Mr. Wang Junyang and as to
2.54% by Ms. Wang Aici.

REMREREEBMERAR —~FR-ZETE_F=A=-thBEFEKINE
REERGT  FHEARAINS06% s  ENRBTELEERTEELTHE
97.46% £ 2.54% °

Dongguan Kanghua Haemodialysis Healthcare Investment Management Co., Lid.* (38 5¢
BEE MRS N BEREEIEAR A A, alimited liability company established in the PRC
on 24 February 2016 and owned as to 70% by the Company, 15% by Dongguan YouWang
Enterprise Investment Co., Lid.* (R B B 2% E B R 2 A) and 15% by Guangzhou
Kanghe Investment Partnership (Limited Parinership) * (BN E SR ES B (BRAE)),
both are Independent Third Parties

REREMRENBEREEERERAR  RZE—R"F_AZTHWBAAERBEIK L
WERAR  HRESANBEARA RxMERBEEREERAGIREMNEEGKRE
ERCE(ERER) MRRBULE=T) - FH70%  15% K& 15%

Kanghua Haemodialysis together with the entities the results of which are consolidated into
its financial statements

FEMBBMERXERHIEMBRRTOER

Dongguan Kanghua Healthcare Investment Co., Lid. (REEEREEE IR E B R AR, a
limited liability company established in the PRC on 7 August 2020 and a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company

REREREREERAR KR _Z-_ZFNALtHEFBEKINERETA
AIBEAARRRINEEMB AR
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Kanghua Hospital

[EREE g R

Kanghua Hospital Lease Agreement

[EREBREE =

Kanghua Qingxi Healthcare Complex

(B2 o BRI

Kanghua Real Estate Development

[ BR 5 = h EE A 3 |

Kangxin Hospital

[0 &8P

Model Code
[fZ%E=<F Al

Nomination Committee

[REEEE]
Non-Competition Undertaking
[ 3R #GE

08&G
B ERH

Definitions

BE

Dongguan Kanghua Hospital Co., Ltd. (5 55 5 % 2 Bt 5 R 2 &), a limited liability
company established in the PRC on 15 September 2005 and a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company

REREBRARLAA  — KR _ZEZRFNATEBERBEKINEGREEAT
BRARRNEEMBERF

the lease agreement dated 10 April 2016 entered into between Kanghua Hospital and
Kanghua Group with respect to the land and buildings underlying the operations of
Kanghua Hospital
HERERERERENFEERREEREN T REEMTYMABRA-ZZT—X
FUA+ANEERZ

the Group’s integrated elderly medical and healthcare complex development in Qingxi
Town, Dongguan City, situated at the land parcel of Jiaoling Villagers Committee, Liheng
Village, Qingxi Town, Dongguan City, the PRC (east fo the open space, south to the Qingxi
Revolutionary Martyrs Monument, west to the road, north to the Qingxi Nursing Home)
AEBUNREMERBENEFBRREGAMAEFELR  LENPERZTERE
HENAKRNENE REEN - BEBREGANTLRE AR EEFEMER)
B 3 358

Dongguan Kanghua Real Estate Development Co., Lid. (SR REREREGR AR,
a limited liability company established in the PRC on 6 September 2016, and is owned as to
80% by Xingye Group and 20% by Xingda Property

RETREFWERBARDF  —ZR_Z—R"FAARBERENINERE
ERR] - AEEEEREEYED RIS 80% 5 20%

Chongging Kanghua Zhonglian Cardiovascular Hospital Co., Lid. ( & B 5 5 &2 B 0 [0 &
7% B8 B 4 PR A 7)), a limited liability company established in the PRC on 10 June 2014 and a
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company

EERERBOMNERERARAR  RZE—NFAAATAEFEKRIHERR
8 R—HEAXRBENEZENRBAF

the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix
C3 to the Hong Kong Listing Rules
ERLTRAMSECIMEH ETETAEFTETE SR HIRESTAD

the nomination committee of the Board

EXgREEEY

the non-competition undertaking dated 11 October 2016 provided by the Controlling
Shareholders in favour of the Company

ERBERARNRB B BARBOEH R T —"F+ A+ BT HF AR

obstetrics and gynaecology
BER

EREEEREERNARAR F1 2024
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Definitions

PRC Company Law

[PEREDE]

PRC or China
[ [

Prospectus
[ ERE ]

Remuneration Committee

[(FEES
Renkang Elderly Care Centre

[= Br & 32 P |

Renkang Hospital

[ Bz &k

Renkang Hospital Lease Agreement
[{CEREEE =

Reporting Period
[ & HAE |

RMB
(AR

the Company Law of the People’s Republic of China (#F # A B £ M E 2 717%), as
amended and adopted by the Standing Committee of the Twelfth National People’s
Congress on 28 December 2013 and effective on 1 March 2014, as amended,
supplemented and otherwise modified from time to time

(FEARKMERNGZE)  BFETZEBE2EARREASEBLZESHR T —=F
TZRAZHN\REEEA BT —HFE=HA —BRER  KTRFER xRk
LA E At 75 A AE B

the People’s Republic of China
hEE AR LM

the prospectus of the Company dated 27 October 2016
ARRBEHA-ZT—AR"FTA-TLENHERER

the remuneration committee of the Board
EFeHWEEE

Dongguan Renkang Elderly Care Centre Co., Ltd. (B 55{= 5z & 1 Ft A BR 2 7)), a limited
liability company established in the PRC on 27 September 2017 and a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Renkang Hospital

ECREERBRAR] — KR _E—+FNATHEEFBRKINBREE
AR BRCERBRENZEWE AR

Dongguan Renkang Hospital Co., Ltd. (5 3£ 1= EE & fx A BR 2 7). a limited liability
company established in the PRC on 23 August 2005 with 57% of its equity inferest being
held by the Company, 15% by Kangdi Enterprise, 15% by Ms. Zhang Dandan and 13% by
Ms. Wang Aier, respectively

RECEBRBERAR  — KR _ZEAENAT=ZBEFBREKXINEREFAF -
HE#EDBBHARR FHEE RAFNLKLIREERLLHAES% 15%  15% &
13%

the lease agreement dated 10 April 2016 entered into between Renkang Hospital and Tongli
Enterprise with respect to the land and buildings underlying the operations of Renkang
Hospital

HECRBRERNEERCRERECEREN LM REZEDIIINEHR TR
FHUA+BENEERR

the year ended 31 December 2024
BE_T_MF+_A=+—HILFE

the lawful currency of the PRC

FEDEE S
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SFO

[ 78 5 K B R 15 |
Sharels)

[R5 ]

Shareholder(s)
[ A% 2R

subsidiary or subsidiaries
=Nl

substantial shareholder(s)
[EBRRE]

Supervisor(s)

(B2 %]

Supervisory Committee

(e &

Tongli Enterprise

[RAAHEX]

Definitions

the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the laws of Hong Kong), as amended,
supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time

BEEDIE SNEC(EZ LB FRPD) B TRER] « BRI A R T A ER)

sharels) in the share capital of the Company, with a nominal value of RMB1.00 each,
including the Domestic Share(s) and the H Sharel(s)
ARARAFERAEARBLOOTTHR G  BERNERKHE

holder(s) of the Share(s)
EHOFEE A

has the meaning ascribed thereto in the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the laws of
Hong Kong)
BEEBEBENE 6225 (A RMEHD R TZ AN SR

has the meaning ascribed thereto in the Hong Kong Listing Rules
BEBERELTMARBETZANEE

the members of the Supervisory Committee

the Company’s supervisory committee established pursuant to the PRC Company Law
RARIRBHREARRDERINESS

Dongguan Tongli Enterprise Co., Ltd. ((R5e ™ [/ /7 & % B R 2 7]), a limited liability
company established in the PRC on 23 June 2003 with 43% of its equity interest being held
by Ms. Wang Aigin, 29% by Ms. Wang Aici, 15% by Ms. Zhang Dandan (5& 7+7%) and 13%
by Ms. Wang Aier (T & 52), respectively, all of whom are members of the Wang Family,
being aunts of Mr. Wang Junyang. Pursuant to a nominee arrangement among the Wang
Family, (il Ms. Wang Aici (an aunt of Mr. Wang Junyang) agreed to hold 16% of her equity
interest in Tongli Enterprise on behalf of Mr. Wang Junyang; (il Ms. Wang Aigin (an aunt of
Mr. Wang Junyang and the spouse of Mr. Chen Wangzhi) agreed to hold 15% and 6.5%
of her equity interest in Tongli Enterprise on behalf of Mr. Wang Junyang and Mr. Chen
Wangzhi, respectively; and (i) Ms. Wang Aigin agreed to hold 15% of her equity interest in
Tongli Enterprise on behalf of Mr. Wang Wencheng (£ XX X )

REMRANEXEERAA —ZXR_ZZ=F A +T=ZHEFEKINERE
ERAG ERESHBTIEHLLT FTERBERLT RANXITREIERLTHE
43% ~ 29% ~ 15% % 13% - WFEHY/EIRRENRERIEGRENGHRET - 1R
BERREPHORBALH (1 EEERZL (EBLARENBR) RERKRIESL T
ARAERRNER6%ER : (| EEB 2+ (EBRH K ENGTE RRER T ENER)
RERREBGEERREREEDRIFAERR N B 15% K 6.5% K
IFEHLTRABRRENKEEHBERRANEE15%E R

EREEEREERNARAR F1 2024
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Definitions

Wang Family
[ER K&

Xingda Property

[ B %]

Xingye Group

[BiR&H ]

%
%

The family members of the founder of the Group, the late Mr. Wang Jincheng (£ & ),
including (i) his children; (i) his siblings; (iii) the spouses of his siblings; and (iv) the children of
his siblings

REBEAPAERESHAENREXE - BFEF 2 (i) E TR (i) KT
BRI BB - R (v B L B IR F &

Dongguan Xingda Property Investment Co., ltd. (RETHEHEYE L EBER QD
Al), a limited liability company established in the PRC on 14 December 2001 holding
approximately 8.22% interest in the Company. It is owned as to 50% each by Mr. Chen
Wangzhi and Ms. Wang Aigin

REMBEEYEREEARAG —ZKR_ZET—F+_ATHEBEFRBEKIHER
NA FARRFH8.22% s - HHRESRSEAENEEH LT XHEH 50%

Dongguan Xingye Group Co., Ltd. (R 5T 8 % & B B R 2 &), a limited liability
company established in the PRC on 15 April 1997 holding approximately 7.48% interest in
the Company. It is owned as to 50.0% by Mr. Wang Junyang, as to 48.0% by Dongguan
Kangwei Industrial Investment Co., Lid. (SR R EE 1% & AR 7)) and as to 2.0% by
Ms. Wang Aici, respectively

RETEEEEFRAF — KR - NWNtFEATRREREXZHARRF

RAARANTABYERZ  HHEIBELAE RETREBEEEREBERAFANREE
BT D RIHE 50.0% * 48.0% & 2.0%

percentage ratio
ERainds =3
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